
 
 

 
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 

 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  
 

CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

MONDAY, JANUARY 3, 2022 – 5:15 PM  
 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the San Fernando City Council will hold a Special Meeting on 
Monday, January 3, 2022. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

Mayor Mary Mendoza  
Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco 
Councilmember Sylvia Ballin 
Councilmember Cindy Montañez  
Councilmember Celeste T. Rodriguez 
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 
DECORUM AND ORDER 
 
The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment. Public members attending City Council meetings shall observe the same 
rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from 
the room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred 
from further audience before the City Council. 
 

 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
 
There will be a three (3) minute limitation per each member of the audience who wishes to make 
comments relating to City Business.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the blue form 
located at the Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  When addressing the 
City Council, please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name and address. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 1 of 443

http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/SF-Council-Procedural-Manual-8-19-19.pdf


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Special Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 3, 2022 
Page 2 of 2

 

 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO G.C. §54957.6: 
  

Designated City Negotiators:  
City Manager Nick Kimball 

Employees and Employee Bargaining Units: 
 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-Time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 
 

B) CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(4) 
ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
 
Two (2) Related Matters 

 
 
RECONVENE/REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT The meeting will adjourn to the regular meeting of January 3, 2022. 

 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
   
 
__________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted:  December 30, 2021 (4:00 p.m.) 
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s Internet website 
(www.sfcity.org).  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 443

http://www.sfcity.org/
http://www.sfcity.org/


January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 3 of 443



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 4 of 443



 
 

 
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

 CITY COUNCIL 
AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 
MONDAY, JANUARY 3, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 
 
 

 
WATCH THE MEETING:   Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at:  

 

 https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 
 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. PRESENTATION IN RECOGNITION OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY FOR THE 2020-

2021 CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIANCY GRANT AWARD OF $50,000 TO THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 5 of 443

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 3, 2022 
Page 2 of 5

 

 

DECORUM AND ORDER 
 
The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment. Public members attending City Council meetings shall observe the same rules 
of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person making 
impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the 
City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the room if the 
Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from further 
audience before the City Council. 
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
There will be a three (3) minute limitation per each member of the audience who wishes to make 
comments relating to City Business.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the blue form located 
at the Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  When addressing the City Council, 
please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name and address. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FOR: 

 
a. MAY 18, 2020 - REGULAR MEETING e. MARCH 1, 2021 - REGULAR MEETING 
b. AUGUST 17, 2020 - REGULAR MEETING f. OCTOBER 4, 2021 - REGULAR MEETING 
c. SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 - REGULAR MEETING g. OCTOBER 18, 2021 -  REGULAR MEETING 
d. SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 - REGULAR MEETING h. DECEMBER 6, 2021 - SPECIAL MEETING 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NOS. 21-122 AND 22-011 APPROVING THE 
WARRANT REGISTERS OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 AND JANUARY 3, 2022 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 21-122 approving the Warrant Register dated December 20, 2021; 

and 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 22-011 approving the Warrant Register dated January 3, 2022. 
 

3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE LAST AND FINAL RECOGNIZED 
OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2022 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023 
FOR THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 6 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 3, 2022 
Page 3 of 5

 

 

Recommend that the Board of Directors: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 168 approving the Successor Agency’s Last and Final ROPS for the 

period from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023; and 
 

b. Authorize the Executive Director to take certain related actions. 
 
4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING, INC. FOR ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING 
SERVICES AND PERMIT FEES RELATED TO THE UPPER RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a third Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with John Robinson 

Consulting, Inc. (Contract No. 1912(c)) for additional engineering services and fees related 
to the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project; and  

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related documents. 
 

5) RECEIVE AND FILE AN UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 
 
Recommend that the City Council receive and file an update related to the City’s COVID-19 
efforts, including, but not limited to the City’s COVID-19 planning, response, enforcement; 
education and outreach efforts; financial assistance programs and the pursuit of funding 
opportunities; COVID-19 related policy initiatives; and related recommendations, as 
appropriate. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
6) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE 2021 

CITYWIDE ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY FOR SPEED LIMITS TO ALLOW FOR SPEED 
RADAR ENFORCEMENT ON CITY STREETS AND THE ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING THE CITY CODE RELATING TO SPEED LIMITS 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Conduct a Public Hearing; and 
 
b. Pending public testimony, introduce for first reading, in title only, and waive further 

reading of Ordinance No. 1705, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San 
Fernando, California, Amending Sections 90-941 and 90-942 of Chapter 90 of the City of 
San Fernando City Code Relating to Speed Limits”; and 

 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 8111 approving the 2021 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey 

Report to establish speed limit zones in the City. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 7 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 3, 2022 
Page 4 of 5

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
7) PRESENTATION AND STUDY SESSION OF THE DRAFT 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT AND 

SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE TO THE GENERAL PLAN  
 

Recommend that the City Council receive a presentation and provide feedback on the 
proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to the General Plan. 
 

8) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO ADOPT AN INTERIM URGENCY ORDINANCE 
ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS FOR URBAN LOT SPLITS AND HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-1) ZONE FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF SENATE BILL 9 (SB 9) 
AND AUTHORIZE A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR A PROPOSED BALLOT INITIATIVE TO 
OVERTURN SB 9 

 
Recommend that the City Council:  
 
a. Adopt Interim Urgency Ordinance No. U-1706 establishing regulations for Urban Lot Splits 

and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for implementation of 
Senate Bill 9; and 

 
b. Authorize the Mayor and City Manager to submit a letter of support to the Brand-Huang-

Mendoza Tripartisan Land Use Initiative committee and take other related actions 
supporting the ballot initiative titled, “Provides That Local Land-Use and Zoning Laws 
Override Conflicting State Laws. Initiative Constitutional Amendment.” 

 
9) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS, AD 

HOC COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS AND ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE CITY’S 
ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE INDEPENDENT CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT 
AUTHORITY GOVERNING BOARD 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Review and provide direction to staff regarding Councilmember Liaison Assignments, Ad 

Hoc Committees  and Commissions; and 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8110 appointing Michael Okafor as the primary alternate 
representative to the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority Governing Board. 

 
10) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO’S LEGISLATIVE BODIES IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(E) AND OTHER APPLICABLE 
PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 This item was agendized by Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 8 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/DRAFT-San-Fernando-Housing-Element.pdf
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/Safety-ElementUpdate_December2021_DRAFTred.pdf


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 3, 2022 
Page 5 of 5

 

 

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 

 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 

 
ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted: December 30, 2021 (5:00 p.m.) 

 

 

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves  as concurrent Regular Meeting s of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 9 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 10 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 11 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 12 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 13 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 14 of 443



 

SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
MAY 18, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, Vice Mayor Pacheco (joined via teleconference at 6:08 
p.m.) and Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin, Mary Mendoza, and Robert C. 
Gonzales (joined via teleconference at 6:08 p.m.) 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou, Director of Finance Diego Ibanez, Director of 
Recreation and Community Services Julian Venegas and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: None 
 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by Mayor Joel Fajardo   
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor Fajardo announced the content for Item No. 3 was inadvertently included in the agenda 
packet under Item No. 4 and vice versa.  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to approve the agenda as 
amended, restoring the content of Item No. 3 to Item No. 4 and the content of Item No. 4 back 
to Item No. 3.  The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Fajardo, Ballin, Mendoza – 3 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: Pacheco, Gonzales - 2 

 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS:   None 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 15 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 2 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Councilmember Mendoza pulled Item No. 3 from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion.   

 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza to approve Consent Calendar 
Items No. 1 and 2 to approve: 
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
2) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE SUBMITTAL OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE FARMERS 

MARKET PROMOTION PROGRAM FOR FUNDING OF A FARMERS MARKET IN SAN 
FERNANDO 

 

The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 ROLL CALL 
AYES: Fajardo, Ballin, Mendoza – 3 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: Pacheco, Gonzales – 2 

 
Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Gonzales joined the meeting at 6:08 p.m. 
 
ITEM PULLED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
3) CONSIDERATION TO WAIVE 2019 BUSINESS LICENSE PENALTY FEES 
 
City Manager Kimball provided a brief report and responded to Councilmembers questions. 
  
Motion by Councilmember Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Ballin to approve:  

 
a. Consider temporarily waiving Business License Penalty Fees from 2019 and resuming the 

collection of Penalty Fees in February 2021;  
b. Adopt Resolution No. 8803 implementing the proposed waiving of Business License Penalty 

Fees from 2019 and resuming collection of fees in February 2021; and 
 c. Authorize the City Manager, or designee, to finalize and execute all documents related to 

waiving the 2019 Business License Penalty Fees and Councilmember Ballin seconded the 
motion.  

 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Fajardo, Gonzales, Ballin, Mendoza – 4 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  Pacheco - 1 
ABSENT: None 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 16 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 3 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
4) DISCUSSION OF CITY'S ACTIONS REGARDING CORONAVIRUS INCLUDING FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES 
 
City Manager Kimball discussed the need to develop ways to decrease the number of COVID-19 
cases emphasized the importance of safety protocols.   
 
Councilmembers commented on the increased number of positive cases and stricter guidelines 
and enforcements, such as restaurants providing pre-packaged utensils and the costs involved 
for the owner, increase community outreach efforts to educate and remind everyone to take 
necessary appropriate precautions and to follow the health order guidelines and the potential 
use of CDBG funds towards educational efforts.  
 
Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Tim Hou displayed informational 
materials for distribution to local businesses; addressed Code Enforcement and spoke about 
efforts and resources available through the County Health Department. 
 
It was the consensus of the City Council to bring back a report for the discussion regarding 
extending financial assistance programs to the special meeting on May 21, 2020.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Gonzales to walk-on an item on tonight’s agenda as Item 13 regarding 
approval of a letter of support calling on the State to secure funds associated with the CARES Act.  
Mayor Fajardo seconded the motion.  By consensus, the motion passed. 
 
13) WALK-ON ITEM 
 
Motion by Councilmember Gonzales to approve a letter of support calling on the State to secure 
$7 billion in direct and flexible funding to support critical local services and secure CARES Act 
funding for all cities for COVIC-19 related expenditures, and the federal government to secure 
$500 billion in direct and flexible funding for all cities nationwide to support critical local services   
and seconded by Mayor Fajardo.       
 

The motion carried with the following vote: 
 
ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo - 5 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: None 

 
5) DISCUSS USE OF ADDITIONAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS 

PROVIDED THROUGH THE CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF, AND ECONOMIC SECURITY ACT    
 
City Manager Kimball presented details of the report. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 17 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 4 
 

Discussion followed regarding investing $25,000 for PPE for citizens and local businesses, food 
vouchers, hiring a consultant to coordinate COVID-19 aid and help small businesses reopen 
safely, continuing to work with the County in terms of testing, working with local supermarkets, 
putting together PPE care packages for distribution to San Fernando households and businesses, 
the possibility of using CDBG funds for upgrades to bandwidth and youth enrichment programs.     
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, and seconded by Councilmember Ballin to receive a presentation 
regarding the additional Community Development Block Grant funding allocated to the City 
through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act; limit focus to Items No. 1 for 
$25,000 and Item No. 3 for the balance of $111.373 as detailed in the staff report and direct staff 
to return with a plan to implement those items.  
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Fajardo, Pacheco, Ballin – 3 
NOES:  Gonzales, Mendoza - 2 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: None 

 
9) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2-121(2) AND SECTION 

2-161 OF THE SAN FERNANDO CITY MUNICIPAL CODE TO PERMIT THE APPOINTMENT OF A 
CITY CLERK BY THE CITY MANAGER 

 
City Manager Kimball presented details of the report. 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, and seconded by Councilmember Gonzales to introduce for first 
reading, in title only, and waive full reading of Ordinance No. 1695 "An Ordinance of the City 
Council of the City of San Fernando, California, amending section 2-121(2) and Section 2-161 of 
the San Fernando Municipal Code to permit the appointment of a City Clerk by the City 
Manager."; and adopt Resolution No. 7973(a) amending Resolution No. 7973 to include the City 
Clerk in the Executive Compensation Plan for Department Head classifications. 
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
AYES:  Fajardo, Pacheco, Ballin, Gonzales, Mendoza – 5 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

8) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT AN URGENCY ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 26-91(A) OF 
THE SAN FERNANDO CITY CODE TO PERMIT THE APPOINTMENT OF ANY MEMBER OF THE 
COUNCIL AS CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR OF THE DISASTER COUNCIL 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 18 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 5 
 

This Urgency Ordinance was introduced pursuant to Government Code Sections 36934 
and 36937 and requires a four-fifths (4/5th's) vote for adoption.  

 
City Manager Kimball presented details of the report. 
 
Mayor Fajardo indicated his wish to continue serving on the Disaster Council through the end of 
his term.  
 
Discussion followed regarding the eliminating stipends for members of the Disaster Council and 
the importance of having two City Council members on the Disaster Council. 
 
Councilmember Gonzales expressed interest in serving on the Disaster Council and listed his 
experience and qualifications.   
 
Discussion followed regarding including a coordinator for emergency services in the Council and 
someone from the Public Works Department.   
 
It was the consensus of the City Council that lunch be provided to its members at the quarterly 
Disaster committee meetings.  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin to adopt Urgency Ordinance No. 
1694 by title, "An Urgency Ordinance amending Section 26-91(a) of the San Fernando City Code 
to permit the appointment of any member of the City Council as Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Disaster Council" and eliminate stipends for members of the Disaster Council.  
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
AYES:  Fajardo, Ballin, Gonzales, Mendoza – 4 
NOES:  Pacheco - 1 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: None 

 
City Manager Kimball clarified that the discussion to select two City Councilmembers to serve on 
the Disaster Committee would be brought back to City Council at the next meeting. 
 
At 8:32 p.m. Mayor Fajardo stated he would be leaving the meeting and yielded the Chair to Vice 
Mayor Pacheco. 
 
6) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH THE LOS ANGELES 

COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO CONTINUE PARTICIPATION IN THE LOS ANGELES 
URBAN COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

   
City Manager Kimball presented details of the report. 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 19 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 6 
 

Motion by Councilmember Ballin, and seconded by Councilmember Gonzales to approve the 
Cooperation Agreement with the Los Angeles County Development Authority (Contract No. 1952) 
to continue participation in the Los Angeles Urban County Community Development Block Grant 
program; and authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all 
related documents.  
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Pacheco, Gonzales, Ballin, Mendoza – 4 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: Fajardo - 1 

 
7)   CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN INCREASE TO ENVIROGEN TECHNOLOGIES' PURCHASE 

ORDER FOR ADDITIONAL OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES RELATED TO THE ION-
EXCHANGE SYSTEM FOR SAN FERNANDO WELL NO. 7 

 
City Manager Kimball presented details of the report. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Gonzales, and seconded by Councilmember Ballin to authorize the 
City Manager to increase Purchase Order No. 12115 with Envirogen Technologies in the amount 
of $40,000 to cover the cost of additional operations and maintenance services related to the 
Ion-Exchange System at San Fernando Well No. 7.  
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
AYES:  Pacheco, Gonzales, Ballin, Mendoza – 4 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: Fajardo - 1 

 
 
10) CONSIDERATION OF FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2020-2021 LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT (LLAD) APPROVAL OF ENGINEER'S REPORT AND SETTING THE DATE 
FOR THE PUBLIC HEARING 

 
City Manager Kimball presented details of the report. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Gonzales to adopt Resolution No. 7999 approving the Engineer's 
Report for FY 2020-2021 Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD); and adopt 
Resolution No. 8000 declaring the City Council's intention to order the annual assessments for FY 
2020-2021 LLAD and setting the date for the Public Hearing on June 15, 2020, and seconded by 
Councilmember Ballin.   
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 20 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 7 
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
AYES:  Pacheco, Gonzales, Ballin, Mendoza – 4 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: Fajardo - 1 

 
City Manager Kimball suggested to consider Items No. 11 and 12, concurrently.   
 
11) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY TREASURER AND 

DEPUTY CITY TREASURER TO INVEST SURPLUS FUNDS 
 
12) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE INVESTMENT POLICY FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Gonzales to adopt Resolution No. 
8001 authorizing the City Treasurer and Deputy City Treasurer to invest surplus funds and adopt 
Resolution No. 8002, approving the Annual Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
AYES:  Pacheco, Gonzales, Ballin, Mendoza – 4 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT: Fajardo - 1 

 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES  
 
City Clerk Fritz provided an update of a recent meeting of the Education Commission where it 
chose ten students for receipt of an educational scholarship.   
 

Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Hou provided an update of a recent 
meeting of the Planning and Preservation Commission and announced the City received an 
American Planning Association award for Excellence for a Comprehensive Plan in a Small 
Jurisdiction.   
 
City Manager Kimball presented updates of the construction efforts on Glen Oaks; addressed 
Education and Transportation Safety Commission meetings; spoke about support from the 
Community Investment Fund for a High School Senior banner program; thanked City Council for 
its support for staff and discussed closure of City parks and City Hall.      
 

 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 21 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 8 
 

GENERAL COUNCIL COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Mendoza reported her appointment to the L.A. County Selection Committee for 
the L.A. County Library Commission and thanked Former Assemblymember Patty Lopez for the 
recent food distribution event at the San Fernando Swap Meet.   
 
Councilmember Gonzales congratulated Councilmember Mendoza on her appointment; thanked 
City Council for supporting the letter relative to the CARES Act funding; discussed installation of 
banners; spoke about COVID-19 increasing case numbers and addressed organized sports.   
 
Councilmember Ballin congratulated Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development 
Hou on the recent award; discussed Nurses Appreciation Month; thanked the Shadow Hills 
Rotary Club for the donation of face shields to nursing homes; asked that the City send a letter 
of appreciation to them and spoke about moratoriums on evictions. 
 
Vice Mayor Pacheco presented an update on the City's tree-planting efforts; congratulated 
recipients of the Education Commission scholarships and thanked City staff for their work 
obtaining grants. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (9:05 P.M.) 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Pacheco, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza to adjourn the meeting 
at 9:05 p.m.  By consensus the motion carried, with Mayor Fajardo absent.  
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of May 18, 2020, meeting 
as approved by the San Fernando City Council. 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 22 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 23 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 24 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
AUGUST 17, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

TELECONFERENCE – PER GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 6:22 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco, Councilmembers Sylvia 
Ballin, and Mary Mendoza 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou, Director of Finance Diego Ibanez, Director of Public 
Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
Julian Venegas and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: Councilmember Robert C. Gonzales  

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by Mayor Fajardo 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Vice Mayor Pacheco to approve the agenda as 
presented.   
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 AYES:  Ballin, Mendoza, Pacheco and Fajardo - 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Gonzales - 1 
 ABSTAIN: None 

 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 25 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – August 17, 2020 
Page 2 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS – WRITTEN 
 
City Clerk Fritz read public comments submitted by: 
 
Sarah Ro Ahearn, spoke about the pandemic forcing her business to close, seeking City 
assistance and plans to assist small businesses.  
 
Liana Stepanyan, San Fernando Library Manager, provided an update of library resources, 
services and virtual programs currently offered.   
 
Arturo Garcia-Mendoza, Field Representative for the office of Assemblymember Luz Rivas, 
discussed the Assemblywoman’s activities and programs and encouraged the public to 
complete the 2020 Census.   
 

 
PRESENTATION 
 
A) PROCLAMATION CELEBRATING THE 100TH ANNIVERSARY OF WOMEN'S RIGHT TO VOTE 

Councilmember Mary Mendoza 
 

On behalf of City Council, Councilmember Mendoza read and presented a proclamation 
celebrating the 100th Anniversary of Women's Right to Vote.  In addition, she noted the Ad 
Hoc Committee would like to collaborate with a non-profit organization to create a mural 
dedicated to Women's Suffrage.   

 

                                    
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Councilmember Ballin pulled Consent Item No. 2 for separate discussion. 
 

Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza to approve Item Nos. 1 and 3: 
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
3)  CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY’S GRANT MANAGEMENT 

POLICY TO COMPLY WITH 2 CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS (CFR) 200 – UNIFORM 
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES, AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR 
FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
 The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

  ROLL CALL 
  AYES:  Ballin, Mendoza, Pacheco and Fajardo - 4 
  NOES:  None 
  ABSENT:  Gonzales - 1 
  ABSTAIN:  None 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 26 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – August 17, 2020 
Page 3 
 

 
ITEM PULLED FOR SEPARATE DISCUSSION 
 
2) APPROVE FACILITY USE AGREEMENTS WITH THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGISTRAR’S-

RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK REGARDING ELECTION ACTIVITIES FOR THE NOVEMBER 3, 
2020, GENERAL ELECTION 

 
City Clerk Fritz responded to Councilmember questions about the County Registrar-
Recorder’s Offices on preparedness for the upcoming election, the installation of the 
permanent Vote By Mail ballot drop boxes, provided information on five day early voting 
centers in the City, and will bring back regular updates associated with elections related 
activities, at each Council meeting leading up to the elections.   

 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin to:  
 

a. Approve a Facility Use Agreement with the Los Angeles County Registrar’s 
Recorder/County Clerk (“RR/CC”) to use City Lot 6N as a Central Ballot Collection 
Check-In-Center (Contract No. 1963) for the November 3, 2020, General Election; 
 

b. Approve a Facility Use Agreement with RR/CC to use Las Palmas Park and Recreation 
Park as Vote Centers (Contract Nos. 1964 and 1965) for the November 3, 2020, 
General Election; and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive edits and execute all related 
documents. 

 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL 

 AYES:  Mendoza, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo – 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Gonzales - 1 
 ABSTAIN:  None 
 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
Mayor Fajardo announced that Item Nos. 5 and 6 would be considered prior to Item No. 4.   
 
5) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A LETTER OF AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN FERNANDO 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION RELATED TO THE GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 20903 
RETIREMENT INCENTIVE BENEFIT 

 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report; noted the need to cut expenses and 
highlighted main provisions in the agreement. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 27 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – August 17, 2020 
Page 4 
 

Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to: 
 
a. Approve the proposed Letter of Agreement (Contract No. 1962) between the City of 

San Fernando and the San Fernando Public Employees Association (SFPEA) outlining 
the terms and conditions related to the City’s offer of a retirement incentive to certain  
eligible employees in accordance with Government Code section 20903; and  

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive corrections and execute the 
 Letter of Agreement and all related documents. 

 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL  

AYES:  Mendoza, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo – 4 
  NOES:  None 
  ABSENT: Gonzales - 1 
  ABSTAIN: None 
 
6) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE LIST OF JOB CLASSIFICATIONS 

ELIGIBLE FOR RETIREMENT UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 
20903 

 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions. 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to:  
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8023 approving the List of Job Classifications that are eligible for 

retirement under the two-year additional service credit provisions of Government 
Code Section 20903; and 

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive corrections, and submit the  

approved list to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). 
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 
 ROLL CALL 
  AYES:  Mendoza, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo – 4 
  NOES:  None 
  ABSENT:  Gonzales - 1 
  ABSTAIN: None 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 28 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – August 17, 2020 
Page 5 
 

4) DISCUSSION REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS AND APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The City Council received a presentation from staff related to the City’s COVID-19 efforts 
including, but not limited to updates on the City’s COVID-19 planning, response, 
enforcement, education  efforts, related policy initiatives; and reviewed financial Federal 
and State funding assistance programs and addressed inquiries by Councilmembers 
regarding increasing public participation during City Council meetings.  

 
 City Council provided direction to staff to continue its COVID-19 response efforts. 
 

7) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION SETTING THE PROPERTY TAX RATE REQUIRED 
TO MEET THE CITY’S OBLIGATION TO THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT 
SYSTEM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 

 
Director of Finance Ibanez presented the staff report and responded to questions from City 
Council.   City Manager Kimball discussed the CalPERS Side Fund Loan and presented two 
options for City Council consideration.   
 
Mayor Fajardo spoke in favor of lowering the tax rate; discussed providing economic relief 
to the public and commented on the City's prior use of property taxes to pay for employee 
health benefits and noted steps taken to rectify the errors.   
 
In reply to Vice Mayor Pacheco's question, City Manager Kimball commented on what the 
funds were used for, and the terms of repayment mentioned in the resolution adopted in 
2013.       
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin to adopt Resolution No. 
8024 establishing the amount necessary to be raised by taxation for the City’s annual 
payment to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System; Fix the property tax rate 
for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 at $0.203571 per $100 of assessed valuation; and Levy that tax 
rate upon all taxable property in the City. 

  
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL  

AYES:  Mendoza, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo – 4 
  NOES:  None 
  ABSENT: Gonzales - 1 
  ABSTAIN: None 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 29 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – August 17, 2020 
Page 6 
 

8)  UPDATE REGARDING SIDEWALK REPAIR EFFORTS WITHIN THE CITY AND DISCUSSION OF 
THE USE OF PROPOSITION ‘A’ TRANSIT FUNDS DURING FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner presented an update regarding sidewalk repair 
efforts in the City; addressed modes of repairs and discussed use of Proposition ‘A’ transit 
funds. 
 
Discussion followed regarding the cost of installing bus stops and benches, recommended 
use of available funds in the total amount of $12,500/2,500 per Councilmember, and on 
how they would like their funds to be allocated.  
 
City Manager Kimball will direct staff to prepare and circulate a list to Councilmember that 
identify various locations needing sidewalk/street repair improvements and include 
information on bus stop locations without a bench and have each Councilmember 
determine what portion of their funds to be allocated on their behalf.  It was noted that 
the transactions and direction from Councilmembers on the use of funds can be handled 
administratively as these funds have been appropriated for FY 2020-2021.  

 
9) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A LETTER CONDEMNING 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES ON U.S. IMMIGRATION AND CUSTOMS ENFORCEMENT 
DETENTION FACILITIES 

 
 City Manager Kimball presented the staff report. 
 
 Councilmember Ballin offered minor edits to the letter.   
 

Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to authorize the 
City Manager to finalize the letter, include City Council signatures, and forward the letter 
of opposition to the Trump Administration, Federal, State and Local Officials.   
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Mendoza, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo – 4 
  NOES:  None 
  ABSENT: Gonzales - 1 
  ABSTAIN: None 
 
10) DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION REGARDING EXISTING CITY COUNCIL AD HOC COMMITTEE 
 ASSIGNMENTS 
 

City Manager Kimball presented the staff report. Councilmembers discussed various 
changes, in addition to staff’s recommendations. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 30 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – August 17, 2020 
Page 7 
 

Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to approve staff’s 
recommendations as presented in the staff report and include the following changes: 
 
Combine Green City with Street and Parkway Trees Ad Hoc Committee, and assign 
Mayor Fajardo to replace Councilmember Gonzales; Wildhorse Children’s Foundation 
Ad Hoc Committee stay in tact until further review and replace Councilmember 
Gonzales with Vice Mayor Pacheco; and Mayor Fajardo will replace Councilmember 
Gonzales on the Mural Ad Hoc Committee.  
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Mendoza, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo – 4 
  NOES:  None 
  ABSENT: Gonzales - 1 
  ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
City Clerk Fritz presented an update on activities related to the November 2020 election. 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Huo discussed release of an RFP for 
a Planning Consultant to help the City with its General Plan Housing Element update.  
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner addressed current permit applications for outdoor 
seating for local businesses.   
 
Chief of Police Vairo discussed the start of a Park Patrol Program on weekends with the help of 
Police Reserves.    
 
City Manager Kimball addressed operating hours for the City's cooling centers; encouraged 
residents to sign up for Alert San Fernando at www.sfcity.org and announced there will be 
traffic slowdowns on Glen Oaks, this coming week.   He asked to adjourn tonight's meeting in 
memory of Patsy Orozco's mother, Martha Sanchez de Amaya.   
 
 
GENERAL COUNCIL COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Ballin discussed an upcoming program for toilet rebates; commented on online 
landscaping classes and discussed upcoming meetings.   
 
Councilmember Mendoza discussed her participation in various teleconferences and expressed 
her condolences to the Orozco and Amaya Family.   

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 31 of 443

http://www.sfcity.org/


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – August 17, 2020 
Page 8 
 

 
Vice Mayor Pacheco expressed sympathy for those affected by the fires and encouraged 
everyone to vote and reach out to Assemblywoman Rivas regarding EDD matters.    
 
Mayor Fajardo discussed eliminating the use of single-use plastic bags; suggested City Council 
consider a formal City policy regarding the subject; concerns about the use of flavored tobacco 
and talked about asking restaurants to use biodegradable utensils, plates, and cups.   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (9:07 P.M.) 
 
Mayor Fajardo adjourned the meeting in memory of Martha Sanchez de Amaya and Greg 
O'Donnell (Stepfather of Long Beach Mayor Robert Garcia) to the next regular meeting of 
Tuesday, September 8, 2020.  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to adjourn the meeting. By 
consensus, the motioned carried with Councilmember Gonzales, absent.   
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of August 17, 2020, 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City Council. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 32 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 33 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 34 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 6:28 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco, Councilmembers Sylvia 
Ballin, Robert C. Gonzales, and Mary Mendoza 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou, Director of Finance Diego Ibanez, Director of Public 
Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
Julian Venegas and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by Mayor Fajardo 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to approve the agenda, as 
presented.   
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Pacheco, Ballin and Fajardo - 5 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 

 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS – WRITTEN  
 
The following statements submitted were read:  
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 35 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 8, 2020 
Page 2 
 
Liana Stepanyan, San Fernando Library Manager, provided an update of library resources, 
services and virtual programs that are being offered as a result of COVID-19.   
 
Marco Enriquez, Field Representative, U.S. Senator Dianne Feinstein's office, seeking support 
for S-4431.   
 
Marco Solis listed concerns with the trash bins in the alley behind San Fernando Loan (Parking 
Lot 5) and illegal dumping, as well as trash bins near AT&T and requested City Council consider 
installing trash enclosures.   
 
Maria Solario expressed support for requests for outdoor dining for San Fernando breweries 
and taprooms.   
 
Paul Trevino expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen 
by providing outdoor services. 
 
Truman House Tavern expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to 
reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
Shoghig Bardekjian expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to 
reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
Liz Riley expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen by 
providing outdoor services. 
 
Suleymi Recinos expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to 
reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
J.P. Outlar expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen by 
providing outdoor services. 
 
Mary Ann Martinez expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to 
reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
Christine Amillategui expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to 
reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
Nora Apelian expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen 
by providing outdoor services. 
 
Andy Alonso expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen 
by providing outdoor services. 
 
Akibdra Cano expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen 
by providing outdoor services. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 36 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 8, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 
Adriana Gomez expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to 
reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
Christina Bernal expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to 
reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
David Bernal expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen 
by providing outdoor services. 
 
Rick Bernal expressed support for allowing San Fernando breweries and taprooms to reopen by 
providing outdoor services. 
 
Vic Chouchanian, San Fernando Brewing Co. expressed support for allowing San Fernando 
breweries and taprooms to reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
Joe Chouchanian, San Fernando Brewing Co. expressed support for allowing San Fernando 
breweries and taprooms to reopen by providing outdoor services. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to approve the Consent 
Calendar as follows: 
 
1) REQUEST TO APPROVE MEETING MINUTES OF:   

 
a. AUGUST 3, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING 
b. AUGUST 17, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING  

 
2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KOSMONT 

& ASSOCIATES, INC., DBA KOSMONT COMPANIES, TO PROVIDE REAL ESTATE ADVISORY 
SERVICES FOR DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT NEGOTIATIONS 

 
 The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Pacheco, Fajardo – 5 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  None 
 ABSTAIN:  None 

 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 37 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 8, 2020 
Page 4 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
4) RECEIVE A PRESENTATION FROM THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGISTRAR-

RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK REGARDING THE UPCOMING NOVEMBER 3, 2020, GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION AND PROVIDE RELATED DIRECTION 
 

 Councilmember Mendoza left the meeting at 6:48 p.m. 
 

City Clerk Julia Fritz introduced Jeff Klein, Manager, Civic Engagement, Community 
Relations and Legislation, Los Angeles County Office Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk and 
presented an update on activities associated with the upcoming November 3, 2020, 
General Municipal Election.     

  
It was the consensus of the City Council to receive and file the presentation, and directed 
staff to add the presentation to the City’s website.  

 
 Councilmember Mendoza returned to the meeting at 7:02 p.m. 

 
8) DISCUSSION OF CERTAIN AD HOC COMMITTEE REVISIONS 

 
Councilmember Gonzales expressed disappointment at having been removed from his Ad 
Hoc Committee assignments and requested for an opportunity to return to them until he 
retires in December. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza to restore 
Councilmember Gonzales assignments to previously assigned Ad Hoc Committees and 
Councilmember Ballin to replace Councilmember Mendoza on the Mural Ad Hoc 
Committee.    
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Pacheco, Ballin, Fajardo – 5 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  None 
 ABSTAIN:  None 

 
5) DISCUSSION REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS AND APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Deputy City Manager Tim Hou narrated a PowerPoint presentation regarding COVID-19 
response efforts and statistics.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla clarified the State's Eviction Moratorium. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 38 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 8, 2020 
Page 5 
 

 
 Mayor Fajardo left the meeting at 8:08 p.m. 

 
City Manager Kimball noted code compliance consideration and continued efforts to 
educate the community on the County Health Orders in place, provide extended time to 
allow public comments to be submitted to 5pm, other alternatives to increase public 
participation. 
 
Mayor Fajardo returned to the meeting at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Vice Mayor Pacheco left the meeting at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Discussion followed regarding the possibility of allowing use of City parking lots and park 
spaces for local fitness and dance studios, steps necessary to consider allowing breweries 
and taprooms to operate outdoors, the need to follow State and County orders, the 
possibility of giving businesses that do not require masks a warning, prior to issuing 
citations, waiting until a higher tier to begin conducting Council meetings in the Chamber 
and encouraged residents to monitor the City's website for updated COVID-19 
information.  Staff was directed to draft a letter of support to the offices of U.S. Senator 
Feinstein regarding “Emergency Wildfire and Public Safety Act” (S. 4431).  There was no 
action provided by the City Council and staff confirmed clarification of suggested 
directions as discussed by the City Council. 
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE THE ACCEPTANCE OF CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUNDS 
FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA TO ASSIST THE CITY WITH CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019 
(COVID-19) EXPENDITURES 
 
Director of Finance Diego Ibanez presented details of the report. 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Gonzales, to approve this item, 
per staff's recommendations. 
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 
 ROLL CALL 

 AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Fajardo – 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Pacheco - 1 
 ABSTAIN:  None 

 
7) REVIEW AND DISCUSS A 100-YEAR ANNIVERSARY OF WOMEN’S RIGHT TO VOTE 

COMMEMORATIVE MURAL AND RELATED MURAL AD HOC RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 39 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 8, 2020 
Page 6 
 

City Manager Kimball presented a brief report on the processes and procedures regarding 
a mural, proposed location, and various details to include, but not limited on paint quality, 
color and seeking funds for this project.  
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla reported placing a mural on City property would not 
require an ordinance and stated an ordinance would be necessary in trying to regulate 
private property murals.   
 
Staff was directed to continue discussions in the next Mural Ad Hoc Committee meeting 
and report back to Council.  
 

9) DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CITY’S SUPPORT TO ALLOW BREWERIES AND TAPROOMS TO 
PROVIDE OUTDOOR SERVICES 

 
Motion by Councilmember Gonzales, seconded by Mayor Fajardo, to direct staff to draft a 
letter of support to the County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors, to open breweries 
and taprooms to outdoor dining, following COVID-19 regulations and include comments 
submitted by the public. 
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 ROLL CALL  
 AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Fajardo – 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Pacheco - 1 
 ABSTAIN:  None 

 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES  
 
Director of Finance Ibanez discussed an upcoming Measure A townhall meeting. 
 
 
GENERAL COUNCIL COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Mendoza encouraged residents to attend the local community college; 
referenced an article regarding a methane leak at the Department of Water and Power and 
suggested a report on the item including impacts to the City be brought to a future City Council 
meeting.   
 
Councilmember Ballin requested that staff look into the trash situation reported by Mr. Solis 
during public comments; asked for a report from Republic at an upcoming City Council meeting 
and requested that staff issue a letter of support to Senator Feinstein regarding “Emergency 
Wildfire and Public Safety Act” (S. 4431).     

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 40 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 8, 2020 
Page 7 
 
Councilmember Gonzales discussed the ICA Board installation; thanked incoming Board 
President Sean Ashton and Outgoing Board President Richard Montgomery for their help and 
requested sending them a proclamation and spoke about a recent Metro meeting.   
 
ADJOURNMENT (9:13 P.M.) 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Gonzales, to adjourn the meeting.  

 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL 

 AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Fajardo – 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT:  Pacheco - 1 
 ABSTAIN:  None 

 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of September 8, 2020, 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City Council. 
 
 
 
        
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 41 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 42 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 43 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 44 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco, Councilmembers Sylvia 
Ballin, Robert C. Gonzales, and Mary Mendoza 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou, Director of Finance Diego Ibanez, Director of 
Recreation and Community Services Julian Venegas and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: None 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by Mayor Fajardo 
 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to approve the agenda, as 
presented.  
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

ROLL CALL 
AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Pacheco and Fajardo - 5 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 45 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 21, 2020 
Page 2 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS – WRITTEN 
 
City Clerk Julia Fritz read written comments as follows: 
 
Joshua Seymore, expressed his opposition to Proposition 16. 
 
Arturo Garcia-Mendoza, Field Representative for the office of Assemblymember Luz Rivas, 
discussed the Assemblywoman’s activities and programs and encouraged the public to 
complete the 2020 Census.   
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION - STUDENT OF THE MONTH 

KARL FORTALEZA – ACADEMY OF SCIENTIFIC EXPLORATION 
 
Education Commissioner Nicole Mohr presented a Certificate of Recognition to Student of 
the Month for his creative and artistic achievements, Karl Fortaleza, Academy of Scientific 
Exploration and displayed a short video.   

 
B. EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION - TEACHER SPOTLIGHT 

MALCOLM FOLEY – ACADEMY OF SCIENTIFIC EXPLORATION 
Education Commission Chair Angel Zobel Rodriguez  

 
Education Commission Chair Angel Zobel Rodriguez presented a Certificate of Recognition, 
Teacher Spotlight, to Malcolm Foley, Academy of Scientific Exploration and displayed a 
short video.   
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Mayor Fajardo pulled Item No. 3 from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion. 
 
Vice Mayor Pacheco pulled Items No. 4 and 8 from the Consent Calendar, for separate 
discussion.   

 
1) REQUEST TO APPROVE MEETING MINUTES OF:   

 
a. APRIL 6, 2020 – REGULAR MEETING 
b. SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING 

 
2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
5) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT THE DONATION OF AN ELLIPTICAL EXERCISE MACHINE FROM 

FULL CIRCLE CONSULTING SYSTEMS, INC. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 46 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 21, 2020 
Page 3 
 

 
6) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT AND APPROPRIATE THE NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE 

ARTS COVID-19 RESPONSE GRANT AWARD TO SUPPORT PERSONNEL COST ASSOCIATED 
WITH THE MARIACHI MASTER APPRENTICE PROGRAM 

 
7) FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION – 2020 CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE LOCAL 

AGENCY BIENNIAL NOTICE REQUIREMENT 
 

Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to approve the Consent 
Calendar Items No. 1, 2, 5, 6 and 7, as presented.   
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
 ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Pacheco, and Fajardo - 5 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
City Council considered Item No. 10 at this juncture. 
 
10) DISCUSSION REVIEW AND DISCUSS A TEMPORARY MURAL PILOT PROGRAM AND RELATED 

MURAL AD HOC COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

City Manager Kimball presented details of the report and discussed establishing a 
temporary mural program in the area of the Metro right-of-way, where the mural will be 
painted on plywood and mounted to the wall.   
 
Artist Lalo Garcia spoke about the paint of the mural’s timeline, the concept, creating an 
illustration for City Council's consideration and noted he is not asking for funds but noted 
the need for space to install the artwork.   
 
City Manager Kimball addressed the Ad Hoc Committee's recommendations; discussed 
next steps in establishing a pilot program and spoke about the budget, duration of 
installation, forming program guidelines, and developing a standard agreement for artists.    
 

City Council returned to consider Items pulled from the Consent Calendar for separate 
discussion.   
 
ITEMS PULLED FOR SEPARATE DISCUSSION 
 
3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE THE UPDATED CITY COUNCIL AD HOC COMMITTEE 

ASSIGNMENTS 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 47 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 21, 2020 
Page 4 
 
Councilmember Ballin left the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 

 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Gonzales, to approve Item No. 3, 
as presented.   
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

ROLL CALL  
AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Pacheco, and Fajardo - 4 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  Ballin - 1 
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
Councilmember Ballin returned to the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 

 
4) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE RELEASE OF A NOTICE INVITING BIDS FOR THE DESIGN OF 

THE LAYNE PARK REVITALIZATION PROJECT 
 

Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas presented the staff report. 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Pacheco, seconded by Mayor Fajardo, to authorize staff to release 
a Notice Inviting Bids soliciting professional services from qualified and experienced 
engineering firms to develop a biddable set of plans, specifications, and project cost 
estimate for the Layne Park Revitalization Project and incorporating City Council 
suggestions, including but not limited to amenities and accessibility.  
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 ROLL CALL 
AYES:  Mendoza, Gonzales, Ballin, Pacheco, and Fajardo - 5 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
Councilmember Gonzales departed the meeting at 7:50 p.m. 
  
8) RECEIVE AND FILE PRESENTATION OF MEASURE “A” ANNUAL REPORT 
 

City Manager Kimball and Director of Finance Ibanez presented the staff report.  
 
Finance Director Diego Ibanez discussed comparisons in last year's Measure A funding and 
this year's funding; reported a more-detailed report is forthcoming and addressed impacts 
of COVID-19.   

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 48 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 21, 2020 
Page 5 
 

City Manager Kimball discussed a recent townhall and high priorities in the community 
including street repairs, trees, and economic development.     
 
City Council received and filed the 2020 Annual Report on the collection, management, 
and expenditure of Measure “A” as required by the City Code. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
9)  DISCUSSION REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS AND APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Deputy City Manager Tim Hou narrated a PowerPoint presentation with an update on the 
City's COVID-19 response efforts and proposed recommendations.   
 
City Council concurred to receive the presentation and direct staff to report back to City 
Council on the ongoing COVID-19 response efforts at the next City Council meeting.   
 

City Council considered Item No. 13 at this juncture. 
 
13) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION RELATED TO WHISTLEBLOWER AND ALLEGED 

EMPLOYEE MISCONDUCT REPORTING PROCEDURES 
 

Mayor Fajardo requested that Assistant City Attorney Padilla research best practices from 
other municipalities regarding whistleblowers and alleged employee misconduct 
procedures and direct him to return with a report at City Council's second meeting in 
October.   

 
Mayor Fajardo departed the meeting at 9:04 p.m. 
 
11)  CONSIDERATION TO DETERMINE A CITY POSITION ON THE 2020 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA 

CITIES RESOLUTION 
 

 City Manager Kimball presented the report.   
 

Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to support staff 
recommendations.  

 
The motion carried with the following vote: 

 
ROLL CALL 

AYES:  Mendoza and Ballin - 2 
NOES:  Pacheco - 1 
ABSENT:  Gonzales and Fajardo - 2 
ABSTAIN: None 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 49 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 21, 2020 
Page 6 
 
 
12) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A REQUEST FROM THE KIDNEYS QUEST FOUNDATION THE 

USE OF THE CITY SEAL FOR ITS EMERGENCY EDUCATION BACKPACK DISTRIBUTION 
PROGRAM 

 
Councilmember Mendoza presented a brief report.   
 
Motion by Councilmember Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to approve the 
use of the City seal printed on backpacks for the Kidneys Quest Foundation’s Emergency 
Education Backpack Distribution Program pursuant to Resolution No. 6904. 
 
The motion carried with the following vote: 
 

ROLL CALL 
AYES:  Mendoza, Pacheco and Ballin - 3 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  Gonzales and Fajardo - 2 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas announced upcoming virtual 
recreation programs.  
 
Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Hou reported touring San 
Fernando's second Starbucks location.   
 
City Clerk Fritz reported on the installation of Vote by Mail voting boxes in the City.   
 
Police Chief Vairo announced a DUI checkpoint this coming Friday as well as additional traffic 
enforcement.   
 
City Manager Kimball discussed upcoming agenda items; reported Metro will be providing an 
update on the EIR for light rail and discussed formation of a Light Raid Ad Hoc Committee and a 
Tree Ad Hoc Committee.   
 
 
GENERAL COUNCIL COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Mendoza reported participating in webinar on housing at the Los Angeles 
County Library Commission meeting.   
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 50 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – September 21, 2020 
Page 7 
 
Councilmember Ballin read the following quote from Supreme Court Justice Ruth Bader 
Ginsburg:  "Women belong in all places where decisions are being made.  It shouldn't be that 
women are the exception." 
 
Vice Mayor Pacheco thanked the San Fernando Police Department for their DUI enforcement; 
reported meeting with and Education Commissioner and Assistant City Manager Hou regarding 
engaging and collaborating with Tesla; spoke about the availability and opportunities for SCAG 
grants and commented on the recent passing of Supreme Court Justice Ruth Bader Ginsburg.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (9:40 P.M.) 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Pacheco, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to adjourn the meeting 
in memory of Supreme Court Justice Ruth Bader Ginsberg.  By consensus, the motion carried. 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of September 21, 2020, 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City Council. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 51 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 52 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 53 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 54 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
MARCH 1, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Sylvia Ballin called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza, and Councilmembers Cindy 
Montañez, and Hector A. Pacheo 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou, Director of Finance Diego Ibañez, Director of Public 
Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
Julian Venegas, and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: Councilmember Celeste T. Rodriguez 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve the 
agenda as amended, to consider Agenda Item 10 to be heard before Public Hearings.   
 
The motion carried by the following vote: 
 

ROLL CALL 
AYES:  Pacheco, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin -3 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:   None 
ABSENT:  Rodriguez-1 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 55 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – March 1, 2021 
Page 2 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
A) PRESENTATION BY CHRISTOPHER MOORE LOCAL GOVERNMENT LIAISON FROM THE 

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION ON AVAILABLE UTILITY RESOURCES  
City Manager Nick Kimball  

 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
 
City Clerk Fritz read the following public statements submitted:  
 
Liana Stepanyan, San Fernando Library Manager, provided an update on library services. 
 
Darlene Lily, commented on her past employment experience with the Metropalitan Water 
District. 
 
David Michalko, General Manager of Valencia Heights Water Company in West Covina, stated 
he is in support of Agenda Item 10. 
 
Reshell Zelaznik, stated her opposition to Agenda Item 10. 
 
Patty Lopez, stated her opposition to Agenda Item 10. 
 
Jennifer Tanner, stated her opposition to Agenda Item 10. 
 
Note:  Public comments were received live and is identied by their name if provided or by the 
callers last 4-digits of the telephone number. 
 
The following expressed concerns regarding Agenda Item 10 and spoke in opposition of Adan 
Ortega’s appointment to serve on the Metropolitan Water District’s Board of Directors: 
 
1. Martha Rodriguez 
2. Caller Last 4 digits of telephone number 1888 
3. Caller Last 4 digits of telephone number 9666 
4. Caller Last 4 digits of telephone number 0903 
5. Hans Johnson 
6. Patty Lopez 
7. Dallas Fowler 
8. Caller Last 4 digits of telephone number 7388 
 
The following expressed their support regarding Agenda Item 10 and the appointment of Adan 
Ortega to serve on the Metropolitan Water District’s Board of Directors: 
 
1. Sharon 
2. Scott Houston 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 56 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – March 1, 2021 
Page 3 
 
3. Gina Chavez 
4. Ellen Mackie 
5. Laura Garcia 
6. Allen Shlahan 
7. Charles Leon 
8. Eva Muenos 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve the 
Consent Calendar Items:  
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE MINUTES FOR THE FEBRUARY 16, 2021 SPECIAL MEETING 

  
2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 

 
3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE PARKING MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND E.B.F. FOWLER FAMILY, LLC FOR REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 800 TRUMAN STREET  

 
4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CERTAIN EXECUTIVE ORDERS EXTENDING AND 

IMPLEMENTING COVID-19 RELIEF PROGRAMS 
 

5) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN EXTENSION TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE SAN FERNANDO PART-TIME EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING 
UNIT/SERVICE EMPLOYEES’ INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 721 AND THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO 

  
6) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH EDGESOFT, 

INC., TO IMPLEMENT PHASE 2 OF THE ONLINE PERMIT COUNTER  
 

7) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING THE CITY’S 2021 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION TITLE VI PLAN 

 
The motion carried by the following vote:  

 
 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Pacheco, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin -4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN:   None 
 ABSENT: Rodriguez 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 57 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – March 1, 2021 
Page 4 
 
Agenda Item No. 10 was heard at this juncture.  
 
10) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPOINTING ADAN ORTEGA TO THE 

METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND APPROVE USE OF THE CITY 
SEAL AND CITY LOGO FOR DISPLAY AS THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO’S BOARD 
REPRESENTATIVE AND LIAISON 
 
Mayor Ballin announced that she would be stepping down as the City of San Fernando’s 
representative and nominated the appointment of Mr. Adan Ortega to fill her vacancy. 
 
Mr. Ortega responded to staff questions.  
 
Motion by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to:  
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8058 appointing Adan Ortega to the Metropolitan Water 

District’s  Board of Directors, and; 
 
b. Approve use of the City Seal and City Logo for display during Board meetings directly 

related to the appointment through the end of the term. 
 

 The motion carried by the following vote:  
 

 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin - 3 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN:    Pacheco -1 
 ABSENT:  Rodriguez -1 
 

Mayor Ballin stepped away from the meeting at 8:09 p.m. and returned at 8:16 p.m. 
 

Agenda items were considered in the following order:  
 

12) PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  
 
The City Council received and filed a presentation of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, presented by Director of Finance Ibañez. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
8) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE 

ALLOCATION OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2021-2022 

  
 Mayor Ballin opened the Public Hearing at 8:25 p.m. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 58 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – March 1, 2021 
Page 5 
 

City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and replied to questions from the City 
Council. 

 
Mayor Ballin called for Public Comments, and there being none, Motion by Councilmember 
Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Pacheco to close the Public Hearing at 8:40 p.m.  
By consensus, the motion carried.  

 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to adopt 
Resolution No. 8060 approving the allocation of Community Development Block Grant 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2021-2022; and authorize the City Manager to submit documentation 
conveying the City Council’s Resolution to the Los Angeles County Community 
Development Commission for approval. 

 
 The motion carried by the following vote:  

 
 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Pacheco, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin - 3 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN:    None 
 ABSENT:  Rodriguez -1 

 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
9) PRESENTATION AND UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 

 
The City Council received and filed a presentation from staff related to the City’s COVID-19 
efforts.  

 
10) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A BUSINESS TAX DELINQUENT FEE AMNESTY PROGRAM FOR 

SAN FERNANDO BUSINESSES IMPACTED BY COVID-19 AND THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA’S 
STAY-AT-HOME ORDERS 

 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions. 

 
Motion by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to establish a Business Tax 
Delinquent Fee Amnesty Program for businesses impacted by COVID-19 and the state’s 
stay-at-home orders; adopt Resolution No. 8059 implementing the proposed Business Tax 
Delinquent Fee Amnesty Program; and authorize the City Manager to finalize and execute 
all documents related to the Business Tax Delinquent Fee Amnesty Program. 
 

 The motion carried by the following vote:  
 

 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Pacheco, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin - 3 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN:    None 
 ABSENT:  Rodriguez -1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 59 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – March 1, 2021 
Page 6 
 
11) PRESENTATION OF RECENT CHANGES TO ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT LAWS STATEWIDE  

 
 

Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development presented the staff report and 
replied to questions from Councilmembers. 
 
Motion by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Pecheco to form an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit (ADU) Ad Hoc Committee to research potential amendments to the City’s 
municipal code regarding recent changes to ADU laws statewide; and to appoint Vice 
Mayor Mendoza and Councilmember Montañez to the committee.   
 

 The motion carried by the following vote:  
 

 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Pacheco, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin - 3 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN:    None 
 ABSENT:  Rodriguez -1 
 

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas mentioned the next Park, Wellness 
and Recreation Commission will hold their next meeting on March 9 and spoke about the 
Veteran’s Recognition Banner Program design selection and reported an Ad Hoc committee was 
formed to review applications submitted for the Mural Program.  
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner reported having a meeting with the Safe and Active 
Streets Ad Hoc committee and mentioned priority street areas and guidance on community 
outreach recommendations were discussed. 
 
Director of Finance Ibanez reported that the originally scheduled Measure “A” Town was 
reschedule to March 22, 2021 due to technical difficulties and mentioned the mid-year Budget 
review will be presented at the next City Council meeting.  
 
City Clerk Fritz reported that the Education Commission will be meeting on March 30, 2021 to 
select scholarship recipients and the Student of the Month presentation is scheduled to be 
presented at the March 15, 2021 City Council meeting.  
Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Hou mentioned that the next 
Planning and Preservation Commission meeting will be held on March 8 and the department is 
currently conducting Planning Intern and first round Community Preservation Officer 
interniews.  
 
City Manger Kimball gave recognition to City Clerk Fritz for running a smooth virtual meeting 
considering the unusual number of public comment callers and reported that the mural located 
at 6N will remain until a new destination is chosen by the artist, Lalo Garcia.  
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 60 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – March 1, 2021 
Page 7 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Pacheco spoke in recognition honoring Womans History Month, including 
woman staff and City Councilmembers, spoke on Alex Padilla’s career accomplishments leading 
up to being a U.S. Senator, attended the Southern California Association of Government (SCAG) 
board meeting and mentioned he would be attending a Green City Ad Hoc committee meeting.  
 
Councilmember Montañez echoed comments about U.S. Senator Padilla, reported she 
participated with interviews to select a program administrator for the City’s Pension Obligation 
Bond Liability, and attended the Visioning and Resilience Ad Hoc committee meeting and 
discussed bringing City Council priority recommendations to a future City Council meeting.  
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza reported she attended the San Fernando Valley Council of Governments 
board meeting and discussed the status of area Metrolink projects, attended the Los Angeles 
County Library Commission meeting and stated she attended Ad Hoc committee meetings. 
 
City Clerk Fritz provided status regarding the Deputy City Clerk recruitment process. 
 
Mayor Ballin announced her resination from her Board position with the Metropolitan Water 
District and spoke about the appointment of Adan Ortega who would be filling her vacated 
Board position.  
 
City Manager Kimball reported that the Cesar Chavez Commemorative Committee San 
Fernando Valley (CCCCSFV) would be donating a plaque to the City for installation at the Cesar 
Chavez Memorial and mentioned that a staff report for consideration would be brought to the 
next City Council meeting.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Ballin adjourned the meeting at 10:01 p.m. to the next regular City Council Meeting of 
March 15, 2021.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of March 1, 2021 meeting 
as approved by the San Fernando City Council. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 61 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 62 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 63 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 64 of 443



 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
OCTOBER 4, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL   Mayor Sylvia Ballin called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers Cindy 
Montañez, Hector A. Pacheco and Celeste Rodriguez  

 
Absent: None 
 
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Director of Public Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of 
Recreation and Community Services Julian Venegas, and City Clerk Julia Fritz  

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montanez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve the 
agenda, as amended to correct Agenda Item 5 in title only, to reflect the correct date of October 
4, 2021 to November 2, 2021.  By consensus, the motion carried. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS (Item B was presented before Item A) 
 
B. PRESENTATION FROM THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR TO PROVIDE A 

GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE OFFICE AND SERVICES OFFERED TO TAXPAYERS 
 

Los Angeles County Assessor Jeff Prang provided an informational presentation regarding 
property tax valuation, Proposition 19 and on the Homeowners Exemption program.  
 

A. PRESENTATION OF A PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING THE SECOND WEEK OF OCTOBER AS CODE 
ENFORCEMENT APPRECIATION WEEK 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 65 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – October 4, 2021 
Page 2 of 5

 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
City Clerk Fritz read the following public comments submitted via email: 
 
Liana Stepanyan, San Fernando Library Manager provided updates on programs offered at the 
library.  
 
David Bernal, stated his support of Agenda Items 6 and 7 and opposed toe Agenda Item 9.  
 
Angel Zobel Rodriguez, Education Commission Chair, spoke in support of Agenda Item No 5. 
 
Julissa Hernandez, Field Representative from the office of Assemblymember Luz Rivas provided 
updates on community activities and the status of various assembly bills.  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montanez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to:  
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 
a. AUGUST 16, 2021 - REGULAR MEETING 
b. SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 - SPECIAL MEETING 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH TOM BROHARD AND ASSOCIATES FOR TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER AGREEMENT WITH 
HINDERLITER, DE LLAMAS AND ASSOCIATES TO PROVIDE COVID-19 RELIEF AND ECONOMIC 
RECOVERY PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION SERVICES RELATED TO THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 
ACT FUNDS 
 
By consensus, the motioned carried. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
5) CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION TO CONTINUE REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO’S LEGISLATIVE BODIES FOR A 
PERIOD OF 30 DAYS FROM OCTOBER 4, 2021 TO NOVEMBER 2, 2021 IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(E) AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY 
BILL 361 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 66 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – October 4, 2021 
Page 3 of 5

 

Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla presented the staff report and responded to 
Councilmember questions. 

 
Motion by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve Option No. 2 and not 
adopt resolution and take no action and that the legislative body meetings will be required 
to comply with the requirements for public meetings (Pre-COVID-19 Pandemic), as amended 
to continue to allow the public the ability to teleconference, and revisit this matter at a future 
date uncertain.  
 
The motion carries by the following vote:  
 

 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Rodriguez, Mendoza, Montañez, Ballin - 4 
 NOES:  Pacheco - 1 
 ABSTAIN:   None 
 ABSENT:  None 
 

Councilmember Montañez left the dais at 7:09 p.m. and stated she would be recusing herself from 
consideration of Agenda Item 6, due to a potential conflict of interest as TreePeople is her current 
employer. 

 
6) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING A RECOMMENDATION FROM THE 

EDUCATION COMMISSION REQUESTING THE CITY COUNCIL TO CO-SPONSOR A WORKFORCE 
DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN TREEPEOPLE AND AMERICORPS 
 
Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve a co-
sponsorship to use the City’s communication platforms, including the City website, social 
media, and email, to promote the workforce development partnership between TreePeople 
and AmeriCorps pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 6904.  
 
The motion carried by the following vote:  

 
 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Rodriguez, Mendoza, Ballin - 3 
 NOES:  Pacheco - 1 
 ABSTAIN:   None 
 ABSENT:  Montañez – 1  
 

Councilmember Montañez returned to the dais at 7:30 p.m. 
 

7) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING APPROVAL OF A SAN FERNANDO 
BEAUTIFICATION PROGRAM 

 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember questions. 
 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 67 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – October 4, 2021 
Page 4 of 5

 
 

Councilmembers stated their support or opposition to certain aspects of the proposed scope 
and elements of the beautification program and commented that the Beautification Program 
presented would be subject to ongoing changes and refinement, as a living document.  There 
was general consensus from the Councilmembers in support of the program; however 
mentioned concerns over staff time and costs associated with the program. 
 
There was a general consensus among the Councilmembers to direct staff to continue 
working with the Beautification Ad Hoc committee to move forward to include, but not 
limited to, certain clean up events and community outreach regarding property maintenance 
and to bring back an update from the Ad Hoc committee to the City Council to a date 
uncertain.  
 

8) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC SAFETY 
COMMISSION AD HOC COMMITTEE RELATED TO ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC SAFETY 
COMMISSION 
 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember questions.  
 
There was a general consensus among the Councilmembers to direct staff to proceed with 
the necessary procedures towards establishing a Public Safety Commission, to include, but 
not limited to presenting the concept to the Transportation and Safety Commission for their 
recommendations, pending review by the incoming new Chief of Police, and bring back a staff 
report to the City Council for consideration at a future date to be determined.  
 
 

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
City Clerk Fritz provided updates to the Council Chamber audio and video upgrade project and 
mentioned the Education Commission would be presented Student of the Month recognitions at 
the next regular Council meeting.  
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner reported on a pop-up event at the San Fernando Mall and 
received numerous comment cards regarding the City’s conceptual for finalization to prepare for 
submission of an application to apply for grant funds.  
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas stated that he would be officially taking 
over the handling of the Education Commission beginning with the October 26, 2021 meeting. 
 
Chief of Police Vairo announced that the National Night Out event (in-person) is being held 
tomorrow night and commented on attendance and event activities.  
 
City Manager Kimball commented on the use of recent technology (Zoom) that assists staff with 
facilitating regular Ad Hoc committee meetings as well as providing the community with an 
additional option to interact with City staff.  
 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 68 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – October 4, 2021 
Page 5 of 5

 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez reported that due the recent home purchased by her family, she would 
be recusing herself on discussion regarding lot 3 due to its proximity between her new home and 
the area. 
 
Councilmember Montañez reported she attended the Green City, Homeless Ad Hoc, Beatification 
Program Ad Hoc committee meetings and the Economic Alliance Board meeting.  She mentioned 
the creation of an inter-agency homeless task force recently formed and would be attending an 
upcoming meeting.  
 
Councilmember Pacheco thanked staff and mentioned he would be attending the National Night 
Out event.  
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza reported she attended the League of California Cities 2021 Annual 
Conference and mentioned that two resolutions were passed and attended the California Climate 
and Energy Collaborative (CCEC) forum meeting.  
 
Mayor Ballin expressed congratulations to Councilmember Rodriguez and to Julie Hernandez for 
both their recent marriages.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (8:33 p.m.) 
 
Mayor Ballin adjourned the meeting at 8:33 p.m. to the next regular meeting. 
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes of October 4, 2021, meeting as approved by the 
San Fernando City Council.  

 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 69 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 70 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 71 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 72 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
OCTOBER 18, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL   Mayor Sylvia Ballin called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers Cindy 
Montañez and Celeste Rodriguez  

 
Absent: Councilmember Hector A. Pacheco  
 
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Director of Public Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of 
Recreation and Community Services Julian Venegas, Interim Director of 
Finance Sonia Garcia and City Clerk Julia Fritz  

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor Ballin requested that Agenda Item 8 be considered first, then Item 7 followed by Agenda 
Item 6 (Public Hearing).  
 
Motion by Councilmember Montanez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve the 
agenda, as amended.  By consensus, the motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco absent. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS  
 
A. EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION FOR SEPTEMBER AND OCTOBER 

STUDENTS OF THE MONTH 
• EMMANUEL SOLIS (San Fernando Institute for Applied Media) (September) 
• ABIGAIL ALVARADO (Social Justice Humanitas Academy) (October) 
• LYSHA GUTIERREZ (Academy of Scientific Exploration) (October) 
Education Commissioner Vice Chair David Govea 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 73 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – October 18, 2021 
Page 2 of 4

 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
Julissa Hernandez, Field Representative from the office of Assemblymember Luz Rivas provided 
updates on community activities and the status of various assembly bills, which included Assembly 
Bill (AB) 1363, AB 27 and AB 1220.  
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
8) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT A DONATION OF A COMPANA DE LIBERTAD 

LIBERTY BELL FOR PUBLIC DISPLAY IN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and answered Councilmember inquiries.  
 

Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Montanez to accept the 
donation of a Compana de Libertad Liberty Bell from a private donor for public display in the 
City of San Fernando; authorize staff to work with the non-profit organization Ballet Folklorico 
Ollin to host a dedication ceremony to be held in San Fernando on Tuesday, November 22, 
2021 to unveil the Liberty Bell; and establish an Ad Hoc Committee to work with staff and 
Ballet Folklorico Ollin to develop recommendations for a permanent location to display the 
Liberty Bell with Councilmember Montanez and Councilmember Rodriguez to serve on the 
Ad Hoc Committee.   

 

The motion carried by the following vote:  
 

ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Rodriguez, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin -4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN:   None 
 ABSENT: Pacheco - 1 
 

7) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION TO IMPLEMENT 
THE SAN FERNANDO SMALL BUSINESS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas presented the staff report and 
answered Councilmember inquiries.  
 
Councilmembers questioned information describing the scope and cost of services in 
response to the Request for Qualifications.  
 
City Manager Kimball noted that the staff report inadvertently omitted Exhibit “A” of the 
Professional Services Agreement, which is the response to the Request for Qualifications 
“Scope of Work” and includes the cost of services.   

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 74 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – October 18, 2021 
Page 3 of 4

 
Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve, 
contingent upon final review of the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) that includes the cost of 
services by the COVID-19 Relief Program Ad hoc committees, a Professional Services 
Agreement (Contract No. 2001) to California Community Economic Development Association 
for an amount not to exceed $25,000; adopt Resolution No. 8099, to increase the revenue 
and expenditures of Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Community Development Block Grant Fund 26 
budget by $179,707, authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Service Agreement 
with CCEDA and all related documents.  
 

 The motion carried by the following vote:  
 

ROLL CALL 
AYES: Rodriguez, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin - 4 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN:   None 
ABSENT: Pacheco – 1 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
6) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING THE 

IMPLEMENTATION OF SENATE BILL 1383 ORGANIC WASTE REDUCTION REGULATIONS 
 

Mayor Ballin opened the Public Hearing at 7:10 p.m. 
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner presented the staff report and answered 
Councilmember inquiries. 
 
Mayor Ballin opened the Public Comments at 7:21 p.m.  There being no comments, motion 
by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to close the public hearing at 7:22 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers emphasized the importance of an extensive community outreach program 
to provide education on the new waste reduction regulations and suggested that staff 
provide regular updates to the City Council regarding the outreach process.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to introduce for 
first reading in title only, and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1703, titled, “An 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, Adding Article IX 
(Organic Waste Disposal Reduction, Senate Bill 1383) to Chapter 70 of the San Fernando 
Municipal Code, and Making a Determination of Exemption Under the California Environment 
Quality Act.” 
 
The motion carried by the following vote:  

 
 ROLL CALL 
 AYES:  Rodriguez, Montañez, Mendoza, Ballin - 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN:   None 
 ABSENT:  Pacheco – 1 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 75 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – October 18, 2021 
Page 4 of 4

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
Chief of Police Vairo provided an update regarding the National Night Out event.  
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner commented on the status of the Departments workload.  
 

Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas mentioned that the next Education 
Commission meeting is on October 26.  
 

City Manager Kimball commented on the status of recruitments to fill existing and newly created 
positions.  
 
 

GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Mayor Ballin requested to close the meeting in memory of Brenda Perez Castellon and Colin Powell. 
 

Councilmember Montañez echoed sentiments made by Mayor Ballin regarding the passing of 
Brenda Perez Castellon, thanked Chief Vairo for a successful National Night Out event; mentioned 
the Dia De Los Muertos Cultural Festival being held on October 30, and attended the Homeless Ad 
Hoc committee meeting.  
 

Councilmember Rodriguez concurred with her colleagues’ comments and thanked staff for their 
work.  
 

Vice Mayor Mendoza reported she attended the National Night Out event, the Las Palmas Senior 
Club meeting and reported that the club voted to begin monthly meetings and announced a dance 
event will be scheduled for December.  Vice Mayor Mendoza expressed condolences to the family 
of Brenda Perez Castellon. 
 

Mayor Ballin commented on the Chief’s police work during the National Night Out event regarding 
the protestors and stated the situation was well handled.  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT (7:52 p.m.) 
 

Mayor Ballin adjourned the meeting in memory of Brenda Perez Castellon and Colin Powell at 
7:52 p.m. to the next regular meeting. 
 

 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes of October 18, 2021, meeting as approved by 
the San Fernando City Council.  
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 76 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 77 of 443



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 78 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
DECEMBER 6, 2021 – 5:00 P.M.  

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL   
 
Mayor Ballin called the special meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza, and Councilmembers Cindy 
Montañez, and Celeste Rodriguez (arrived at 5:03 p.m.) 

 
Staff:  City Manager Nick Kimball and Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 

 
Absent:  Councilmember Hector A. Pacheco 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve the agenda.  
Motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco and Rodriguez absent.  
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS - WRITTEN/ORAL None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (5:01 P.M.)  
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 
Councilmember Pacheco arrived directly into Closed Session for consideration of Item B and 
Item C of the special meeting agenda. 
 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 79 of 443



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – December 6, 2021 
Page 2 
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO G.C. §54957.6: 
  

Designated City Negotiators:  
City Manager Nick Kimball 

Employees and Employee Bargaining Units: 
 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-Time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 

 
B) CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(4) 

ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
 
Two (2) Related Matters 

 
C) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT/PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

PURSUANT TO G.C. §54957: 
 

      Title of Employee:             City Manager 
 
 
RECONVENE/REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of the Closed 
Session meeting held on December 6, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City Council adjourned the special meeting at 5:48 p.m. to the regular meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of December 6, 2021, 
Special Meeting, as approved by the San Fernando City 
Council. 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 80 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 81 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 82 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☐ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

By: Sonia G. Garcia, Interim Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
 
Date:  January 3, 2022 
  
Subject: Consideration to Adopt Resolution Nos. 21-122 and 22-011 Approving the 

Warrant Registers of December 20, 2021 and January 3, 2022 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 21-122 (Attachment “A”) approving the Warrant Register dated 

December 20, 2021; and 
 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 22-011 (Attachment “B”) approving the Warrant Register dated  

January 3, 2022. 
 

  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasure hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasure hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 83 of 443



Consideration to Adopt Resolution Nos. 21-122 and 22-011 Approving the Warrant Registers of 
December 20, 2021 and January 3, 2022 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
There are two Warrant Registers attached due to the lack of a formal City Council meeting on 
December 20, 2021.  Resolution No. 6212 (adopted August 3, 1992) approves the issuing of 
Warrants prior to City Council ratification due to cancellation of a regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting.  A copy of the Resolution No. 6212 and the memorandum provided to the Director of 
Finance/City Treasurer approving the release of the Warrant is attached to this report 
(Attachments “C” & “D”). 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 21-122 
B. Resolution No. 22-011 
C. Resolution No. 6212 (August 3, 1992) 
D. Memorandum Approving Release of Warrant Register (December 20, 2021) 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 84 of 443



 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 21-122 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS PRESENTED 
ON DEMAND/ WARRANT REGISTER NO.  21-122 
 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the demands (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly audited, for 
completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as shown to 
designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of January, 2022. 
 
  
                 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of        
      San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 85 of 443



ATTACHMENT “B” 
 

 

RES. NO. 21-122 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 21-122 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
3rd day of January, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of ___________, _______.  

 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 86 of 443















 

      

    

 

 

 

     

 
 

 
 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

    

 
 

 

    

 

 

 

 




EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 87 of 443















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 

 

     

 

 

     

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 















 

      

     

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 88 of 443















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

      

     

    

 

 

 
 
 

 

    

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 89 of 443















 

      

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 















 

      

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

     

 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 90 of 443











 

      

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 

      

  

 
 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 21-122

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 91 of 443















 

      

  


 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

     

 
 















 

      

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

     



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 92 of 443















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

    

 
 
 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

     

 
 
 















 

      

     

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

    



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 93 of 443















 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 
 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 















 

      

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

     

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 94 of 443















 

      

     

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
















 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 95 of 443















 

      

     

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 
 















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 96 of 443















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

     

 
 

    

 

 

 

 

     

 
 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 97 of 443















 

      

     

    

 
 
 
 

 

     

 
 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

     















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

    

 



EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 98 of 443















 

      

  

 

 
 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 

      

     

    

 

 

 

   







EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 99 of 443















 

      

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

    

 

 

    















 

      

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   







SPECIAL CHECKS EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 21-122

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 100 of 443















 

      

    

 

 

   







EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 20-122

SPECIAL CHECK
January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 101 of 443















 

      

    

 
 
 

 

   







EXHIBIT "A"  
RES. NO. 20-122

SPECIAL CHECK
January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 102 of 443



ATTACHMENT “B” 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-011 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS PRESENTED 
ON DEMAND/ WARRANT REGISTER NO.  22-011 
 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the demands (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly audited, for 
completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as shown to 
designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of January 2022. 
 
  
                 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of        
      San Fernando, California                                     

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 103 of 443



RES. NO. 22-011 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 22-011 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
3rd day of January, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this 3rd day of January 2022.  

 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 104 of 443















 

      

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 















 

      

     

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 105 of 443















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
















 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 106 of 443















 

      

  

 

 

     

 

 

     

 

 

     

 
 
 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

    

 

 















 

      

  


 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 107 of 443















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

      

 
 

     

 

 

     

 

 

     

 
 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 108 of 443















 

      

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 
 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 109 of 443















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

    

 
 

     

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 110 of 443















 

      

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 
 
 

 

    

 

 

     

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 















 

      

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 




EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 111 of 443















 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

      

 

 

   

 
 

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 




EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 112 of 443















 

      

  

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

   

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 















 

      

  


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 
 
 
 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 

    

 

 



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 113 of 443















 

      

    

 
 
 
 

 

   







EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-011

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 114 of 443



ATTACHMENT "C"
RESOLUTIQN NO. 621·2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CJ.;TY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING 'THE 
ISSUING OF WARRANTS PRIOR TO COUNCIL 
RATIFICATION DUE TO CANCELLATION OF REGQLARLY 
SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, warrants are not issued until ratification at Council 
meetings ; and 

WHEREAS, during certain · months of the 
scheduled Council meetings may be cancelled, 
periods of time between meetings; and 

year, regularly 
causing extended 

WHEREAS, this time las may create undue hardship to those whom 
the City may owe funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the 
City of San Fernando, California, does hereby approve that 
regularly scheduled warrants, including consultants' billings, 
which would have been considered for ratification had not a 
regularly schedu led City Council meeting been cancelled, may be 
approved for issuance by a consensus of the City Administrator and 
the Finance Director. The check signature policy will not be 
amended by this action and the warrants will be subject to 
ratification at the next scheduled City Council meeting. 

PASSED , APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of August, 1992, by 
the following vote : 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT 

Acu na , Hernandez, Chaco~, Wysbeek, Ojeda - 5 

None - 0 

None - O 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 115 of 443



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES SS. 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

I hereby cert ify that the foregoing Resolution was duly 
a d opted by the City Council of the C_ity of San Fernando at a 
regular mee ting the reof, held on the .3r.d day of August, 1992. 

~ity ~ 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

/ldvJ !~-
City Attorney 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 116 of 443



ATTACHMENT "D"

MEl'v10KANDUM 

To: Sonia G. Garcia, Interim Director of Finance/City Treasurer 

From: Sandra Franco-Rivas, Accounting Technician 

Date: December 21, 2021 

Subject: Release of Warrants 

Due to the lack of a formal City Council meeting on December 20, 2021, the warrant register was 
not approved. The City Council has passed a Resolution #6212 permitting the release of regular 
occurring warrants with the approval of the City Manager and the Director of Finance. Copy of 
resolution and warrant register is attached. 

Approval is hereby provided: 

Approved: ____ /J_ '_evvt-v_ ·_ J:j __ - ~~~(~ __ -___ _ 
Sonia G. Ga';g, Interim Director of Finance/City Treasurer 

,. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 117 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 118 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 119 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 120 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 

 

To: Chair Mary Mendoza and Board Members 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, Executive Director 
 By:  Sonia Gomez-Garcia, Interim Director of Finance 
   
Date:  January 3, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Last and Final Recognized 

Obligation Payment Schedule for the Period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 
For the Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 168 (Attachment “A”) approving the Successor Agency’s Last and Final 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) for the period from July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2023 (Last and Final ROPS); and 
 

b. Authorize the Executive Director to take certain related actions. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On February 1, 2012, Assembly Bill X1 26 (“AB 26”) became effective, which dissolved local 

redevelopment agencies and replaced them with successor agencies responsible for winding 
down the activities and obligations of the former redevelopment agencies.  As part of that 
process, successor agencies were required to prepare an administrative budget and 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) for each six-month fiscal period 
(commencing each January 1 and July 1), both of which must be submitted to an oversight 
board for approval.   

 
2. On June 27, 2012, the Governor signed State budget trailer bill Assembly Bill No. 1484 (“AB 

1484”) amending AB 26 by imposing additional requirements on successor agencies and 
clarifying the roles and responsibilities of the different agencies involved in the dissolution 
process.  It also required transitioning from a six-month ROPS to an annual ROPS beginning 
July 1, 2016 (subsequently amended by SB 107 and extended to July 1, 2017). 

 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 121 of 443



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Last and Final Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule for the Period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 for the Successor Agency to the San Fernando 
Redevelopment Agency 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
3. On September 23, 2015, Governor Brown signed Senate Bill 107 (SB 107) that imposes 

additional requirements on successor agencies and sets a number of milestone dates for 
redevelopment dissolution.  Some of the relevant dates included in SB 107 include: 

 
a. February 1, 2017:  Deadline for successor agencies to submit first annual ROPS for July 1, 

2017 - June 30, 2018 (ROPS 17-18 A&B). 
 

b. July 1, 2018:  Single county-wide oversight board takes effect (originally set to take effect 
July 1, 2017).   

 
4. Pursuant to SB 107, the County of Los Angeles created five oversight boards.  Effective July 1, 

2018, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency of the San Fernando Redevelopment 
Agency was replaced with the Los Angeles County Third Supervisorial District Consolidated 
Oversight Board (“Consolidated Oversight Board”). 
 

5. On January 14, 2020, the Los Angeles County Third Supervisorial District Consolidated 
Oversight Board approved and adopted a Last and Final ROPS substantially in the form 
attached as Exhibit 1 to Resolution No. 37 (Attachment “B”) as submitted by the Successor 
Agency for the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2025. 

 
6. On April 15, 2020, the Department of Finance issued a letter of determination (Attachment 

“C”), that did not approve of the Successor Agency’s Last and Final ROPS, based upon funding 
requests by the Successor Agency that were determined to be beyond what is required to 
retire its enforceable obligations; an agreement between the Department of Finance and the 
Agency on amendments and changes could not be reached. 
 

7. The ROPS must now be submitted to the Consolidated Oversight Board for review and 
approval.  The Consolidated Oversight Board-approved ROPS must be submitted to the State 
Department of Finance (“DOF”) for review by February 1st each year. 
 

8. Subsequent to approval by the Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment 
Agency (Successor Agency), staff will present the Last and Final ROPS to the Consolidated 
Oversight Board for approval.  Upon approval from the Consolidated Oversight Board, the 
Last and Final ROPS will be transmitted to the DOF, State Controller, and County Auditor-
Controller.  

 
 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 122 of 443



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Last and Final Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule for the Period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 for the Successor Agency to the San Fernando 
Redevelopment Agency 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34191.6(a), beginning January 1, 2016, agencies that 
have received a Finding of Completion may submit a Last and Final ROPS if all of the following 
conditions are met: 
 
1. The remaining debt is limited to administrative costs and payments pursuant to enforceable 

obligations with defined payment schedules including, but not limited to, debt service, loan 
agreements, and contracts; and 

 
2. All remaining obligations have been previously listed on the ROPS and approved for payment 

by Finance pursuant to HSC section 34177 (m) or (o); and 
 
3. The agency is not a party to outstanding/unresolved litigation. 
 
The Successor Agency received a Finding of Completion on October 3, 2013 and meets all of the 
preceding conditions.  Therefore, the Successor Agency is submitting a Last and Final ROPS for 
the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 (Attachment “A” Exhibit 1).  However, the California 
DOF has 100 days from the date of submission to issue a determination letter on Last and Final 
ROPS.  Additionally, Last and Final ROPS must be approved at least 15 days prior to the tax 
distribution date to be eligible for that ROPS period.  The first tax distribution date for this ROPS 
period is June 1, 2022.   
 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. 
The Successor Agency was tasked with paying, performing and enforcing the enforceable 
obligations of the former redevelopment agency.  The Successor Agency has met all enforceable 
obligations and all debt has been fully paid. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The Successor Agency is not requesting RPTTF for the Last and Final ROPS. Pursuant to HSC 
section 34191.6 (a) (3), any revenues received by the Agency not authorized for use in the 
approved Last and Final ROPS must be remitted to the County Auditor Controller for distribution 
to affected taxing entities. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
There is no deadline for submitting a Last and Final ROPS as it is optional.  However, the Successor 
Agency has fully paid all enforceable obligations and would like to submit a Last and Final ROPS 
to streamline the process for dissolution of the Successor Agency. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 123 of 443



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Last and Final Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule for the Period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 for the Successor Agency to the San Fernando 
Redevelopment Agency 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

Therefore, staff recommends that the Successor Agency adopt the attached Resolution, 
approving the Last and Final ROPS. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

A. Resolution No. 168 (Last and Final ROPS for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2023) 

B. Resolution No. 37 (Last and Final ROPS for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 
2025) 

C. Department of Finance Determination Letter for Last and Final ROPS for the period of 
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2025 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 124 of 443



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 168 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE SAN FERNANDO 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING A LAST AND FINAL 
RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR THE PERIOD 
JULY 1, 2022 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023 AND TAKING CERTAIN 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, pursuant AB x 1 26, enacted on June 28, 2011, and as subsequently amended 
by AB 1484, SB 341, and SB 107 (“Dissolution Act”), the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San 
Fernando was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, and the City of San Fernando elected to serve as 
the Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency to the City of San Fernando 
(“Successor Agency”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34171(m), a “Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule” (“ROPS”) means the document setting forth the minimum 
payment amounts and due dates of payments required by enforceable obligations for each fiscal 
period as provided in Section 34177(o)(1) of the Health and Safety Code.  Therefore, the amounts 
listed on a ROPS are solely estimates of minimum payment amounts required of the Successor 
Agency for enforceable obligations for the upcoming ROPS period; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34191.6(a), beginning January 1, 

2016, agencies that have received a Finding of Completion may submit a “Last and Final ROPS” 
if: 1) the remaining debt is limited to administrative costs and payments pursuant to enforceable 
obligations with defined payment schedules, 2) all remaining debt obligations have been 
previously listed on the ROPS and approved for payment by the Department of Finance pursuant 
to HSC section 34177 (m) or (o), and 3) the agency is not a party to outstanding or unresolved 
litigation; 

WHEREAS, the proposed Last and Final ROPS is consistent with the requirements of the 
Health and Safety Code and other applicable law and is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “1” 
for review and approval by the Successor Agency; 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency shall submit a copy of the Oversight Board-approved 
Last and Final ROPS to the Department of Finance electronically and the Successor Agency shall 
complete the Last and Final ROPS in the manner provided by the Department of Finance; 

WHEREAS, the activity proposed for approval by this Resolution has been reviewed with 
respect to applicability of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), the State CEQA 
Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15000 et seq., hereafter the 
“Guidelines”), and the City’s environmental guidelines; and 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 125 of 443



  RES. NO. 168 

2 

WHEREAS, the activity proposed for approval by this Resolution is not a “project” for 
purposes of CEQA, as that term is defined by Guidelines Section 15378, because the activity 
approved by this Resolution is an organizational or administrative activity that will not result in a 
direct or indirect physical change in the environment, per Section 15378(b)(5) of the Guidelines. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this 
Resolution. 

Section 2. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Dissolution 
Act.  

Section 3. The Successor Agency Board hereby approves and adopts the Last and 
Final ROPS, substantially in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “1” as will be submitted 
for approval to the Oversight Board no later than February 1, 2022.  The Executive Director of the 
Successor Agency, in consultation with the Successor Agency’s legal counsel, may modify the Last 
and Final ROPS as the Executive Director or the Successor Agency’s legal counsel deems necessary 
or advisable to comply with applicable state law and consistent with the enforceable obligations 
of the Successor Agency.   

Section 4. The officers and staff of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed, jointly and severally, to submit a copy of the Last and Final ROPS to the Department of 
Finance, the County Auditor-Controller and the County administrative officer as designated by 
the County.  

Section 5. Staff is hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to submit a 
copy of the Oversight Board-approved Last and Final ROPS to the Department of Finance, the 
Office of the State Controller, and the County Auditor-Controller. 

Section 6. Staff is hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to post a copy 
of the Oversight Board-Approved Last and Final ROPS on the Successor Agency’s Internet website 
(being a page on the Internet website of the City of San Fernando). 

Section 7. The officers and staff of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed, jointly and severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or 
advisable to effectuate this Resolution, including requesting additional review by the DOF and an 
opportunity to meet and confer on any disputed items, and any such actions previously taken by 
such officers and staff are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 126 of 443



  RES. NO. 168 

3 

Section 8. The Successor Agency Board determines that the activity approved by this 
Resolution is not a “project” for purposes of CEQA, as that term is defined by Guidelines Section 
15378, because the activity approved by this Resolution is an organizational or administrative 
activity that will not result in a direct or indirect physical change in the environment, per Section 
15378(b)(5) of the Guidelines. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3RD day of January, 2022. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Mary Mendoza, Chair of the Successor 
Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment 
Agency. 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, Secretary 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO ) 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was approved and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency held on the 3rd day 
of January 2022, by the following vote to wit: 

 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 

      
Julia Fritz, Secretary 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 127 of 443



  RES. NO. 168 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO 

 
 

LAST AND FINAL RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE  
 

(July 1, 2022) through June 30, 2023) 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 128 of 443



Last and Final Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) - Summary 
Filed for the July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 Period 

Successor Agency: San Fernando City 
County: Los Angeles 

Initial ROPS 
Period: 

22-23A

Final ROPS Period: 22-23B

Requested Funding for Enforceable Obligations Total Outstanding Obligation 
A Enforceable Obligations Funded as Follows (B+C) $- 
B Bond Proceeds - 
C Other Funds - 
D Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) (E+F) $- 
E RPTTF - 
F Administrative RPTTF - 
G Total Outstanding Obligations (A+D) $- 

Certification of Oversight Board Chairman: 
Name Title 

Pursuant to Section 34177 (o) of the Health and Safety 
code, I hereby certify that the above is a true and 
accurate Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for 
the above named successor agency. /s/ 

Signature Date 

RES. NO. 168
  EXHIBIT "1"

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 129 of 443







ATTACHMENT "B" 

RESOLUTION NO. 37 

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY THIRD 
SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT CONSOLIDATED OVERSIGHT 
BOARD APPROVING A RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT 
SCHEDULE OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE FORMER 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2020 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025 AND 
TAKING CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, pursuant AB x 1 26, enacted on June 28, 2011 , and as subsequently amended 
by AB 1484, SB 341, and SB 107 ("Dissolution Act"), the Redevelopment Agency of the City of 
San Fernando was dissolved as of February I, 2012, and the City of San Fernando elected to serve 
as the Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency to the City of San Fernando 
("Successor Agency"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34179( q), commencing on and 
after July I, 2018, the county of Los Angeles, where more than 40 oversight boards were created 
by the Dissolution Act, shall have five consolidated oversight boards each encompassing the five 
supervisorial districts. 

WHEREAS, the Third Supervisorial District Consolidated Oversight Board ("Oversight 
Board") has jurisdiction over the Successor Agency to the Former Redevelopment Agency to the 
City of San Fernando. 

WHEREAS, the Third Supervisorial District Consolidated Oversight Board held a special 
meeting on January 14, 2020. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34171 (m), a "Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule" ("ROPS") means the document setting forth the minimum payment 
amounts and due dates of payments required by enforceable obligations for each fiscal period as 
provided in Section 34177(0)(!) of the Health and Safety Code. Therefore, the amounts listed on 
a ROPS are solely estimates of minimum payment amounts required of the Successor Agency for 
enforceable obligations for the upcoming ROPS period. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34191.6(a), beginning January 
I, 2016, agencies that have received a Finding of Completion may submit a "Last and Final ROPS" 
if: 1) the remaining debt is limited to administrative costs and payments pursuant to enforceable 
obligations with defined payment schedules, 2) all remaining debt obligations have been 
previously listed on the ROPS and approved for payment by the Department of Finance pursuant 
to HSC section 34 I 77 (m) or ( o ), and 3) the agency is not a party to outstanding or unresolved 
I itigation. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 132 of 443



WHEREAS, the proposed Last and Final ROPS, as approved by the Successor Agency on 
January 06, 2020, is consistent with the requirements of the Health and Safety Code and other 
applicable law and is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit "1" for review and approval by the 
Oversight Board. 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency shall submit a copy of the Oversight Board-approved 
Last and Final ROPS to the Department of Finance electronically and the Successor Agency shall 
complete the Last and Final ROPS in the manner provided by the Department of Finance. 

WHEREAS, the activity proposed for approval by this Resolution has been reviewed with 
respect to applicability of the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), the State CEQA 
Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15000 et seq., hereafter the 
"Guidelines"), and the City's environmental guidelines. 

WHEREAS, the activity proposed for approval by this Resolution is not a "project" for 
purposes of CEQA, as that term is defined by Guidelines Section 15378, because the activity 
approved by this Resolution is an organizational or administrative activity that will not result in a 
direct or indirect physical change in the environment. per Section 15378(b)(5) of the Guidelines. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY THIRD SUPERVISORIAL 
OVERSIGHT BOARD DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AND FIND AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this 
Resolution. 

Section 2. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Dissolution Act. 

Section 3. The Oversight Board hereby approves and adopts the Last and Final ROPS, 
substantially in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit" I." The Executive Director of the 
Successor Agency, in consultation with the Successor Agency's legal counsel, may modify the 
Last and Final ROPS as the Executive Director or the Successor Agency's legal counsel deems 
necessary or advisable to comply with applicable state law and consistent with the enforceable 
obligations of the Successor Agency. 

Section 4. The officers and staff of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed, jointly and severally, to submit a copy of the Last and Final ROPS to the Department of 
Finance, the County Auditor-Controller and the County administrative officer as designated by the 
County. 

Section 5. Staff is hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to submit a 
copy of the Oversight Board-approved Last and Final ROPS to the Depa1tment of Finance, the 
Office of the State Controller, and the County Auditor-Controller. 

Section 6. Staff is hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to post a copy 
of the Oversight Board-Approved Last and Final ROPS on the Successor Agency's Internet 
website (being a page on the Internet website of the City of San Fernando). 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 133 of 443



Section 7. The officers and staff of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed, jointly and severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or 
advisable to effectuate this Resolution, including requesting additional review by the DOF and an 
opportunity to meet and confer on any disputed items, and any such actions previously taken by 
such officers and staff are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

Section 8. The Successor Agency Board determines that the activity approved by this 
Resolution is not a "project" for purposes of CEQA, as that term is defined by Guidelines Section 
15378, because the activity approved by this Resolution is an organizational or administrative 
activity that will not result in a direct or indirect physical change in the environment, per Section 
I 5378(b)(5) of the Guidelines. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of January, 2020, by the following vote: 

Ayes: --T. i-1 E" I Lt· I A rJ j C HO u WFN> -,-. 72 05 N l. CL) r. s ( LV F/2_ r-J 
Noes: N O N c:--

Abstain: N O N ·E=" 

b - 6 . , '~ . ,.,, ,'N 6 )· ._9 . IL o F Ft.? o r-l--J 
A sent: ._J b 12 D O Nj IL.. L 

~'---------' Third Supervisorial 
istrict Consolidated Oversight Board, Chair 

ATTEST: 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 134 of 443



Last and Final Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) - Summary 
Filed for the July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2025 Period 

Successor Agency: San Fernando City 

Los Angeles 

20-21A 

County: 

Initial ROPS 
Period: 

Final ROPS Period: 24-25B 

Requested Funding for Enforceable Obligations 

A Enforceable Obligations Funded as Follows (B+C) 

B 

C 

D 

E 

F 

G 

Bond Proceeds 

Other Funds 

Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) (E+F) 

RPTTF 

Administrative RPTTF 

Total Outstanding Obligations (A+D) 

Certification of Oversight Board Chairman: 

Pursuant to Section 34177 (o) of the Health and Safety 
code, I hereby certify that the above is a true and 
accurate Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for 
the above named successor agency. 

Name 

Total Outstanding Obligation 

$-

$1,555,448 

1,055,448 

500,000 

$1,555,448 

Title 

I - I~ - zo 20 

Date 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 135 of 443









ATTACHMENT "C"

April 15, 2020 

Diego Ibanez, Director of Finance 
San Fernando City 
11 7 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Transmitted via e-mail 

Last and Final Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule Determination 

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (HSC) section 34191.6 (b), the San Fernando City 
Successor Agency (Agency) submitted a Last and Final Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule (Last and Final ROPS) to the California Department of Finance 
(Finance) on January 21, 2020. Finance has completed its review of the Agency's Last 
and Final ROPS. 

The Agency's Last and Final ROPS contains funding requests beyond what is required to 
retire the Agency's enforceable obligations. Pursuant to HSC section 34191.6 (c), 
Finance proposed amendments and changes to the Last and Final ROPS. However, an 
agreement with the Agency on the amendments and changes could not be reached. 

Therefore, the Agency's Last and Final ROPS is not approved at this time. The Dissolution 
Act does not allow a Meet and Confer for the Last and Final ROPS. To the extent the 
Agency agrees to the amendments and changes recommended by Finance or has 
additional information for Finance to consider, the Agency may submit a new 
Oversight Board approved Last and Final ROPS for Finance's review in the future. 

Without an approved Last and Final ROPS, the Agency may continue to make 
payments for obligations listed on the approved annual ROPS. 

Please direct inquiries to Kylie Oltmann, Supervisor, or Jessica Yip, Staff, at 
(916) 322-2985. 

Sincerely, 

(!;Jww1lll. (Yl~(vt;tUL 
l%1 JENNIFER WHITAKER 

Program Budget Manager 

cc: Sonia Garcia, Senior Accountant, San Fernando City 
Kristina Burns, Manager, Department of Auditor-Controller, Los Angeles County 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 139 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 140 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 141 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 142 of 443



 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340   (818) 898-1222 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 

 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 

Date: January 3, 2022 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Third Amendment to the Professional Services 
Agreement with John Robinson Consulting, Inc. for Additional Engineering 
Services and Permit Fees Related to the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

a. Approve a third Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with John Robinson
Consulting, Inc. (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 1912(c)) for additional engineering services
and fees related to the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related documents.

BACKGROUND: 

1. On June 17, 2019, the City Council approved Contract No. 1912 (Attachment “B”) with John
Robinson Consulting for Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design Services.

2. On June 17, 2019, the City Council approved Resolution No. 7927 authorizing the City to enter
into an agreement with the California Department of Water Resources to receive $5,000,000
from Proposition 1 grant proceeds for the design and construction of Upper Reservoir No. 4.

3. On October 5, 2020, the City Council approved a first Amendment to Contract No. 1912(a)
(Attachment “C”) with John Robinson Consulting, Inc. for additional engineering design scope
for the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project.

4. On June 21, 2021, the City Council approved a second Amendment to Contract No. 1912(b)
(Attachment “D”) with John Robinson Consulting, Inc. for construction management services
for the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 143 of 443



Consideration to Approve a Third Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with John 
Robinson Consulting, Inc. for Additional Engineering Services and Permit Fees Related to the Upper 
Reservoir Replacement Project   
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
Upper Reservoir No. 4 is a circular reinforced concrete water storage tank built in the early 1960s 
that was designed to hold one million gallons of water at full capacity. The tank has been limited 
to approximately half this capacity since 1999 due to cracks that have developed over time in the 
tank’s wall. John Robinson Consulting (JRC) completed the final design documents in August 
2021, which focused on replacing the existing circular tank with a square-shaped, reinforced 
concrete tank with a new total capacity of 1.1 million gallons of storage. In addition to the 
reservoir replacement, the design will implement several piping modifications leading into and 
out of the reservoir to improve hydraulic flow. Extensive work will be required on the project 
site, but also in the road on Foothill Boulevard and Hubbard Avenue to make changes to the 
water mains. The project also includes improvements to security at the reservoir site, including 
lighting, wrought-iron fencing, and a new motorized security gate.  
 
The project went out to bid for construction in August and September 2021, but an exceedingly 
busy bid environment for large construction projects in Southern California lead to the City only 
getting one bid that was substantially over the engineer’s estimate for the project.  The City also 
received an extensive list of design items that the Department of Drinking Water (DDW) wanted 
addressed before the City put the project back out to bid. As a result, on  
September 20, 2021, the City Council rejected the one bid that was submitted and JRC made 
some design adjustments to address DDW review comments. The City of Los Angeles also 
requested a full set of traffic control plans for the project due to the significant amount of pipe 
work being completed on Hubbard Avenue and Foothill Boulevard.  
 
The total scope of work to be added to John Robinson Consulting’s contract includes design time 
related to the DDW plan review, the traffic control plan requested by the City of Los Angeles 
transportation department, City of Los Angeles engineering permit fees, and additional time 
required to analyze bids and ensure the City gets several competitive bids for the project. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The Upper Reservoir Replacement Project is being funded through a $5,000,000 reimbursable 
grant from the California Department of Water Resources (CDWR). These funds were 
appropriated through an agreement with the CDWR in FY 2018-2019 and to date have been used 
during the design phase. The contract amendment for John Robinson Consulting is $67,786. 
There is an approximate balance of $4,026,000 and it is anticipated that there will be sufficient 
funds for field engineering and construction services.  
  
 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 144 of 443



Consideration to Approve a Third Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with John 
Robinson Consulting, Inc. for Additional Engineering Services and Permit Fees Related to the Upper 
Reservoir Replacement Project   
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve a third amendment to the Professional Services 
Agreement with John Robinson Consulting, Inc. for additional engineering services and permit 
fees related to the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 1912(c)  
B. Contract No. 1912 
C. Contract No. 1912(a) 
D. Contract No. 1912(b) 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 145 of 443



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 1912(c) 

2022 
THIRD AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(John Robinson Consulting Incorporated (John Robinson Consulting) - Upper Reservoir 
Replacement Construction Management and Engineering Services) 

THIS 2022 THIRD AMENDMENT (“Third Amendment”) to that certain agreement entitled 
“Professional Services Agreement – John Robinson Consulting Incorporated (John Robinson 
Consulting) - Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design Services” originally executed 17th day 
of June, 2019 by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation and general 
law city (“CITY”) and JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING,  a California corporation (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT” is made and entered into this 3rd day of January, 2022 (“Effective Date”).  For 
purposes of this Second Amendment, the capitalized term “Parties” shall be a collective reference to 
both CITY and CONSULTANT.  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to either CITY or 
CONSULTANT interchangeably as appropriate.    

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed and entered into an employment agreement dated June 17, 2019 and 
entitled “Professional Services Agreement – John Robinson Consulting Incorporated (John Robinson 
Consulting) - Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design Services”, Contract No. 1912 
(hereinafter, the “Master Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to modify the Master Agreement further for purposes of modifying 
the Master Agreement’s compensation terms; and 

WHEREAS, execution of the First and Second Amendments were approved by the San Fernando City 
Council (“City Council”) at its Regular Meetings of October 5, 2020 and June 21, 2021, respectively. 

WHEREAS, execution of this Third Amendment was approved by the San Fernando City Council 
(“City Council”) at its Regular Meeting of January 3, 2022. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to 
be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Term as defined under Section 1.2 of the Master Agreement is hereby amended to 
terminate on June 30, 2023. 

The Not-to-Exceed Sum as defined under Section 1.3 of the Master Agreement is hereby amended to 
mean and refer to the sum of Nine Hundred and Seventy-Three Thousand, and Ninety-One Dollars 
($973,091.00).  

SECTION 2. Notwithstanding anything in the Master Agreement or the Third Amendment to the 
contrary, CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services 
in accordance with the performance scheduled entitled “Additional Scope of Services” which is 
attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit “A”).  

SECTION 3.    Except as otherwise set forth in this Third Amendment, the Master Agreement shall 
remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect.  The provisions of this Third Amendment shall 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 146 of 443



CONTRACT NO. 1912(c) 

2 

be deemed a part of the Master Agreement and except as otherwise provided under this Third 
Amendment, the Master Agreement and all provisions contained therein shall remain binding and 
enforceable.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Third 
Amendment and the provisions of the Master Agreement, the provisions of this Third Amendment shall 
govern and control, but only in so far as such provisions conflict with the Master Agreement and no 
further.  

SECTION 4. The Master Agreement as amended by way of this Third Amendment, constitutes the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters addressed 
herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into 
between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Third Amendment.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party which are not embodied 
herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, modification or supplement to the Master Agreement 
as amended by this Third Amendment shall be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed 
by the Parties in the form of a written contract amendment.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Third Amendment to be executed on 
the day and year first appearing above. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 147 of 443



3 

CITY: 

City of San Fernando 

By:___________________________________ 

Date:_________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By:__________________________________ 

Name:________________________________ 

Title:_________________________________ 

Date:  

 CONSULTANT 

John Robinson Consulting 

By:_____________________________ 

Name:___________________________ 

Title:____________________________ 

Date:_____________________________ 

CONTRACT NO. 1912(c) 

Nick Kimball
City Manager 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 148 of 443



4 

EXHIBIT A 

Additional Scope of Services 

CONTRACT NO. 1912(c)
EXHIBIT "A"

   

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 149 of 443



1055 E. Colorado Blvd, STE 500, Pasadena, CA 91106    TEL (626) 375-9389   www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com 

December 2, 2021 

Mr. Manuel Fabian 
Civil Engineering Assistant II 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando CA 91340 

Reference: Upper Reservoir Replacement Project Amendment No. 3-Contract No. 1912 

Dear Mr. Fabian: 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. (JRC) is submitting this Amendment No. 3 for Contract No. 1912 
to the City of San Fernando (City) for the Upper Reservoir Replacement Project as additional effort 
has been required by our traffic control subconsultant (JMD) to support LADOT, reimburse JRC 
for two Developer Fees for LADOT to review the traffic control plans and additional scope to 
support the re-bid of the project which includes the additional design services, bid services and 
project management will be require additional compensation for Kennedy Jenks (KJ). The 
following outlines the additional scope of services by discipline (Civil, Traffic Control and Project 
Management), project schedule and requested additional compensation. 

Additional Scope of Services: 

Task 1.1 – Data Review 

JMD will gather available electronic base topographic files and as-built plans from LADOT to 
verify the existing topography and proposed improvements. JMD will prepare preliminary base 
plans from the topographic files and verification of existing features relevant to the proposed task 
during field reviews. For the purposes of this proposal, we have assumed that detailed survey will 
not be required by LADOT and is therefore not included in this proposal. However, typical 
topographic files do not comprehensively extend to the limits required for traffic signal design. 
For this reason, JMD anticipates the additional topographic features for purposes of traffic signal 
design will be included via field reviews and measurements. 

Task 2.3 – 100% Design Documents and Task 2.8 – Bidding Assistance 

Kennedy Jenks (KJ) will be provided assistance by providing additional design services and bid 
service to assist JRC and City. This includes specifically:  
• A review and summary email regarding the cost estimate prepared for final design, assessing

whether the City may need to set aside money from their capital program for this project.
• Outreach to up to 10 contractors to encourage them to bid on the project
• Incorporation of the prior addenda into the construction documents and modification to align

with the new bid schedule, revising deadlines and bid site walk date and time, and changed
schedule of the project.

• Attending the bid walk with one person.
• Answer Bidder questions

5

CONTRACT NO. 1912(c)
EXHIBIT "A"

    

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 150 of 443

http://www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com/


Mr. Manuel Fabian, Civil Engineering Assistant II - 2 -

1055 E. Colorado Blvd, STE 500, Pasadena, CA 91106    TEL (626) 375-9389   www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com 

• Prepare up to two addenda

Assumption: 
• A maximum of two addenda will be issued.
• A maximum of 25 bidder questions will be issued
• KJ contractor outreach will consist of contacting up to 10 General Contractors

Task 2.4 – Traffic Control Plans 

• LADOT Coordination/Permit - Since the site is located within the City of Los Angeles, the
temporary traffic signal design format  and standards shall conform to LADOT guidelines. The
plan will be coordinated with LADOT staff and submitted for review and approval. JMD
anticipates this plan to be included within the current B-Permit application. JMD will attend
up to one (1) additional project coordination meeting with the Design Team and Agency staff
to discuss temporary traffic control design and coordination issues.

• 65% Temporary Traffic Signal Plan

• JMD anticipates one title sheet and one temporary traffic signal plan sheet is required. This
results in two (2) temporary traffic signal plan sheets, in AutoCAD format and at a scale of
1”=20’, illustrating the plan view of the proposed temporary traffic signal design for
construction activities within the subject intersection. The draft temporary traffic signal design
will be based on existing conditions and the proposed improvements within public street limits.

• 65% Traffic Control Plan

JMD will prepare and submit one additional traffic control plan sheet as required to address
the latest LADOT comments from November 22th. The additional traffic control plan sheet is
needed to accommodate approximately 1,500 feet of additional topographic base mapping for
both the west construction limits for Stage 2. The plan will be in AutoCAD format and at a
scale of 1”=40’, illustrating the plan view of the proposed traffic control design for construction
activities within the subject intersection. The design includes providing a ped path around the
work zone, maintaining the bike lanes, and providing a curb ramp detail. The traffic control
design will be based on existing conditions and the proposed improvements within public street
limits.

• 65% Traffic Signal Restoration Plan - JMD will prepare and submit a draft Traffic Signal
Restoration plan as indicated on LADOT’s submittal checklist. The plan will be prepared per
LADOT requirements and focus on the restoration of the existing traffic signal once the
construction activities due to the proposed temporary traffic signal design are completed. This
results in two (2) traffic signal restoration plan sheets, in AutoCAD format and at a scale of
1”=20’, illustrating the plan view of the restoration of the existing traffic signal design within
the subject intersection.

• 65% Field Review Log, Photo Log and Map

6

CONTRACT NO. 1912(c)
EXHIBIT "A"

    December 2, 2021 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 151 of 443

http://www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com/


Mr. Manuel Fabian, Civil Engineering Assistant II - 3 -

1055 E. Colorado Blvd, STE 500, Pasadena, CA 91106    TEL (626) 375-9389   www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com 

JMD will prepare and submit draft field review logs, photo logs, and maps as required by 
LADOT for the additional topographic base mapping. These items will be prepared per 
LADOT requirements and focus on the proposed temporary traffic signal design for 
construction activities within the subject intersection as well as proposed temporary traffic 
control design for construction activities within Stage 2. 

• Incorporate Comments and Submit 100% Plans - After preliminary review and comments
by the City/Agency, JMD will incorporate the changes and submit the 100% temporary traffic
signal plan package and the 100% temporary traffic control plan package to LADOT for
City/Agency approval.

• Incorporate Comments and Submit Final Plans - After final review and comments by the
City/Agency, JMD will incorporate the changes and submit the final temporary traffic signal
plan package and the final temporary traffic control plan package to LADOT for City/Agency
approval.

Deliverables: JMD will prepare and submit one (1) 65%, one (1) 100%, and one (1) final submittal 
consisting of one (1) original set of temporary traffic signal plans and temporary traffic control 
plans. The deliverables will be sent to LADOT for review, comment and approval. 

Assumptions: 
• No additional permitting is anticipated.
• The only impacted jurisdictions include the Cities of Los Angeles and San Fernando.
• Utility relocation plans and utility notices are not included.
• JMD will utilize existing electronic topographic mapping from LADOT for formatting and

content conformance.
• No additional plans/forms/documents/permits are anticipated.
• Only three (3) meetings assumed for the entire project.

Task 2.6 – Permitting Support 

JRC will pay the Developer Fee to LADOT for the review of the Traffic Control Plan outlined in 
Task 2.4 – Traffic Control Plans. 

Task 4.1 Project Management and Administration 

• JMD will attend up to two (2) additional project coordination meetings with the Design
Team and City staff to discuss temporary traffic signal design and coordination issues.

• KJ will provide project management support for an additional 3 months in order to
complete the bidding support to assist the City to award the project to a successful
Contractor.

7

CONTRACT NO. 1912(c)
EXHIBIT "A"

    December 2, 2021 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 152 of 443

http://www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com/


Mr. Manuel Fabian, Civil Engineering Assistant II - 4 -

1055 E. Colorado Blvd, STE 500, Pasadena, CA 91106    TEL (626) 375-9389   www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com 

Project Schedule - The additional scope of services has extended the project an additional 3 
months.   

Additional Compensation - Attached is a Table 1 fee breakdown of our fee for each 
discipline. The fee will be on a time and materials basis, not to exceed $67,785.51.  

Per the April 9, 2019 proposal, JRC will not mark-up any of our Project Team invoices and pass 
those savings back to the City.  

Should you have any questions or require any further information, please do not hesitate to John 
Robinson at jrobinson@johnrobinsonconsulting.com or at the office at (626) 375-9389. 

Respectively,  

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 

John Robinson, Principal 

Task Project Tasks
John Robinson 

Principal

$150

1.1 Data Review 0 0 $0 1,093$   $0 1,093$        
2.3 and 

2.8
100% Design Documents and 
Bidding Assistance

0 0 $0 15,000$ $0 15,000$      

2.4 Traffic Control Plans 0 0 $0 26,649$ $0 26,649$      
2.6 Permitting Support 0 0 $21,076.51 -$       $0 $21,076.51
4.1 Project Management 0 0 $0 3,967$   $0 3,967$        

Total Hours 0 0 21,076.51$ 46,709$ $0 67,785.51$ 
Total Not-to-Exceed Fee 67,785.51$ 

Table 1 - Compensation
City of San Fernando - Upper Reservoir Replacement Project

TOTAL 
FEES

Total 
Hrs

Total 
Labor

SubsPermit Fees

8

CONTRACT NO. 1912(c)
EXHIBIT "A"

    December 2, 2021 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 153 of 443

http://www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com/
mailto:jrobinson@johnrobinsonconsulting.com


SAN F ER_NANill
CONTRACT NO. 1912 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 17th

day of June 2019, by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation 
("CITY") and JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING, INCORPORATED ("CONSULTANT"). For the 
purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the 
capitalized term "Parties." The capitalized term "Party" may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT 
interchangeably. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows: 

I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS

1.1 SCOPE OF WORK: Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and 
all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth in Exhibit "1" (hereinafter referred to as the "Scope of 

Work"). CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Work. For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set 
forth in the Scope of Work shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized 
term "Work." CONSULTANT shall not commence with the performance of the Work 
until such time as CITY issues a written Notice to Proceed. 

1.2 TERM: The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date it is signed by all of 
the Parties (the "Effective Date") and shall terminate on February 28, 2022. 

1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work contemplated under this Agreement on an as

needed, as requested basis for the Term of this Agreement and any extension term.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to grant CONSULTANT the exclusive right
to perform any of the types of services or tasks contemplated under this Agreement nor
shall anything in this Agreement be construed to entitle CONSULTANT to the receipt of
any sums under this Agreement, except to the extent CITY requests the performance of

any Work in the manner described below and such Work is in fact performed and
completed by CONSULTANT and accepted by CITY. CITY requests for the performance of

ATTACHMENT "B"

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 154 of 443



specific services or tasks contemplated under this Agreement shall be made in the form 
of a written work order(s) issued by the City Representative (each such written request 
hereinafter referred to as a "Work Order"). Each Work Order shall include the following 
information: 

1. A detailed description of the specific services or tasks requested; 
2. The location of where the particular services or tasks are to be performed; 
3. A not-to-exceed budget for performing the services or tasks; 
4. A timeline for completing the services or tasks requested 
5. Any other information the CITY deems necessary and relevant to the requested 

services or tasks; and 
6. The signature of the City Representative, confirming that the services or tasks 

have been authorized by the City Representative. 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform no Work under this Agreement without a written request 
from the City Representative, containing the information set forth in Section 1.2A 
above. 

C. Time is of the essence in the performance of Work under this Agreement, and in the 
absence of a specific schedule or other instructions from the City Representative, 
CONSULTANT shall begin and complete performance of the Work to completion in a 
timely and diligent manner. 

1.3 COMPENSATION: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks contemplated under this 
Agreement in accordance with the schedule of hourly rates and charges set forth in that 
certain document attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit "2" and entitled 
"Approved Rate Schedule" (hereinafter, the "Approved Rate Schedule"). 

B. Section 1.3A notwithstanding, CONSULTANT's total compensation during the Term of 
this Agreement shall not exceed the budgeted aggregate sum of FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY 
NINE THOUSAND - EIGHT HUNDRED NINETY ONE ($469,891) (hereinafter, the "Not-to
Exceed Sum"). CONSULTANT further agrees that the Not-to-Exceed Sum is inclusive of 
compensation for all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and 
incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely complete 
the Work. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "fiscal year" means a period of time 
commencing on July 1st of a calendar year and ending on June 30th of the calendar year 
immediately following. 

C. In the event CONSULTANT's charges are projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum 
prior to the expiration of the Term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT's performance 

2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 155 of 443



pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-Exceed 
Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation terms of this 
Agreement. 

D. Following the conclusion of Work requested pursuant to 1.2, above, CONSULTANT shall 
submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and tasks performed and the 
reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred. If the amount of CONSULTANT's 
compensation includes hours worked by CONSULTANT's personnel, the invoice shall 
indicate the number of hours worked in connection with the specific service or task 
requested, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of compensation 
at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service 
performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) calendar days 
of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any disputed 
amounts included in the invoice. Within forty-five (45) calendar day of receipt of each 
invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice. CITY shall not 
withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to 
CONSULTANT. 

1.4 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate records with 
respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years after 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement. CITY shall have the right to access and 
examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours. CITY shall further 
have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all 
program data, documents, proceedings, and activities. 

1.5 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT: In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the Work 
agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking contemplated 
herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of any or all tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Work, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY immediately and without 
delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT 
in the performance of this Agreement. Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be 
compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks and other Work performed up 
to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any damages, costs or 
additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of CONSULTANT's cessation or 
abandonment. 

II. 

2.1 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

CITY'S REPRESENTATIVES: The CITY hereby designates the DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 
WORKS/CITY ENGINEER (hereinafter, the "CITY Representatives") to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement. The DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 
WORKS/CITY ENGINEER shall be the chief CITY Representative. The CITY 

3 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 156 of 443



2.2 

2.3 

2.4 

Representatives or their designee shall act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under 
this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall not accept directions or orders from any person 
other than the CITY Representatives or their designee. 

CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates John Robinson, 
Principal, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, the "CONSULTANT Representative"). CONSULTANT Representative shall 
have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes 
under this Agreement. CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and 
direct the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be 
responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the 
satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement. Notice to 
the CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT. 

COORDINATION OF SERVICE: CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS: CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this 
Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all 
reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection and 
approval by CITY Representatives or their designees. 

STANDARD OF CARE: PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES: CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT's profession; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 
CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 
under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance; 

E. All of CONSULTANT's employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT's employees and agents (including but not limited 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 

4 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 157 of 443



2.5 

2.6 

licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at CONSULTANT's 
own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services 
necessary to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT's failure to comply 
with the standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT's employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. 
Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced 
immediately upon their discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven 
(7) calendars days from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time 
authorized by the CITY Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute 
discretion. The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY's acceptance of any work 
performed by CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT's behalf shall not constitute a release of 
any deficiency or delay in performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand 
and agree that CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, 
including but not limited to the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, 
training, knowledge and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, 
competently and to the highest standards of CONSULTANT's profession. 

ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 
material to CITY's willingness to enter into this Agreement. Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement. In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees 
that it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT's duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY. In the absence of CITY's prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void 
and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 
shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT's strict supervision. 
CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement. CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee. CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT's 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement 
and provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized 
disclosure of CITY's confidential or proprietary information. Any additional personnel 
performing the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not 
employees of CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT's exclusive direction and 

5 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 158 of 443



control. CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such 
personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security 
and Medicare payments and the like. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports 
and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: 
Social Security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability 
insurance, workers' compensation insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS: If any of CONSULTANT's officers, employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or 
if any of CONSULTANT's officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be reassigned to perform any of the 
Work. 

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or 
otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT's compliance with 
applicable laws shall include, without limitation, compliance with all applicable 
Cal/OSHA requirements. 

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION: In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not 
discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical 
condition. 

2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 
that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall 
at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY. CONSULTANT shall be solely 
responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained 
or employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in 
any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or 
against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly 
conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by 
CITY in writing. 

6 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 159 of 443



Ill. 

3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

INSURANCE 

DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and 
throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies 
of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. 
CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own 
expense: 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance ("CGL Coverage") as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 
0001) or its equivalent. Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less 
than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00} per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00} in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto). Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance/ Employer's Liability Insurance: A policy of 
workers' compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal 
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage 
arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker 
employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying 
out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 

Errors & Omissions Insurance: For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT's 
profession. Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 
Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY's elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds. 

REQUIRED CARRIER RATING: All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 
shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to 

7 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 160 of 443



issue policies directly to California insureds. Except as otherwise provided elsewhere 
under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, according 
to the latest edition of the Best's Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best's rating of no less 
than A:VII. CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard 
& Poor's rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the 
Standard & Poor's rating guide. As to Workers' Compensation Insurance/ Employer's 
Liability Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings 
than those set forth in this Section. 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT'S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY's elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. Any insurance or self
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY's elected or appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT's insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION: All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to 
a loss. CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY. 

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE: CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, 
that CITY's ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required 
under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY's financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY. Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance 
and endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms 
satisfactory to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion. The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested. All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and 
approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT's commencement of any 
work or any of the Work. Upon CITY's written request, CONSULTANT shall also provide 
CITY with certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements. 

IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY's elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the "CITY lndemnitees") should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, 
claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys' fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising 
out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, the 
provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and 
construed to provide the CITY lndemnitees with the fullest protection possible under 

8 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 161 of 443



the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in 
the absence of CONSULTANT's commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as 
set forth herein. 

4.2 WORK OF CONSULTANT'S DESIGN PROFESSIONALS SERVICES: The duty to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless as set forth under this subsection shall apply to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of any individual who qualifies as a 
"design professional" within the meaning of subsection (c)(2) of Section 2782.8 of the 
California Civil Code in so far as such negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct 
occurs in the performance, work or activities that must be performed by a "design 
professional." Subject to the limitation of the preceding sentence, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall immediately defend and indemnify and hold 
harmless the City Indemnities, defined above, from and against any and all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees, expert 
fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of the 
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT's 
officers, employees, servants, agents, contractors, subcontractors or authorized 
volunteers or any other person or entity involved by, for, or with or on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of design professional services under this Agreement. 
The Parties understand and agree that the duty of CONSULTANT to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless pursuant to this subsection includes the duty to defend as set forth in 
Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. CONTRACTOR's obligation to indemnify 
applies unless it is finally adjudicated that the liability was caused by the sole active 
negligence or sole willful misconduct of an indemnified party. If it is finally adjudicated 
that liability is caused by the comparative active negligence or willful misconduct of an 
indemnified party, then CONSULTANT's indemnification obligation shall be reduced in 
proportion to the established comparative liability. 

4.3 WORK OF ALL OTHER PERSONS/NON-DESIGN PROFESSIONALS: Except as otherwise 
provided under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY lndemnitees from and 
against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable 
attorneys' fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature to 
the extent caused by CONSULTANT's negligent performance under this Agreement, 
including but not limited to the negligent acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT's officers, employees, agents, servants, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants or the failure of the same to comply with any of the duties, obligations 
or standards of care set forth herein. The duty to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
under this subsection shall not encompass a duty to indemnity, defend or hold harmless 
for liability, loss, suit, damage, expense, or cost caused by the negligence or willful 
misconduct of any or all of the City lndemnitees. The duty to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless as set forth under this subsection is intended to encompass liabilities, 
losses, damages, expense and costs not otherwise subject to subsection 4.2, above. 

9 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 162 of 443



4.4 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY shall 
have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due CONSULTANT 
under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result of 
CONSULTANT's failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Article and related to CONSULTANT's failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers' compensation laws. 

4.5 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, the 
obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers' compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its 
statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY's elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and authorized volunteers. 

4.6 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 
CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement. In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY's elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and authorized volunteers from and against any and all 
claims and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any 
person and injury to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, 
negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT's 
subcontractors or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall 
include reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by counsel of CITY's choice. 

4.7 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY does 
not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT because of 
the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or certificate 
required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification provision 
shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined to be 
applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

4.8 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, the duties 
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as set forth under this Section, shall survive the 
early termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and shall be in addition to any 
other rights or remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity. 

V. TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for 
convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) calendar 

10 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 163 of 443



5.2 

days prior written notice of CITY's intent to terminate this Agreement. Upon such 
termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date 
of the termination. CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause 
as provided under Section 5.2, below. If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents 
and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared 
by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT shall 
be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
CITY's written request. No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of 
CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY's 
ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT: BREACH OF AGREEMENT: 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event 
of default (hereinafter, "Event of Default") shall occur. For all Events of Default, 
the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting 
Party (hereinafter referred to as a "Default Notice") which shall specify: (i) the 
nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of 
Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not 
be less than the applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C 
below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to 
begin such cure and diligently prosecute such cure to completion. The Event of 
Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to 
cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any extended cure 
period allowed under this Agreement. 

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following 
time periods: 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY's issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY's employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work 
product which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY or CITY's 
employees or agents under this Agreement. Prior to the expiration of the 3-
day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional 
time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period. The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time 

11 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 164 of 443



for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds 
seven (7) calendar days from the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY's issuance of a Default Notice for 
any other Event of Default under this Agreement. Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that 
CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that 
the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure 
period. The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 
5.28.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-
day cure period. 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely 
perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of 
Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the 
following: (i) CONSULTANT's refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks 
called for under the Scope of Services; (ii) CONSULTANT's failure to fulfill or perform its 
obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, 
within a reasonable time; (iii) CONSULTANT's and/or its employees' disregard or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation; (iv) the initiation 
of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or 
similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) 
CONSULTANT's refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, condition, 
obligation or provision of this Agreement; and/or (vii) CITY's discovery that a statement 
representation or warranty by CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement is false, 
misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five 
(45) calendar days of CONSULTANT's issuance of a Default Notice, unless the 
Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period. 
Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written 
request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY 
has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period. The 
foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY's failure to 
timely pay any undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, 
above, shall be cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of 
CONSULTANT's Default Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT's performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT's cure 

12 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 165 of 443



of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY's intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT's performance (hereinafter, a "Suspension Notice"). CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default. Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for 
those services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the 
reasonable satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension. No 
actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY's ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach. No 
waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party 
shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or 
otherwise. 

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 
In addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this 
Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 
this Agreement in whole or in part; 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of 
the Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT's breach of the 
Agreement or to terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy. 

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY's exercise of its remedies under 
this Agreement. 

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT's sole remedy 
shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of 
any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for 
completed services and tasks. 

13 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 166 of 443



5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER: No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement. No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS: The termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA: LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY: All Documents and 
Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon 
their use or dissemination by CITY. For purposes of this Agreement, the term 
"Documents and Data" means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, 
drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, 
schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other 
materials developed and/or assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, 
including but not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or 
electronically. This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to 
copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other 
intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data. CONSULTANT shall require 
all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the same 
right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data prepared or 
assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data 
prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. 

6.2 

6.3 

CONFIDENTIALITY: All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY 
data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY's name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

FALSE CLAIMS ACT: CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT 
nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership 
interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent 

14 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 167 of 443



6.4 

6.5 

6.6 

6.7 

6.8 

jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the 
California False Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq. 

NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

CONSULTANT: 

Attn: John Robinson, Principal 
1055 E. Colorado Blvd. Suite 500 
Pasadena, CA 91106 
Phone: (626) 375-9389 
Email: johnrobinsonconsulting.com 

CITY: 

Attn: Director of Public Works 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Phone: (818) 898-1222 
Fax: (818) 361-6728 

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid 
and addressed to the Party at its applicable address. 

COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS: The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and 
shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work 
required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written 
approval of CITY. Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with 
subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions 
stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements 
and indemnification. 

CITY'S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS: CITY reserves the right to employ 
other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 

PROHIBITED INTERESTS: CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has 
not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, 
CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, 
any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation 
of this warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability. 
For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the 

15 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 168 of 443



6.9 

term of his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 
Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE: This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California. In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California. If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS' FEES: If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing Party reasonable attorneys' fees and all other costs of such action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT: There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right 
or obligation assumed by the Parties. All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION: No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both 
Parties, subject to CITY approval. The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void 
and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS: The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

16 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 169 of 443



6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS: In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control. 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement. No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding. No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect. No handwritten or typewritten 
amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or 
binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above. 
One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the 
remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by CITY. 

{SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

17 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 170 of 443



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 

and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

By ~ all Rt By: 

City Manager 1\1>ovL 

Title: 

18 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 171 of 443



EXHIBIT "1"

April 9, 2019 

THE CITY OF 

SAN ERN 
Proposal for the 

UPPER RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT 
ENGINEERING DESIGN 

Reservoir Site Section 
Looking North 

West It 
I 
I 

I 18' · 0" 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

55' - 8" 

2.5 MG 
Reservoir 3A 

El 1323.00--. r ~3.33 

10'. 4• 

East It 
I 1<---------lt.- --1 

78'- 0" 19'- 0" I 

77' - O" 

Newl.0MG ~ 
Concrete Reservoir J ~ ! 

~ El 1319.00' ·1 ! : _ 1 -+ l fl 1318.75' ~ I 
;t I 

I fl "306 I 
Existing Fence ____,/ El 1301 00 I El 1304 l . 

ir- 1 f1119900 I 
I . t-Existing Fence 

r El 1308 Varies 
I I El 1304 1---=---Permanent Cut Slope 

I fl 1193 67 

/% L., . .,. . I~ 
0 Temporary Shotcre~e Facing -------' ~ ~ Temporary Soil Nails Temporary Soil Nails -----;,..----- ~ 

(Lenglh varies 25' _ 15') (Length Varies 25' · 15') 

JOHN 
ROBINSON 
Consulting, Inc. 

Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 172 of 443



April 9, 2019 

Yazdan Emrani, P.E. 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Kennedy Jenks 

Subject: Proposal for Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

Dear Mr. Emrani: 

You can place your trust in the John Robinson Consulting and Kennedy Jenks (JRC/KJ) team to 
provide extensive technical expertise, relevant project experience, and thorough understanding of 
your needs for the Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design Project. Here is what makes 
our team unique: 

• We Provide Decades of Technical Expertise to Develop Your Project I The JRC/KJ team has 
been providing water facility design services for 100 years to our clients throughout California 
and the West Coast. Our technical leadership team of John Robinson (Project Manager), David 
Ferguson (Design Manager), and Don Barraza (Reservoir Design) has a combined 97 years of 
experience and has successfully delivered over 100 reservoir design projects. 

• We Will Provide a Reliable and Safe Reservoir I Based on our extensive experience with 
similar reservoir projects, we will provide the City with a reliable and safe facility that will 
provide uninterrupted water service for the foreseeable future. In order to provide the City with a 
structure that will have minimal maintenance requirements and exceeds the minimum service 
life, the team will go beyond minimum building codes and national standards where it is efficient 
to do so. In addition, the City will be provided with a comprehensive material and construction 
analysis which will help the determine the reservoir design that best meets the City's goals and 
objectives. 

• We Will Protect Existing Facilities and Maintain Continuous Operation during Construction I 
We understand it is vita l to protect Reservoir 3A and ensure it is fully operational during 
construction of the Upper Reservoir replacement. We will provide an excavation support system 
on the two sides adjacent to Reservoir 3A that will be rigid to limit deflection of the exposed face 
and settlement of the earth subgrade materials to prevent leakage from the floor. Protection of 
Reservoir 3A wi ll also be key in selection of construction material for the new reservoir as above
grade welded steel tank will have a greater impact on Reservoir 3A integrity than a partially
buried concrete tank 

Thank you for the opportunity to present our proposal and we look forward to working with you on 
this important project. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us. 

Very truly yours, 

JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING 

;iL 
· al and Project Manager 

KENNEDY JENKS CONSULTANTS 

-------fl . 
David Ferguson, 1'E, ~ 
Vice President, Design Manager 

1055 East Colorado Boulevard, Suite 500, Pasadena, CA 91106 • 626-375-9389 • www.johnrobinsonconsulting.com 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 173 of 443



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1 Understanding of the Scope of Services 

2 Methodology and Work Plan 

3 Experience and Qualifications of the Firm 

4 Key Personnel 

5 References 

6 Fee Proposal 

7 Completion Schedule 

Appendix A - Preliminary Drawing List 

Appendix B - Resumes 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING, INC. 
UPPER RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT ENGINEERING DESIGN KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS, INC. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 174 of 443



1 - UNDERSTANDING OF THE SCOPE OF SERVICES 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
The City of San Fernando (City) is looking for a design 
team to assist with preliminary design engineering, 
final design engineering and engineering services 
during construction for the Upper Reservoir Replace
ment Project. 

The existing Upper Reservoir is a partially buried, 
circular reinforced concrete reservoir that was dam
aged during the 1994 Northridge earthquake and 
has been operating at reduced capacity to avoid 
leakage. Due to this damage, the City has deter
mined that Upper Reservoir will need to be replaced, 
which will provide increased operational flexibility 
to more effectively meet demands and maximize 
groundwater supplies. 

Our team listened carefu lly during the mandatory 
pre-proposal meeting and captured work items de
sired by the City within this proposal that were not 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design - 1 -

detailed in the RFP. The preliminary evaluation will 
include steel versus concrete options but we under
stand that the City may prefer a concrete reservoir 
in order to decrease O&M. We worked with our en
vironmental subconsultant to decrease the environ
mental work from $35k to $4.5k; we have added a 
catwalk between the two reservoirs; with the original 
designer of Reservoir 3A as our Design Manager, we 
will provide intimate knowledge of the L-shaped res
ervoir and existing site that will be key in protecting 
and maintaining the reservoir in service during de
commissioning and construction of the Upper Res
ervoir replacement. 

Our schedule, while conservative, brings the project 
to a conclusion 2 months ahead of your funding re
quirement, but we can work with staff to provide a 
quicker submittal if needed. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. Inc 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 175 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

METHODOLOGY 
Th is section describes our proposed methodology to 
complete the Upper Reservoir Replacement project, 
including identification of key issues and our pro
posed approach to addressing these issues. 

KEY ISSUES 
Our Project Team has recently completed the design 
of simi lar sized potable water tanks in California 

and we have also recently completed storage tank 
alternative evaluations for Cities of Camari llo, San
ta Paula, and South Pasadena where we compared 
above-grade steel to buried concrete. 

The text that follows demonstrates that we have a 
good understanding of the key issues associated 
with your project and the experience and expertise 
to address these issues. 

0 KEV ISSUE: INCREASE RELIABILITY ANO SAFETY WITH PROVEN STRUCTURAL/SEISMIC DESIGN 

A successful approach to the structural design of the Upper Reservoir replacement must satisfy the follow
ing goals and object ives: 

RELIABILITY ANO DURABILITY: O&M ACCESS ANO SAFETY 

The structure must be designed in accordance with adopted building codes The storage tank must be 
and national standards for water containment structures to provide reliable designed to provide safe 
storage over the life of the facility. access for operation and 

f-----------------------------1 
The structure must be designed to withstand the strong ground motion and maintenance personnel for 
other site hazards the structure will be exposed to over the life of the facility. regular cleaning, inspection, 

and routine maintenance 
The structure must provide containment of the water supply with tightness activities. 
meeting or exceeding currently adopted national standards for water 
containment facilities. The structure including the roof must provide 
protection from contamination, evaporation, and temperature fluctuation. 

KEY ISSUES 
Our experience not only gives us a good understanding of the key issues associated with your project, 
but the expertise to address them. 

0 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design - 2 -

John Robinson Consul~ng. Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 176 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

Design Exceeding Building Code and National 
Standards Provides Reliability and Minimal 
Maintenance Along With Long-Term Storage 
Following review of existing documentation and 
preparation of preliminary geotechnical recommen
dations, the preliminary design criteria for the stor
age tank will be prepared and submitted to the City. 
The prelim inary design criteria will be developed 
based on information contained in the applicable 
bui lding codes, consensus national standards for 
water storage struct ures, and experience with the 
design and construction of water storage structures. 

Where necessary, the minimum standards con
tained in t he bui lding codes and national standards 
may be exceeded to provide a design exceeding t he 
minimum service life, hence, providing the City with 
a structure requiring minimal maintenance over the 
life of t he structure. 

Summarized below in Table 1 are the significant 
codes and standards that would be utilized in the 
preparation of the construction drawings and speci
fications for a cast-in-place concrete or prestressed 
concrete storage tank. 

TABLE 1: SIGNIFICANT CODES AND STANDARDS 

Designed to Withstand Strong Ground Motion and 
Other Site Hazards 
Seismic design of the storage tank will be in ac
cordance with the seismic provisions of the 2016 
Cal ifornia Building Code, ASCE 7-10 Section 15. 7, 
and ACI 350-06. Our approach wil l also include es
tabl ishing site specific seismic design criteria for 
the proposed reservoir that are intended to provide 
greater reliabil ity than wou ld be obtained by strict 
application of codes and other standards. 

Our team is experienced in designing reservoirs in 
high seismic regions. Harry Tracy Reservoir (15 MG) 
is constructed 1,000 feet from San Andreas Fault 
and Garfield Reservoir (6.5 MG) in South Pasadena is 
constructed 100 feet from the active Raymond Fault. 
Both sites have design ground accelerations that are 
among the highest in California. 

2016 California Building Code, California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 2, Volumes 1 and 2 of Part 2, based 
on the 2015 International Building Code 
ASCE 7-16, Minimum Design Loads and Associated Criteria for Buildings and Other Structures, Standard by 
American Society of Civil Engineers 

ACI 350-06 Code Requirements for Environmental Engineering Concrete Structures and Commentary, an ACI 
Standard 
ACI 350.1-1 0 Specifications for Tightness Testing of Environmental Engineering Concrete Containment 
Structures and Commentary, an ACI Standard 

ACI 350.3-06 Seismic Design of Liquid-Containing Concrete Structures and Commentary 

ACI 350. 5-12 Specifications for Environmental Concrete Structures 

ANSI/ AWWA Dl 10-13 - Wire- and Strand- Wound, Circular, Prestressed Concrete Water Tanks 

ANSI/ AWWA C652-02 - Standard for Disinfection of Water-Storage Faci liti es 

Post Tensioning Manual, 6th Edition, 2006 

PCI Design Handbook 7th Edition, 2010 

AISC 360-10 Specification for Structural Steel Buildings 

AISC 341-10 Seismic Provisions for Structural Steel Buildings 

ANSI/ AWS 01 .1 - Structural Welding Code Steel 

State of California Code of Regulations, Title 8, General Industry Safety Orders 

OSHA - Occupational Safety and Health Standards, 29 CFR, Part 1910 

( 

( 

{ 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 
( 

L 
City of San Fernando 

- 3 -
John Robinson Consulting, Inc. ( 

Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

l 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 177 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

Design of submerged components shall be based 
on ASCE 7-10 Section 15.6.4. The determination 
of forces due to hydrodynamic effects is generally 
represented by an equivalent added mass of water 
and is amenable to static and response-spectrum 
procedures. For columns and other compression 
members, the component analysis should include 
secondary P-Delta forces caused by gravity and 
lateral loads. Components located just above fluid 
surfaces may be subject to damage due to sloshing 
and shall be investigated by rational methods. 

Enhanced Prestressed Concrete Storage Tank Design 
to Improve Service Life 

Our design approach to prestressed concrete water 
storage tanks incorporates many elements which 
have been found to significantly improve the ser
viceability and life of new prestressed structures. 

Elements in the design and construction of the new 
structure include: 

1. A strand-wound, Type I, cast-in-place concrete 
core wall with vertical pre-stressing. 

2. Hot-dipped galvanized seven-wire, high-strength 
strand to reinforce the circumference. 

3. Pinned anchored flexible joints at the top and 
bottom of walls. 

4. Seismic cables in wall sleeves capable of permit
ting up to ¾-inch of radial wall movement. 

5. A two-way flat slab roof with columns. 
6. Automated and continuous electronic control, 

monitoring, and recording of vertical and hori
zontal pre-stressing to 1.5% and shotcrete oper
ations. 

7. Automated shotcrete and plastic wrapping oper
ations of t he entire tank wall for shotcrete curing. 

Options for increased durability include: 

The addition of a galvanized steel diaphragm on the 
core wall exterior to provide a continuous membrane 
minimizing leakage through the core wall. 

OPTION 2 

The addition of injectable waterstops in the 
horizontal construction joint between the floor and 
the wall and the vertical construction joints in the 
core wall segments. 

OPTION 3 

Increasing the minimum cover of shotcrete over final 
strand from 1 ½ to 2 inches. 

Containment with Tightness Meeting or Exceeding 
National Standards 

A concrete water containment structure designed 
in accordance with ACI 350.1-10 Specifications 
for Tightness Testing of Environmenta l Engineer
ing Concrete Containment Structures would have a 
standard acceptable leakage of 0.05% to 0.075% of 
the tank capacity for a period of 24 hours. 

Our approach will include presenting the City with a 
design that can provide a higher standard of 0.025% 
through using shrinkage compensating cement and 
minimizing construct ion j oints. 

Alternatively, if the City selects a water storage tank 
with no measurable loss, a structure could be de
signed and constructed using a liner placed on ei
ther the floor or the floors and walls. 

Q KEY ISSUE: SELECTING THE BEST TANK MATERIAL AND CONFIGURATION FOR THE CITY 

During the preliminary design phase, we will provide an al
ternatives analysis to confi rm the most appropriate tank ma
terial and configuration for the reservoir site that meets the 
City's goals and objectives. Over many years and for many 
clients we have evaluated the selection of construction ma
terials for water storage facilities comparing the costs and 
non-cost benefits and drawbacks associated with concrete 
versus welded steel construction. Some typical advantages 
and disadvantages of concrete tank and welded steel tank 
construction are provided on t he next page. 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Eng1reenng Design - 4 -

Our extensive experience with design of 
welded steel, cast-in-place concrete and 
prestressed concrete reservoirs provides 
us the ability to confirm and evaluate 
alternatives with comparable service life 
and performance. This allows us to prepare 
cost comparisons for the City to confirm 
the alternative for best meeting your 
requirements. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 178 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

Typical Advantages of Concrete Tank Construction 

• Depending on core wall type selection the ini
tial construction cost of prestressed concrete 
tanks has been reduced significantly and can 
be nearly comparable to welded steel tank con
struction cost. 

• When a present worth cost comparison of 
prestressed concrete tanks is performed for 
50 years a comparison of maintenance costs 
can result in lower tank costs. 

• Concrete tanks can be backfilled at little extra 
expense. 

• Concrete tanks rarely require shutdown for re
coating operations. 

• Concrete tanks are typically a better insulator 
of the tank contents. 

• Concrete tanks require little or no maintenance 
of tank exterior. 

• The roofs of concrete tanks typically have a 
higher load rating than the roofs of steel tanks. 

• A concrete tank with a flat roof may have a 
slightly lower profile than a welded steel tank. 

Typical Drawbacks of Concrete Tank Construction 
• Exposed concrete roofs are vulnerable to sig

nificant temperature differentials which can 
lead to expansion and contraction of the con
crete over the life of the structure contributing 
to cracks in the concrete roof. Given the rela
tive small diameter of the proposed reservoir, 
roofing membranes guaranteeing leak free roof 
construction for 50 or more years are likely not 
necessary. 

• Concrete tanks can have several hundred feet 
of floor and wall joints with waterstop construc
tion which can be vulnerable to leakage if good 
construction and inspection are not followed 
during placement of concrete. This will result 
in a minimal acceptable leakage for concrete 
tanks as well as, typically, the installation of an 
underdrain system for the monitoring of any 
leakage through the floor of the tank. 

Typical Advantages of Welded Steel Tank 
Construction 

• Welded steel tanks provide the assurance of 
100% leak tight construction due to fully weld
ed floor and wall plates. 

• Welded steel tanks offer the advantage of pro-

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design -5-

Early development and identification of alternative 
approaches will facilitate stakeholder discussions 
and decisions on key design criteria including 
reservoir configuration, and size and type of 
construction. 

tective coatings application in a factory-con
trolled environment. 

• Welded joints in floor and wall plates are af
forded continuous inspection for leak free 
construction. 

• Welded steel tanks have a zero-leakage 
allowance. 

• Welded steel tanks are typically relatively easy 
to modify in the future if additional piping noz
zles are required for added connections to the 
tank. 

• Welded steel tanks in 1 MG storage capacity 
size will almost always have a lower initial con
struction cost. 

Typical Drawbacks of Welded Steel Tank Construction 
• Exterior surface of steel tanks is vulnerable 

to vandalism due to damage of the protective 
coatings systems. 

• Steel tanks will require an initial cost of retain
ing wall construction if site grades require exca
vating for steel tank construction. 

• The free board (sloshing) allowance for a welded 
steel tank is typically larger than for a concrete 
tank resulting in a higher structure which might 
adversely impact adjacent properties. 

While both construction materials may appear in
terchangeable, site conditions including geology 
and grading will typically lead an Owner and Design 
team to a preferred alternative. Based on our pre
liminary analysis, a concrete reservoir may have sig
nificant advantages over a welded steel tank at this 
site. See discussion on the next page for protecting 
and maintaining Reservoir 3A. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 179 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

0 KEV ISSUE: PROTECT AND MAINTAIN RESERVOIR 3A 

The existing Upper Reservoir is 78-feet in outside di
ameter with foundations to EL. 1284. 75 and back
filled around with existing grades varying from a 
high point of EL. 1310.00 on the north side to a low 
point of EL. 1300.00 on the south side (adjacent 
Foothi ll Blvd) of the site. The existing Reservoir 3A is 
adjacent to Upper Reservoir on the north and west 
sides and has perimeter wall footings founded at EL. 
1297.67 on both sides. Reservoir 3A has a hopper 
bottom which relies on the support of the subgrade 
materials to maintain the bearing of the concrete 
membrane floor slab-on-grade with the floor slab 
sloping to a bottom EL. 1293.17. On the south side 
of the ''L:' shaped Reservoir 3A is an outlet drain 
sump with bottom founded at EL. 1285.58. 

The City has a construction requirement to maintain 
continuous operation of Reservoir 3A during the 
excavation, demolition and construction of the re
placement 1.0 MG Upper Reservoir. In order to main
tain the 1.0 MG storage capacity of the replacement 
reservoir within the approximately 78'-0" diameter 

footprint of the existing reservoir, the replacement 
reservoir wil l have to be founded near approximately 
EL. 1284.75. Without first installing an excavation 
support system, excavating to EL. 1284. 75 would 
undermine the continuous wall footing and sloping 
membrane floor slab of Reservoir 3A. In order to 
protect and maintain Reservoir 3A, it is recommend
ed that the selection and design of the excavation 
support system on the two sides adjacent to Res
ervoir 3A be rigid to limit deflection of the exposed 
face and settlement of the earth subgrade materi
als, which will prevent leakage from the floor. The 
selection of H-piles with timber lagging or soil nails 
with shotcrete facing is typically suitable for tempo
rary excavation support systems; however, for per
manent excavation support systems or rigid excava
tion support systems that limit deflection, an and 
internally braced excavation support system may be 
necessary. A comparison of the excavation support 
systems required for each tank material is shown in 
Figure 1 below. 

FIGURE 1: Significant Permanent Excavation Support System is Required for Steel Tank Construc
tion Compared to Concrete Tank Construction. Catwalk May Not be Possible for Steel Tank due to 
Height Requirement 

Reservoir Site Section 
looking North 

West it 
I 
I 
I 18' -o· 55' .9• 

2.SMG 
Reservoir 3A 

e 1323.oo .._ , .!..!!3-33 

I rr-r ~~~ 
to--1• -------, - -,· : 

78'-o· r;g· r 

1 New 1.0 MG 
Concrete Reservoir 

_ ~ ~!-00' f B 1lll7V 1· 1 i 
------- ---- ~ I 

10'·4" 

8 llllil j v t-EJisting Fence 

7 B1304 rs llOI .,.. 
Existing Fence 8 lllll 00 f . r 8 1304 1 r=_ Pormanent CUI Slope , re 1299.00 I 

r B 1293.&7 
I. :7 f El 1286.42' 

,_,, .. , •. ~ L ,.,.,,,-~ .. -----~ 
West It 

I 

(lffl\lll!Va;n25"·15') 

Reservoir Sile Section 
looking North 

I 

I 18' -o· 

Existing Fence --------I 8 llfl 00 

55•. 9· 

2.SMG 
Reservoir 3A 

B 1323.00--- 1~ .33 

10' • 4 

• Elevations on 1962 eta datum 
(approximately 4'.()" lower than 
Reservoir 3A elevatfons). 

r rE, 1291.00 ,.,, .. d i 
Permanent Sod Nails ~ 
(l,ngt1, vorin2r- 1s1 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

[ 8118642' 

78' -0" 

Newl.OMG 
Welded Steel Tank 

Permanent Shotcrete Faang 

-6-

rr-o· 
East It 

----- Tempo,ary Soil NaQs 
(l.engtllv .... 2r-1s1 

l'fflnanent Soil Nails 
(lenq11,var1os2r-151 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 180 of 443



2 · METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

In addition, either for a temporary or permanent 
excavation support system, the excavation support 
system will have to be designed to remain rigid and 
limit deflection during a seismic event to prevent 
settlement of the perimeter wall footing and sloping 
concrete membrane floor slab, which will prevent 
leakage from Reservoir 3A during construction. 

Depending on the selection of materials, welded 
steel versus prestressed concrete, the wall of the 
new reservoir will either have to be left exposed to 
the floor level or can be backfilled or differential
ly backfilled to restore grades and drainage paths 
back to the preconstruction elevations. In order to 
protect the long-term structural integrity of Reser
voir 3A it is recommended that a concrete reservoir 
be constructed at the replacement reservoir. 

Only a concrete reservoir with backfilled perimeter 
walls will be able to provide assurance that long 
term deflection of the exposed wall face will not 
result in settlement beneath the wall footings and 
sloping membrane floor of Reservoir 3A. 

While a welded steel tank with permanent retain
ing walls could offer initial construction costs sav
ings over the concrete reservoir, the need to main
tain the exposed walls of a welded steel reservoir 
will require extensive re-design of the site grading 
and drainage because the welded steel tank con
structed with a bottom at EL. 1284. 75 will result in 
a permanent excavation in the middle of the site re
quiring dewatering and possibly a storm drain pump 
station depending on elevations of the adjacent 
storm drain facilities. 

KEY ISSUE: RESERVOIR DESIGN Will INCORPORATE STAFF'S CONCERNS AND IDEAS 

During the preliminary design we will work together 
with the City to present the design approach to staff 
and enhance their understanding of the structure 
and facility design for engineering, maintenance, 
and operations. 

Based on our experience, we will also facilitate early 
discussions on the details of the design, including 
structure connections to the new pipelines, water 
quality, details of structure elements, structure ap
purtenances including inlet, outlet, overflow, wash 

down piping, water level monitoring, water quality 
sampling, roof openings and hatches, ventilation, 
stairs and ladders, guardrails, power and lighting, 
instrumentation and SCADA. This will enhance 
stakeholder participation and buy-in early, thus 
avoiding surprises at the later stages of design or 
during construction. Figure 2, showing several pro
posed features suggested by City staff, is provided 
on the following page. 

e. KEV ISSUE: STREAMLINE CEQA APPROACH FOR COST EFFECTIVENESS AND REDUCED SCHEDULE 

The Project Team has enlisted Tom Dodson & As
sociates to provide CEQA support services. The City 
has assumed that an Initial Study (IS) leading to a 
Negative Declaration (ND) should be assumed for 
CEQA compliance. To prepare an IS, the new CEQA 
Environmental Checklist Form needs to be utilized, 
which requires addressing a total of 21 issues, in
cluding two new issues: Energy and Wildfires. 

Based on our experience with replacing an existing 
reservoir, we recommend adoption of a Categorical 
Exemption, Class 1 or Class 2 (existing facility or 
replacement, respectively). If this approach is ac
cepted by the City, our team can prepare a Notice 
of Exemption with a much smaller budget than what 
would be required for preparation of an IS and the 
CEQA process can be completed within a month 
of submitting the draft Preliminary Design Report. 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design -7-

The Project Team understands the importance 
of having strong environmental documentation, 
permitting, and community outreach. 

Between our core Project Team and our two key 
subconsultants (Tom Dodson & Associates and 
DePinto Morales), we believe we can address all 
environmental and community questions for the 
project. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 181 of 443



C 0 
"Cl ;:· 
"O -< 
~'?... 
;o V, 
(1)"' 
V, => 
!ll ,, 
< n, 
0 ~ 

~ ~ 
;o => 
n, CL 

"O 0 
w 
hl 
3 
~ 
m 
=> 

<D 
5· 
n, 
(1) 

5· 
<D 
C, 

~ 
<C 
=> 

I 

"" I 

"' n, '--
=> 0 
=> ::,-
~ => 

~ ~ 
~~ 
V, 0 
C") => 
0 C") 
=> 0 
V, => 
C: V, 
;: C: 

~g 
Yl cp 

3" 3' 
f) f) 

FIGURE 2: We will provide separate inlet and outlet piping while optimizing use of existing piping. 

.Fiix Erosion & New 
Drought-Tolerant 

Lands_c_aP.J.ug 

Wrought Iron Fence 
with lSe~cured 
Access Gate 

€atwalk Between - -Reservoir.s 

Existing 21r' Outlet • 

Legend 

-- New 
Existing 

• Separate Inlet &- 1 
Outlet Lines 

---- Existing to be Abandoned ... Tie-in to 26'' CML&C1Pipeline 

Tie-in'fo Reserypif 
3A Inlet Pipelih·e 

Large A~:cess 
Hatches 

, 1, -"Existing116" Inlet 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

Existing 20" Inlet/Outlet 

Abandon Ex::~;~:;~r ------

..., 
:s::: 
m 
-i 
:::z::: 
0 
C, 
0 
r-
0 
C) 

< 
> z 
C, 

~ 
0 
::0 

"" "O 
r
> z 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 182 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

WORK PLAN 
This section describes our scope of work for the Up
per Reservoir Replacement Project. 

Task 1 • Preliminary Design Engineering Services 
1.1- Data Review 

Review City's existing data, reports, record drawings 
and studies concerning reservoir location, design, 
construction and other issues. Review and provide 
findings in a recommendation regarding the Upper 
Reservoir Replacement. 

1.2 - Geotechnical Investigation 

Prepare preliminary geological, soils, and seismic 
studies to address relevant geology, seismicity, and 
groundwater issues. A report will be prepared to 
summarize the geotechnical investigation. 

The surface investigation wi ll include drilling explor
atory borings. The purpose of the borings will be to: 

• Obtain subsurface information at the project 
site. 

• Collect undisturbed and bulk samples of the 
various soil types for laboratory testing. 

Soils will be continuously logged and classified by 
the geologist/engineer in the field by visual exam
ination in accordance with the Unified Soil Classifi
cation System. 

Undisturbed ring samples of the subsurface materi
als will be obtained at five-foot intervals, at changes 
in soil profi les, or where unusual conditions are en
countered. Bulk samples of representative soil types 
will be collected in plastic bags. Groundwater levels, 
where encountered in the borings, will be recorded. 

Standard Penetration Tests (SPTs) will be conducted 
in the 50-foot deep boring starting at 20 feet below 
existing ground surface for seismic settlement and 
liquefaction analysis. 

Soil samples obtained during exploratory drilling will 
be tested in our laboratory to evaluate their physical 
characteristics and engineering properties. Labora
tory testing will consist of: 

• In-place moisture and density. 

• Sand equivalent. 
• Soils corrosivity. 
• Sieve analysis. 
• Laboratory maximum density. 
• Direct shear. 
• Collapse. 

Data obtained from the exploratory borings and lab
oratory testing program will be evaluated. Engineer
ing analyses will be performed to present foundation 
design recommendations in a geotechnical study re
port, which will consist of the following items: 

• Description of the surface conditions at the site. 

• Project description. 

• A description of the field procedures used in the 
investigation. 

• A description of subsurface conditions and 
controlling engineering properties of the sub
surface materials encountered, including a 
documentation of the boring and sampling lo
cations, and groundwater level. 

• Depth to groundwater and the necessity for de
watering during construction. 

• Existing pavement and base material thickness 
(if encountered). 

• Discussion on the laboratory test results includ
ing soi ls corrosivity. 

• Geology and faulting relative to the site. 

• Seismic coefficients based on 2016 California 
Building Code. 

• Evaluation of liquefaction potential and other 
secondary effects of earthquakes. 

• Coefficients of internal friction and cohesion of 
in-situ undisturbed soils. 

• Latera l earth pressures. 

• Allowable soi l bearing capacity for shallow foun-
dation design. 

• Minimum footing embedment. 

• Total and differential settlement estimates. 

• Remedial grading recommendations. 

• Suitability of on-site material for backfill. 

• Guidelines for placement of compacted fill. 

• Geotechnical parameters for pipe design. 

• Temporary trench wall slope stability evaluation. 

• Pipe subgrade preparation recommendations. 

• Trench backfill recommendations. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design -9- Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 183 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

1.3 - Utility Research 

Research and identify the location of all under
ground utilities on the project site and immediate 
vicinity of the proposed facilities and appurtenanc
es. Information such as material, size, depth, and 
horizontal location of all facilities shall be clearly 
identified on the topographic, demolition and con
struction drawings. 

1.4 -Topographic Survey 

Provide topographic mapping of the project site and 
immediate vicinity by land surveying, aerial pho
togrammetric and other measures necessary for 
reservoir design, along with horizontal and vertical 
control. 

Topographic mapping shall extend for full street 
right-of-way width on streets adjoining the project 
site, and 50-feet beyond the project site property 
lines that do not adjoin a public roadway. Record 
all features including water facilities, sanitary sew
er, storm drain, power poles, driveways, fences, and 
bushes. 

1.5 - Fire Flow Storage Analysis 

A storage evaluation will be provided to determine if 
there is sufficient storage available to meet fire flow 
needs with the Upper Reservoir out of commission 
during construction. The storage evaluation will be 
based on existing demands, which will be calculat
ed by evaluating meter data provided by the City. 
Storage criteria, such as operational, emergency, 
and fire flow requirements, will be defined in con
junction with City staff. Fire flow storage sufficiency 
will be evaluated based on the storage criteria and 
available storage. 

1.6 - Landscape and Irrigation Design 

A landscape and irrigation design will be provid
ed based on the City's desire for drought-tolerant 
low-maintenance plants at the reservoir site. The 
existing trees will remain on site. The design draw
ings and specifications will consist of an irrigation 
plan with irrigation system layout, irrigation legend, 
notes, and details; planting with call-outs, and plant 
list, notes, and details. 

1. 7 - Reservoir Alternatives Analysis 

An alternatives analysis will be provided for compar
ison of reservoir materials and construction meth
ods. Cast-in-place concrete, pre-stressed concrete, 
and welded steel reservoir design concepts wi ll be 
evaluated with life cycle costs and non-cost param
eters utilizing a weighted-criteria ranking analysis. 

City of San Fernando 

The analysis will yield a reservoir design concept 
recommendation for incorporation with the prelim
inary design. 

1.8 - Draft Preliminary Design Report (PDR) Preparation 

Prepare a detailed PDR that can be construed as 
30% design effort and shall include scaled exhibits 
and drawings. The PDR will consist of the following: 

• Site considerations. 
• Location of existing reservoirs on the property. 
• Location of other existing facilities on the 

property. 
• Hydraulic analysis. 
• Maximum possible storage capacity of the site. 
• Integration of proposed Upper Reservoir and 

other potential storage facilities. 
• Location of other proposed potential facilities, 

including booster pumps currently onsite and 
an evaluation of their current condition. 

• New on-site piping configurations. 
• Geotechnical considerations. 
• Civil design considerations. 
• Grading and landscaping. 
• Construction staging area and access. 
• Protection of existing facilities. 
• Community impacts and traffic analysis. 
• Reservoir piping including inletjoutlet, drain-

age, and overflow. 
• Off-site piping. 
• Structural design. 
• Reservoir telemetry, SCADA & instrumentation. 
• Photorealistic color renderings of the site with 

the proposed reservoir. 
• Reservoir design considerations including en

try/exit, water quality control, ventilation, secu
rity, maintenance, and other issues. 

• Preparation of a Class 4 Opinion of Probable 
Construction Cost. 

• Design and construction schedule. 
• Submit five (5) copies of the draft PDR for City 

staff review and comments, along with a fl ash 
drive containing the electronic files both in the 
source file format and in Portable Document 
Format (PDF). 

Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design -10-
John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 184 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

1.9 - Final PDR Preparation 

Prepare final PDR based on the City's review of the 
draft PDR. 

Submit five (5) copies of the final PDR, along with a 
flash drive containing the electronic files both in the 
source file format and in Portable Document Format 
(PDF). 

Task 2 - Final Design Engineering Services 
The final design engineering services is based on 
designing a 1-MG prestressed concrete reservoir. 
The scope of work and fee estimate are based on 
the following assumptions: 

• Permanent retaining walls are not required. 

• Drought-tolerant landscaping will be provided. 

• Existing LADWP power service is adequate. 

• Existing Reservoir 3A service, MCC, and telem
etry panels will not be replaced. 

• Demolition and rep lacement of existing over
flow structure and associated level sensor wi ll 
be provided. 

• Existing 48-inch collector manhole will be pro
tected in place. 

• Existing conduit run in access road to service, 
MCC, and te lemetry panels will be protected in 
place. 

• A preliminary drawing list that is provided in Ap
pendix A of the proposal. 

2.1- 60% Design Documents 

• Prepare 60%-level construction drawings and 
specifications including civil, structural, archi
tectural, landscape, mechanical, electrical, and 
instrumentation and control. 

• 60%-level plans and specifications for aspects 
of the project shall be submitted, including: 
water reservoir, relocation of on-site utilities, 
appurtenances, power poles, and other struc
tu res; and grading plans. 

• Provide a Class 3 Opinion of Probable Con
struction Cost based on the 60%-level design 
documents 

• Prepare recommended construction comple
tion schedule including key milestones for the 
construction progress. 

• Provide to the City, five (5) hardcopy sets of 
completed bound drawings and specifications. 

• Provide to the City, a flash drive containing the 
electronic files in the source file format of all 
project documents, including the construction 
drawings in AutoCAD format acceptable to the 
City. 

Provide to the City, a flash drive containing the elec
tronic files in PDF of all the project documents for 
reproduction and distribution purposes. 

2.2 - 90% Design Documents 

• Prepare 90%-level construction drawings and 
specifications including civil, structural, archi
tectural, landscape, mechanical, electrical, and 
instrumentation and control. 

• 90%-level plans and specifications for aspects 
of the project shall be submitted, including: 
water reservoir, relocation of on-site utilities, 
appurtenances, power poles, and other struc
tures; and grading plans. 

• Provide an updated Class 2 Opinion of Proba
ble Construction Cost based on the 60%-level 
design documents 

• Prepare an updated recommended construc
tion completion schedule including key mile
stones for the construction progress. 

• Provide to the City, five (5) hardcopy sets of 
completed bound drawings and specifications. 

• Provide to the City, a flash drive contain ing the 
electronic files in the source file format of all 
project documents, including the construction 
drawings in AutoCAD format acceptable to the 
City. 

• Provide to the City, a flash drive conta ining 
the electronic files in PDF of all the project 
documents for reproduction and distribution 
purposes. 

2.3 - 100% Design Documents 

• Prepare 100%-level construction drawings and 
specifications including civil, structural, archi
tectural, landscape, mechanical, electrical, 
and instrumentation and control for contract 
bidding. 

• 100%-level plans and specifications for all as
pects of the project shall be submitted, includ
ing: water reservoir, relocation of on-site utili
ties, appurtenances, power poles, and other 
structu res; and grading plans. 

• Provide an updated Class 2 Opinion of Proba
ble Construction Cost based on the 60%-level 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. City of San Fernando 
Uppe1 Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design - 11 - Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 185 of 443



2 - METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

design documents. 

• Prepare an updated recommended construc
tion completion schedule including key mile
stones for the construction progress. 

• Provide to the City, five (5) hardcopy sets of 
completed bound drawings and specifications. 

• Provide to the City, a flash drive containing the 
electronic files in the source file format of all 
project documents, including the construction 
drawings in AutoCAD format acceptable to the 
City. 

• Provide to the City, a flash drive containing 
the electronic files in PDF of all the project 
documents for reproduction and distribution 
purposes. 

2.4- Traffic Control Plans 

• Since the site is located within the City of Los 
Angeles, we anticipate the traffic control design 
format and standards shall conform to LAD
OT guidelines. The plans will be coordinated 
with LADOT staff and submitted for B-Permit 
processing. 

• Two (2) traffic control plan sheets and typical 
details, in AutoCad format and at a scale of 
1"=40', illustrating the plan view of the pro
posed traffic control design for construction 
activities within the street right-of-way adjacent 
to the site will be provided. The traffic control 
design will be based on existing conditions 
and the proposed improvements within public 
street limits. 

1.5 - Public Outreach 

• Attend up to three (3) community meetings; 
prepare presentation material such as Power
Points and displays to assist City addressing 
community issues. 

• Create public information materials including 
PowerPoint presentation, fact sheet with ren
derings, benefits statement, maps, transla
tions, printing. 

2.6 - Permitting Support 

Submit Plans and Specifications to the following 
agencies for review: 

• City of San Fernando Building Department 
• City of Los Angeles Building Department 
• SWRCB, Division of Drinking Water 

It is assumed that two submittals will be required for 

City of San Fernando 

each agency. JRC/ KJ wi ll address comments from 
the reviewing agencies. 

It is assumed that the City will pay for any permit 
fees. 

2. 7 - CEQA Support 

Based on our understanding of the project, it ap
pears an Initial Study and Negative Declaration is 
not required for CEQA compliance. Based on the 
project concept of replacing the existing reservoir 
in-kind, a Categorical Exemption, Class 1 or Class 2 
will be prepared to meet CEQA compliance. 

2.8 - Bidding Support 

• Attendance at the Pre-Bid Meeting with General 
Contractors. 

• Preparation of up to six (6) responses to Con
tractor inquiries during bidding. 

• Preparation of up to two (2) Addenda to the fi-
nal Contract Documents. 

• Preparation of Conformed Drawings. 

• Attendance at the Bid Opening. 

• Assistance in the evaluation of bids and the 
award recommendation. 

Task 3 - Engineering Services During 
Construction 
The following services shall be provided after award 
of the project, during the construction period. It 
is assumed that the construction period will be 
12 months. 

3.1- RFI Responses 

• Provide up to twenty (20) responses for Re
quests for Information (RFI). Assist in the correct 
interpretation of the plans and specifications, 
including the preparation of engineering details 
and sketches, if required for clarification. 

3.2 - Submittal Reviews 

• Review up to forty (40) original and twenty (20) 
resubmittal shop drawings and working draw
ings of manufacturers and constructors for sub
stantial conformity with the contract plans and 
specifications. 

3.3- Contractor Payment Evaluations 

• Review up to twelve (12) estimates of prog
ress and final payments, submitted by the con
t ractor, and forward recommended payment 
to City staff for payment by the City's Finance 
Department. 

Upper Reservou Replacement Engineering Design -12-
John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 186 of 443



SECTION# I SECTION TITLE 

3.4- Meetings and Site Visits Task 4 - Project Management and Meetings 
• Schedule and chair a pre-construction meeting 4.1- Project Management & Administration 

with the contractor, City staff, and consultant 
staff for the project. 

• Forty (40) weekly visits by the Project Engineer 
to the project site during the active construction 
period. 

• Three (3) site visits by the Structural Engineer 
to the project site 

• Final inspection by the Project Engineer. 

3.5- Record Drawings 

• Prepare revisions/corrections of plans to reflect 
any changed conditions during construction for 
the record drawings. 

• Prepare Record Drawings in AutoCAD version 
2008 format. 

• Prepare one (1) hard copy set and PDF of the 
Record Drawings. 

3.6 - Public Outreach 

• Develop and maintain an informational website 
about the project construction, including site 
pictures, project schedule, and detour informa
tion for 12 months. 

• Provide project management and administra
tion, consisting of team coordination, City com
munication, budget tracking, schedule track
ing, and invoicing. It is assumed the project 
duration is thirty (30) months. 

• Submit Monthly Progress Reports to include 
budget status per task, work completed and 
work to be completed in next thirty (30) days. 
It is assumed seventeen (17) monthly progress 
reports will be prepared. 

4.2 - Meetings 

• Attend a kickoff meeting with the City to discuss 
the goals and objectives for the project 

• Conduct monthly project team meetings to in
clude City and key sub consultants during pre
liminary and final design phases of the project. 
Prepare meeting minutes. It is assumed six
teen (16) monthly project team meetings will 
be provided. It is assumed design review meet
ings will be incorporated with the monthly team 
meetings. 

4.3-QA/QC 

• Submit Quality Control and Quality Assurance 
Plan for City review and approval. 

• Submit a detailed construction Quality Control 
and Quality Assurance Plan for City review and 
approval. 

• Provide quality reviews for project deliverables 
in accordance with Kennedy Jenks' QA/QC 
program. 

• Provide internal project initiation meeting and 
concept & criteria review to review the project 
work plan and initial project concepts. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design -13 - Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 187 of 443



3 - EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS OF FIRM 

DEMONSTRATED EXPERTISE IN RESERVOIRS 
Our reservoir design experience includes steel tanks and concrete reservoirs (cast-in-place and pre
stressed). We provide the gamut of services for reservoir design projects, including siting evaluations 
and studies, pumping and distribution facilities, water quality and mixing systems, seismic retrofitting 
and resilience, telemetry and contro ls, regulatory agency coordination, public outreach, and construction 
management. 

McCloud Community Svc 

' Humboldt Bay MW~ 

Shelter Cover 
Recreation District (2) • 

Rio Alto WO 

' Chester Pu6" 1.0 100 380 
Nevada Co. SO 

Riolinda ' 

CADeptof~ Calistoga (2) '---.. Correction {5) San Juan WO 

Sonoma Co. WA "'e Carmichael WO 

billion gallons in 
drinking water 

storage 

new concrete 
water storage 

tanks 

new welded steel 
water storage 

tanks 
'-.. - Sacramento (3) 

Napa ~ Sacramento Co. WA 
Marin Municipal WO (2) Woodbridge Winery 

San Francisco PUC (4)::::::-t. Alameda Co. FC .---Tuolumne UO (3) 

North Coast Co. Water (5) -:Z .. .___ Manteca .---June Lake PUD 

Coastside Co. WO (2)-ee-Redwood City 
Santa Clara Valley WO (3) =--- .--uc Merced 

Morgan Hill -=-e ---Santa Nella Co. WO 
Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Svc --e 

Monterey One Water -.e 
Gonzales - • 

San Luis Obispo (2) 

---Te soro Viejo 

~ e--Kern County WA 

Lompoc Antelope Valley-East Kern WA 
'-.....a_ Fillmore / 

'--e Simi Valley (2) 
:;t~~o~~ e---Surbank Wat.er and Power (5 ) 

Map of Reservoirs in California 

San Bue~ventura~•- Santa Clarita Vaftey WA (2) 

District No. 1 ~astern MWO {6) 

Calleguas M o / .--coa chdla Valley WO 

West ~asin MWO i-, / #-Rancho California WO 

The JRC/Kennedy Jenks team will leverage 
our experience on similar projects to avoid 
learning curves and focus on solving your 
technical needs. Our relevant experience will 
foster sound, tailored engineering solutions 
meeting the needs of your reservoir. 

Elsmore Valley MWO~ 

Fallbrook PUD 
Rainbow M O _.-Holtville 

Caluico---e 

SIMILAR PROJECTS FROM PAST 5 YEARS 

CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION 
CLIENT PROJECT SIZE COST DATE 

City of South Pasadena Garfield Reservoir Replacement 6.5 MG $19 M 2018 

City of Santa Paula Mesa Reservoir Replacement 0.6 MG est. $1 .5 M Design 2019 
Eastern Municipal Water 

Daily II Reservoir 2.0 MG $3M 2015 District 

San Diego County Water Mission Trails Flow Regulatory 
5MG est. $23 M Design 2019 Authority Structure 

San Francisco Public Harry Tracy WTP Treated Water 
11 MG $53 M 2017 Utilities Commission Reservoir 

Antelope Valley-East 
Westside Water Bank Tank 2 4 MG $2M 2016 Kern Water Agency 

Santa Clarita Valley 
Cherry Willow Recycled Water Tank 1 MG est. $4 M Design 2018 Water Agency 

City of San Fernando John Robinson Consulting. Inc 
Upper Reserv□ 1r Replacement Eng1neenng Design - 14 - Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 188 of 443



3 - EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS OF FIRM 

GARFIELD RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA I SOUTH PASADENA, CA 

Completion Date: 2018 

Total Project Cost: $19 M 

Project Highlights 

• Replacement of the City of 
South Pasadena's largest stor
age reservoir 

• New cast-in-place structure 

• Residential neighborhood 

Kennedy Jenks was retained by the City of South Pasadena (City) for 
preliminary and final design for replacement of the Garfield Reservoir 
and Pump Station. The project consisted of analyzing six alternate 
reservo ir and pumping configurations during the preliminary design 
stage. This project also consisted of replacing the City's largest 
storage reservoir with a cast-in-place structure having a capacity of 
6.5 MG. 

In addition to replacement of the reservoir, the project included 
replacement of the existing 2,500 gallon per minute booster station 
and addition of a on-site chlorination system. The pump station was 
equipped with two 50 HP and one 100 HP vertical turbine pumps. 
The site was in a residential neighborhood and the design required 
landscaping and noise analysis. 

The design also included permanent treatment of site stormwater run
off prior to discharging to a flood control channel. The project team 
used a workshop format at every design milestone to obtain input/ 
feedback from key stakeholders throughout the project. 

MESA RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT 
CITY OF SANTA PAULA I SANTA PAULA, CA 

Completion Date: Design 2019, 
Construction 2020 

Total Project Cost: est. $1.5 M 

Project Highlights 

• Site constraints 
• Evaluation of tank material 
options 

• Tank configuration 
alternatives 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

Kennedy Jenks is designing the Mesa Reservoir Replacement Project 
which consists of twin 300,000 gallon potable water storage reservoirs 
(0.6 MG total storage). The existing Mesa Tanks were constructed in 
the 1960s and each have nominal capacity of 0.21 MG. 

Prior to commencing final design, Kennedy Jenks performed a feasibility 
study that investigated tank construction/ material types, configuration 
alternatives, location and cost. Tank construction alternatives 
consisted of partially buried prestressed concrete, rectangular cast-in
place concrete and above-grade welded steel tank construction. The 
alternatives were evaluated based on available space to determ ine the 
best option for the City at th is particular location. 

The Mesa Tank site is constrained and located on a 2:1 hillside 
abutting the County of Ventura and City limits. Other considerations 
included providing temporary storage tanks during construction, 
permitting requirements, maintenance considerations, water quality, 
constructability, cost, environmental impacts, land acquisition, traffic 
impacts, grading and geotechnical considerations. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
- 15 - Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. Inc. 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

{ 

{ 

l 
( 

l 

(. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 189 of 443



3 - EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS OF FIRM 

DAILY II RESERVOIR 
EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, CA 

Completion Date: 2015 

Total Project Cost: $3M 

Project Highlights 

• Public outreach including pro
viding 3-0 renderings 

• Hydraulic analysis of the pres
sure zone pipline sizing, and 
tank sizing 

The District's Daily Pressure Zone was deficient in operational and 
fire flow storage. The Daily Tank provided a total storage volume of 
only 0.21 MG while 2.1 MG was required to meet existing system 
demands, operational storage, and fire flow requirements. 

Three separate studies were prepared analyzing the storage 
requirements for the Daily Pressure Zone. The first study identified 
storage deficiencies and recommended a 2.0 MG storage tank and 
24-inch diameter inlet/outlet pipeline. 

Five alternative site locations were evaluated with the recommended 
site location immediately east of the existing tank site. The design 
included separate inlet and outlet pipelines and an altitude valve and 
by-pass vault. An emergency overflow pond was also included and 
sized to include the ability to drain the bottom 2 feet of storage. 

MISSION TRAILS FLOW REGULATORY STRUCTURE 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY I SAN DIEGO, CA 

Completion Date: Design 2019 

Total Project Cost: $23M 

Project Highlights 

• New 5 MG Reservoir 
• CEQA documents 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

The Mission Trails suite of projects is a proposed set of improvements 
to the untreated water conveyance portions of the Second Aqueduct in 
and around Mission Trails Regional Park. In 2010, the Water Authority 
constructed two separate tunnel sections as part of the Mission Trails 
Pipeline Tunnel project. The Mission Trails Flow Regulatory Structure II 
will be located in between the two sections of the tunnel. Currently, the 
tunnel is neither connected to the Second Aqueduct nor is it continuous 
through its two sections. 

Kennedy Jenks is providing structural design for a new five million gal lon 
Mission Trails Flow Regulatory Structure 1r, new flow control facility, 
pipeline connections, and demolition of eight existing vent structures 
in Mission Trails Regional Park. 

Kennedy Jenks is designing a concrete emergency storage basin using 
structural analysis software and developed contract drawings, prepared 
project design specifications, and attended client meetings. 

- 16 -
John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 190 of 443



3 - EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS OF FIRM 

HARRY TRACY WTP TREATED WATER RESERVOIR 
SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION I SAN FRANCISCO, CA 

Completion Date: 2017 

Total Project Cost: $53M 

Project Highlights 

• 2017 ACEC award winning 
240-foot-diameter circular tank 
with 46-foot water depth and 
supported on over 800 driven 
non-displacement steel H-piles 
located 1,000 feet from the San 
Andreas Fault 

The 11 MG reservoir is a complex structure involving two tanks 
consisting of a chlorine contact tank for water treatment, constructed 
around a treated water storage reservoir. The inner wall of the 
operational storage reservoir consists of cast-in-place concrete wall 
with non-prestressed reinforcement and vertical post-tension ing 
tendons, while the outer wall of the chlorine contact tan k is a strand
wound circular pre-stressed concrete tank with a cast-in-place 
concrete core with vertical prestressed reinforcement. 

Design challenges included the location of the reservoir at a site with 
limited space, situated near the San Andreas and Serra Faults. The 
reservoir is designed to sit above a stepped excavation of partial cut 
into a hillside and partial fill , which resulted in a potential for differential 
settlement. In response, the reservoir is placed above approximately 
800 H-piles driven to depths between 20 and 60-feet, which support 
the reservoir and resist gravity and lateral loads, including seismic 
and wind loads. 

A soil nail retaining wall is located directly uphill of the reservoir to 
support the cut face of the existing hillside, rising up to 65-feet ta ll, 
and supported by approximately 1,000 soil nails up to 70-feet long. 
The soil nail wall is tied into an adjacent soldier pile wall. 

WESTSIDE WATER BANK - TANK 2 
ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN WATER AGENCY I PALMDALE, CA 

Completion Date: 2016 

Total Project Cost: $2M 

Project Highlights 

• Hydraulics, geotechnical, and 
hydrogeology evaluations 
and analyses 

• Control strategy and 
operations plan 

• Coordination with DOW 
for operating permit 
amendments 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (AVEK) implemented Phases 
1 and 2 of an $80 million water banking program with a twofold 
objective: (1) water supply stabilization, and (2) regulatory compliance 
with the Stage 2 Disinfectants/Disinfection Byproducts (D/ DBP) Rule. 
The Westside Water Bank was constructed on a 1,475-acre agricultural 
property and the groundwater production is delivered to a centra l 
treatment facility with two 4 MG above ground steel tanks for chlorine 
disinfection and CT compliance. 

• Phase 1 (completed in 2013) included over-excavated the site 
and compacted for the construction of both 4 MG steel tanks; 
however, only the first tank was constructed under Phase 1. 

• Phase 2 (completed in 2016) included drilling and equipping of 
an additional two potable recovery wells and construction of the 
second 4 MG steel tank (completed in 2016). Kennedy Jenks 
performed the design, bid assistance, and const ruction support 
services. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
- 17 - Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

' 
f 

( 

{ 

( 

( 
( 

C 
( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

{ 

( 

( 

C 
( 

l 

( 

( 

( 

( 

l 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 191 of 443



3 - EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS OF FIRM 

CHERRY WILLOW RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY 
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY I SANTA CLARITA, CA 

Completion Date: Design 2018; 
Construction 2019 

Total Project Cost: est. $4M 

Project Highlights 

• Tank volume and configuration 
alternatives evaluation 

• Grant funded project 
• Exterior spiral staircase for 
access 

• Tank overflow basin included to 
meet discharge requirements 
sizing 

Kennedy Jenks provided a PDR for the Recycled Water System Phase 
28. SCVWA is seeking to expand their existing recycled water system 
to offset potable water demands and improve water supply reliability. 
The PDR provided an evaluation of opportunities and design 
considerations to develop Phase 2B of the recycled water system. 

Kennedy Jenks has completed preliminary and fina l design. The 
proposed welded steel tank will be designed to hold up to 1.0 MG 
of recycled water. Kennedy Jenks prepared preliminary layouts and 
performed tank aspect ratio (diameter vs depth) analysis to determine 
optimal design/ capacity to provide 0.8 MG, usable storage ta nk 
within the given site constraints. Tank design will consider freeboard 
requirements in the analysis, and structural design alternatives (e.g., 
shell thickness) to address sloshing in a seismic event. 

The tank will be equipped with remote monitoring and controls for 
integration into SCVWA's SCADA System. The tank will be equipped 
with a SolarBee mixer. The tank will be equipped with exterior spiral 
staircase for access to the roof. The tank will include protective 
coatings, interior and exterior to prevent corrosion. 

ADDITIONAL SIMILAR PROJECTS 
This table summarizes additional reservoir projects of similar nature to your project located in Southern California, 
demonstrating our team's comprehensive design experience in these areas. 

CLIENT 
Ventura County Water Works District #1 

Ventura County Water Works District #19 

City of Fillmore 

City of Simi Valley 

City of San Buenaventura 

City of San Buenaventura 

City of Lompoc 

Glendale Water & Power 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 

Kern County Water Agency 

Burbank Water & Power 

City of San Buenaventura 

City of Santa Monica 

Calleguas Municipal Water District 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

PROJECT 
Recycled Water Tank 

538 Zone Tank 

Reservoir No. 3 

Lower McCoy Reservoir 

View Park Tank 

430 Pressure Zone Reservoir 

4 MG Reservoir 

Chevy Chase 968 Reservoir 

Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant Reservoirs 

Henry Garnett Water Purification Plant Reservoirs 

Reservoir No. 1 

Bailey Water Conditioning Facility Reservoir 

Arcadia WTP Reservoir Seismic Damage Evaluation 

Lake Bard Water Filtration Plant Reservoirs 

- 18 -

SIZE 
1.5 MG 

1.0 MG 

3.0 MG 

1.0 MG 

0.25 MG 

2 x 2.0 MG 

4.0MG 

15 MG 

2 x 15 MG 

2 x 3.0 MG 

9.5 MG 

3.0 MG 

5.0 MG 

2 x 4.0 MG 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 192 of 443



4 - KEY PERSONNEL 

LOCAL, RESPONSIVE DESIGN TEAM SUPPORTED BY 
NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED INDUSTRY EXPERTS 
JRC/KJ has assembled a project team of in-house personnel with 
specialized and expert services to meet the scope of work identified. 
The City will benefit from our project team's significant expertise on 
similar projects. Our reputation for responsiveness has resulted in 
assignments for similar projects that have included studies, assess
ments, planning, design and construction support services for nu
merous clients. To accommodate this contract, the JRC/ KJ team was 
crafted with flexibility, responsiveness, and dependability in mind. 

DISCIPU• SUPPORT 

RESERVOIR DESIGN 
Don Barraza, PE 

CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO 

PIOJECT IUJIAIEI 
Jom Robinson 

DESIIIIIIAIIAB 

QA/QC IWIMEI 
Sridhar Sadaslvan, PE. SE 

David Ferguson. PhD, PE 

PIOJECl'EIIIIIIEER 
Brandon Hale. PE 

GEOTECHNICAL 
Converse Consultants 

FIRE FLOW ANALYSIS & HYDRAULICS 
Paul Chau, PE 

CEQA 
Tom Dodson & Associates 

SITE CIVIL 
Greg Behnke 

ELECTRICAL l&C 
Jeff Mohr, PE 

SURVEY 
On-Line Engineering 

Subconsultants 

TRAFFIC CONTROL 
JMDiaz 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
NUVIS 

PUBLIC OUTREACH 
DePinto Morales Communications 

As shown on the organizational chart above, we have selected known 
and reputable subconsultants to assist in specialty technical areas to 
supplement our team where necessary. The majority of our subcon
sultants are local firms that provide direct knowledge and experience 
to the local conditions and issues. 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservo1r Replacement Engineering Design -19-

John Robinson Consulting, Inc 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 193 of 443



4 - KEY PERSONNEL 

A LOCAL PROJECT MANAGER YOU KNOW AND TRUST 

JOHN ROBINSON 
PROJECT MANAGER 

John has 26 years of experience in the planning, design, and construction 
phases of civil and environmental engineering projects. He has completed 
preliminary and final design engineering of capital improvement projects, 
including cost estimates, reservoirs, booster pump stations, and pipelines 
for water and reclaimed water projects. 

His experience includes construction-phase engineering services for many 
reservoir, pumping, and pipeline systems, and leading utility systems en
gineering services for several design/build infrastructure projects. He has 
managed many relevant projects, including the City of Beverly Hills Coldwater 
Canyon Reservoir replacement, Foothill Municipal Water District Reservoir 
Evaluations and Orange County Water District 6.0 MG Reservoir conversion. 

John provides technical direction and project oversight for the development 
of public infrastructure that includes: 

• Pipelines • Hydraulic Structures 

• Pumping Stations • Recharge Basins 

• Reservoirs • Wells 

His technical expertise ranges from master planning and program manage
ment to final design and construction implementation. As a project manager, 
he has on numerous occasions successfully led my project teams to com
plete the work within the project budgets and time schedules and with a high 
degree of responsiveness to the clients. 

As Project Manager, John wi ll proactively manage the project, provide scope, 
schedule, and budget monitoring, be responsible for staffing coordination 
and be avai lable to meet with the City, facilitate workshops, and guide the 
high-level decisions. He understands that providing successful services on 
t his project depends on the competence and capabilities of the team mem
bers and how they work together with the stakeholders. 

RELEVANT PROJECT MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE SUMMARY 

Reservoir Replacement 
- City of Beverly Hills 

• Design of an 8.21-MG buried 
prestressed concrete reservoir. 

• Site constraints needed inno
vative design approaches, such 
as shoring methods to allow 
for the concrete casting of the 
reservoir structural elements 
without encroaching on the 
surrounding properties. 

• Worked closely with the Beverly 
Hills Parks Department. 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

Reservoir Evaluations Reservoir Conversion 
- Foothill Municipal Water District - Orange County Water District 

• Conducted a reservoir alterna
tive evaluation consisting of: 

» Modifications to existing 

» Construct additional 

» Tear down 

» Lease capacity 

» Construct interconnection 

-20-

• Modified an existing 6.0-MG 
potable water reservoir for re
claimed water storage. 

• Design of a new pump station 
and modification of another 
pump station. 

• Provided a surge analysis and 
report, computer hydraulic mod
el (CyberNet 2.0), and update 
of model (CyberNet 3.0). 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 194 of 443



4 - KEV PERSONNEL 

~ 
,~~· ,, 

REGISTRATIONS 

Professional Civil 
Engineer, California 

Professional Structural 
Engineer, California 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

SRIDHAR SADASIVAN, PE, SE 
QA/QC MANAGER I Kennedy Jenks 

Sridhar has 16 years of practical, hands-on experience in design and con
struction of potable water reservoirs. He has substantial experience with 
tank design and retrofits in similar seismic regions in Southern California, 
including projects with the Cities of South Pasadena, Glendale, and Bur
bank. 

In addition, Sridhar is a senior Operations Director for Kennedy Jenks and 
has served as QA/QC reviewer for numerous water facility projects through
out the West Coast 

Sridhar will serve as QA/QC and lead a comprehensive review of project 
deliverables; he will dedicate his time to confirming that our QC program is 
followed and able to meet your needs and achieve your desired schedule. 

DAVID FERGUSON, PhD, PE 
DESIGN MANAGER I Kennedy Jenks 

David has 39 years of practical, hands-on experience in the planning, 
design, construction, and operation of water supply, infrastructure, and 
treatment projects. His background includes project and program manage
ment, as well as management of engineering and/ or operations for three 
large water utilities in Southern California. David has been responsible for 
the evaluation and/or design of upgrades, rehabilitation, retrofit, and/or re
placement for over 40 water treatment plants, 30 reservoirs, and 20 pump
ing stations for 15 different water utilities. 

David, serving as Design Manager, will apply his decades of experience 
to support the City and team in project decision-making. He will guide the 
planning and design efforts that will result in an affordable water facility 
that will meet the City's long-term needs. 

DON BARRAZA, PE 
RESERVOIR DESIGN I Kennedy Jenks 

Don is a senior engineer with over 30 years of experience serving as struc
tural engineer, project engineer, project manager, and construction resident 
engineer. He has worked directly with the team on reservoir assessments 
and designs throughout Southern California. He has practical hands-on 
planning, design, and construction support experience with design and 
condition assessment of 30+ steel and concrete tanks. In his career, he 
has worked on more than 18 condition assessments, structural design of 
over 70 concrete tanks and 70 steel reservoirs, 17 pump stations, and 
more than 30 water treatment plants, and has served as a senior-level re
viewer for over a dozen water treatment plant projects. 

Don wi ll serve as the reservoir structural design lead for the preliminary, 
final and construction engineering services associated with location and 
configuration of the reservoir and integration and protection of the existing 
structures and geotechnical requirements. 

-21 -
John Robinson Consulting, Inc 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 195 of 443



4 - KEY PERSONNEL 

TRUSTED SUBCONSULTANT PARTNERS 
JRC/KJ maintains excellent relationships with local subconsultants and specialists to help achieve project 
success. 

~ Converse Consultants 
~ Geotechnical 

Since 1946 Converse Consultants (Converse) has 
provided professional services in the fields of geo
techn ical engineering, engineering geology, ground
water sciences, environmental sciences and soils 
and materials testing and inspection. Their clients 
include public agencies and private sector clients in 
the transportation, water/wastewater, educational, 
residential, commercia l and other market segments. 

Dffi( DePinto Morales Communication 
- Public Outreach 

DePinto Morales Communications, led by David 
DePinto, is a firm specializing in environmental is
sues management, water education projects, crisis 
communications, public education and outreach 
campaigns, stakeholder relations, media relations, 
public affairs, and ethnic/community marketing. 
Geographically, Dave has implemented public ed
ucation and outreach campaigns focused in the 
northeast San Fernando Valley, the San Gabriel Val
ley, the City of Los Angeles and throughout the State 
of California. As volunteer president of the largest 
homeowner association in the City of Los Angeles, 
Dave has unique insights and capabilities related 
to facilitating community discourse on controversial 
issues and development projects involving counties 
and municipalities, water districts, school districts 
and non-profit organizations. 

: : JMD JMDiaz 
Traffic Control 

JMDiaz (JMD) professionals provide comprehensive 
traffic engineering services including traffic analyses 
and design for a variety of projects. JMD conducts 
traffic impact analysis, including warrant analysis, 
and prepares traffic impact studies for new devel
opments as well as traffic management plans for 
major projects involving extensive haul and detour 
routes. JMD's traffic engineering group performs de
signs including signage, channelization, traffic sig
nals, street and parking lot lighting. 

----------n UV IS NUVIS 
lANosc ArE ARC HITEc r uRe Landscape Architecture 

With more than 46 years of landscape architectur
al experience, NUVIS, a DBE/SBE professional ser
vices firm creates outdoor design solutions. In col
laboration with our private sector and public agency 
clients, NUVIS produces design solutions from con
cept to construction. They are passionate about our 
mission to create responsible outdoor venues that 
provide opportunities for interaction and exhibit dra
matic memorable results from texture, form, color, 
and pattern-inspiring people-oriented experiences. 

---~ -"-"ENc,cGle:,NE~ER,,,,,N,,,_G_ ON-LINE Engineering 
Survey 

ON-LINE Engineering is a Civil Engineering and Land 
Surveying firm based in the City of Pasadena and 
has served Southern California for 24 years. They 
provide professional civil engineering and land sur
veying services are provided to both public and pri
vate sector clients in all areas relating to land devel
opment. 

---~ 
../ ~ Tom Dodson & Associates 

. L.('dir)'a . California Environmental Quality Act 

Tom Dodson & Associates (TDA), incorporated in 
1983, is a small environmental consu lting and reg
ulatory compliance firm. TDA is capable of providing 
a full range of environmental and regulatory com
pliance services. This includes an in-house biolog
ical staff capable of providing biological resources 
evaluations, as well as, revegetation and habitat 
restoration capabi lities. TDA has provided planning 
and environmental consulting services for various 
water, hazardous waste management, biological 
evaluations, and base reuse projects. TDA has also 
prepared the environmental compliance documents 
needed for such projects. These documents have 
ranged from Initial Studies and Negative Declara
tions to full Environmental Impact Reports that meet 
California Environmental Quality Act requ irements. 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design - 22 - Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 196 of 443



FEE PROPOSAL 

Proposal Fee Estimate 

CLIENT Name: ___________ Ccci_,.ty'-o-'-f'--S-'-a"'n-'--'-F-"-er'"'n'"'a"-'n.::d.::o _________ _ 

PROJECT Description: Upper Reservoir Replacement Project 

Proposal/Job Number: _______________ ___ _ Date: 4/9/2019 

I 

I C 
L "' .. ·;::; 

6 Cl C - C: ·2 u 
"' .. a;> "I' r;- '9 "? "f '? ., ~ < L ·.; <"' .t:. 

• - L u u·;::; u 0 .. ·;::; ·;::; ·;::; ·;::; ·;::; ·;::; ·;::; ·;::; ·;::; .. .. .. L C) L C a (;'C: D.."' II} II} <I} II} <I} <I} <I} <I} <I} 0 "' 
I-;-

6 ·c ·en ·- .t:. a UC "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' C U 
a:: "' C C C: C C C C C C .... < .... < Classification: -, :::!: w w w w w w w w w <n a u <ll 1- u 

0 "' 0 "' 0 "' 0 "' 0 0 0 0 0 0 

"' ... "' 
.., 

~ 
a, ... "' ... .., 

"' "' "' ~ 

Hourly Rate: :;; ~ I ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ :;; :;; ~ ~ ... - "' ... - ... ... 
Task 1 • Preliminary Design En11ineerin11 Services I j 

1.1 Data Review 2 2 2 1 4 2 2 

1.2 Geotechnical Investigation 4 2 2 

1.3 Utility Research 4 16 

1.4 Topographic Survey I 2 2 I I 

1. 5 Fire Flow Storage Analysis 8 201 I 
1.6 Landscape & Irrigation Desian 2 4 I 

1 . 7 Reservoir Alternatives Analvsis 4 16 16 24 20 6 20 

1.8 Draft Preliminary Design Reoort Preoaration 8 1 6 4 I 4 40 8 

1.9 Final Preliminary Design Reoort Preoaration 8 2 2 2 20 ' 
I ' 

Task 1 · Subtotal 16 14 28 0 38 u 1UO 2 66 0 6 0 0 20 

Task 2 - Final Design Engineerin11 Services ' I 

2.1 60% Design Documents 4 7 52 24 34 52 - 74 85 19 0 19 0 0 80 

2 ,2 90% Design Documents 4 7 52 24 34 52 74 85 19 0 19 0 0 80 

2.3 1 OD% Design Documents 4 2 13 6 9 13 19 21 5 0 5 0 0 20 

2.4 Traffic Control Plans 4 

2.5 Public Outreach 7 6 12 

2.6 Permitting Support 2 2 8 8 16 8 4 4 

2 .7 CEQA Support I 2 

2.8 Bid Support 4 6 6 8 1 28 
! 

16 8 8 i 
I 

I I 

Task 2 - Subtotal 25 29 130 54 93 117 229 191 67 0 55 4 8 180 
I 

Task 3 - Engineering Services durina Construction I 

3.1 RFI Responses 10 16 8 8 20 16 12 

3.2 Submittal Reviews 10 16 20 20 40 16 44 

3 .3 Contractor Payment Evaluations 4 16 I ' 
3.4 Meetinqs and Site Visits 12 12 120 12 

3.5 Record Drawings I 
8 36 

3 .6 Public Outreach 2 2 4 

Task 3- Subtotal 14 26 44 0 28 28 200 52 56 0 0 0 0 36 

Task 4 - Proiect Mana11ement and Meetinas I I ' I 
4 .1 Proiect Manaqement & Administration 30 12 I 30 

4 .2 Meetings 60 30 

4.3 QNQC 8 24 24 

Task 4 - Subtotal 90 50 24 0 0 24 30, 0 0 
I 

0 0 1 0 0 0 

All Tasks Total 145 119 226 54 1591 1691 559 245 189 0 61 4 8 236 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design -24 -

JRC/KJ Sub I Sub C: .. 
.:!: ·e .; "' .fl .., C 

< ~c cu -~ 
GI C 

t!!~ - ·2 .'! C GI u 
- 0 ::J ·= 

.. ::, .. ·- "' > "' E ·.; .. ·e .'! .Cl ' "' C C .., "' .., 
0 "' 

C C 0 0 
D.. << < Total I- ..J ow uu 

0 0 

"' 0 "' ~ 
~ !:::. Hours Fees Fees Fees ... 

14 $2,740 

8 $1 ,760 $10,447 

20 $2,920: 

4 $760 $4,000 

28 $4 ,480 

6 $1,100 

106 $18,500 

70 $12 ,6 10 

34 $6.070 

0 $0 

0 0 0 290 $50,940 $4,000 $10.447 

0 0 0 450 $78,603 

0 0 0 450 $78,603 

0 0 0 115 $20,101 
I 

4 $680 I I 
25 $4,740 

52 $9,610 

2 $340 

84 $14,670 

0 $0 

0 0 0 1182 $207,347 $0 $0 

I 90 $17,550 

10 176 $31 ,290 ' 
20 $3,820 

156 $27,060 

I 44 $5,200 

8 $1 ,530 

0 $0 

0 10 0 494 $86,450 $0 $01 

I 

20 92 $14,900 

90 $17,250 

56 $12,880 

0 $0 

0 20 0 238 $45.030 $0 $0 

30 30 0 2204 $389,767 $4,000 $10,447 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. & Kennedy Jenks 

Sub I Sub Sub Sub 
C "' 
0 .s u 
"' "' .!: .., ·-
0 u 

" 0"' 
a ~ C .s! E "' <ll 
E "' c > ii: ~ E o< :::!: :J GI O O 
I- oil -, z a:::!: u 

Fees Fees Fees Fees 

$1.283 

$3,870 

$0 $1,283 $3,870 $0 

$4,420 

$2,830 

$6.850 

I $17,500 

$964 

$4,500 

$1 ,610 

$4.500 $7,814 $8,860 $17,500 

i 

$1 .240 

$620 

$1,860 

$13,500 

I 

$0 $0 $3,720 $13,500 

$1 ,130 

$500 -- $0 

' 
$0 $1 ,130 s500I $0 

$4,500 $10,227 $16,950 $31,000 

I JRCIKJ 

"' u 
a 
0 

Fees 

$500 

I 

$50 

$50 

$600 

$100 

$100 

$100 

$150 

$50 

$500 

$1 ,200 

$100 

$1 ,300 

$600 

$600 

$3,000 

"' .. 
+ "' C: 0 "' .. .. 

Cl. .Cl "' )( .,, C w ..J .. 
Cl. 

~ iii )( 

0 0 w 
I- I-

Fees 

$1.283 $4.023 

$10,447 $12.207 

$500 $3,,gQ_ 

$4,000 $4,760 

$0 $4,480 

$3,870 $4,970 

$0 $18,500 

$50 $12,660 

$50 $6,120 

$0 $0 

$20,200 $71 ,140 

$100 $78,703 

$4,520 $83,123 

$2,930 $23,031 

$6,850 $7,530 

$17,650 $22,390 

$964 $10,574 

$4,500 $4,840 

$1 ,660 $ 16,330 

$0 $0 

$39,174 $246,521 

$1 ,240 $18,790 

$620 $31 ,9 10 

$0 $3,820 

$3,060 $30,120 

$100 $5,300 

$13,500 $15,030 

$0 $0 

$18,520 $104,970 

$1,130 $16,030 

$1,100 $18,350 

$0 $12,880 

$0 $0 

$2,230 $47,260 

$80,124 $469,891 

John Romnson Consulting, Inc 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 197 of 443



COMPLETION SCHEDULE 

Draft PDR 
10/4/2019 

Final PDR 

2019 

Task 1 Preliminary Design Engineering Services 

1.1 Data Review • 6/19-6/19 

1.2 Geotechnical Investigat ion """"-==-=-.., 6/19 - 8/19 

1.3 Utility Research 

1.4 Topographic Survey 

1.5 Fire Flow Storage Analysis ____ 6/19 - 8/19 

1.6 Landscape & Irrigation Design 7 /19 - 9/19 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design 

2.1 - 2.3 Final Design 

2.4 Traffic Control Plans 

2.5 Public Outreach 

2.6 Permitt ing Support 

2.7 Bidding Support 

Task 2 Final Design Engineering Services 

------------------- 11/19 - 8/20 

--------- 3/20 - 7/20 

3.1 RFI Responses 

3.2 Submittal Reviews 

3.3 Contractor Payment Evaluations 

3.4 Meetings and Site Visits 

3.5 Record Drawings 

3.6 Public Outreach 

-25-

► Construction NTP 

I 10/30/2020 

Services during Construction 

2021 

11/20 - 10/21 

11/20 - 10/21 

11/ 20 - 10/21 

- 10/21 - 11/21 

11/20 - 10/21 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc. 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 198 of 443



PRELIMINARY DRAWING LIST 

GENERAL 

G-1 Cover Sheet, Vicinity & Location Maps 

G-2 Symbols, Abbreviations, and Drawing List 

G-3 General Notes 

CIVIL 

C-1 General Civil Abbreviations and Legend 

C-2 Horizontal Control & Paving 

C-3 Grading & Drainage 

C-4 Yard Piping 

C-5 Pipe Profiles 

C-6 Civil Details I & Site Sections 

C-7 Civil Details II 

STRUCTURAL 

S-1 Structural General Notes, Design Criteria, and Abbreviations 

S-2 Structural Special Inspection and Testing Schedule 

S-3 Foundation and Roof Plans and Ringdrain Details 

S-4 Wall and Footing Details 

S-5 Prestressing Details, Miscellaneous Joint Details, Seismic Cable Details 

5-6 Roof Reinforcement Plan 

S-7 Roof Reinforcement Sections and Details 

S-8 Wall, Floor, and Column Details, Seismic Cable Plan 

S-9 Interior Ladder and Hatch Details 

S-10 Pipe Entrance Details 

5-11 Exterior Ladder Details 

5-12 Handrail Details 

S-13 Internal Piping Sections and Details 

S-14 Pipe Support Details 

ELECTRICAL AND INSTRUMENTATION & CONTROLS 

E-1 Electrical Abbreviations and General Notes 

E-2 One Line Diagram 

E-3 Electrical Site Plan 

1-1 l&C Abbreviations and General Notes 

1-2 P&ID 

1-3 Instrumentation Details 

City of San Fernando 
Upper Reservoir Replacement Design 

John Robinson Consulting, Inc 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 199 of 443



John Robinson, Principal 
Project Manager - Resume 

Qualified: BS, Civil Engineering, California State University, Long Beach 

Connected: California Water Environment Association (Board of Director - Past President for 
Los Angeles Basin Section); Orange County Water Association (Board of Directors); 
WateReuse Association (Chapter Trustee for the Inland Empire Chapter) 

Professional Summary: Mr. Robinson has 26 years of experience in the planning, design, 
and construction phases of civil and environmental engineering projects. He has completed 
preliminary and final design engineering of capital improvement projects, including cost 
estimates, reservoirs, booster pump stations, and pipelines for water and reclaimed water 
projects. His experience includes construction-phase engineering services for many reservoir, 
pumping, and pipeline systems, and leading utility systems engineering services for several 
design/build infrastructure projects. He has managed many relevant projects, including the City 
of Beverly Hills Coldwater Canyon Reservoir replacement, Foothill Municipal Water District 
Evaluation and Orange County Water District 6.0 MG Reservoir conversion. 

Coldwater Canyon Reservoir Replacement, 
City of Beverly Hills - Project Manager for design of 
an 8.21-mg buried prestressed concrete reservoir located 
among multi-million-dollar homes within the City. Design 
incorporates demolition and removal of the existing 
reservoir damaged during the 1994 Northridge 
Earthquake. Due to site constraints, innovative design 
approaches were implemented, such as shoring methods 
to allow for the concrete casting of the reservoir structural 
elements without encroaching on the surrounding 
properties. End-use master planning and design also 
involved working closely with the Beverly Hills Parks 
Department for incorporation of the reservoir site into its 
neighboring park system. Proposals for the end-use of 
the underground reservoir's site included the installation 
of jogging trails and walking paths on the tank's earthen 
cover. 

Foothill Municipal Water District - FMWD hired 
John Robinson to conduct a reservoir evaluation based 
upon the following five (5) alternatives: A.) Modifications 
to existing distribution system to access more storage 
currently in place; B.) Construct another reservoir on 
Valley Water Company land midway between the La 
Canada and the La Crescenta zone; C.) Tear down and 
construct larger La Crescenta reservoirs ; D.) Lease 
reservoir capacity from GWP and construct an 
interconnection for emergency and normal operations 
purposes to move water to the FMWD service area; and 
E.) Construct an interconnection with GWP for emergency 
purposes. 

Rowland Water District - Designed two steel tank 
water storage reservoirs having capacities of 2.0 MG and 

5.0 MG This project involved site grading, landscaping, 
and construction inspection. 

City of Monterey Park - Designed a 3.0 MG steel 
tank reservoir which involved site grading, landscaping, 
and construction inspection . 

Longden Reservoir, City of Arcadia - Served as 
quality assurance engineer for a pre-stressed 3.0MG. This 
project involved site grading, landscaping, structural , 
mechanical, engineering services during construction and 
construction inspection. 

Reservoir No. 1, Rowland Water District - This 
project included investigation of a failure of reinforcing 
wire strand wrap of a 1965 vintage reinforced concrete 
circular 3.0 MG reservoir. Also included plans, 
specifications, and construction management for installing 
post-tensioned reinforcing bar system with gunite 
concrete corrosion protection. Reservoir was repaired and 
returned to service in 60 days. 

Rowland Water District - Designed six steel tanks 
and one concrete water storage reservoirs having 
capacities ranging from 1.0 MG to 8 .0 MG. These projects 
included site grading, landscaping , and construction 
inspection. 

Sunset Reservoir, City of Beverly Hills - Served 
as Project Manager for this reconstruction project. This 
reservoir has a tennis court added at the top. This was a 
4.5 MG pre-stressed reservoir. This project involved site 

Page 1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 200 of 443



grading, landscaping, structural, mechanical, engineering 
services during construction and construction inspection. 

Big Rock Reservoir, Topanga Reservoir, Blue 
Rock Reservoir, Bute Reservoir, Topanga 
Beach Reservoir, Fairground Reservoir, and 
Avenue K-8 Reservoir, Los Angeles County -
Conducted reservoir inspection , prepared specifications 
for replacing interior coating materials, and coordinating 
construction inspection service for interior recoating. 

City of Pomona - Project Manager for a 4. 0 MG pre
stressed concrete reseNoir. This project involved site 
grading, landscaping, structural, mechanical, engineering 
services during construction and construction inspection. 

Reservoir No. 11, Rowland Water District -
Designed a 5. 0 MG wire-wrapped partially buried concrete 
reseNoir including site grading, landscaping, irrigation 
system, telemetry, and site improvements, including 
paving and decorative wrought iron fencing. Full 
construction administration services included surveying, 
inspection , and testing. 

Orchard Dale Water District - Conducted reservoir 
inspection, prepared project specifications, reviewed bids, 
and made recommendation of award for recoating interior 
of three 1.0 MG Colima Road ReseNoirs and one 5.0 MG 
Telegraph Road ReseNoir. 

Hearst Castle, San Simeon State Park, Office 
of the State Architect - Principal engineer for the 
design of a 1. 5 MG buried concrete reseNoir. This project 
included a design report identifying storage requirements, 
pump station requirements, surface water treatment 
system, chlorination system, and water system O&M 
recommendations, as well as plans and specifications for 
the reservoir, a 500 gpm variable reverse osmosis water 
treatment and pumping system, and assistance with the 
bid process along with construction management 
services. On-site part-time inspection services were also 
included. 

5 mgd Wastewater Treatment Plant with 2.5 
mgd Title 22 Water Reclamation Facility, City 
of American Canyon - Project Engineer this project 
currently in progress, which includes planning for a water 
reclamation project encompassing market assessment, 
hydraulic analysis, and facilities. Construction plans, 
specifications and estimates will be prepared for new 
and/or modifications to existing force mains, gravity 
sewers, and pumping stations, wastewater treatment plant 
and storage ponds. The recycled water facilities include 
10 miles of recycled water pipeline, 5 miles of an industrial 
brine line, 1.5 MG above ground steel storage tank, and a 
recycled water booster pump station. Preliminary design 
of 4 miles of 16 recycled water pipeline, 9 miles of 6-inch 

John Robinson, Principal 

recycled water and brine pipeline and 2 miles of 6-inch 
recycled water pipeline for the City of American Canyon 

RP-4 Reservoir Rehabilitation, Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency (IEUA), Chino, CA 

Project Manager responsible for the writing , and 
preparation of the preliminary and final design efforts for 
the rehabilitation of two 5.5 MG above ground steel 
reseNoirs. In his role as project manager, Mr. Robinson 
was responsible for the revision and finalization of the 
retrofit design criteria for the two 5.5 MG reservoirs 
through the preliminary and final design of the project. 
Additional duties included management for preliminary 
and final development and client coordination. 

Santa Ana Recycled Water Reservoir 
Conversion and Pump Station, Orange County 
Water District - Project Engineer for modifications to 
the Santa Ana Reservoir and design of a new pump 
station for the Orange County Water District. Design 
involved modifying an existing 6. 0-million-gal/on potable 
water reseNoir for reclaimed water storage and design of 
a new pump station to supply the Green Acres reclaimed 
distribution system with the stored reclaimed water and 
modification of Factory 21 pump station. In addition, 
project included a surge analysis and report, computer 
hydraulic model (CyberNet 2.0), and update of model 
(CyberNet 3.0) of the Districts recycled water distribution 
system. Preliminary and final design of 500 feet of 24-inch 
and 36-inch recycled water pipeline on the Santa Ana 
Reservoir and Pump Station site and Bear Street 

Project Engineer 
Title 22 Engineering Report I East Valley Water 
District I Highland, CA 

Mr. Robinson served as Title 22 Engineering Report lead 
along with Division of Drinking Water Summary of Public 
Hearing, Findings of Fact and Condition, Regional Water 
Quality Control Board Report of Waste Discharge and 
NPDES permit application. John was responsible for the 
evaluation of applicable regulations, pollutant identification, 
and project feasibility to be incorporated in the Title 22 
Engineering Report. Mr. Robinson's responsibilities also 
included the evaluation of multiple technologies, including 
microfiltration (MF), reverse osmosis (RO), and ultraviolet 
(UV) for further treatment of Title 22 recycled water for 
discharge into the Santa Ana River. 

Senior Manager, Hollydale Pump Station and 
Pipeline, Central Basin Municipal Water 
District and City of Vernon, CA 

Mr. Robinson's responsibilities included the preliminary 
design, design, and construction management of the 
Hollydale Pump Station located in the City of South Gate 
and approximately 8,000 linear feet of 12-and 18-inch 
recycled water pipeline to supply Malburg Generation 
Station. The facilities were in partnership between Central 
Basin Municipal Water District and City of Vernon. 
required SCADA controlled discharge stations for 
groundwater recharge. 

Paae 2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 201 of 443



Sridhar Sadasivan, S.E. 

QA/QC Manager 

Education 
BS, Civil/Environmental Engineering, University of 

Bombay, India, 2002 
MS, Structural Engineering, University of 

Cincinnati, 2004 

Professional Summary 

Registrations 
Professional Civi l Engineer, California (73525) 
Professional Structural Engineer, California 

(S6039) 

Years of Experience 
16 years 

Sridhar Sadasivan has practical hands-on experience in design and construction of faci lities for 
environmental projects. He has been involved in structural design of several water/wastewater 
projects, including design of treatment plants, pumping stations, chemical facilities and reservoirs. 
Sridhar has field engineering experience, providing construction support and inspection services at a 
wastewater treatment plant and at several sewer pipeline construction sites. He is knowledgeable in 
several structural engineering computer programs, and is also proficient in Autocad, Microstation V8, 
and Triforma. 

Relevant Project Experience 

DAILY II RESERVOIR AND PIPELINE DESIGN, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, MENIFEE, 
CA I PROJECT MANAGER / PROJECT ENGINEER I The project includes a 2 MG welded steel tank, 
2,000 LF of 12-inch PVC pipeline and 18,000 CY of excavation and miscellaneous sitework. 
Preliminary design included a siting study for a 2 MG welded steel reservoir with evaluation of 
potential s ites primarily based on operations and geotechnical considerations. Sridhar served as the 
project manager, lead structural design engineer, and lead civil engineer during the preliminary 
design and final design. 

GARFIELD RESERVOIR, CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, SOUTH PASADENA, CA I PROJECT 
ENGINEER I The project involves design of two 3.25 MG partially buried concrete reservoirs in a 
residential neighborhood in accordance with IBC 2009 and ACI 350 provisions. The proj ect also 
includes design of a below grade valve structure, a 2,000 gpm booster pump station and a 5,000 SF 
office/garage facility. The project site is located 100 feet from a known active fault line (Raymond 
fault). Served as Project Engineer coordinating the design of the project with the City and other 
concerned agencies including Pasadena Unified School District, LA County Flood Control District, 
CDPH and SCE. Also served as the lead structural design engineer and civil engineer. 

CHEVY CHASE 968 RESERVOIR AND BOOSTER PUMP STATION, CITY OF GLENDALE, GLENDALE, 
CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Project includes a 15 MG buried cast-in-place concrete reservoir 
underneath a golf course and a 2,400 gpm tri-level booster pump station in a residential 
neighborhood. Served as the project engineer and structural design engineer during final design and 
construction. During construction, managed the office services provided including attending weekly 
progress meetings and structural observation. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 202 of 443



Sridhar Sadasivan, S.E. 
Page 2 

RESERVOIR NO. 3 ROOF REPLACEMENT AND PIPING IMPROVEMENTS, CITY OF BURBANK, 
BURBANK, CA I STRUCTURAL ENGINEER I Project involved replacement of roof on a 0.35 MG 
concrete reservoir. Preliminary design stage included evaluation of roof material alternatives. Served 
as the lead structural design engineer during preliminary design, design and construction. 

PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DESIGN OF RECYCLED WATER POND PUMPING STATIONS, EASTERN 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, PERRIS, CA I TECHNICAL ADVISOR I Project includes preliminary 
and final design of three pumping stations from effluent storage ponds to the distribution system. 
Served as a technical advisor supporting the project manager and project engineer. 

TANK SEISMIC IMPROVEMENTS, CITY OF BURBANK WATER & POWER, BURBANK, CA I 
STRUCTURAL DESIGNER I A comprehensive seismic, structural, corrosion and safety assessment of 
22 flat bottom steel tanks (18 potable water and four recycled water), size ranging from 0 .2 MG to 
10 MG, was performed on 14 different sites for the City of Burbank Water & Power. The assessment 
included observation and inspection to record damage and documented deficiencies and developed 
recommendations for the seismic rehabilitation of the tanks. The City is in the process of 
implementing the recommendations of the corrosion study. Seismic deficiencies in 12 tanks were 
identified. Engineering services included cost evaluation for retrofit alternatives for the tanks, design 
of the retrofit and construction administration support. To date, 10 steel tanks have been retrofitted. 

BENTON RECYCLED WATER STORAGE TANK AND PIPELINE, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT, PERRIS, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I The project includes a 2 MG welded steel tank, 
9,000 LF of 24-inch steel pipeline and 65,000 CY of excavation and miscellaneous sitework. Served 
as the project engineer and lead structura l design engineer during the design and construction. 

STEEL TANKS SEISMIC IMPROVEMENTS, CITY OF BURBANK WATER & POWER, BURBANK, CA I 
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER I Project includes geotechnical investigations and seismic evaluation of 10 
welded steel reservoirs in accordance with AWWA D100 and design of seismic retrofits. Served as 
the project engineer and lead structural design engineer during design and construction. 

LONGFELLOW RECYCLED WATER TANK AND PIPELINE, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, 
WINCHESTER, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I The project includes a 5 MG welded steel tank, 4,000 LF 
of 36-inch steel pipeline and 25,000 CY of excavation and miscellaneous sitework. Served as the 
project engineer, lead structural design engineer, and lead civil engineer during the design and 

construction. 

TUSCANY HILLS/WILDOMAR RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM DESIGN, ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT, LAKE ELSINORE, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Design of a 3,300 gpm recycled 
water pump station, 0 .9 MG tank, and approximately 36,000 linear feet of 6-inch to 18-inch 
diameter recycled water pipeline. 

WESTSIDE WATER BANK STEEL TANKS, ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN WATER AGENCY, 
PALMDALE, CA I STRUCTURAL ENGINEER I Design and engineering services during construction of 
two 4 MG steel tanks (Phase 1 and Phase 2) and associated 42-inch inlet and outlet pipelines and 
tank appurtenances. The appurtenances included reservoir mixers bid and site electrical and 
instrumentation bid under a separate contract in an effort to obtain the most competitive tank bids. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 203 of 443



David W. Ferguson, Ph.D., P.E., BCEE 

Design Manager 

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, University of Massachusetts, 

1980 
BS, Environmental Science, University of 

Massachusetts,1977 
MBA, Business Management, California State 

University, San Bernardino, 1985 
MS, Civil Engineering, University of Massachusetts, 

1980 
PhD, Executive Management, Claremont Graduate 

University, 1993 

Registrations 
Professional Civil Engineer, California (34626) 

Professional Summary 

Certifications 
Board Certified Environmental Engineer, American 

Academy of Environmental Engineers & 
Scientists (AAEES) 

Memberships/ Affiliations 
American Water Works Association (AWWA) 
Design-Build Institute of America (DBIA) 
American Academy of Environmental Engineers & 

Scientists (AAEES) 

Years of Experience 
39 years 

David Ferguson, PhD has extensive experience in the planning, design, construction, and operation 
of water supply, infrastructure, and treatment projects. His background includes project and program 
management, as well as management of engineering and/ or operations for three large water utilities 
in Southern Ca lifornia. He has been responsible for the evaluation and/ or design of upgrades, 
rehabilitation, retrofit, and/ or replacement for over 40 water treatment plants, 30 reservoirs, and 20 
pumping stations for 15 different water utilities. 

Relevant Project Experience 

GARFIELD RESERVOIR PUMP STATION REPLACEMENT, CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, SOUTH 

PASADENA, CA I PROJECT MANAGER I Preliminary Design Report and design for a two-cell 6.5 MG 
cast-in-place concrete rectangular partially-buried reservoir, 2,500 gpm pump station, and on-site 
sodium hypochlorite generation chlorination facility. The project also includes the design of the 
Public Works Water Distribution Yard with an office/garage/ storage building and support facilities. 

WESTSIDE WATER BANK STEEL TANKS, ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN WATER AGENCY, 

PALMDALE, CA I PROJECT MANAGER I Design and engineering services during construction of two 
4 MG steel tanks (Phase 1 and Phase 2) and associated 42-inch inlet and outlet pipelines and tank 
appurtenances. The appurtenances included reservoir mixers bid and site electrical and 
instrumentation bid under a separate contract in an effort to obta in the most competitive tank bids. 

DAILY II RESERVOIR, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, PERRIS, CA I QA/ QC REVIEWER I 
Design of a 2 MG above-ground, welded steel potable water storage tank and associated facilities. 
The project included separate inlet and outlet pipelines and an altitude valve and by-pass vault. An 
on-site storage pond was sized for emergency overflow as well as draining the bottom 2 feet of the 
tank for maintenance. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 204 of 443



David W. Ferguson, Ph.D .. P.E., BCEE 
Page 2 

LONGFELLOW RECYCLED WATER TANK AND PIPELINE, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, 
WINCHESTER, CA I QA/QC REVIEWER I Design of a 5 MG above-ground, welded steel recycled 
water storage tank and associated faci lities. The proj ect also included approximately 4,500 linear 
feet of a 30-inch diameter steel (CML&C) inlet/outlet recycled water pipeline in Simpson Road. 

TUSCANY HILLS/ WILDOMAR RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM DESIGN, ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT, LAKE ELSINORE, CA I QA/ QC REVIEWER I Design of a 3,300 gpm recycled 
water pump station, 0.9 MG tank, and approximately 36,000 linear feet of 6-inch to 18-inch 
diameter recycled water pipeline. 

RESERVOIR 3A, CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, SAN FERNANDO, CA I PROJECT MANAGER I Preliminary 
Design Report of alternative reservoir configurations and materials of const ruct ion to maximize 
storage at t he site of t he existing 1.0 MG Upper Reservoir. The recommended reservoir was an L
shaped partially-buried cast-in-place concrete reservoir. 

WHITEGATES NO. 1 AND NO. 2 RESERVOIR PLANNING STUDY, CITY OF RIVERSIDE, RIVERSIDE, 
CA I PROJECT MANAGER I Planning Study for the sizing and site location for two buried concrete 
reservoirs with a tota l capacity of 9 million gallons. Two luxury home parcels (tota ling approximately 
t hree acres) were purchased for each of the two reservoir sites. Following a design-build solicitat ion, 
the upper reservoir was constructed as a 3 .5 MG cast-in-place rectangular reservoir and the lower 
reservoir a 5.5 MG cast-in-place rectangular reservoir. 

REGIONAL RECYCLED WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM FACILITIES-PHASE II, INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY, CHINO, CA I PROJECT MANAGER I Proj ect Manager for the preliminary design 
and design six discrete packages that represent an estimated $40 million in capital improvements 
and include 75,000 feet of 16- to 30-inch diameter pipeline, three pumping stations, and two steel 
tanks. 

RESERVOIR AND PUMPING STATION, CITY OF SOLVANG, SOLVANG CA I PROJECT MANAGER I 
Design and Construct ion Administration of a 0 .6 MG concrete reservoir and pumping station. 

RESERVOIR AND PUMP ADDITION, CITY OF UPLAND, UPLAND, CA I PROJECT MANAGER I Design 
of a 4 .6 MG concrete reservoir and pump addition. 

RESERVOIR, PIPELINE, AND PUMP STATION, CITY OF TORRANCE, TORRANCE, CA I PROJECT 
ENGINEER I Design of an 18 MG buried concrete reservoir, transmission pipeline, and pump station 
modifications. 

RESERVOIR, SAN GABRIEL VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, EL MONTE, CA I PROJECT MANAGER I 
Design of a 3 MG steel tank, site improvements, and inletjoutlet piping. 

RESERVOIR, CITY OF POMONA, POMONA, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Design of a 2.7 MG steel 
tank, site improvements, and in let/ outlet piping. 

j Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 205 of 443



Brandon C. Hale, P.E. 

Project Engineer 

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, University of California, Los 

Angeles, 2010 
MS, Civil Engineering, University of California, Los 

Angeles, 2012 

Professional Summary 

Registrations 
Professional Civil Engineer, Californ ia (C 83374) 

Years of Experience 
6 years 

Brandon Hale is a registered professional civil engineer with a background in water resources and 
environmental planning in Southern California with a focus on the planning and design of 
infrastructure improvements, water supply and demand management, and water master planning. 
He has performed planning, preliminary design, final design, and construction support of several 
water reservoirs, transmission pipelines, pump stations, groundwater wells, and treatment 
processes. Brandon has developed capital, operating, maintenance and annualized life cycle costs 
to support the evaluation of alternatives for planning studies, as well as more refined cost estimates 
during design. 

Relevant Project Experience 

MESA TANK REPLACEMENT, CITY OF SANTA PAULA, SANTA PAULA, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I 
Evaluated replacing twin 0.21 MG potable water steel tanks with twin 0.30 MG steel tanks, 0.60 MG 
concrete cast-in-place rectangular reservoir, and 0.60 MG concrete circular pre-stressed tank. 
Analyzed three tank alternatives on cost, constructabi lity, operations & maintenance, permitting, 
residential impacts, land acquisition/easements, traffic impacts, water quality, and environmental 
impacts to recommend a tank alternative. Determined twin steel tanks is the best replacement 
option for the City. 

CHERRY WILLOW RECYCLED WATER TANK FINAL DESIGN, SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER 
AGENCY, SANTA CLARITA, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER/ CIVIL ENGINEER I Currently working to 
develop an expedited design for the construction of twin 0 .5 MG recycled water, welded steel 
storage tanks to expand the storage system by 1.0 MG. Responsible for coordinating pipeline 
connections to tank and water supply pipeline, development of an overflow detention basin to test 
overflow water prior to discharge to the storm drain, and site grading. A staircase will provide access 
to one tank with a catwalk across to the second tank. Both tanks will operate at the same level, 
which will communicate via SCADA system. 

WESTSIDE WATER BANK PHASE 2 - TANK CONSTRUCTION, ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN 
WATER AGENCY, ANTELOPE ACRES, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER (DESIGN PHASE) AND PROJECT 
CONTROLS ENGINEER (CONSTRUCTION PHASE) I Coordinated design of a 4 MG potable water 
welded steel tank between civi l, structural, electrical, and instrumentation disciplines. Steel tank 
included access stairs, SCADA instrumentation for measurement, site lighting, grading 
improvements, and 42-inch steel pipe connections for inlet and outlet. Served as project controls 
engineering during construction to process submittal and RFI reviews. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 206 of 443



Brandon C. Hale. P.E. 
Page 2 

5 MG POTABLE WATER STORAGE TANK, LAS VIRGENES MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, 
CALABASAS, CA I ENGINEERING SUPPORT I Responsible for design and specification of tank 
appurtenances: chlorine analyzer, irrigation pump skid, and sampling station. Designed baffle layout 
with data from computation fluid dynamics model output. Coordinated structural, electrical, and 

instrumentation disciplines. 

GARFIELD RESERVOIR AND PUMP STATION REPLACEMENT, CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, SOUTH 
PASADENA, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Coordinated and processed over 200 submittals and over 
100 RFI reviews for the construction of a twin cell 6.5 MG cast-in-place potable water reservoir, 200 
horsepower vertical turbine pump station, and 8,800 square foot, two story administration building. 

PACE, MOORPARK & POTRERO NO. 1 RESERVOIRS REHABILITATION, CALIFORNIA AMERICAN 
WATER, THOUSAND OAKS, CA I DESIGN ENGINEER I Design Engineer and Field Engineer -
Performed daily site observations at Pace Reservoir during rehabilitation construction. Responded to 
RFls, submittals and change order requests. Revised contract documents for Moorpark and Potrero 
No. 1 Reservoirs with lessons learned from Pace Reservoir. 

PALMDALE REGIONAL GROUNDWATER RECHARGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT, PALMDALE 
WATER DISTRICT, PALMDALE, CA I CIVIL ENGINEER I The proposed project would deliver water 
from the California Aqueduct of the State Water Project to new 80-acre recharge basins on an 
undeveloped site in northeast Palmdale where it will be blended with recycled water and surface 
recharged into the groundwater aquifer. Banked water would be available for future extraction by up 
to 16 groundwater extraction wells. Responsible for the preliminary hydraulic analysis of 18.5 miles 
of pipelines ranging from 30-inches to 48-inches in diameter. Analysis included partial- and full-pipe 
flows up to 72 cubic feet per second. Determined preliminary 25 miles of pipeline alignment at an 
estimated construction cost of $40 million. 

DEERLAKE RANCH STORAGE AND PUMPING CAPACITY STUDY, LAS VIRGENES MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT, CALABASAS, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Developed alternatives to expand an 
existing pump station by 620 gpm and increase storage by 300,000 gallons. Alternatives were 
phased based on the phasing of the Deerlake Ranch tract construction. Two pumping and nine 
storage alternatives were evaluated with a decision matrix to recommend a project. Developed 

construction costs for alternatives. 

POTABLE WATER SYSTEM UPGRADE, MT SINAI MEMORIAL PARKS & MORTUARIES, LOS 
ANGELES, CA I CIVIL ENGINEER I Drafted a conceptual design report to upgrade the existing 
potable water pump station to meet the new high pressure potable water service connection, 
including hydraulic calculations under gravity flow and pumping conditions. Evaluated different 
alternatives prior to selecting a hydropneumatic pump system to provide service during normal 
operations and while supplying irrigation water when the recycled water system was offline. 

PHASE Ill RECYCLED WATER PROJECT PIPELINE EXPANSION SEGMENT 5, CARLSBAD 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, CARLSBAD, CA I CIVIL ENGINEER I Led the preliminary and final 
design of approximately 9 miles of recycled water transmission and distribution pipelines. New pipe 
ranged in size from 6- to 8-inches in diameter. Determine applicable permits requ ired for 
construction within the public right-of-way and for crossing a North County Transit District railroad 

with a bore and jack construction approach. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 207 of 443



Donald L. Barraza, P.E. 

Reservoir Design 

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, University of Wyoming, 1986 

Registrations 
Professional Civil Engineer, California (45483) 
Professional Civil Engineer, Washington (41090) 
Professional Civil Engineer, Oregon (75021) 

Professional Summary 

Memberships/ Affiliations 
American Society of Civil Engineers 
Structural Engineers Association of California 
Applied Technology Council 
State of California's Governor's Office of 

Emergency Services 

Years of Experience 
32 years 

Don Barraza is a senior engineer with over 30 years of experience serving as structural engineer, 
project engineer, project manager, and construction resident engineer. In these roles he provided 
services for the planning, design, condition assessment, and construction of water supply, treatment, 
storage and distribution facilities. In his career, he has worked on more than 18 condition 
assessments, structural design of over 70 concrete tanks and 70 steel reservoirs, 17 pump stations, 
and more than 30 water treatment plants and has served as a senior-level reviewer for over a dozen 
water and wastewater treatment plant projects. He also serves as chairman of the AWWA committee 
on cast-in-place conventionally reinforced concrete water storage tanks. 

Relevant Project Experience 

GARFIELD RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT PROJECT, CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA, SOUTH PASADENA, 
CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Structural designer in responsible charge for the alternatives evaluation 
and preliminary design of a 6 .5 MG replacement of the existing cast-in-place earth embankment 
rectangular concrete reservoir. After completion of preliminary design, provided structural QA/QC 
review for the final construction document development of the replacement of the reservoir with two 
new conventional concrete rectangular reservoirs, replacement pump station, inlet/outlet valve 
vault, and maintenance building. 

9.5 MG RESERVOIR NO. 1 RECONSTRUCTION, BURBANK WATER & POWER, CITY OF BURBANK, 
CA I RESPONSIBLE-IN-CHARGE I Project Manager and structural designer in responsible charge for 
the design and construction of the replacement of the City's Reservoir No. 1 a 1941 era 6.9 MG 
earth embankment reservoir constructed within a DSOD jurisdictional dam. Led a design team which 
evaluated several alternative configurations for replacement of the reservoir. Final design was 
developed around construction of two new conventional concrete reservoirs, one rectangular and the 
second trapezoidal, configured to fit within the original footprint of the single 6.9 MG capacity 
reservoir but increased in total storage capacity to 9.5 MG. 

CHEVY CHASE 968 RESERVOIR AND BOOSTER PUMP STATION, CITY OF GLENDALE, GLENDALE, 
CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Structural designer in responsible in charge for the design of the 15.0 
MG Chevy Chase 968 Reservoir. The trapezoidal reservoir measuring 475 feet by 245 feet was 
designed with storage separated into two halves and fully buried with vehicle live load over the top of 
the reservoir and constructed beneath the Chevy Chase County Club golf course. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 208 of 443



Donald L. Barraza. P.E. 
Page 2 

HARRY TRACY WATER TREATMENT PLANT (HTWTP) LONG-TERM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, SAN 
FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, MILLBRAE, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Structural 
responsible in charge and designer for a 15.0 MG conventionally reinforced and prestressed 
concrete reservoir. The circular reservoir is divided into two compartments with a 4.0 MG circular 
ch lorine contact chamber surrounding an 11.0 MG operational storage clearwell. The reservoir is a 
240-foot-diameter circular tank designed in accordance with ANSI/AWWA D110-04 with a 46-foot 
water depth. The reservoir is pile supported on over 800 driven non-displacement steel H-piles and 
constructed about 1,000 feet from the active San Andreas Fault and adjacent to Interstate 280. 

NICOLAS RESERVOIR ENGINEERING SERVICES, RANCHO CALIFORNIA WATER DISTRICT, 
TEMECULA, CA I CIVIL ENGINEER I Work included the preparation of design plans, specifications 
and cost estimates for two 3.5-million-gallon prestressed concrete tanks, inlet/outlet transmission 
main, and parallel transmission mains. 

BENTON RECYCLED WATER STORAGE TANK AND PIPELINE, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT, PERRIS, CA I QA/QC MANAGER I Preliminary and final design of a 2.0 MG recycled 
water steel tank and approximately 8,500 linear feet of a 24-inch diameter recycled water pipeline. 

LONGFELLOW RECYCLED WATER TANK AND PIPELINE, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, 
WINCHESTER, CA I STRUCTURAL DESIGNER I Design of a 5 MG above ground, welded steel 
recycled water storage tank and associated facilities. The project also included approximately 4,500 
linear feet of a 30-inch diameter steel (CML&C) inlet/outlet recycled water pipeline in Simpson Road. 

2.0 MG PAXTON ROAD RESERVOIR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION, CITY OF KELSO, KELSO, WA I 
PROJECT ENGINEER I Structural designer in responsible charge for the design of a 2.0 MG strand 
wound circular prestressed concrete water storage tank with a cast-in-place dome roof. 

7.25 MG AND 10.0 MG NORTHEAST WATER STORAGE RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT, CITY OF 
ROSEVILLE, ROSEVILLE, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Structural responsible charge for design and 
CM for 7.25 MG and 10.0 MG strand-wound, circular, prestressed concrete water storage tanks. The 
reservoirs were designed with an AWWA D110 Type I core wall, an underdrain system, and a 
separate in let and outlet system for mixing and turnover of the tank contents including demolition of 

a 6.0 MG prestressed reservoir. 

RESERVOIR REPLACEMENT, SONOMA STATE UNIVERSITY, ROHNERT PARK, CA I PROJECT 
ENGINEER I Engineering for the replacement of two precast concrete 0.25 MG water reservoirs. 
Final design and construction administration services for three new ground level welded steel water 

storage tanks. 

1.0 MG Minor Road Reservoirs Seismic and Structural Evaluation, City of Kelso, Kelso, WA I 
RESPONSIBLE-IN-CHARGE I Responsible in Charge and structural designer for the seismic 
evaluation of two 1.0 MG circular conventional concrete water storage tanks. This project included 
evaluation of the failure path and inundation zone associated with reservoir failure adjacent 1-5. 

GYPSY HILL AND ROYCE RESERVOIRS EVALUATIONS AND REPLACEMENT, NORTH COAST 
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, PACIFICA, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Engineering services for the 
design of two 3.0 MG welded steel tanks for the Gypsy Hill and Royce Reservoir. 

1.0 MG Recycled Water Reservoir, Menlo Country Club, Woodside, CA I STRUCTURAL PROJECT 
MANAGER I Project Manager and structural discipline lead for the design of a new 1.0 MG circular 
buried conventional concrete reservoir for irrigation storage supply for the country club golf course. 

j Kennedy Jen ks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 209 of 443



Paul H. Chau, P.E., CEM 

Fire Flow Analysis & Hydraulics 

Education 
BS, Environmental Engineering and Science, 

University of California, Los Angeles, 2006 
MS, Civil and Environmental Engineering, Stanford 

University, 2007 

Registrations 
Professional Civil Engineer, California (C75784) 

Professional Summary 

Certifications 
Certified Energy Manager, Association of Energy 

Engineers (#21448) 

Years of Experience 
12 years 

Paul Chau is a civil engineer and certified energy manager with a diverse background in master 
planning, water supply planning, hydraulic water modeling, energy analysis, and infrastructure 
design. He has built, developed, calibrated, and analyzed hydraulic water models using lnfoWater 
and WaterGEMS. He has also provided engineering analyses such as fire flow storage analysis, 
demand development, reservoir, pipe, and pump station sizing, and Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) development. 

Relevant Project Experience 

MORRO TANK RETROFIT, RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, FALLBROOK, CA I CIVIL 
ENGINEER I The Morro Tank is the lone source of storage in one of Rainbow Municipal Water 
District's (RMWD) water distribution system pressure zones. A structural and geotechnical analysis of 
the tank discovered the tank sits on unstable soil, which would require significant investment to 
rectify. Carried out a hydraulic analysis to determine alternative means of providing storage and 
pumping facilities for the pressure zone. The hydraulic analysis resulted in a more cost efficient 
solution for RMWD. 

WATER & SEWER MASTER PLAN, ROSAMOND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, ROSAMOND, CA 
I PROJECT MANAGER I Providing project oversight and project management for the development of 
water and sewer master plans for Rosamond Community Services District, which provides sewer, 
water, park, and lighting services for the City of Rosamond in Antelope Valley. An lnfoSewer hydraulic 
model was developed and a facility analysis was executed, including a fire flow assessment for both 
storage and pipeline capacities. 

WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE, CITY OF THOUSAND OAKS, THOUSAND OAKS, CA I PROJECT 
ENGINEER I Served as a project engineer for preparation of the City of Thousand Oaks' (City) 2015 
Master Plan Update. The purpose of the project is to identify infrastructure improvements required 
for the City's water distribution system, including improvements to meet fire flow requirements. In 
addition, the hydraulic model is utilized to perform a water age analysis of the system, in order to 
identify areas of the system that potentially can have low disinfection levels 

WATER, RECYCLED WATER, AND SEWER MASTER PLANS, CITY OF SOUTH GATE, SOUTH GATE, CA 
I PROJECT ENGINEER I Project included the preparation of a Water Master Plan, Recycled Water 
Master Plan, and Sewer Master Plan as three standalone documents to address water demands, 
recycled water demands, and gravity sewer flows. Each document evaluates the immediate, short-

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 210 of 443



Paul H. Chau, P.E.. CEM 
Page2 

term (5-year), and ultimate deficiencies and establish the infrastructure requirements. The Water 
Master Plan included a facility analysis that analyzed fire flow requirements for the storage and 

pipeline facilities. 

WATER FACILITIES MASTER PLAN UPDATE, CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO, SAN BERNARDINO, CA 
I PROJECT ENGINEER I Worked collaboratively with the San Bernardino Municipal Water 
Department to update its Water Facilities Master Plan, and develop a roadmap for continued 
successful performance and operation of critical water system infrastructure. Project included 
update of geographic information system (GIS) database, hydraulic model development, fire-flow 
testing, calibration, demand modeling and projections, statistical analysis to determine impact 
factors (economy, weather, employment etc.) on future demands, water conservation strategies, 
water resources, hydraulic analysis, Capital Improvements Program (CIP), and model training. 

HATTAN ROAD PUMP STATION DESIGN, CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER, CLACKAMAS, OR I 
MODELING TECHNICAL ADVISOR I Clackamas River Water District is working to complete their 
Backbone Projects initiative to meet water demand and increase reliability and capacity in both their 
north and south service areas. Kennedy Jenks designed a new water booster pump station to deliver 
water south of the Clackamas River. The station includes three, 400-horsepower vertical turbine 
pumps to deliver 5.6 MGD to the Redland Reservoirs, a dual surge tank system and a pressure relief 
valve to deliver water north by gravity and bypassing the pump station. Paul provided technical 
guidance for hydraulic modeling services to define the pump station capacities. 

LAS POSAS REPLACEMENT WATER STUDY, CALLEGUAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, 
MOORPARK, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Kennedy Jenks provided CMWD and Fox Canyon 
Groundwater Management Agency engineering services to perform the Study, which comprised 
fourteen individual studies each evaluating a water supply alternative. Kennedy Jenks developed key 
criteria to assess each project alternative. Results of this Study found that opportunities to diversify 
the Basin's water supply are regionally accessible within supply types including stormwater, treated 
brackish water, imported water, and recycled water, as well as invasive vegetation removal. Factors 
impacting the overall feasibility of an evaluated alternative include capacity and capital costs per 
project, and potential limitations on supply availability such as water rights, agency terms, 
hydrological availability, drought, and other limitations. Project also included stakeholder 
engagement for criteria development and analysis review. 

RECYCLED WATER RESOURCES PLAN, RANCHO CALIFORNIA WATER DISTRICT, TEMECULA, CA 
I PROJECT ENGINEER I Currently developing a Recycled Water Resources Plan (RWRP) to provide 
the District a clear and concise strategy for utilizing its available recycled water supplies. Twelve non
potable and potable reuse alternatives (including groundwater replenishment, conjunctive use via 
nearby reservoir, streamflow augmentation and direct potable reuse) were evaluated using a 
weighted-criteria ranking analysis utilizing criteria developed by the Board of Directors. Led the 
development of the technical parameters, regulatory compliance, and life cycle cost estimates for 
the project alternatives that were considered. 

RECYCLED WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE, SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY (CASTAIC 
LAKE WATER AGENCY), SANTA CLARITA, CA I PROJECT ENGINEER I Led the engineering team for 
Prop 84-funded Recycled Water Plan to investigate non-potable reuse, groundwater recharge, 
surface water augmentation and direct potable reuse for CLWA and the four retailers in the region. 
Paul led oversight and QA/QC of the hydraulic modeling development. Included alternative analysis 
and facility siting considerations for 14 sub-alternatives, including evaluation of conveyance 

requirements and costs. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 211 of 443



Gregory B. Behnke 

Site Civil 

Years of Experience 
41 years 

Professional Summary 

Greg offers over 40 years of experience in the civil and sanitary engineering field. His regular 
responsibilities include the development of design and preparation of plans and specifications for 
wastewater and water treatment plants, as well as sanitary, potable and reclaimed water pipelines, 
reservoirs, mass grading and wetland restorations projects. He also has experience working as a 
system administrator, IT coordinator and providing CAD support. Greg is experienced in the 
production of grading plans, pipeline and site design, yard piping design, and reservoir design using 
Bentley MicroStation, In Roads, lnterPlot, and Autodesk Civil 30 modeling software applications. He is 
skilled in detailed design of pipelines, digital terrain modeling, and extremely proficient in earthwork, 
earthwork quantities and pond storage volume ca lculations. 

Relevant Project Experience 

DAILY II HYDROPNEUMATIC BOOSTER PUMP STATION, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, 
TEMECULA, CA I CIVIL DESIGN LEAD I Provided design of horizontal controls, paving, and grading 
and drainage. 

DAILY ROAD CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT, EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, TEMECULA, 
CA I CIVIL DESIGN LEAD I Provided horizontal control, paving, and grading, and drainage. 

TW0-8 MG RESERVOIRS, PUMPING STATION, WELL IMPROVEMENTS, AND PIPELINES, CITY OF 
WESTMINSTER, WESTMINSTER, CA I LEAD DESIGNER I Lead designer for the reservoir 
replacement project located at the intersection of Hoover Street and Hazard Avenue. The work 
involved the development of a water production well drilled within the site to provide additional water 
supply for the City's drinking water system. The well pump was 2,500 gpm with 200 hp. The project 
consisted of a complete water supply and storage system that included a booster pump station (4-
3,100 gpm, 200 hp pumps), well pump, disinfection system using sod ium hypochlorite and water 
softeners, emergency back-up power generator, two 8-MG, steel tank reservoirs. The site 
improvement also included soil stabilization by drilling an array of stone columns and surcharging 
the site where the two reservoirs will be placed. The soil stabilization project was completed after the 
well was drilled and tested. The yard piping varied from 36" to 10" and involved connections to two 
different water service areas. 

10 MG TILDEN RESERVOIR, CITY OF RIVERSIDE PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT, CITY OF 

RIVERSIDE PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT, RIVERSIDE, CA I LEAD DESIGNER I Civil engineering 
design lead for this 10 MG with 16-foot side water depth and a total depth of 24 feet (2-5 MG cells), 
Pressure Zone 1020, buried concrete reservoir located in the southwest part of the city. The 10 MG 
reservoir was a buried cast-in-place concrete reservoir with 16 feet side water depth and 24 overall 
depth feet using a hopper bottom. The reservoir is located in the hillside overlooking Creighton Street 
and Gramercy Place. This project had unique challenges because the design and construction had to 
keep an above ground 1.5 MG steel reservoir in service while the new concrete buried reservoir was 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 212 of 443



Gregory B. Behnke 
Page 2 

constructed in the hillside next to it. The civil site work was also challenging due to the hillside design 
and steep access roads needed to access both the existing steel tank reservoir and the top of the 
new buried reservoir. Assisted during the construction phase where surficial erosion occurred and 
affected the cover. Significant repairs were necessary due storm water flooding. 

7.5 MG VAN BUREN RESERVOIR, CITY OF RIVERSIDE PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT, 
RIVERSIDE, CA I LEAD DESIGNER I Civil engineering design lead for this 7 .5 MG, Pressure 
Zone 1200 with 16 feet side water depth and a total depth of 24 feet using a hopper bottom, buried 
concrete reservoir located in near Equestrian Drive and Van Buren Boulevard at Mockingbird Canyon 
Reservoir. This project was planned to expand one additional 7.5 MG cell to the west. Additional 
features were provided for that future expansion such as a common 30-inch steel inlet with stub 
outs. Also, the wall connections for the expansion were built so t hat the reinforcing and water stops 

were included. 

CANYON LAKE WATER TREATMENT PLANT FACILITIES MASTER PLAN, ELSINORE VALLEY 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, CANYON LAKE, CA I CIVIL DESIGN LEAD I Provided horizontal 
control, paving, grading and drainage, and yard piping design. 

DIAMOND VALLEY LAKE ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION (AS A 
SUBCONSULTANT), METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT, LOS ANGELES, CA I CIVIL CAD 
TECHNICIAN I Provided civil plans and profiles. 

STERLING NATURAL RESOURCE CENTER DESIGN-BUILD BRIDGING DOCUMENTS, SAN 
BERNARDINO VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, HIGHLAND, CA I CIVIL DESIGN LEAD I 
Provided horizontal control, paving, and grading and drainage. 

NORTH CITY PLANT EXPANSION - PIPELINE DESIGN AND SECONDARY CLARIFIER AREA DESIGN, 
CITY OF SAN DIEGO, SAN DIEGO, CA I CIVIL DESIGN LEAD I Provided horizontal control, pipe design 

and relocations. 

NORTH CITY PLANT EXPANSION - EARLY SITE WORK FOR PIPELINE DESIGN AND SECONDARY 
CLARIFIER AREA DESIGN, CITY OF SAN DIEGO, SAN DIEGO, CA I CIVIL DESIGN LEAD I Provided 
horizontal control, pipe design and relocations. 

WASTEWATER RECLAMATION FACILITY CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, HI-DESERT WATER 
DISTRICT, YUCCA VALLEY, CA I CIVIL DESIGN LEAD I Provided horizontal control, paving, grading 

and drainage and yard piping design. 

WELL NO. 41 WELLHEAD TREATMENT PROJECT, ONTARIO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES COMPANY, 
ONTARIO, CA I DESIGN ENGINEER I Provided design engineering and bid support services for t he 
Well No. 41 Wellhead Treatment Project. The project included a 2,350 gpm ion exchange perchlorate 
treatment facility, new chlorine building for on-site generation of sodium hypochlorite (relocation of 
existing OSG system from Well No. 41 build ing), associated site improvements, approximately 1,300 
LF of 16-inch diameter CML&C groundwater supply pipeline, 200 LF of 16-inch diameter CML&C 
treated water pipeline, and 300 LF of 18-inch diameter RCP storm drain. The ion exchange 
treatment process includes two pre-filters, four 12-foot diameter ion exchange treatment vessels 
(two trains in lead-lag configuration), along with flow metering, and controls. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 213 of 443



Jeffrey R. Mohr, P.E., C.E.M 

Electrical and Instrumentation & Controls 

Education 
BS, Electrical Engineering, California Polytechnic 

State University, 1998 

Registrations 
Professional Electrical Engineer, California (18977) 
Professional Engineer, Colorado (PE.0049941); 

North Dakota (PE-9513) 
Professional Electrical Engineer, 

Alaska (AELE13776); New Mexico (22963); 

Professional Summary 

Nevada (022088); Oregon (8597 4PE); 
Texas (119554); Washington (4875); 

Memberships/ Affiliations 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers 

(IEEE) 
Certified Energy Manager (AEE) 

Years of Experience 
19 years 

Jeff Mohr has over 19 years of experience in the design and construction administration of power, 
control, and instrumentation systems for various water and wastewater projects. His designs have 
included low- and medium-voltage power generation and distribution systems, variable frequency 
drives, indoor and outdoor lighting, solid state power system monitoring and protection, hardwired 
relay and programmable logic controller (PLC) control systems, and various data acquisition and 
other instrumentation systems. Jeff has managed several large electrica l generator installation 
projects and electrical equipment replacements on existing facilities, while maintaining continuous 
operation during the construction process, improving electrical safety and optimizing existing 
faci lities to save construction costs. 

Relevant Project Experience 

PURE WATER MONTEREY - GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT, GWR INJECTION WELL FACILITIES, 
ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION, MONTEREY ONE WATER, MONTEREY, CA I 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Project responsibi lities included assisting the team with Engineering 
Services During Construction and helped coordinate the incoming electric utility service with Pacific 
Gas and Electric (PG&E). The AWTF facility was designed to receive two power feeds through its 21kV 
Main-Tie-Main switchgear. To meet construction schedules, the 21kV primary service was 
coordinated with PG&E. The design of the alternate 21kV power supply from Waste management 
District is currently being finalized and coordinated with PG&E. The final power distribution 
arrangement will provide the client with a reliable power distribution system while optimizing energy 
usage costs. 

CHERRY WILLOW RECYCLED WATER TANK FINAL DESIGN, SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER 
AGENCY, SANTA CLARITA, CA I LEAD ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Design of an electrical distribution 
system to support the construction of two recycled water tanks, associated seismic valve controllers 
and area site lighting and receptacles. Coordinated with SCE to ensure incoming utility modifications 
were brought to the site. 

LIFT STATION 1 REPLACEMENT, RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, BONSALL, CA I LEAD 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Assisting junior engineers in the design of lift station replacement project. 
Project includes a 50kW optional standby power generator to back up necessarily facility equipment 
and maintain operation of the lift station. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 214 of 443



Jeffrey R. Mohr. P.E. 
Page 2 

PLEASANT GROVE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION, CITY OF ROSEVILLE, 
ROSEVILLE, CA I CHIEF ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Responsibilities included performing quality 
review of design-assist documents for plant modifications to construct primary clarifier and 
associated pumping, solids thickening facilities, rehab of a WAS holding tank to centrate storage 
tank, digester facilities and a waste gas burner. The electrical work included modifications to an 
existing 48OV metal clad switchgear, new 48OV motor control centers, 48O-12O/2O8V step-down 
transformers and 12O/2O8V panelboards. 

SAN JOSE-SANTA CLARA REGIONAL WASTEWATER FACILITY FILTER REHABILITATION, CITY OF 
SAN JOSE, WATER POLLUTION CONTROL, SAN JOSE, CA I ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Project 
responsibilities included review of existing design documents for the upgrading of 16 filters and 
associated electrical infrastructure. Will provide quality analysis and control throughout the duration 
of design to ensure project constructabil ity and help optimize project costs. 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO WWTP REDUNDANCY PROJECT, SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY, 
OCEANO, CA I ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Project responsibilities included review of existing design 
documents for the installation of both medium and low-voltage electrical distribution system for the 
operation of groundwater injection wells and future facility booster pumps. Jeff will be providing 
quality analysis and control throughout the duration of design to ensure project constructability and 
help optimize electrical equipment layout and project costs. 

PROJECT 716 DUAL MEDIA FILTERS PHASES 3 & 4, CLARK COUNTRY WATER RECLAMATION 
DISTRICT, LAS VEGAS, NV I LEAD ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Served as the lead electrical engineer 
for the design of expanded tertiary facilities for Clark Country Water Reclamation District. Project 
included the expansion/addition of granular media filters, a new filter influent pump station, retrofit 
of existing UV disinfection technology, and retrofit of other existing ancillary facilities. Tasks included 
bringing in two new utility services to a double-ended 12.47kV-48O/277V unit substation. Unit 
substation was equipped with differential relay protection to limit arc flash hazard levels. Other 
project tasks included design and preparation of single line diagrams for both medium and low 
voltage distribution systems, electrical motor control schematics, uninterruptible power supply 
system, and interfaces with PA, telephone communication, site security and fire alarm systems. 

GREEN RIVER WATER TREATMENT PLANT, TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES, TACOMA, WA I LEAD 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEER I Served as the lead electrical engineer in the construction management of 
the filtration faci lities expansion for the Green River Water Treatment Plant. Work included 
modifications to the 12.47 kV primary electrical system to loop feed power around the site and 
interface with a new optional standby 12.47 kV paralleling diesel engine generator system. Remote 
operating panels were designed for the primary generator system to reduce arc flash hazards and 
promote safety for plant personnel. Other project details included the design of aeration and final 
sedimentation facilities, filters, new chemica l systems and modifications to existing chemical 
systems, solids handling facilities, including thickeners and dewatering, two clearwells, and a 

finished water pump station. 

FULTON PUMP STATION, PORTLAND WATER BUREAU, PORTLAND, OR I LEAD ELECTRICAL 
ENGINEER I Served as the lead electrical engineer for the Fulton Pump Station Replacement Project. 
The pump station was designed to supply 18 mgd as a reliable means to supply to Burlingame 
Service Area. Project tasks included utility coordination with the electrical provider (PGE), 
development of site plans, single line diagrams, equipment elevations, control schematics, 
panel board and luminaire schedules, power, control and signal plans, and lighting, receptacle and 

grounding plans for the pump station. 

I Kennedy Jenks 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 215 of 443



ENGINEERING 

PROFESSIONAL CIVIL ENGINEERING & LAND SURVEYING 

January, 2018 

ROBERT G. MARTINEZ, P.E., P.L.S. President 

EDUCATION 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE Degree in Civil Engineering (Survey Minor) 
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona - June 1989 

EMPLOYMENT 

ON-LINE Engineering - Pasadena, West Covina, CA January '94 - Present 

ASL Consulting Engineers - Pasadena, CA September '95 - December '99 

So. Calif. Gas Company - Los Angeles, CA July '95 - September '95 

Morsch Engineering Company - Altadena, CA July '83 - July '95 

EXPERIENCE 

Gas Co. As-Built and Completion Surveys, Grading/Drainage Plans, Street Plans, Storm 
Drain Plans, Utility Plans, Demo Plans, Hydrology/Hydraulic Analysis & Reports, 
General/Specific Plan Studies, Specifications, Proposals, Subdivisions, A. L. T.A. Surveys, 
Records of Surveys, Corner Records, Boundary & Topographic Surveys, Reservoir surveys 
for MWD, and various Municipalities, including: Beverly Hills, Pasadena, Los Angeles, GPS 
surveys, Boundary Analysis, Legal Descriptions, Mapping/Exhibits, Calculations, Survey 
Coordination, Field Crew Party Chief, Manual & CAD Drafting, Project Management, Client 
Relations & Consultations, Presentations, Proposals, Research, Processing, Training & 
Supervision of Co-workers. 

REGISTRATIONS 

Professional Land Surveyor: Registration No. L6966 (EXP. 9-30-19) 

Professional Engineer: Registration No. C54360 (EXP. 12-31 -19) 

908 Waverly Place * West Covina, CA 91790 * 626.791.3980 
Email: o/engr@earthlink.net 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 216 of 443



Hashmi Quazi, PhD, PE, GE 
Principal-in-Charge / Project Director 

Dr. Quazi has over 31 years of experience providing geotechnical 
engineering services and has earned a reputation for providing 
quality work in an honest and ethical manner, on time and within 
budget. Dr. Quazi provides quality control, budget oversight, and 
technical assistance on various types of projects, including 
pipelines, water treatment plants, wells, reservoirs, booster pump 
station and other related projects. 

Relevant Experience 

Mojave Water Agency R3 Pipeline, San Bernardino County, 
CA Principal in Charge. Provided technical and budget 
oversight, resource allocation and contract management for the 
geotechnical investigation. The project involved 1 O miles of 
proposed Phase 1 Water Conveyance pipeline, utilizing 
trenchless crossings under BNSF railroad tracks, under 
Interstate 15 along Mesa Street, and under Highway 395 at 
Mesa Street. The project also included proposed Turnout 
Structure Nos. 6 and 7 to be located at Mesa View Drive in the 
City of Victorville, & proposed steel reservoir and pump station 
in the City of Hesperia. 

The Mojave River Pipeline - Reach 4A, San Bernardino County, 

EDUCATION 

• Ph.D., Civil Engineering, University 
of Arizona, 1987 

• M.S., Civil Engineering, Arizona 
State University, 1982 

• B.S., Bangladesh Engineering 
University, 1978 

REGISTRATIONS/CERTIFICATIONS 

• California, Civil Engineer, #46651 
• California, Geotechnical Engineer, 

#2517 

CA Principal in Charge. Provided technical and budget oversight, resource allocation and 
contract management for the geotechnical investigation, observation and testing. The project 
consisted of the design and construction of approximately 30,620 linear feet of 24-inch diameter raw 
water pipeline located in an unincorporated area in the County of San Bernardino, north of the City 
of Barstow, California. 

WDl-1 & WDl-2 Pump Station, Victorville, CA. Principal in Charge. Provided technical and 
budget oversight, resource allocation, and contract management for the geotechnical 
investigation. The project consisted of the construction of the WDl-1 & WDl-2 Pump Station in 
Victorville, CA. It will be an approximately 30' x 30' masonry block wall building with slab-on
grade. There will be piping running from the pump station to connect in the street and stub south 
of Sycamore Street for future extension. 

Morongo Basin Water Pipeline Project, Mojave Water Agency, High Desert Area, CA. Principal 
in Charge. Provided technical and budget oversight, resource allocation and contract management 
for the geotechnical investigation. The project consisted of 70 miles of pipeline, a turnout structure, 
pump stations, and water reservoirs. 

2.5 MG Tank & Pump Station, Hesperia, CA. Principal in Charge. Provided technical oversight 
and budget control for the geotechnical investigation. The project consisted of the design and 
construction of a 2.5 MG water tank, pump station, and associated pipelines and appurtenances 
located at 13500 Live Oak Street, Hesperia, CA. The proposed water tank diameter was 115 feet 
with a height of 30 feet and was constructed at-grade with a 4-foot-wide by 2.5-foot-deep ring wall 
foundation. A second future water tank is proposed with a footprint of 25 feet by 50 feet. The 
building was a one-story masonry block wall structure founded on shallow footings with a slab
on-grade. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 217 of 443



Zahangir Alam, PhD, EIT 
Senior Staff Engineer/ Project Manager 

Mr. Burnham has 6 years of experience which includes 
geotechnical investigations, fault studies, rock slope stability, 
landslide investigation, rock rippability assessment, liquefaction 
mitigation, and geotechnical monitoring of grading, including many 
hillside and hard rock sites. Mr. Burnham's organization and focus 
enables him to effectively coordinate projects in the field and 
oversee professional and field staff on their projects. 

Relevant Experience 

OMUC Water Main Replacement, Ontario, CA. Project Geologist. 
Managed fieldwork and paperwork for the geological investigation 
for the project. The project consists of 9,000 linear feet of 8-inch and 
12-inch diameter pipeline at various locations in the Ontario, 
California. The pipelines will be located along Euclid Avenue, Main 
Street, Transit Street, "C" Street, 5th Street and College Way. 
Converse drilled borings in previous years in or in the close vicinity of 
these streets and recently for the Euclid Recycled Water Pipeline. 

IEUA Baseline Pipeline Extension, Fontana, CA. Senior Staff 
Engineer. Managed fieldwork and paperwork and prepared reports 
for the project. during the design phase. The project consisted of 
extending approximately 8,200 linear feet of 24 inch diameter 
recycled water pipeline on Baseline Avenue to Cherry Avenue in 

E DUCATION 

• Ph.D., Geotechnical Engineering, 
University of Texas at Arlington, 
2016 

• B.S., Bangladesh University of 
Engineering and Technology, 2009 

CERTIFICATIONS 

• EIT No. 138566, State Board of 
Licensure for Professional 
Engineers and Surveyors, 
California 

Fontana, California. 4,500 linear feet was run along Baseline Avenue and 3,700 linear feet was 
run along Heritage Circle. The pipeline was located in the IEUA 1630 Pressure Zone. 

Hemlock & Redlands Booster Pump Station & Pipeline, Redlands, CA. Senior Staff Engineer. 
Managed fieldwork and paperwork and prepared the geotechnical investigation. The project 
included the installation of 3,000 gpm capacity vertical pump cans, a 30 foot x 20 foot control and 
equipment building, and a 1,400 l.f. of pipeline exiting the new booster pump station (BPS) site and 
running north along Redlands Boulevard in Moreno Valley, California. The pipeline was 24 inches 
in diameter with an invert depth of approximately 6 to 8 feet bgs. Open cut and cover technique 
was used to install the pipeline. 

Magnolia Avenue Techite Pipeline and Pump Station, Riverside, CA. Senior Staff Engineer. 
Managed fieldwork and paperwork and prepared reports for the project. The project consists of 
the installing approximately 3,920 linear feet of 36-inch CML&C steel water pipe along the 
southern barrel on Magnolia Avenue from Hughes Alley to Polk and installing approximately 1,620 
linear feet of 36-inch CML&C steel water pipe along the southern barrel on Magnolia Avenue from 
Polk Street to Park Sierra Drive. The pipes will be installed using the cut and cover technique. It 
will have 5 feet of soil cover. 

Chromium 6 Treatment Facilities Well Sites, Coachella Valley, CA. Senior Staff Engineer. 
Managed fieldwork and paperwork and prepared the geotechnical investigation. The Chromium 6 
Treatment Facilities project consisted of several components within 30 well sites in various 
locations in Coachella Valley, California. Those sites included 5 well sites with no treatment 
facilities, 23 sites with strong base anion (SBA) and 2 well sites with weak base anion (WBA) 
treatment facilities, approximately 52,350 linear feet of raw and finished water pipelines, and a 
Central Resin Regeneration Facility (CRRF). 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 218 of 443



Tom Dodson, Tom Dodson & Associates 

Title 

President / 
Environmental Specialist 

Education 

M.A .. Geography. University of 
Cal ifornia, Berkeley. 1973 

B.A.. Geography. University of 
California Berkeley, 1968 

Experience 

30+ years 

Summary 
Tom Dodson is the President of Tom Dodson and Associates, an 
environmental consulting firm in San Bernardino, California. He has more 
than 40 years of experience in land use planning, and environmental and 
resource management, with special expertise in CEQA, NEPA, regulatory 
compliance, expert witness testimony and communication/facilitation for 
resolution of environmental issues. He personally prepares environmental 
documentation for a broad variety of projects and acts as a resource person 
in working with clients, governmental agencies, and decision-makers in 
finding solutions to complex problems. He negotiates with regulators at the 
federal, state and local level, and designs formal presentations to 
committees. 

Mr. Dodson has served as a facilitator in resolving environmental issues for 
severa l agencies, including the Bureau of Land Management, San 
Bernardino County, City of San Bernardino, and other agencies. Mr. 
Dodson also provides expert witness testimony on land use and 
environmental issues on a variety of court cases, primarily in CEQA 
litigation, takings, land use and regulatory cases. He serves as program 
manager on most projects undertaken by the firm and maintains c lose 
contacts with subconsultants and specialists who can provide technical 
information, as needed, in a timely manner. Mr. Dodson also serves as the 
environmental advisor/consultant to the San Bernardino County Local 
Agency Formation Commission, San Bernardino international Airport 
Authority, Inland Valley Development Agency, Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency, cities of Murrieta and El Monte, and severa l other agencies. 

Relevant Experience 
Negotiation of Stream Alteration Agreements and Section 404 Permits 
Since 1988 M r. Dodson has been involved in more than 20 projects that 
required acquisition of Stream Alteration Agreements from the State 
Department of Fish and Wildlife and Section 404 Permits from the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers. This includes several permits in Big Bear Valley, 
along the Santa Ana River and its tributaries, and southern Californ ia in 
genera l. 

City of San Bernardino, Various CEQA/NEPA Documents 
Over the past four years, TDA has prepared environmenta l documents to 
comply with both the California Environmental Quality Act and National 
Environmental Policy Act for a variety of City projects. These proj ects 
include: Orange Show Road Extension, involving two bridges, one over 
Twin Creek and the other over the Santa Ana River; the downtown movie 
theater sponsored by the City Economic Development Agency (EDA); 
installation of sewer lines along Cajon Boulevard for the C ity EDA; and 
most recently, several demo lition projects, also initiated and carried out by 
the EDA. All of these documents have been successful in accomplishing 
full compliance with both CEQA and NEPA and other regulatory 
requirements, such as Corps of Engineers and endangered species permits. 

1 of 2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 219 of 443



Tom Dodson, Tom Dodson & Associates 

Inland Valley Development Agency {IVDA)/San Bernardino International Airport Authority {SBIAA) 
(1992-Present) 
Environmental manager for the IVDA and SBIAA in their role as the redevelopment and reuse agency for 
Norton Air Force Base located in San Bernardino, California. Assisted the Air Force in completing its first 
and only air conformity determination for reuse of a c losing military base. The analysis was used in 
presentations to the federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to revise the Confonnity Regulations 
to exclude transfers of military bases from conformity findings. TOA has been involved in every facet of 
base closure, working closely with the Air Force Base Closure Agency (AFBCA) at Norton and in 
Washington D.C. to complete the Final EIS and issue the Record of Decision. This support effort includes 
endangered species management programs at the former Base and consultations with the State and Federal 
government under endangered species laws. 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency {IEUA, 1999-Present) 
As environmental consultant to the IEUA, TOA prepared the Program EIR for the Optimum Basin 
Management Program which evaluated the whole program that is proposed to be implemented to remove 
groundwater contamination from the Chino Basin. This EIR was prepared to meet court mandated 
deadlines and was certified in a timely manner by the IEUA. TOA has continued consulting with rEUA 
and recently completed a Program EIR for IEUA Facilities Masters Plans, which examined the long-term 
implementation of wastewater, recycled water and organic waste management programs. TOA is currently 
working with ASL/Tetra Tech to implement a major expansion in the organic composting operations 
currently being carried out by IEUA as part of the Chino Basin groundwater aquifer remediation. Site 
selection, due diligence, and CEQA documentation are part of the tasks that TOA has assisted with on this 

project. 

SCRRA/Metrolink Projects (2008-Present) 
Tom Dodson & Associates has worked through several different engineering firms over the past ten years 
with SCRRA/Metrolink. During this period, TOA perfonned more than 15 specific jobs/projects with 
SCRRA/Metrolink to support both NEPA and CEQA compliance. The largest of these projects was the 
compilation of an environmental data base for Positive Train Control (PTC) for each of the Metrolink 
Subdivisions. Each of these projects have been successfully implemented (except for the most current 
project, San Juan Creek Bridge Replacement Project). 

2 of 2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 220 of 443



Steven ltagaki, PE, TE, PTOE 
Task Manager -Highways/Traffic 

: : JMD 

Title 

Project Manager 

Years of Experience 

28 

Registration 

• Registered Professional 
Engineer, CA, #C67470 

• Registered Traffic Engineer, 
CA, #TR2394 

• Professional Traffic Operations 
Engineer, #2156 

Education 

B.S., Civil Engineering, 1991, 
California State Polytechnic 
University, Pomona 

Affiliations 

• American Society of Civil 
Engineers 

• Institute of Transportation 
Engineers 

: : JMC 

Qualifications 
With over 28 years of civil engineering experience as a Project Manager, Steve 
has worked on a variety of civil, highway, traffic, rail, and transit engineering 
projects for client cities, outside agencies, private sectors and California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans). Steve has been responsible for 
managing and preparing plans, specifications and estimates for traffic signal, 
street lighting, signing, striping and traffic control projects utilizing AutoCAD with 
AutoTurn, Microstation, and Lighting Programs AGl32 and Visual. His 
experience also includes traffic studies and reports utilizing the Highway 
Capacity Software {HCS), Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU), Synchro, and 
SPEEDPLOT. 

Mr. ltagaki has a thorough proficiency in current Caltrans standards and 
procedures, traffic engineering modeling and methodologies, County of Los 
Angeles traffic standards and methodologies, and the State of California 
Vehicle Code. 

Relevant Experience 
Traffic Control 

Site Specific Traffic Control Plans - City of Walnut Valley Water District 
Served as Lead Design Engineer responsible for preparing traffic control plans 
for the short- and long-term maintenance of valves and regulating stations at 
29 arterial intersections. The intersections resided in the jurisdictional agencies 
of the Cities of Walnut, Diamond Bar, Industry, Los Angeles County, and 
Caltrans. Each plan included an inventoried list of traffic control equipment 
required for proper delineation and not only designed for clear and sunny 
weather conditions but also for adverse weather conditions as well. The scope 
of work included in this task was a traffic report which reviewed the agencies' 
current traffic control device inventory and recommendations to correct 
deficiencies or enhance equipment to meet current standards. The report also 
included assumptions, analyses made, results, conclusions, recommendations, 
and an executive summary of this project. 

English Canyon Trunk Sewer - City of Santa Margarita Water District 
Served as Lead Design Engineer responsible for preparing traffic control plans 
for the installation of approximately 7,600 feet of sewer lines through the Cities 
of Lake Forest and Mission Viejo. The installation of this line impacted four (4) 
lanes of traffic through major intersections and was staged to minimize traffic 
interruptions. 

Flight Avenue TCP (Planes of Fame) - City of Chino 
Served as Lead Traffic Engineer responsible for providing engineering services 
for the temporary closure of Flight Road from Merrill Avenue to Kimball Avenue. 
The scope of work included preparing a final traffic control design plan for the 
Planes of Fame Air Museum's annual airshow. 

S. ltagaki, p. 1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 221 of 443



SR-60/Azusa Avenue Roadway Improvements - City of Industry 
Served as Project Manager responsible for developing roadway and traffic control plans on Azusa Avenue at State 
Route 60. The scope of work included sidewalk improvements, utility modifications, and pavement overlays as well as 
close coordination with Caltrans and the City of Industry. The traffic signals along Azusa Avenue required careful 
coordination of roadway improvements. All improvements were designed to meet ADA requirements. 

On Call Traffic Engineering Services - City of Desert Hot Springs (c/o Glenmorra Consultants) 
Served as Project Manager responsible for providing on call traffic engineering in support of various capital 
improvement projects in design or construction throughout the City. The projects included roadway, signing, striping, 
traffic signals, street lighting, and traffic control improvements. 

Valley Boulevard/Grand Avenue Traffic Control - City of Industry (c/o CNC Engineering) 
Served as Project Engineer responsible for providing traffic control services for the impacted intersection of Valley 
Boulevard and Grand Avenue. Tasks also involved performing site visits during the various stages of construction and 
recommendations on traffic control adjustments. 

SR-60/Azusa Avenue Roadway Improvements - City of Industry (c/o CNC Engineering) 
Served as Project Engineer responsible for developing roadway and traffic control plans on Azusa Avenue at State 
Route 60. The project included sidewalk improvements, utility modifications, and pavement overlays as well as close 
coordination with Caltrans and the City of Industry. The Traffic signals along Azusa Avenue required careful 
coordination of roadway improvements. All improvements are designed to meet ADA requirements. 

On Call Traffic Engineering Services - City of Desert Hot Springs (c/o Glenmorra Consultants) 
Served as Project Engineer responsible for providing on call traffic engineering to the City of Desert Hot Springs, in 
support of various capital improvement projects currently in design or construction throughout the City. The projects 
included roadway, signing, striping, traffic signals, street lighting, and traffic control improvements. 

City Engineering Services - City of Industry 
Served as City Traffic Engineer responsible for providing City engineering services to the City of Industry. Services 
included permitting, plan checking, and inspection as well as the preparation of studies and design plans for roadway, 
traffic signal, railroad crossing, and rail/highway grade separation projects. 

SR-60/Crossroads Parkway North Traffic Control - City of Industry 
Served as Lead Design Engineer responsible for providing engineering services for the proposed street improvements 
at the on and off-ramps of State Route 60 (SR-60) and Crossroads Parkway North. The project included traffic control 
design, review of the existing signing and striping conditions, as well as timely coordination with Caltrans. Various 
construction stages were developed to maintain access to SR-60 and major business in the area. 

Oxnard Transportation Center- East Fourth Street Parking Lot- City of Oxnard 
Served as Project Engineer responsible for providing engineering services to plans, specifications, and estimate 
(PS&E) for the proposed improvements at the Oxnard Transportation Center's East Fourth Street Parking Lot in the 
City of Oxnard. The project included surveying and mapping, signing and striping, grading, drainage, lighting, 
landscaping, irrigation, geotechnical analysis, and traffic control as well as timely coordination with Caltrans and the 
City of Oxnard. 

Buena Vista Street - City of Burbank 
Served as Design Engineer responsible for the preparation of traffic control plans for this State Route 134 off-ramp. 
The project required detouring traffic for the construction of ramp widening. Pedestrian detours were also required 
within the construction area. 

Pacific Coast Highway - City of Long Beach 
Served as Design Engineer responsible for the preparation of traffic control plans for the installation of a storm drain 
along this state route. Due to the construction staging of this project, traffic was diverted in three separate phases in 
order to maintain traffic progression and ease of the construction. 

:: JMC S. ltagaki, p. 2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 222 of 443



----nuv1s 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITEC TU RE 

Principal 

With NUVIS 
since 1978 

Licensure: 
CA 1997 

Education 
BSLA California State 

Polytechnic University, 
Pomona 1978 

-&.9- ® ,,; -8\ _@ i§ 

.(~ 
@ '@ '-" '"" 

iOUTHSTAlEClOU.EGElll\10 ~ A _::,_ 
7 ___, 

CA 1891 . NV 396 

TOM MUNOZ, PLA 

With decades of on-call experience w ith the City of Los Angeles, County 
of Los Angeles, Port of Los Angeles, and many other public agencies, Tom 
shares his talents and passion for our profession as a volunteer vice-president 
of the Corona Historic Preservation Society, volunteer vice-president for the 
City of Corona Partners for Parks Foundation, volunteer with the Boy Scouts 
and participant in local California Park and Recreation Society Programs. His 
emphasis is in water-wise public- and private-oriented park/recreation planning 
and urban design projects. As a Project Manager on many of NUVIS' public 
agency projects; client relations, technical direction of construction documents, 
and multi-team/agency coordination are his notable strengths. 

Professional Affiliations 
California Park and Recreation Society 
Corona Partners Foundation (CPF) for Parks and Recretation 
Corona Historic Preservation Society (CHPS) 
Boy Scouts of America, Assistant Scout Master, 1997 National Jamboree 

Recognition 
2015 CMAA Project Achievement Award, Berth 200 Rail Yard & Roadway, San Pedro, CA 
2008 APWA Project of the Year, Parks & Recreation, Hesperia Civic Plaza Pk, Hesperia, CA 
2006 WCCC Distinguished Project, Honorable Mention, LA Riverfront Park, Studio City, CA 
2005 City of Los Angeles Certificate of Commendation, LA Riverfront Park, Studio City, CA 
2004 CPRS Award of Excellence, Central Park Sports Complex, Huntington Beach, CA 
2004 So Cal Municip. Athletic Fed., Central Park Sports Complex, Huntington Beach, CA 

Berth 200 Rail Yard & Field Office 
Port of Los Angeles, San Pedro, CA 
Tom served as project manager on the renovation of an existing roil yard and field 
office including accent pottery, low water use plantings, hihg-efficiency irrigation 
system, decorative concrete walkways, California Coastal Trail improvements, fountain 
plaza, fencing, vehicular gate, flagpole, benches, pilasters, and p laza seat wall. CMAA 
Southern California Chapter 2015 Project Achievement Award. Dates: 2009-2014 

Newhope-Placentia Median Landscape 
Lee & Ro, Inc. for the Orange County Sanitation District, Fullerton & Anaheim, CA 
Tom provided project management for design development and construction 
documents on 4-miles of median landscape along State College Blvd. as part of on $80 
million trunk sewer replacement project with high-efficiency subsurface drip irrigation and 
new low water use planting. Stakeholders include the cities of Fullerton and Anaheim, 
Caltrans, CSU Fullerton, USACE, and Anaheim Stadium. Dates: 2016- on-going 

Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility 
CDM Smith for Inland Empire Utility Agency, Chino, CA 
Tom serves as project manager for planting and irrigation to replace landscape disturbed 
during the renovation of the facility. Scope of services also includes replacing dead/ 
dying trees within the project site, governmental agency coordination, preliminary 
landscape plans, PS&E, and professional services during bid and construction phases. 

Hermosa Beach Parking Lot D Improvements 
Adam Streeter Engineers for the City of Hermosa Beach, CA 
Tom serves as project manager for project includes redesign of a small municipal parking 
lot that is in disrepair to be a multi-benefit demonstration project that includes ADA 
improvements, enhanced lighting and electrical upgrades, a bicycle corral, electric 
vehicle c harging stations, storm water capture and retention, and drought tolerant 
landscaping. Designs will address the sidewalk, curb and gutter as well as assess the 
parking lot layout and surrounding on-street parking spaces to maximize parking potential 
in the parking lot. Scope of services includes preliminary design, PS&E, professional services 
during bid and construction and governmental agency coordination. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 223 of 443



David J. De Pinto 
Partner/CEO 

DffiC 

DEPINTO MORALES 
COMMUN I CATIONS . INC 

De Pinto Morales Communications, Inc. 

Dave is a founding partner of De Pinto Morales Communications, Inc. (DMCI}, a firm specializing in 
environmental issues management, water education projects, crisis communications, public education and 
outreach campaigns, stakeholder relations, media relations, public affairs, and ethnic/community marketing. 
Dave is most notably a senior marketing and corporate communications strategist, with extensive experience 
implementing grassroots public education and outreach campaigns campaigns for controversial/complex 
environmental projects in both the public and private sectors. Geographically, Dave has implemented such 
campaigns focused in the northeast San Fernando Valley, the San Gabriel Valley, the City of Los Angeles and 
throughout the State of California. Dave has worked extensively with attorneys, engineers and operations 
staff for a wide variety of business and government enterprises, including highly sensitive and 
confidential matters. 

Dave's industry specialties include water supply, water quality, food, beverage, hospitality, 
transportation, solid waste/recycling, hazardous waste, air quality, land use, oil and gas, and 
environmental services sectors. As DMCI expanded its water policy practice, Dave has directed several 
regional public education campaigns promoting the benefits of water conservation, water quality and 
recycled water for clients such as the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, Upper San Gabriel 
Valley Municipal Water District, San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority and Main San Gabriel Basin 
Watermaster. Dave originated the plans for the 2012, 2013, 2014, 2016 and 2018 San Gabriel Valley 
Water Forums, which have become a "must attend" community leader event in the San Gabriel Valley. 

Due to his campaign, business management and community leadership experience, Dave possesses intimate 
knowledge of and sensitivity to communities and their cultures in the northeast San Fernando Valley, the San 
Gabriel Valley and throughout California. As volunteer president of the largest homeowner association in the 
City of Los Angeles, Dave has unique insights and capabilities related to facilitating community discourse on 
controversial issues and development projects involving counties and municipalities, water districts, school 
districts and non-profit organizations. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 224 of 443



Prior to founding his own firm in June 2001 along with long-time business associate Bob Morales, Dave 
was President and Chief Executive Officer for San Diego-based Stoorza Communications, a leading 
independent public relations consulting company in California. Dave was a member of the firm' s board 
of directors and directed the management, staff and operations of the company's diverse practice areas 
and offices in San Diego, Los Angeles, Sacramento, Riverside and Fresno. The firm had annual revenue in 

excess of $10 million during his tenure, with nearly 100 employees. 

From 1994-1999, Dave was a global partner for Ketchum Public Relations and was general 
manager/director of the company's Los Angeles, Riverside and Sacramento offices. Dave also served as 
executive vice president of Pacific/West Communications Group, a Los Ange les-based issues 

management and public relations firm . 

Dave's corporate background includes serving as director of marketing, public relations and public 
affairs for Coca-Cola Bottling Company of Los Angeles (CCLA), the nation's largest soft drink bottler, 
which also owned Arrowhead Water. He achieved a distinguished record of marketing innovation, sales 
growth and community leadership in both general and ethnic markets for Coca-Cola. Dave also was 
integrally involved with Coca-Cola's sponsorship of the 1984 Olympics in Los Angeles, and directed Coca
Cola's marketing partnerships with theme parks, sports and entertainment venues, professional sports 
franchises, major sporting events, and major universities throughout Southern California. 

Dave has received numerous professional awards and recognition, including two Public Relations Society 
of America's (PRSA) prestigious Si lver Anvil Awards for public relations campaigns on behalf of his 
clients, the 1996 Olympic Games Torch Re lay and Knotts Berry Farm Theme Park. Dave received his 
M.B.A. from the University of Southern California, and his B.A. degree from Brown University, majoring 

in Political Science and Economics. 

Dave is a member of and serves on a variety of volunteer civic and community boards of directors and 
committees, including the Shadow Hills Property Owners' Association, S.A.F.E. Coalition and Oakmont 
Country Club. Dave is married with two children. Since 2014, Dave has voluntarily spearheaded creation 
of and advocacy by the S.A.F.E. Coalition, a northeast San Fernando Valley based coalition of community 
leaders opposed to the high speed train project and the negative impacts it w ill create for residents and 

businesses in the northeast San Fernando Valley. 

Employment Background 

• 2001-Present De Pinto Morales Communications Inc. 

Partner/CEO 

• 1999-2001 Stoorza Communications 
President & CEO 

• 1994-1999 Ketchum Public Relations 
International Partner & General Manager 

• 1989-1994 Pacific/West Communications Group 
Executive Vice President 

• 1984-1989 Coca-Cola Bottling Company of Los Angeles 
Director, Marketing and Public Relations 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 225 of 443



CONTRACT NO. 1912(a) 

2020 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(John Robinson Consulting Incorporated (John Robinson Consulting) - Upper Reservoir 
Replacement Engineering Design Services) 

THIS 2020 FIRST AMENDMENT (“First Amendment”) to that certain agreement entitled 
“Professional Services Agreement – John Robinson Consulting Incorporated (John Robinson 
Consulting) - Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design Services” originally executed 17th day 
of June, 2019 by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation and general 
law city (“CITY”) and JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING,  a California corporation (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT” is made and entered into this 5th day of October, 2020 (“Effective Date”).  For 
purposes of this First Amendment, the capitalized term “Parties” shall be a collective reference to both 
CITY and CONSULTANT.  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to either CITY or CONSULTANT 
interchangeably as appropriate.    

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed and entered into an employment agreement dated June 17, 2019 and 
entitled “Professional Services Agreement – John Robinson Consulting Incorporated (John Robinson 
Consulting) - Upper Reservoir Replacement Engineering Design Services”, Contract No. 1912 
(hereinafter, the “Master Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to modify the Master Agreement further for purposes of modifying 
the Master Agreement’s compensation terms; and 

WHEREAS, execution of this First Amendment was approved by the San Fernando City Council (“City 
Council”) at its Regular Meeting of October 5, 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to 
be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Not-to-Exceed Sum as defined under Section 1.3 of the Master Agreement is hereby 
amended to mean and refer to the sum of Five Hundred and Forty-Five Thousand, Three Hundred and 
Forty-Five Dollars ($545,345.00).  

SECTION 2. Notwithstanding anything in the Master Agreement or the First Amendment to the 
contrary, CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services 
in accordance with the performance scheduled entitled “Additional Scope of Services” which is 
attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit “A”).  

SECTION 3.    Except as otherwise set forth in this First Amendment, the Master Agreement shall 
remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect.  The provisions of this First Amendment shall 
be deemed a part of the Master Agreement and except as otherwise provided under this First 
Amendment, the Master Agreement and all provisions contained therein shall remain binding and 
enforceable.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this First 
Amendment and the provisions of the Master Agreement, the provisions of this First Amendment shall 
govern and control, but only in so far as such provisions conflict with the Master Agreement and no 
further.  

,7190436Ā-6:25782Ā/,(Ā" &)%).,Ȁ*+-!Ȁ$#,+Ȁ)+,,Ȁ.*&+#$&',###
ATTACHMENT "C"January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 226 of 443



CONTRACT NO. 1912(a) 

2 
 

 
SECTION 4. The Master Agreement as amended by way of this First Amendment, constitutes the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters addressed 
herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into 
between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this First Amendment.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party which are not embodied 
herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, modification or supplement to the Master Agreement 
as amended by this First Amendment shall be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by 
the Parties in the form of a written contract amendment.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to be executed on 
the day and year first appearing above. 
  

,7190436Ā-6:25782Ā/,(Ā" &)%).,Ȁ*+-!Ȁ$#,+Ȁ)+,,Ȁ.*&+#$&',###
January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 227 of 443



CONTRACT NO. 1912(a) 

3 
 

 
CITY: 
 
City of San Fernando 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
         Joel Fajardo 
         Mayor 
 
Date:_________________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 
Name:________________________________ 
 
Title:_________________________________ 
 
Date:       
 

  CONSULTANT 
 
John Robinson Consulting 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
       
Name:___________________________ 
 
Title:____________________________ 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 
 

 
  

,7190436Ā-6:25782Ā/,(Ā" &)%).,Ȁ*+-!Ȁ$#,+Ȁ)+,,Ȁ.*&+#$&',###
January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 228 of 443



CONTRACT NO. 1912(a) 

4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Additional Scope of Services 
 

 
Task 1.2 – Geotechnical Investigation – Converse Consultants, based on the draft geotechnical 
investigation report, is required to complete extra evaluation, engineering analysis, and drafting. 
 
Task 1.3 – Utility Research and Task 2.1 – 60% Design Documents (Civil Discipline) – Kennedy/Jenks, 
based on the direction on the draft preliminary design report, are adding effort to accommodate the following 
design changes: 
 

• Addition of piping modifications at the Hubbard pump station site including two (2) new civil 
sheets, one civil plan, based on additional survey to be provided by the surveyor, and one new 
additional set of details for the piping connections at that location.  
• Add site lighting attached to both tanks using LED lights.  
• Add 2-foot deep concrete curb at south fence line.  
• Change concrete tank configuration from circular pre-stressed concrete to rectangular 
conventionally reinforced tank, resulting in three additional structural sheets being added for 
additional detailing.  
• Provision of a motorized swing gate with remote operation.  

 
Task 1.4 – Topographic Survey – On-Line Engineering, based on the addition of piping modifications at 
the Hubbard pump station site, would provide additional survey to support the civil design. 
 
Task 2.4 – Traffic Control Plans – JMDiaz, based on the addition of piping modifications at the Hubbard 
pump station site, would provide additional traffic control for the future construction of the pipeline 
modifications at the Hubbard pump station. 
 
Task 4.1 Project Management and Administration – John Robinson Consulting is not requesting any 
additional compensation for the above effort as we believe this work will not impact the project schedule 
and can be incorporated into the existing quality assurance/quality control review of the overall project.  
 
Project Schedule:  
The additional scope of services would not impact the schedule for the overall project design. 
 
Additional Compensation:  
The following is fee breakdown of our fee for each discipline. The fee will be on a time and materials basis, 
not to exceed $75,454. 
 

Task No. Project Task Total Fee 
1.2 Geotechnical Investigation $2,560 

1.3 and 2.1 Utility Research / 60% Design $60,674 
1.4 Topographic Survey $2,500 
2.4 Traffic Control Plans $9,720 
4.1 Project Management $0 

   
 Total Not-to-Exceed Fee: $75,454 

 
Per the April 9, 2019 proposal, JRC will not mark-up any of our Project Team invoices and pass those 
savings back to the City. 

,7190436Ā-6:25782Ā/,(Ā" &)%).,Ȁ*+-!Ȁ$#,+Ȁ)+,,Ȁ.*&+#$&',###
January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 229 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 230 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 231 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 232 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1202                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 

 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
   
Date:  January 3, 2022 
 
Subject: Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive and file an update related to the City’s COVID-19 efforts, including, but not limited to the 
City’s COVID-19 planning, response, enforcement; education and outreach efforts; financial 
assistance programs and the pursuit of funding opportunities; COVID-19 related policy initiatives; 
and related recommendations, as appropriate. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: 
 
This report is meant to provide City Council and the public the opportunity to review all items 
related to the City’s response efforts and policy initiatives related to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
including, but not limited to, financial hardship programs and other potential stimulus funding. 
 
Staff Updates. 
 
Los Angeles County Department of Public Health (LACDPH) A Safer Return Together at Work and 
in the Community Beyond the Blueprint for a Safer Economy. 
Since reopening on June 15, 2021, LACDPH has updated the Health Officer Order on July 16, 2021,  
July 22, 2021, July 30, 2021, August 23, 2021, September 17, 2021, and most recently on 
September 28, 2021. Currently, all residents are required to follow masking guidelines and wear 
masks indoors in public.   Proof of vaccination is required to enter bars, breweries, wineries, 
distilleries and nightclubs.  Additionally, the City of Los Angeles requires proof of a full COVID-19 
vaccination to enter the indoor portions of food establishments, gyms, entertainment and 
recreational locations, personal care establishments, and outdoor events within the City, as well 
as certain City facilities.  Please note: the City of Los Angeles requirements DO NOT apply to the 
City of San Fernando. 
 
Please visit the City’s website for current Health Orders issued by the LACDPH: 
SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#Health-Officer-Order.  
 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 233 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#health-officer-order


Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 2 of 7 
 
 

 

Daily COVID-19 Cases and Deaths in the City of San Fernando. 
As of December 28, 2021, the City of San Fernando has experienced a total of 6,447 cases of 
COVID-19 and a total of 73 residents have lost their lives to the pandemic.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

City of San Fernando Daily COVID-19 Data

CASES

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

City of San Fernando Daily COVID-19 Data

DEATHS

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 234 of 443



Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 3 of 7 
 
 

 

Masking Guidance. 
EVERYONE, regardless of vaccination status, must wear a mask: 
 

 In all indoor public settings, venues, gatherings, and public and private businesses in Los 
Angeles County.  

 On planes, trains, buses, ferries, taxis and ride-shares, and all other forms of public 
transport. 

 In transportation hubs like airports, bus terminals, train stations, marinas, seaports or 
other ports, subway stations, or any other area that provides transportation. 

 Healthcare settings (including long-term care facilities). 

 State and local correctional facilities and detention centers. 

 Shelters and cooling centers. 

 Indoors at any youth-serving facility (such as K-12 schools, childcare, day camps, etc.) 

 At outdoor Mega Events (events with over 10,000 attendees like concerts, sports games, 
and parades). 

 In any outdoor location where it is the policy of the business or venue. 
 
Please visit the City’s website for additional masking guidance issued by the LACDPH: 
SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#Face-Masks 
 
Health Order Enforcement. 
Staff will provide an update on current enforcement efforts during the meeting, if requested. 
 
COVID-19 Vaccine Distribution. 
Los Angeles County residents in have multiple options to register for an appointment to receive 
the COVID-19 vaccine: 

 California Department of Public Health Online portal: MyTurn.ca.gov 

 LACDPH Online portal: VaccinateLACounty.com  

 Los Angeles Fire Department Online portal: CarbonHealth.com/COVID-19-Vaccines 

 LACDPH Call Center (between 8 am and 8:30 pm): (833) 540-0473 

Since May 13, 2021, all California residents age 12 and older have been eligible to be vaccinated. 
On November 3, 2021, children ages five and older became eligible to receive the Pfizer 
vaccination.  

On August 14, 2021 and October 21, 2021, a third (booster) dose of the Pfizer, Moderna and 
Johnson & Johnson vaccines, respectively, became available to residents with the following 
recommendations: 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 235 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/%23face-masks
https://myturn.ca.gov/
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/vaccine/index.htm
https://carbonhealth.com/covid-19-vaccines/los-angeles


Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 4 of 7 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 236 of 443



Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

 

 

 
This information is also available on the City’s website: SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#COVID-19-
Vaccine.  

Per data provided by LACDPH as of December 23, 2021: 18,217 (77.1%) of San Fernando residents 
over the age of five and 2,338 (90.8%) of San Fernando residents over the age of 65 are fully 
vaccinated. The chart below (solid gray line) shows the uptick in vaccinations in July and August 
2021 while a digital ad campaign was being run.  Although there were undoubtedly other factors 
that contributed to the increase in vaccinations, it is reasonable to assume that the digital ad 
campaign assisted those interested in getting the vaccination with easy access to registration 
sites. 

 
 

 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 237 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#covid-19-vaccine
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#covid-19-vaccine


Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 6 of 7 
 
 

 

 
 

 
San Fernando Recreation Park Vaccination and Testing Site. 
In cooperation with CORE, the City is able to offer a small-scale mobile unit and San Fernando 
Recreation Park. Although the site is significantly scaled down from the Supersite the closed in 
July 2021, there is more flexibility to change days and hours of service as needed, and there will 
also be a much smaller impact on the surrounding neighborhood and park services. An additional 
service that CORE is providing to the community at this mobile site is information related to 
eligibility for public assistance programs and health screenings (i.e., CalFresh/SNAP, WIC, Medi-
Cal, LIHEAP, and General Relief). 
 
The San Fernando Recreation Park site is currently open Monday through Saturday from 8 am to 
4 pm.  No appointment is necessary for any of the services below.  The daily schedule is as follows: 

 Testing – Monday through Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm 

 Vaccine (Pfizer), including Booster Dose for eligible residents – Tuesday, Wednesday, 
Friday, and Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm 

 Public Assistance Program Information – Monday through Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm  

 Wellness Checks – Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday, and Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 238 of 443



Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 

COVID-19 Relief Programs. 
The City Council approved a number of COVID-19 Relief Programs and is working with staff to 
develop additional relief programs. Please visit the City’s website: 
SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#Business-Resources for more information on the City’s COVID-19 
Relief Programs. 
 
City Facilities Reopening. 
Effective, April 19, 2021, City Hall reopened to the public with normal hours (i.e., Monday through 
Thursday, 7:30 am to 5:30 pm).  City Hall will remain closed on Fridays and certain services will 
be by appointment only through the end of January 2022.  

 
All visitors to City Hall and the San Fernando Police Department must wear a cloth face covering 
at all times, until further notice.  
 
Limited outdoor recreation programming and service have resumed at most of the City parks 
with the condition that the County of Los Angeles Protocols for Organized Activities are 
implemented.  Las Palmas Park and Recreation Park are currently offering limited indoor 
recreational programs and services.  For more information regarding the programs and services 
being offered please visit the Recreation and Community Services webpage 
(SFCITY.ORG/SFRecreation) or call (818) 898-1290. 

 
LiveSan services and the Court Commitment Program have both resumed at the Police 
Department. Customers are urged to contact the Police Department at (818) 898-1267 or 
Police@sfcity.org prior to visiting to check on availability of services. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
American Rescue Plan Act. 
On March 12, 2021, President Biden signed the American Rescue Plan Act into law which provides 
fiscal stimulus funding paid directly to state and local governments.  The City’s total allocation is 
approximately $5.8 million, which is being distributed in two equal installments of $2.9 million in 
July 2021 and July 2022.  City Council will be considering appropriation of these funds through 
separate City Council action items. 
 
Prior Coronavirus Relief Funds. 
The overall total that the City of San Fernando received from the Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) 
from the Department of Finance of the State of California through the first CARES Act was 
$311,234.   City Council appropriated these funds to reimburse the City for COVID-19 response 
costs in FY 2020-2021.   
 
Additionally, the City received $136,000 in special CDBG Coronavirus (CV) funds that were used 
to fund a residential food distribution program and small business PPE program. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 239 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#business-resources
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/sfrecreation/
mailto:Police@sfcity.org


This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 240 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 241 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 242 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
  Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
 
Date:  January 3, 2022 
 
Subject: A Public Hearing to Consider the Adoption of a Resolution to Approve the 2021 

Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey for Speed Limits to Allow for Speed Radar 
Enforcement on City Streets and the Adoption of an Ordinance Amending the City 
Code Relating to Speed Limits 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Conduct a Public Hearing; and 

 
b. Pending public testimony, introduce for first reading, in title only, and waive further reading 

of Ordinance No. 1705, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
California, Amending Sections 90-941 and 90-942 of Chapter 90 of the City of San Fernando 
City Code Relating to Speed Limits” (Attachment “A”); and 

 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 8111 (Attachment “B”) approving the 2021 Citywide Engineering and 

Traffic Survey Report (Survey) (Attachment “C”) to establish speed limit zones in the City. 
  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. The California Vehicle Code requires that the City conduct an Engineering and Traffic Survey 

of local streets every seven years, with the option to extend the survey for three additional 
years, if no changes exist.  This requirement helps to ensure the proper posting of speed limits 
and also enables the Police Department to utilize radar or other electronic speed measuring 
devices for speed enforcement efforts.  The City’s existing survey is set to expire in 2022.   

 
2. To meet this requirement, staff coordinated an analysis with its traffic engineering 

consultant, Tom Brohard, to evaluate the existing speed zones within the City.   
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 243 of 443



A Public Hearing to Consider Approval of the 2021 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey for Speed 
Limits to Allow for Speed Radar Enforcement on City Streets, Adopt a Resolution Establish Speed Limit 
Zones and Adopt an Ordinance Amending the City Code Relating to Speed Limits 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
3. On November 3, 2021, the Transportation and Safety Commission reviewed the findings and 

concurred with the recommendations identified in the Survey, with the exception of two 
segments recommended for speed limit increases. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The California Vehicle Code (CVC) establishes that roadway speed limits are to be set based on 
specific criteria.  These are called prima facie speed limits or posted speed limits.  A blanket speed 
limit of 15 miles per hour (mph) is established on all alleys, blind intersections, and at blind 
railroad crossings.  A 25 mph speed limit may be established under the following conditions: 1) 
On any business or residential district; 2) At school zones, when children are present, and; 3) In 
senior zones. 
 
The California Department of Transportation requires that the criteria set forth in the California 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD) be utilized in the establishment of speed 
limits.  This manual requires that a speed limit be set closest to the 85th percentile speeds.  The 
85th percentile speed is the speed at or below which 85% of the traffic travels.  This threshold 
represents what is historically found to be a safe and reasonable speed for most drivers based 
on common roadway conditions.  Speed limits cannot be set arbitrarily low, as this would create 
violators of the majority drivers and would not command the respect of the public. 
 
Based on data collected in an engineering and traffic survey, a speed limit is established at the 
nearest five-mile per hour increment to the 85th percentile speed.  The CA MUTCD does allow for 
certain conditions to warrant lower speeds, if necessary.  In reviewing speed zones and making 
recommendations, several criteria are considered, including the 85th percentile of existing speed 
conditions, accident histories over a three-year period, roadway conditions, pedestrian activities, 
and speed limits in neighboring jurisdictions.  
 
A copy of the 2021 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits is included 
with this report (Attachment “C”).  The report was completed under the direction of a licensed 
traffic engineer and includes a significant amount of data collection including speed sampling, a 
review of accident histories, roadway conditions, traffic characteristics, and land use.  Based on 
a review of this information, the survey recommended no change to most street segments in the 
City, with the exception of the recommendation to increase speeds on two of the street segments 
surveyed as follows: 
 

Street From To Existing 
Speed 

Recommended 
Speed Justification 

Park Ave. First St. Fourth St. 15 25 85th Percentile 
Maclay Ave. Glenoaks Blvd. North City Limit 30 35 85th Percentile 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 244 of 443



A Public Hearing to Consider Approval of the 2021 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey for Speed 
Limits to Allow for Speed Radar Enforcement on City Streets, Adopt a Resolution Establish Speed Limit 
Zones and Adopt an Ordinance Amending the City Code Relating to Speed Limits 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
 
The Park Avenue and Maclay Avenue segments recorded an 85th percentile speed threshold of 
29 mph and 39 mph, respectively. The procedure set forth in the vehicle code requires that the 
threshold speed be first rounded up or down to the nearest five-mile per hour interval. Following 
that, the engineer is allowed to make just one five-mile per hour reduction based on the criteria 
mentioned above. Using this logic, the engineer first rounded up the speed limits to 30 mph and 
40 mph, respectively, and then made the one allowable five-mph reduction to result in the 
recommend speed increases shown in the table. 
 
Transportation and Safety Commission Recommendation. 
After reviewing the Survey at its November 3, 2021 meeting, the Transportation and Safety 
Commission were comfortable recommending the findings of the survey, with the exception of 
the speed increases recommended by the Survey, as shown in the table above.  The City’s traffic 
engineering consultant, Tom Brohard, explained that the vehicle code does not allow him to 
make any further speed limit reductions. He also indicated that adopting a speed survey that 
does not follow the procedures outlined in the CVC may lead to judicial reversal of any traffic 
tickets issued during enforcement activities.  
 
Assembly Bill 43. 
On October 8, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill (AB) 43 into law, which may 
eventually grant cities with more discretion to decrease speed limits based on a variety of 
conditions, such as proximity to schools, businesses, or senior zones, as well as factoring in high 
accident histories. However, it may take until June 30, 2024 before cities can exercise this 
discretion due to the State Judicial Council’s need to develop guidelines. 
 
Legal Analysis. 
The City Attorney’s office reviewed case law and found that any reduction in speed limit must 
currently be based on the procedures in the vehicle code. Furthermore, it was concluded that AB 
43 would not be a tool for cities to establish reduction in speed limits until the Judicial Council 
develops guidelines or June 30, 2024, whichever is sooner. Any speed limit set below what is 
permissible using the State’s calculation methodology as described in the engineering and traffic 
survey would be invalid and unenforceable.  If the City were to maintain speed limits at the legally 
prescribed limits as to all but a few streets, it is unknown whether such action would render all 
speed limits prescribed in the survey invalid and unenforceable.  As of the date of this report, the 
City Attorney has not been able to find authority that is conclusive on this issue.   It is also unclear 
whether maintaining speed limits at limits that are less than what is legally prescribed under the 
State’s methodology may create other types of legal exposure for the City (for example, by 
creating a legally actionable “dangerous condition”) – at least until such time as the City may 
properly avail itself of the added relief offered under AB 43. 

 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 245 of 443



A Public Hearing to Consider Approval of the 2021 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey for Speed 
Limits to Allow for Speed Radar Enforcement on City Streets, Adopt a Resolution Establish Speed Limit 
Zones and Adopt an Ordinance Amending the City Code Relating to Speed Limits 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Funding for the Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey Report was included in the Fiscal Year 
2021-2022 Adopted Budget.   The funds are appropriated in the General Fund Public Works 
Department budget.   

 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council conduct a public hearing and, pending public testimony, 
introduce for first reading, in title only, and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1705 “An 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, Amending Sections 90-941 
and 90-942 of Chapter 90 of the City of San Fernando City Code Relating to Speed Limits”. It is 
also recommended that City Council consider the approval of the 2021 Citywide Engineering and 
Traffic Survey Report to establish speed limit zones in the City adoption of Resolution No. 8111. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Ordinance No. 1705 
B. Resolution No. 8111 
C. 2021 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 246 of 443



ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1705 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALFIRONIA, AMENDING SECTIONS 90-941 AND 90-
942 OF CHAPTER 90 OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO CITY CODE 
RELATING TO SPEED LIMITS 

The City Council of the City of San Fernando does ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 90-941 (“Decrease of local speed limits”) of Article XI (“Schedules”) 

of Chapter 90 (“Traffic and Vehicles”) of the San Fernando City Code is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

 
Sec. 90-941. – Amending of local speed limits.  
 

It is determined and declared, upon the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, that 
for safe operation of vehicles on the following streets the prima facie speed limit shall be as set 
forth on those designated streets or parts of streets when signs are erected giving notice thereof, 
in accordance with Vehicle Code § 22358:  

 

Name of Street or 
Portion Affected 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

(miles per hour) as established in the engineering and 
traffic survey adopted by Resolution No. ____ on January 

3, 2022. 

Arroyo Avenue, from Glenoaks 
Boulevard to north city limits  

35 

Arroyo Street, from Glenoaks 
Boulevard to Fifth Street  

30  

Brand Boulevard, from Fourth 
Street to Glenoaks Boulevard 

30  

Brand Boulevard, from Truman 
Street to Fourth Street  

35 

Brand Boulevard, from Truman 
Street to the south city limits  

35 

Chatsworth Drive, from the south 
city limits to San Fernando Road  

30  

Eighth Street, from west city limits 
to Maclay Avenue  

25  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 247 of 443



ORD. NO. 1705 

2 

Name of Street or 
Portion Affected 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

(miles per hour) as established in the engineering and 
traffic survey adopted by Resolution No. ____ on January 

3, 2022. 

Fifth Street, from west city limits to 
east city limits  

30  

First Street, from Hubbard Avenue 
to Maclay Avenue  

30  

Fourth Street, from west city limits 
to east city limits  

30  

Glenoaks Boulevard, from west city 
limits to east city limits  

40 

Harding Avenue, from north city 
limits to Glenoaks Boulevard  

25  

Harding Avenue, from Glenoaks 
Boulevard to Fourth Street 

25  

Harding Avenue, from Fourth 
Street to First Street 

25  

Hubbard Avenue, from south city 
limits to north city limits  

35 

Maclay Avenue from Truman 
Street to Fourth Street  

25  

Maclay Avenue, from Fourth Street 
to Glenoaks Boulevard 

30  

Maclay Avenue, from Glenoaks 
Boulevard to north city limits 

30 35  

Mission Boulevard, from south city 
limits to Truman Street  

35 

Orange Grove Avenue, from 
Glenoaks Boulevard to north city 
limits 

25  

Orange Grove Avenue, from 
Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth 
Street 

25  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 248 of 443



ORD. NO. 1705 

3 

Name of Street or 
Portion Affected 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

(miles per hour) as established in the engineering and 
traffic survey adopted by Resolution No. ____ on January 

3, 2022. 

San Fernando Road, from Kittridge 
Street to east city limits  

30  

San Fernando Road, from west city 
limits to Mission Boulevard  

35 

Seventh Street, from west city 
limits to Maclay Avenue  

25  

Truman Street, from west city 
limits to east city limits  

35 

Workman Street, from south city 
limits to San Fernando Road  

25 

 
SECTION 2. Section 90-942(“Decrease of speed limits on narrow streets”) of Article XI 

(“Schedules”) of Chapter 90 (“Traffic and Vehicles”) of the San Fernando City Code is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

 
Sec. 90-942. - Amending of speed limits on narrow streets.  

It is determined upon the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation that the state 
prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour in a business or residence district or in a public park 
on any street having a roadway not exceeding 25 feet in width is more than is reasonable or safe 
under the conditions found to exist upon such streets, and it is declared that the prima facie 
speed limit shall be 15 miles per hour on those designated streets or parts thereof when signs 
are erected giving notice thereof, in accordance with Vehicle Code § 22358.3:  

 

Name of Street or 
Portion Affected 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

(miles per hour) established under the engineering and 
traffic survey adopted by Resolution No. ____ on January 3, 

2022 

Park Avenue, from Fourth Street 
to First Street 

15  25 

San Fernando Road, from Mission 
Boulevard to Kittridge Street  

20 

  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 249 of 443



ORD. NO. 1705 

4 

SECTION 3. Severability.  If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, 
clause or phrase in this ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional 
or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 
validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this ordinance or any part thereof.  The City 
Council hereby declares that is would have passed each section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, 
clause or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more subsections, subdivisions, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional, or invalid, or ineffective. 

 
SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this Ordinance and shall cause 

this Ordinance to be published or posted as required by law. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Fernando this 

___ day of ________, ____. 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
         
Julia Fritz, City Clerk  Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San  
  Fernando, California 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Richard A. Padilla, Assistant  
City Attorney 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 250 of 443



ORD. NO. 1705 

5 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Ordinance No. 1705 which was introduced on January 3, 2022, and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California at a regular meeting thereof 
held on the ____ day of ________, ____, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of _________, ____.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 251 of 443



ATTACHMENT “B” 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 8111 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE 2021 CITYWIDE 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY USED IN ESTABLISHING SPEED 
LIMITS ON CITY STREETS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando (“City”) uses the engineering and traffic survey to 
establish and enforce speed limits legally on its streets with the use of radar and electronic 
devices in accordance with the California Vehicle Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s  previously adopted engineering and traffic survey is no longer 
considered admissible by the County of Los Angeles Traffic Court and needs to be replaced with 
an updated survey prepared in accordance with the California Vehicle Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the update of the City’s engineering and traffic survey was conducted in 2021 
in compliance with the requirements of the California Vehicle Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the signing of Assembly Bill 43 into law by Governor Newsom on October 8, 

2021 will provide the City Council with the discretion to establish safety corridors in certain zones 
in the City to reduce speed limits once guidelines are established by the State’s Judicial Council 
or by June 30, 2024, whichever is sooner; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The City Council calls for the amendment of local speed limits as required 

by Section 90-941 of the San Fernando Municipal Code and shown in the following table: 
 

Name of Street or 
Portion Affected 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

(miles per hour) 

Arroyo Avenue, from Glenoaks Boulevard to north city limits  35 

Arroyo Street, from Glenoaks Boulevard to Fifth Street  30  

Brand Boulevard, from Fourth Street to Glenoaks Boulevard 30  

Brand Boulevard, from Truman Street to Fourth Street  35 

Brand Boulevard, from Truman Street to the south city limits  35 

Chatsworth Drive, from the south city limits to San Fernando Road  30  

Eighth Street, from west city limits to Maclay Avenue  25  

Fifth Street, from west city limits to east city limits  30  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 252 of 443



RES. NO. 8111 

2 

Name of Street or 
Portion Affected 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

(miles per hour) 

First Street, from Hubbard Avenue to Maclay Avenue  30  

Fourth Street, from west city limits to east city limits  30  

Glenoaks Boulevard, from west city limits to east city limits  40 

Harding Avenue, from north city limits to Glenoaks Boulevard  25  

Harding Avenue, from Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 25  

Harding Avenue, from Fourth Street to First Street 25  

Hubbard Avenue, from south city limits to north city limits  35 

Maclay Avenue from Truman Street to Fourth Street  25  

Maclay Avenue, from Fourth Street to Glenoaks Boulevard 30  

Maclay Avenue, from Glenoaks Boulevard to north city limits 30 35  

Mission Boulevard, from south city limits to Truman Street  35 

Orange Grove Avenue, from Glenoaks Boulevard to north city limits 25  

Orange Grove Avenue, from Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 25  

San Fernando Road, from Kittridge Street to east city limits  30  

San Fernando Road, from west city limits to Mission Boulevard  35 

Seventh Street, from west city limits to Maclay Avenue  25  

Truman Street, from west city limits to east city limits  35 

Workman Street, from south city limits to San Fernando Road  25 
 

 
SECTION 2. The City Council calls for the amendment of speed limits on narrow streets 

as required by Section 90-942 of the San Fernando Municipal Code and shown in the following 
table: 

 

Name of Street or 
Portion Affected 

Declared 
Prima Facie 
Speed Limit 

(miles per hour) 

Park Avenue, from Fourth Street to First Street 15  25 

San Fernando Road, from Mission Boulevard to Kittridge Street  20 
 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 253 of 443



RES. NO. 8111 

3 

SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and shall 
cause this Resolution and her certification to be filed in the office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 3rd day of January, 2022. 

 
 
 

 ____________________________________ 
Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San 
Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 254 of 443



RES. NO. 8111 

4 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8111, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
3rd day of January, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of January 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 255 of 443



October 15, 2021 

Ms. Patsy Orozco 
Civil Engineering Assistant II 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, California 91340-2993 

Subject: Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 

Dear Ms. Orozco: 

As authorized, Tom Brohard and Associates has prepared this Engineering and 
Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 , for the City of San Fernando. This 
work has been conducted in accordance with and in compliance with provisions 
in the California Vehicle Code (CVC) and the California Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices (California MUTCD 2014 Edition). 

A total of 32 street segments were initially surveyed in 2005 as required to 
establish enforceable speed limits in the City. Each street segment requiring an 
engineering and traffic survey was identified from the City's Functional 
Classification Maps filed with the California Department of Transportation. 

Engineering and traffic surveys have included measurement of vehicle speeds, 
traffic volumes, and reviews of roadway design, adjacent development, and 
traffic collisions. Each engineering and traffic survey was initially valid for seven 
years, with an extension of three years allowed if there were no significant 
changes in adjacent development, roadway width, and/or number of travel lanes. 

Over the years, some roadway conditions have changed in the City such as the 
Maclay Avenue Streetscape and the Glenoaks Boulevard Roadway Improvement 
Projects. With changed roadway conditions, new traffic volume, speed, and 
collision data have been collected. For other roadway segments where no 
significant changes were found when roadway conditions were reviewed after 
seven years, the surveys were extended for three years up to 10 years, the 
maximum allowable. After 10 years, the engineering and traffic surveys expire, 
and all new data is required to reestablish an enforceable speed limit. 

The following procedure has been followed to establish enforceable speed limits: 

1) For each of the 32 street segments, calculation of collision rates from the 
2018, 2019, and 2020 collision histories from SWITRS (State-Wide Integrated 
Traffic Records System), together with comparison of these calculated rates 
to those experienced on similar streets in California. 

2) Review of all 32 street segments using the most recent Google Earth aerial 
photography to determine if roadway conditions had changed since the last 
engineering and0traffic survey. 

81905 Mountain Vieiv Lane, La Quinta, California 92253-7611 
Phone (760) 398-8885 

Email tbrohard0@gmaiLcom 

ATTACHMENT "C"January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 256 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

3) Collection of new vehicle speed and traffic volume data for the nine street 
segments nearing expiration at 10 years old as well as for the two segments 
of Glenoaks Boulevard where roadway conditions had changed. 

4) Analyze data and develop recommended speed limits based on the California 
Vehicle Code and the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, 
2014 Edition. 

INTRODUCTION 

This Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021, is intended to 
serve as the basis for the reestablishment and continued enforcement of speed 
limits for selected streets. This report was authorized by the City of San 
Fernando and independently conducted by the private traffic engineering 
consulting firm of Tom Brohard and Associates. Traffic speeds and traffic 
volumes were collected by Counts Unlimited, a professional traffic data collection 
company. 

Engineering and traffic surveys for speed limits must be regularly conducted by 
governing municipalities in California to comply with provisions of the California 
Vehicle Code (CVC). Since the 1970's, Section 40802 of the CVC requires that 
these surveys be performed at locations where speed limits are enforced with the 
use of radar or other electronic speed measuring devices. Without a valid 
engineering and traffic survey, the roadway segment is considered to be a 
"speed trap". Should that occur, then all testimony and evidence by the enforcing 
police officer is inadmissible in a court of law, and the speeding ticket is 
dismissed. State law also requires that enforcement personnel receive periodic 
training and that their speed measuring devices also be calibrated periodically. 

PURPOSE OF SPEED LIMITS 

The setting of speed limits can be controversial and requires a rational and 
defensible determination to maintain public confidence. For many years, speed 
limits have been set near the 85th percentile speed, a speed that statistically 
represents the upper limit of what is considered reasonable and prudent 
behavior. As with most laws, speed limits must depend on voluntary compliance 
of the greater majority of motorists. Speed limits cannot be set arbitrarily low, as 
this would create violators of the majority of drivers and would not command the 
respect of the public. 

PROVISIONS OF THE SPEED TRAP LAW 

CVC Section 40802 defines a "Speed Trap" as a section of highway which has a 
speed limit that is not justified by current engineering and traffic survey, and the 
enforcement of the speed limit involves the use of radar or any other electronic 
device. CVC Section 40802 defining "Speed Traps" does not apply to a local 

2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 257 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

street, road, or school zone, but rather applies to all highways that appear on the 
latest Functional Classification Maps submitted to Caltrans by the local agency. 

REQUIRED METHODOLOGY FOR ESTABLISHING SPEED LIMITS 

Speed limits in California are governed by the California Vehicle Code (CVC). 
CVC Section 627 defines the required components of an engineering and traffic 
survey for a street segment as considering each of the following three items: 

1) Prevailing speeds as determined by traffic engineering measurements. 

2) Collision records. 

3) Highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not readily apparent to the driver. 

The California MUTCD, 2014 Edition, provides requirements for engineering and 
traffic surveys (see enclosure). While engineers have previously had some 
latitude for engineering judgment in setting speed limits, the current policies and 
procedures are rigid and even explain how to round up or round down as 
indicated below. The current procedure requires that the speed limit normally be 
established at the 5 MPH increment closest to the 85th percentile speed (85% of 
vehicles travelling at that speed or less) on the street segment, and provides the 
following options to explain the application of the required rounding procedures: 

► Option 1, Example 1 (Rounding Down) - If the 85th percentile speed in a 
speed survey for a location was 37 MPH, then the speed limit would initially 
be established at 35 MPH since it is the closest 5 MPH increment to the 37 
MPH speed. However, the 35 MPH speed limit could then be reduced further 
by 5 MPH to 30 MPH if conditions and justification for using the lower speed 
limit are documented in the engineering and traffic survey and approved by a 
registered Civil or Traffic Engineer. 

► Option 1, Example 2 (Rounding Up) - If the 85th percentile speed in a speed 
survey for a location was 33 MPH, then the speed limit would initially be 
established at 35 MPH since it is the closest 5 MPH increment to the 33 MPH 
speed. However, the 35 MPH speed limit could then be reduced further by 5 
MPH to 30 MPH if conditions and justification for using the lower speed limit 
are documented in the engineering and traffic survey and approved by a 
registered Civil or Traffic Engineer. 

► Option 2, Example 3 (Alternative to Rounding Up) - If the 85th percentile 
speed in a speed survey for a location was 33 MPH, then the speed limit can 
be established at 30 MPH rather than rounding up, but no further reductions 
can be applied (as in Option 1 above). 

< 

3 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 258 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

In the two examples for Option 1 above, the established speed limit can be 
reduced by 5 MPH if the conditions and justification for using this lower speed 
limit are documented in the engineering and traffic survey and approved by a 
registered Civil or Traffic Engineer. Justifications used to reduce the speed limit 
by 5 MPH involve either a collision rate significantly greater than experienced on 
other similar roadways, or very unusual roadside conditions that are not readily 
apparent to motorists. 

TRAFFIC VOLUMES AND SPEED MEASUREMENTS FOR SURVEYS 

Where the engineering and traffic survey was nearing 10 years old and where 
roadway conditions had changed (Glenoaks Boulevard), traffic volumes were 
counted, and vehicle speeds were measured on each of these 11 street 
segments by Counts Unlimited, a professional traffic data collection company. 
This traffic data was collected under clear and dry weather conditions. Traffic 
data was recorded on Wednesday, September 22, 2021, by machines every 15 
minutes and summarized every hour over 24 hours by direction of travel. The 
total daily traffic volumes in both directions were then used to calculate the 
collision rate for each street segment. Data sheets of the traffic volumes counted, 
and the vehicle speeds recorded for each of the new surveys are enclosed. 

Traffic speeds of all vehicles observed over the 24 hours were simultaneously 
measured at each location on September 22, 2021. These speed measurements 
provide a complete sampling of all vehicles counted over the 24 hours. The 
following measurements were then calculated from the data: 

1) Average Speed - This speed represents the arithmetic average of the speeds 
recorded at the particular location. 

2) 85th Percentile Speed - This is the speed at or below which 85 percent of the 
traffic was observed. It is the primary measurement as this value represents 
the top speed of the majority of safe, reasonable motorists. Speed limits are 
typically established within a range of 5 miles per hour of this speed. 

3) 10 Mile Pace Speed - This is the 10 mile per hour speed range that contains 
the largest number of vehicles that were observed. It provides a measure of 
the dispersion of speeds within the sample surveyed. The top of the 10-mile 
pace speed typically coincides with the 85th percentile speed. 

COLLISION HISTORIES FOR ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEYS 

Available collision records from the State-Wide Integrated Traffic Records 
System (SWITRS) were obtained for the three-year period from January 1, 2018, 
through December 31, 2020. All collisions outside the intersection areas as well 
as sideswipe collisions, parked vehicle collisions, and solo vehicle hitting fixed 

4 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 259 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

object collisions were identified. Using the daily traffic volumes collected by 
Counts Unlimited and the roadway segment length, the annual average collision 
rate for each segment was calculated as follows: 

(No. of collisions) x (1,000,000) 
(Daily Volume) x (365 Days) x (Segment Length) x (3 Years) 

The calculated collision rate for each street segment over the three-year period 
was then compared to state-wide collision rates for similar streets in California, 
with the results shown on the enclosed spreadsheet "Collision Rates". 

DISCUSSION OF SPEED LIMIT CONSIDERATIONS/RECOMMENDATIONS 

New Survey Sheets for 11 Street Segments 
Speed limit recommendations contained in this report are based upon the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition Section 2B.13 and the 2021 eve which 
establish policies and procedures for setting speed limits in California. While 
engineers previously had some latitude for engineering judgment in setting speed 
limits, the current policies and procedures are rigid and even explain how to 
round up or round down as indicated above. Individual engineering and traffic 
survey sheets for each of the 11 street segments (nine of which were expiring at 
nearly 10 years old and the two locations on Glenoaks Boulevard where roadway 
conditions changed) are enclosed. These survey sheets include summaries of 
the measured traffic speeds, roadway design and traffic characteristics, and 
analysis of collisions. 

The results of the traffic engineering analyses of each of the 11 street segments 
are summarized below as follows: 

► Increase of Speed Limits (Two Street Segments) 
o Survey #19 - Maclay Avenue from North City Limit to Glenoaks 

Boulevard - Increase existing 30 MPH speed limit to 35 MPH - The 
85th percentile speed on September 22, 2021, was 39 MPH. Option #2, 
Example #3 requires rounding up to 40 MPH, and then a reduction of 5 
MPH to 35 is applied with the collision rate double the state-wide 
average. A further reduction to 30 MPH would make about 85% of 
motorists in violation and is not supported under present speed zoning 
parameters. 

o Survey #25 - Park Avenue from Fourth Street to First Street- Increase 
existing 15 MPH speed limit to 25 MPH - The 85th percentile speed on 
September 22, 2021 , was 29 MPH. Option #2, Example #3 requires 
rounding up to 30 MPH, and then a reduction of 5 MPH to 25 MPH is 
applied with a slightly higher than the state-wide average collision rate. 
A further reductions back to 15 MPH would make 85% of motorists in 
violation and cannot be supported under present parameters. 

5 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 260 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

► No Change in Speed Limits (Nine Street Segments) 
o Arroyo Avenue from North City limit to Glenoaks Boulevard - Retain 

existing 35 MPH speed limit when children are not present 
o Glenoaks Boulevard from West City limit to Maclay Avenue - Retain 

existing 40 MPH speed limit 
o Glenoaks Boulevard from Maclay Avenue to East City limit - Retain 

existing 40 MPH speed limit 
o Harding Avenue from North City limit to Glenoaks Boulevard - Retain 

existing 25 MPH speed limit 
o Harding Avenue from Glenoaks Avenue to Fourth Street - Retain 

existing 25 MPH speed limit 
o Harding Avenue from Fourth Street to First Street - Retain existing 25 

MPH speed limit 
o Maclay Avenue from Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street - Retain 

existing 30 MPH speed limit when children are not present 
o Maclay Avenue from Fourth Street to Truman Street - Retain existing 

25 MPH speed limit 
o Orange Grove Avenue from Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street -

Retain existing 25 MPH speed limit 

Updated Surveys on 21 Street Segments 
Two street segments on San Fernando Road have experienced significantly 
higher than average state-wide collision rates for the last three years. The 
previously measured 85th percentile speeds of 38 MPH and 33 MPH together 
with the requirements for rounding up at the present time to 40 MPH and 35 
MPH respectively do not allow further speed limit reductions of 5 MPH from 
the present 35 MPH and 30 MPH posted speed limits. 

New data including speed measurements will be required for both of these 
segments as well as the other 19 street segments in this grouping during the 
next resurvey in about three years. At that time, it may be possible to reduce 
the speed limit on San Fernando Road to 30 MPH west of San Fernando 
Mission Boulevard and 25 MPH east of Kittridge Street if the collision history 
remains higher than the state-wide average. 

Assembly Bill 43 has just made a number of significant changes in setting 
speed limits (see Page 8). As a new additional consideration to reduce the 
speed limit, it may be possible to declare San Fernando Road as a "safety 
corridor" depending on how that will be exactly defined by Caltrans. Yet 
another option could involve consideration of a "road diet" where the existing 
four through travel lanes with on-street parking on both sides would be 
restriped to provide one through travel lane in each direction separated by a 
continuous two-way left turn lane, together with on-street parking and striped 
bicycle lanes on both sides. At the present time, no changes in the posted 
speed limits are recommended on any of the 21 street segments listed below. 

6 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 261 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

► No Change in Speed Limits (21 Street Segments) 
o Arroyo Avenue from Glenoaks Boulevard to Fifth Street - Retain 

existing 30 MPH posted speed limit 
o Brand Boulevard from Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street - Retain 

existing 30 MPH posted speed limit when children are not present 
o Brand Boulevard from Fourth Street to Truman Street - Retain existing 

35 MPH speed limit when children are not present 
o Brand Boulevard from Truman Street to South City Limit - Retain 

existing 35 MPH posted speed limit 
o Chatsworth Drive from San Fernando Road to South City Limit - Retain 

existing 30 MPH posted speed limit 
o Eighth Street from West City Limit to Maclay Avenue - Retain existing 

25 MPH posted speed limit 
o Fifth Street from West City Limit to Maclay Avenue - Retain existing 30 

MPH posted speed limit 
o Fifth Street from Maclay Avenue to East City Limit - Retain existing 30 

MPH posted speed limit when children are not present 
o First Street from Hubbard Street to Maclay Avenue - Retain existing 30 

MPH posted speed limit 
o Fourth Street from West City Limit to Maclay Avenue - Retain existing 

30 MPH posted speed limit 
o Fourth Street from Maclay Avenue to East City Limit - Retain existing 

30 MPH posted speed limit 
o Hubbard Street from North City Limit at Fourth Street to South City 

Limit at San Fernando Road - Retain existing 35 MPH posted speed 
limit 

o San Fernando Mission Boulevard from Truman Street to South City 
Limit - Retain existing 35 MPH posted speed limit when children are 
not present 

o Orange Grove Avenue from North City Limit to Glenoaks Boulevard -
Retain existing 25 MPH posted speed limit 

o San Fernando Road from West City Limit to San Fernando Mission 
Boulevard - Retain existing 35 MPH posted speed limit 

o San Fernando Road (Mall) from San Fernando Mission Boulevard to 
Kittridge Street - Retain 20 MPH posted speed limit 

o San Fernando Road from Kittridge Street to East City Limit - Retain 
existing 30 MPH posted speed limit 

o Seventh Street from West City Limit to Maclay Avenue - Retain 
existing 25 MPH posted speed limit 

o Truman Street from West City Limit to Maclay Avenue - Retain existing 
35 MPH posted speed limit 

o Truman Street from Maclay Avenue to East City Limit - Retain existing 
35 MPH posted speed limit 

o Workman Street from San Fernando Road to South City Limit - Retain 
existing 25 MPH posted speed limit 

7 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 262 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

CALIFORNIA ASSEMBLY BILL 43 

On October 8, 2021, the Governor signed Assembly Bill 43 modifying and also 
adding provisions to the CVC relating to establishment of enforceable speed 
limits (see enclosure). This Bill requires Caltrans, the California Department of 
Transportation, to modify the California MUTCD and develop an on-line tool to 
include additional considerations and criteria for further reduction of speed limits 
by 5 MPH to be considered after June 30, 2024, based on these new criteria: 

► CVC 22358.6 allows a local authority to round down to the next lowest 5 
MPH increment near the 85th percentile speed where prior methodology 
required rounding up to the next lowest 5 MPH increment. 

► eve 22358.7 allows a local authority to reduce the speed limit by 
designating the highway as a "safety corridor" or if the highway is adjacent 
to any facility that generates high concentrations of bicyclists or 
pedestrians " ... especially those from vulnerable groups such as children, 
seniors, persons with disabilities, and the unhoused." Up to 25% of the 
highways within a local agency may be designated as "safety corridors." 

Other CVC modifications created by Assembly Bill 43 extend the engineering 
review interval out to 14 years rather than the currently required 7 or 1 O years. 

The new as well as the revised and updated survey sheets have all been 
prepared to accordance with current requirements that do not include additional 
alternatives within Assembly Bill 43 that became law on October 8, 2021 . Before 
June 30, 2024, the new law directs Caltrans to define "safety corridor" and 
develop an on-line tool for use by local agencies in setting speed limits. 

SUMMARY OF NEXT STEPS 

Please share this report with the San Fernando Police Department. I would be 
pleased to discuss their comments with you, and the Public Works and Police 
Departments prior to the Transportation & Safety Commission Meeting on 
November 3, 2021 . I also plan to respond to questions during the Commission 
meeting via Zoom. 

This report and adoption of a Resolution by the City Council on December 6, 
2021 , of the recommendations for the two speed limit increases identified in this 
report should be considered . That action, if approved, together with periodic 
training and equipment calibration , will enable the City of San Fernando Police 
Department to continue to deploy enforcement using radar, laser, or other 
electronic devices for at least the next three years. 

8 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 263 of 443



Ms. Patsy Orozco, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021 
October 15, 2021 

The opportunity to provide these services to the City of San Fernando is 
sincerely appreciated. Should questions arise or if further information or 
assistance is needed, please contact me at your convenience. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tom Brohard and Associates 

1/-, ~~LJ_ 
Tom Brohard 
Principal 

Enclosures 
2018 - 2020 Collision Rates for 32 Street Segments 
2021 Traffic Volume and Vehicle Speed Data for 11 New Surveys 
2014 California MUTCD Provisions for Setting Speed Limits 
2021 Engineering and Traffic Survey Sheets for 32 Surveys 
AB43 Revisions to Establishing Speed Limits 

9 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 264 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 1 
Street: Arroyo Avenue 
Limits: North City Limit to Glenoaks Boulevard 
Existing Speed limit: 35 MPH; 25 MPH When Children Are Present (high school) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Borden Avenue 
Mean Speed (Average): 30 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 26 to 35 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 38 MPH 

Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 50% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 64' north of Seventh St. ; 36' south of Seventh St. 
Number of travel lanes (both directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.55 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 9,700 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Straight alignment: industrial development and on street parking allowed 
both sides. industrial development both sides; High school and no parking on west side 

l COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed : 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 3 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 0.51 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 38 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 40 MPH but the speed limit can be established at 35 MPH in Option 2, Example 3, retaining 
the existing speed limit of 35 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028, seven years 
from the date below.but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in accordance with Assembly 
Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 265 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 2 
Street: Arroyo Avenue 
Limits: Glenoaks Boulevard to Fifth Street 
Existing Speed Limit 30 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o De Garmo Avenue 
Mean Speed (Average): 24 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 21 thru 30 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 29 MPH 

Posted Speed Limit 30 MPH 
Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 60% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of travel lanes (both directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.25 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 3,1 00 vehicles 
Existing Conditions: Industrial development on 
straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
both sides with on street parking allowed ; 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 2 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.36 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Trame Survey retains the speed limit or 
30 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8. 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 266 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: l 
Street: Brand Boulevard 
Limits: Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH; 25 MPH When Children Are Present (elementary school) 

l SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o De Garmo Avenue 
Mean Speed {Average): 29 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed : 23 thru 32 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 31 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 83% within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width : 36 feet Number of travel lanes (both directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.50 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 5.200 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Residential development on both sides with on-street parking; straight 
alignment except for horizontal curve at Library Street 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 5 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 1. 76 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survev collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28. 13 of the 
Californ ia MUTCD 2014 Edition, thi:s Engineering and Traffic Survey relain:s the speed limit of 

30 MPH, when children are not present. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the 
date below but may be reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on 
October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 267 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: ~ 
Street: Brand Boulevard 
Limits: Fourth Street to Truman Street 
Existing Speed Limit: 35 MPH; 25 MPH When Children Are Present (middle school) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o First Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 33 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 28 thru 37 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 37 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 73% within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN ANO TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 56 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.30 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 10.1 00 vehicles Date Measured: 11/18/2014 
Existing Conditions. Mixed development on both sides: some midblock on street parkino : 
straight alignment; at grade railroad crossing; San Fernando Middle School on east side 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Coll isions: 7 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.11 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average. 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed. and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
35 MPH when children are not present. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the 
date below, but may be reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on 
October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 268 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: §_ 
Street: Brand Boulevard 
Limits: Truman Street to South City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 35 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Hollister Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 33 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 29 thru 38 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed {85th Percentile): 37 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 71 % within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width : 96 feet and variable Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.60 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 14,000 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development toward north and fronting residential toward 
south; on street parking on both sides: wide landscaped raised median; straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Co.llision Period Analyzed : 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 24 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that . roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
35 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8 1 2021. 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 269 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: § 
Street Chatsworth Drive 
Limits: San Fernando Road to South City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Hollister Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 29 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 25 thru 34 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (851h Percentile): 33 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 72% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.55 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 3.100 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development toward north and fronting residential 
development toward south; on street parking on both sides: straight alignment; school crossings 
at several intersections toward south end 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 5 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.68 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition , this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
30 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 270 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: Z 
Street: Eighth Street 
Limits: West City Limit to Maclay Avenue 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Fermoore Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 25 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 20 thru 29 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 27 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 86% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width : 36 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.78 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: t200 vehicles Date Measured : 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Fronting residential development with on street parking on both sides; 
straight alignment: speed humps 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 2 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 1.95 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition. this Engineering and Traffic survey retains the speed limit of 
25 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 81 2021. 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 271 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO EST A BUSH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: ~ 
Street Fifth Street 
Limits: West City Limit to Maclay Avenue 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH 

l SPEEDS . 

Location of Survey: E/o Fermoore Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 30 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 26 thru 35 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85 h Percentile): 34 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 72% within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.70 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 2,800 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Fronting residential development with on street parking on both sides; 
commercial on both sides at east end: straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 6 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.80 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28.1 3 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
30 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 272 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: ~ 
Street: Fifth Street 
Limits: Maclay Avenue to East City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH; 25 MPH When Children Are Present (elementary school) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Newton Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 28 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 24 thru 33 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 32 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 81 % within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.55 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 3.600 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: School on south side east of Maclay Avenue, fronting residential with on 
street parking on both sides to the east; industrial development with on street parking on both 
sides to the east: straight alignment; bridge connection at east end 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 5 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.31 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28. 13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
30 MPH when children are not present. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the 
date below, but may be reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on 
October 81 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 273 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 1Q 
Street: First Street 
Limits: Hubbard Street to Maclay Avenue 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Orange Grove Avenue 
Mean Speed (Average): 31 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 25 thru 34 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85 th Percentile): 34 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 77% within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width : 40 to 44 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0. 70 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 3,400 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Industrial development with on street parking on both sides: commercial 
development with parking on both sides at east end: straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 7 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.69 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition. this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
30 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer -#C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 274 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 11 
Street: Fourth Street 
Limits: West City Limit to Maclay Avenue 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Fermoore Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 30 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed : 26 thru 35 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 34 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 74% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.75 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 4,400 vehicles Date Measured : 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Residential development with on street parking on both sides; commercial 
development with on street parking on both sides at east end; straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 7 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 1.94 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 coll isions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition. this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
30 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024. three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 81 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 275 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 12 
Street: Fourth Street 
Limits: Maclay Avenue to East City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Newton Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 28 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 24 thru 33 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 31 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 86% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.55 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 5,900 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development at west end. then residential development and 
then park and industrial development at east end; on street parking both sides throughout; 
straight alignment with bridge over wash at east end 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed : 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 9 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.53 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition . this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
30 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024. three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 276 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 1] 
Street: Glenoaks Boulevard 
Limits: West City Limit to Maclay Avenue 
Existing Speed Limit 40 MPH (also 40 MPH posted speed limit to West in City of Los Angeles) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: W/o Fermoore Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 33 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 31 thru 40 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile)· 39 MPH 

Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 53% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 60 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions) : Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.73 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 18.400 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: On 4/5/2021, City Council accepted a major street improvement project that 
resulted in changed roadway conditions; commercial development at west and east ends; mixed 
development in center area; left turn lanes with raised medians at major intersections and at 
west end; on street parking allowed in areas without left turn lanes: left turns and cross traffic 
prohibited at Alexander and at Hagar; straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 26 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 1. 77 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD. this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 39 MPH should be rounded up to 40 
MPH. retaining the existing speed limit of 40 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 
2028, seven years from the date below, but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in 
accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8. 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 277 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No. : 14 
Street: Glenoaks Boulevard 
Limits: Maclay Avenue to East City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 40 MPH (also 40 MPH posted speed limit to East in City of Los Angeles) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Newton Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 35 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 31 to 40 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85 th Percentile): 43 MPH 

Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 51% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 60 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.55 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 19,100 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: On 4/5/2021, City Council accepted major street improvement project that 
resulted in changed roadway conditions; commercial development at west end and industrial 
development at east end, residential development in center section; left turn lanes with raised 
medians at major intersections; on street parking allowed in areas without left turn lanes; bridge 
over wash at east end ; straight alignment. 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Ana lyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 21 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 1.83 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance With applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
ana lysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 43 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 45 MPH but the speed limit can be established at 40 MPH in Option 2, Example 3, retaining 
the existing speed limit of 40 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028, seven years 
from the date below. but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in accordance with Assembly 
Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 278 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 1.§ 
Street: Harding Avenue 
Limits: North City Limit to Glenoaks Boulevard 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Eighth Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 22 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 28 MPH 

10 Mile Pace Speed: 21 to 30 MPH 
Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 60% within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.53 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 1,700 vehicles Date Measured: 9/21/2021 
Existing Conditions: Adjacent fronting residential development with on street parking allowed on 
both sides: straight alignment; speed humps 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 3 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 3.04 collisions per million vehicles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared 1 o Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 28 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 30 MPH but the speed limit can be established at 25 MPH in Option 2. Example 3, retaining 
the existing speed limit of 25 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028, seven years 
from the date below. but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in accordance with Assembly 
Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 279 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 16 
Street: Harding Avenue 
Limits: Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Library Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 27 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 32 MPH 

10 Mile Pace Speed: 21 to 30 MPH 
Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 62% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width : 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.50 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 1 .400 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Adjacent fronting residential development with on street parking allowed on 
both sides; straight alignment; one speed hump north of Fourth Street 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 2 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation : In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 32 MPH should initially be rounded 
down to 30 MPH and the speed limit can be established at 25 MPH in Option 1. Example 1, 
retaining t11e exisling speed limit or 25 MPH . This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028, 
seven years from the date below, but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earl.ier in accordance 
with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8. 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 280 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 17 
Street: Harding Avenue 
Limits: Fourth Street to First Street 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o Second Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 23 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 21 to 30 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 29 MPH 

Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 58% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 40 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.25 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 1,340 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Adjacent fronting residential development with on street parking allowed on 
both sides; industrial development at south end: straight alignment; speed humps 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 1 collision 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2. 73 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 29 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 30 MPH but the speed limit can be established at 25 MPH in Option 1, Example 2. retaining 
the existing speed limit of 25 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028, seven years 
from the date below. but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in accordance with Assembly 
Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 281 of 443



" 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No. : ~ 
Street: Hubbard Street 
Limits: North City Limit at Fourth Street to South City Limit at San Fernando Road 
Existing Speed Limit: 35 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o Second Street 
Mean Speed (Average) : 34 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 29 thru 38 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 39 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 75% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 64 feet and variable Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.40 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 23,400 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development at Glenoaks Boulevard; fronting residential 
development to the north and south: left turn lanes at intersections and midblock; on street 
parking in certain areas; straight alignment; posted 35 MPH speed limit to the North and South 
in the City of Los Angeles 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 27 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.63 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition. this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
35 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 81 2021. 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 282 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: ~ 
Street: Maclay Avenue 
Limits: North City Limit to Glenoaks Boulevard 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH (also 30 MPH posted speed limit to North in City of Los Angeles) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o Lucas Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 33 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 31 to 40 MPH 
Percentages Related to Pace Speed : 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85 th Percentile): 39 MPH 

55% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 60 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes mid block: three at ends 
Segment Length: 0.52 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 14,600 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development on both sides; on street parking allowed on both 
sides with bulb outs: straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed : 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 24 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.69 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: Double the statewide rate 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 39 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 40 MPH but the speed limit can be established at 35 MPH in Option 2, Example 3, increasing 
the existing speed limit of 30 MPH to 35 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028. 
seven years from the date below, but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in accordance 
with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 283 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING ANO TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 20 
Street: Maclay Avenue 
Limits: Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH; 25 MPH When Children Are Present (elementary school) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o Fourth Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 29 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 26 to 35 MPH 
Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 34 MPH 

62% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 60 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes midblock; three at ends 
Segment Length: 0.50 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 13,200 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development with parallel parking and bulb outs on both sides: 
straight alignment; streetscape project 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 17 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.35 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 Californla MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 34 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 35 MPH but the speed limit can be established at 30 MPH in Option 2, Example 3, retaining 
the existing speed limit of 30 MPH when children are not present. This Survey requires 
reevaluation in Year 2028, seven years from the date below, but may be reviewed in Year 2024 
or earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 284 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: ~ 
Street: Maclay Avenue 
Limits: Fourth Street to Truman Street 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o First Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 19 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 27 MPH 

10 Mile Pace Speed: 16 to 25 MPH 
Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 52% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 34 feet and variable Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes from Fourth 
Street to First Street: four thru lanes from First Street to Truman Street 
Segment Length: 0.30 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 12.500 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development on both sides; angle parking on west side and 
parallel parking with bulb outs on east side; straight alignment; streetscape project 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Coll ision Period Analyzed : 1/1/2018 thru '12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 9 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.19 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 28.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 27 MPH should in itially be rounded 
down to 25 MPH . retaining the existing speed limit of 25 MPH. This Survey requires 
reevaluation in Year 2028, seven years from the date below, but may be reviewed in Year 2024 
or earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8. 2021. 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard. PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: - --- ------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 285 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 22 
Street: San Fernando Mission Boulevard 
Umits: Truman Street to South City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 35 MPH; 25 MPH When Children Are Present (elementary school) 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Hollister Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 29 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 24 thru 33 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 33 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 81% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width : 60 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.58 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 10.700 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development on both sides for majority of length: some 
fronting residential development on both sides at south end: left turn lanes and no on street 
parking from Pico Street north: no left turn lanes and parking allowed on both sides from Pico 
Street south; straight alignment. 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed : 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 13 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 1.91 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
35 MPH when children are not present. This Survey expires in Year 2024. three years from the 
date below. but may be reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on 
October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 286 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 23 
Street: Orange Grove Avenue 
Limits: North City Limit to Glenoaks Boulevard 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o Lucas Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 28 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 24 thru 33 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 31 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 84% within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 36 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.55 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 2.700 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Fronting residential development with parking allowed on both sides except 
immediately north of Glenoaks Boulevard to accommodate left turn lane: straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 4 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.46 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition. this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
25 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 287 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No. : 24 
Street: Orange Grove Avenue 
Limits: Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 
Existlng Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: N/o Library Street 
Mean Speed (Average) : 23 MPH 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85 th Percentile) : 28 MPH 

10 Mile Pace Speed: 21 to 30 MPH 
Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 66% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 36 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.50 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 1,250 vehicles Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Fronting residential development with parking allowed on both sides; 
Industrial development with parking allowed on both sides at First Street: straight alignment; 
speed humps 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 1 collision 
Calculated Collision Rate: 1.46 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 2B.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD. this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 28 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 30 MPH but the speed limit can be established at 25 MPH in Option 2, Example 3, retaining 
the existing speed limit of 25 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028, seven years 
from the date below, but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in accordance with Assembly 
Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 288 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 25 
Street Park Avenue 
Limits: Fourth Street to First Street 
Existing Speed Limit: 15 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Fourth Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 22 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 16 to 25 MPH 
Percentages Related to Pace Speed: 

Date Measured: 9/22/2021 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 29 MPH 

49% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 34 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.25 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 2.800 vehicles Date Measured: 09/22/2021 
Existing Conditions: Residential development on west side: park along east side; on street angle 
parking along entire west side and most of east side northerly from south end; on street parallel 
parking on east side at north end; straight alignment; midblock crosswalk at midpoint; speed 
humps and raised median 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 2 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: In accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and 
Section 2B.13 of the 2014 California MUTCD, this Engineering and Traffic Survey including the 
analysis of new speed measurements and traffic volumes as well as current collision 
characteristics indicates that the 85th percentile speed of 29 MPH should initially be rounded up 
to 30 MPH, but the speed limit can be established at 25 MPH in Option 2, Example 3, increasing 
the speed limit from 15 MPH to 25 MPH. This Survey requires reevaluation in Year 2028, seven 
years from the date below, but may be reviewed in Year 2024 or earlier in accordance with 
Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: __________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 289 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

SuNey No.: 26 
Street: San Fernando Road 
Limits: West City Limit to San Fernando Mission Boulevard 
Existing Speed Limit: 35 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Huntington Street 
Mean Speed (Average) : 34 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 28 thru 37 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 38 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 71 % within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 60 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length : 0.60 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 8,800 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial and industrial development with on street parking on both 
sides; no separate left turn lanes striped: straight alignment: marked pedestrian crosswalks at 
Huntington Street and at Kalisher Street 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 26 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 4.50 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: Much higher than average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are much higher than the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable prov1s1ons of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition. this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
35 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 290 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 27 
Street: San Fernando Road (Mall) 
Limits: San Fernando Mission Boulevard to Kittridge Street 
Existing Speed Limit 20 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Maclay Avenue 
Mean Speed (Average): 21 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 17 thru 26 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 24 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 84% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 24 feet and varlable Number of Lanes (Both Directions) : Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.25 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 4,900 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development on both sides; narrow meandering roadway with 
angle parking alternating from north side to south side 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 4 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.98 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RES UL TS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition . this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
20 MPH on this narrow street. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date 
below. but may be reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 
2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
Californ ia Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 291 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 28 
Street: San Fernando Road 
Limits: Kittridge Street to East City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 30 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Chatsworth Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 30 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 24 thru 33 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 33 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 78% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 60 feet and variable Number of Lanes (Both Directions) : Two thru lanes west 
of Chatsworth Drive; four thru lanes east of Chatsworth Drive 
Segment Length: 0.33 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 6,100 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development with on street parking allowed on both sides; 
marked pedestrian crosswalks at Chatsworth Drive and midblock to the east: horizontal curve 
east of Jessie Street 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 9 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 4.08 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: Much higher than average. 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are much higher than the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 28.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
30 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021. 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 292 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 29 
Street: Seventh Street 
Limits: West City Limit to Maclay Avenue 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Fermoore Street 
Mean Speed (Average) : 25 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 20 thru 29 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 27 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 86% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 36 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.75 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 1,900 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Fronting residential development with on street parking allowed on both 
sides; commercial development on both sides at Maclay Avenue: straight alignment; speed 
humps 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 4 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.56 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
25 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Bro hard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: _________ _ 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 293 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 30 
Street: Truman Street 
Limits: West City Limit to Maclay Avenue 
Existing Speed Limit: 35 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: W/o Huntington Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 35 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 31 thru 40 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile) : 40 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed : 75% within pace 

I ROADWAY DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 64 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.70 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 12,100 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial and industrial development on both sides: left turn lanes east 
of Workman Street with no on street parking: on street parking on both sides west of Workman 
Street: horizontal curve east of Workman Street otherwise straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 20 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.16 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed, and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition. this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
35 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 294 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: fil 
Street: Truman Street 
Limits: Maclay Avenue to East City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 35 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: E/o Kittridge Street 
Mean Speed (Average): 33 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 29 thru 38 MPH 

Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Critical Speed (85th Percentile): 37 MPH 

Percentage Related to Pace Speed: 78% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width: 64 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Four thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.45 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 16.800 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development on both sides; left turn lanes with no on street 
parking allowed except for short midblock segment east of Brand Boulevard which provides on 
street parking; horizontal curves east of Brand Boulevard 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Collisions: 22 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.66 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.34 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed , and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
35 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below. but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8. 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard, PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----------

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 295 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY 

TO ESTABLISH AN ENFORCABLE SPEED LIMIT 

Survey No.: 32 
Street: Workman Street 
Limits: San Fernando Road to South City Limit 
Existing Speed Limit: 25 MPH 

I SPEEDS 

Location of Survey: S/o Pico Street Date Measured: 11/6/2014 
Mean Speed (Average): 25 MPH Critical Speed (85 th Percentile) : 27 MPH 
10 Mile Pace Speed: 21 thru 30 MPH 
Percentage Related to Pace Speed : 89% within pace 

I ROADWA y DESIGN AND TRAFFIC CHARACTERISTICS 

Width : 36 feet Number of Lanes (Both Directions): Two thru lanes 
Segment Length: 0.55 miles 
Average Daily Traffic: 5,300 vehicles Date Measured: 11/13/2014 
Existing Conditions: Commercial development with on street parking allowed on both sides at 
north end and on west side at south end; residential development with on street parking allowed 
on both sides for rest of segment; straight alignment 

I COLLISION CHARACTERISTICS 

Collision Period Analyzed: 1/1/2018 thru 12/31/2020 (3 years) 
Total Number of Midblock Coll isions: 9 collisions 
Calculated Collision Rate: 2.82 collisions per million vehicle miles 
Statewide Average Collision Rate: 1.61 col lisions per million veh icle miles 
Calculated Collision Rate Compared to Statewide Average Rate: About average 

I SURVEY RESULTS 

Recommendation: The January 20, 2015, Engineering and Traffic Survey collected new traffic 
data summarized above including vehicle speeds and traffic volumes. The current update of this 
survey found that roadway characteristics have not changed , and the traffic collision 
characteristics for the last three years are about equal to the statewide average rate. In 
accordance with applicable provisions of the California Vehicle Code and Section 2B.13 of the 
California MUTCD 2014 Edition, this Engineering and Traffic Survey retains the speed limit of 
25 MPH. This Survey expires in Year 2024, three years from the date below, but may be 
reviewed earlier in accordance with Assembly Bill 43 approved on October 8, 2021 . 

Prepared by: Tom Brohard , PE 
California Civil Engineer #C24577 
California Traffic Engineer #TR724 
Date: ----- -----

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 296 of 443



 2018 - 2020 Collision Rates
For 32 Street Segments

Traffic 2018 - 2020 Roadway Collision Expected Higher Than
Street Limits Volume Collisions Length Rate* Rate* Expected?

1 Arroyo Avenue North City Boundary to Glenoaks Boulevard 9,700 3 0.55 0.51 1.61

2 Arroyo Avenue Glenoaks Boulevard to Fifth Street 3,100 2 0.25 2.36 1.61

3 Brand Boulevard Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 5,200 5 0.50 1.76 1.61

4 Brand Boulevard Fourth Street to Truman Street 10,100 7 0.30 2.11 1.61

5 Brand Boulevard Truman Street to South City Boundary 14,000 24 0.60 2.61 1.34

6 Chatsworth Drive San Fernando Road to South City Boundary 3,100 5 0.55 2.68 1.61

7 Eighth Street West City Boundary to Maclay Avenue 1,200 2 0.78 1.95 1.61

8 Fifth Street West City Boundary to Maclay Avenue 2,800 6 0.70 2.80 1.61

9 Fifth Street Maclay Avenue to East City Boundary 3,600 5 0.55 2.31 1.61

10 First Street Hubbard Street to Maclay Avenue 3,400 7 0.70 2.69 1.61

11 Fourth Street West City Boundary to Maclay Avenue 4,400 7 0.75 1.94 1.61

12 Fourth Street Maclay Avenue to East City Boundary 5,900 9 0.55 2.53 1.61

13 Glenoaks Boulevard West City Boundary to Maclay Avenue 18,400 26 0.73 1.77 1.34

14 Glenoaks Boulevard Maclay Avenue to East City Boundary 19,100 21 0.55 1.83 1.34

15 Harding Avenue North City Boundary to Glenoaks Boulevard 1,700 3 0.53 3.04 1.61

16 Harding Avenue Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 1,400 2 0.50 2.61 1.61

17 Harding Avenue Fourth Street to First Street 1,340 1 0.25 2.73 1.61

18 Hubbard Street North City Boundary to South City Boundary 23,400 27 0.40 2.63 1.34

19 Maclay Avenue North City Boundary to Glenoaks Boulevard 14,800 24 0.55 2.69 1.34

20 Maclay Avenue Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 13,200 17 0.50 2.35 1.34

21 Maclay Avenue Fourth Street to First Street 12,500 9 0.30 2.19 1.34

22 Mission Boulevard Truman Street to South City Boundary 10,700 13 0.58 1.91 1.34

23 Orange Grove Avenue North City Boundary to Glenoaks Boulevard 2,700 4 0.55 2.46 1.61

24 Orange Grove Avenue Glenoaks Boulevard to Fourth Street 1,250 1 0.50 1.46 1.61

25 Park Avenue Fourth Street to First Street 2,800 2 0.25 2.61 1.61

26 San Fernando Road West City Boundary to Mission Boulevard 8,800 26 0.60 4.50 1.34 Yes

27 San Fernando Road (Mall) Mission Boulevard to Brand Boulevard 4,900 4 0.25 2.98 1.61

28 San Fernando Road Brand Boulevard to East City Boundary 6,100 9 0.33 4.08 1.34 Yes

29 Seventh Street West City Boundary to Maclay Avenue 1,900 4 0.75 2.56 1.61

30 Truman Street West City Boundary to Maclay Avenue 12,100 20 0.70 2.16 1.34

31 Truman Street Maclay Avenue to East City Boundary 16,800 22 0.45 2.66 1.34

32 Workman Street San Fernando Road to South City Boundary 5,300 9 0.55 2.82 1.61

 
*Collisions Per Million 

Vehicle Miles 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 297 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Arroyo Avenue
B/ Bordon Street - Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD002
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 7 4 8 8 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 33
01:00 0 0 0 7 1 2 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 14
02:00 0 0 0 6 8 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19
03:00 0 2 2 4 13 19 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
04:00 2 0 2 12 41 37 30 9 2 0 2 0 0 0 137
05:00 9 3 14 25 53 36 15 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 158
06:00 10 4 17 50 48 24 8 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 164
07:00 40 20 69 154 74 20 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 381
08:00 58 17 41 56 48 16 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 242
09:00 11 12 14 49 41 30 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 164
10:00 11 8 25 60 49 32 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 191
11:00 8 9 12 32 60 43 9 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 177

12 PM 16 11 8 40 59 36 13 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 186
13:00 8 4 16 49 64 37 6 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 186
14:00 19 10 13 70 68 42 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 228
15:00 57 11 52 100 55 14 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 297
16:00 36 8 22 58 80 39 7 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 254
17:00 17 3 18 48 69 51 15 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 223
18:00 17 3 11 47 61 34 8 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 185
19:00 4 1 5 26 31 26 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 102
20:00 4 0 2 20 26 23 9 2 1 0 0 1 0 0 88
21:00 0 0 2 6 15 14 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 42
22:00 2 0 1 9 12 9 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
23:00 1 0 0 4 8 15 6 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 38
Total 330 126 353 936 992 609 185 41 10 3 3 2 0 2 3592

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 21 MPH

50th Percentile : 30 MPH
85th Percentile : 37 MPH
95th Percentile : 41 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 30 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 26-35  MPH
Number in Pace : 1928
Percent in Pace : 53.7%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 10
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.3%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 298 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Arroyo Avenue
B/ Bordon Street - Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD002
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 0 3 4 10 14 7 4 2 1 0 0 0 0 46
01:00 2 0 1 5 8 7 10 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 40
02:00 0 0 1 6 13 18 8 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 52
03:00 1 0 2 5 13 24 28 10 2 3 0 0 0 0 88
04:00 3 1 4 15 32 19 13 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 90
05:00 3 3 21 31 44 39 17 7 2 0 1 0 0 0 168
06:00 14 13 33 45 96 57 24 3 3 1 0 0 0 0 289
07:00 80 20 71 127 105 51 10 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 469
08:00 144 38 24 27 34 19 9 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 298
09:00 9 10 18 70 109 70 22 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 315
10:00 16 3 17 69 119 57 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300
11:00 9 4 15 70 134 68 20 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 324

12 PM 8 4 11 49 98 85 31 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 290
13:00 14 11 24 83 116 64 17 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 336
14:00 9 2 5 61 139 90 23 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 333
15:00 175 40 44 78 62 30 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 434
16:00 114 33 55 85 128 78 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 503
17:00 26 18 23 119 169 134 38 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 531
18:00 19 3 21 85 152 139 27 6 1 0 0 1 0 0 454
19:00 4 0 6 25 82 86 38 14 6 2 0 0 0 0 263
20:00 3 0 1 15 47 60 31 12 4 2 0 0 0 0 175
21:00 0 1 0 8 20 42 26 10 5 1 1 0 0 0 114
22:00 1 0 0 4 22 32 15 11 5 2 0 0 0 0 92
23:00 1 0 0 4 11 10 21 19 1 1 2 0 0 1 71
Total 656 204 400 1090 1763 1293 468 139 43 13 4 1 0 1 6075

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 20 MPH

50th Percentile : 31 MPH
85th Percentile : 39 MPH
95th Percentile : 43 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 31 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 3056
Percent in Pace : 50.3%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 19
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.3%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 299 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Arroyo Avenue
B/ Bordon Street - Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD002
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 0 10 8 18 22 11 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 79
01:00 2 0 1 12 9 9 13 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 54
02:00 0 0 1 12 21 20 11 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 71
03:00 1 2 4 9 26 43 33 11 2 3 0 0 0 0 134
04:00 5 1 6 27 73 56 43 12 2 0 2 0 0 0 227
05:00 12 6 35 56 97 75 32 9 3 0 1 0 0 0 326
06:00 24 17 50 95 144 81 32 5 4 1 0 0 0 0 453
07:00 120 40 140 281 179 71 14 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 850
08:00 202 55 65 83 82 35 13 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 540
09:00 20 22 32 119 150 100 28 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 479
10:00 27 11 42 129 168 89 23 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 491
11:00 17 13 27 102 194 111 29 5 2 0 0 1 0 0 501

12 PM 24 15 19 89 157 121 44 5 1 1 0 0 0 0 476
13:00 22 15 40 132 180 101 23 5 3 0 0 0 0 1 522
14:00 28 12 18 131 207 132 27 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 561
15:00 232 51 96 178 117 44 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 731
16:00 150 41 77 143 208 117 16 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 757
17:00 43 21 41 167 238 185 53 3 2 1 0 0 0 0 754
18:00 36 6 32 132 213 173 35 8 2 0 1 1 0 0 639
19:00 8 1 11 51 113 112 46 15 6 2 0 0 0 0 365
20:00 7 0 3 35 73 83 40 14 5 2 0 1 0 0 263
21:00 0 1 2 14 35 56 29 12 5 1 1 0 0 0 156
22:00 3 0 1 13 34 41 19 11 5 2 0 0 0 0 129
23:00 2 0 0 8 19 25 27 22 1 2 2 0 0 1 109
Total 986 330 753 2026 2755 1902 653 180 53 16 7 3 0 3 9667

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 20 MPH

50th Percentile : 31 MPH
85th Percentile : 38 MPH
95th Percentile : 43 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 30 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 26-35  MPH
Number in Pace : 4781
Percent in Pace : 49.5%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 29
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.3%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 300 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Glenoaks Boulevard
W/ Fermoore Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD011
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Eastbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 3 13 28 18 5 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 69
01:00 1 0 2 7 11 13 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 39
02:00 0 0 1 6 11 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27
03:00 0 1 0 4 20 11 6 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 44
04:00 0 0 1 27 47 27 14 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 127
05:00 3 0 6 39 125 65 20 12 3 0 0 0 0 0 273
06:00 4 0 10 79 200 113 81 37 11 2 1 0 0 0 538
07:00 17 2 7 100 426 225 120 26 6 0 0 0 0 0 929
08:00 6 0 7 75 314 163 91 37 5 0 1 0 0 0 699
09:00 9 3 9 61 154 126 79 23 5 3 0 0 0 0 472
10:00 9 0 14 83 144 126 50 16 6 1 0 0 0 0 449
11:00 7 1 6 54 153 127 74 21 3 3 0 0 0 0 449

12 PM 11 1 9 63 191 131 95 18 6 2 1 0 0 0 528
13:00 9 1 18 51 188 130 72 17 9 0 0 0 0 0 495
14:00 14 1 8 76 203 155 95 27 8 0 0 0 0 0 587
15:00 14 1 5 106 272 169 77 18 2 0 0 0 0 0 664
16:00 16 2 18 80 259 188 71 14 2 1 0 0 0 0 651
17:00 7 0 11 104 251 140 78 18 4 1 0 0 0 0 614
18:00 7 1 17 148 199 110 58 19 3 0 1 0 0 0 563
19:00 8 0 21 89 212 89 29 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 459
20:00 3 3 8 87 178 94 15 6 3 0 0 0 0 0 397
21:00 4 1 1 53 103 62 25 7 1 2 0 0 0 0 259
22:00 0 2 8 37 69 40 15 10 3 0 0 0 0 0 184
23:00 0 0 5 18 54 32 5 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 120
Total 149 20 195 1460 3812 2362 1180 355 81 17 4 1 0 0 9636

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 28 MPH

50th Percentile : 33 MPH
85th Percentile : 40 MPH
95th Percentile : 44 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 35 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 6174
Percent in Pace : 64.1%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 22
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.2%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 301 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Glenoaks Boulevard
W/ Fermoore Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD011
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Westbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 1 11 28 21 11 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 78
01:00 0 2 2 4 13 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26
02:00 1 0 2 14 5 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 31
03:00 0 3 1 13 7 0 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 28
04:00 0 1 9 32 13 8 4 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 71
05:00 2 7 27 40 33 22 12 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 149
06:00 3 2 15 42 51 48 45 21 9 1 0 0 0 0 237
07:00 26 7 40 76 120 106 72 22 11 0 0 0 0 0 480
08:00 25 36 56 93 126 152 51 11 4 1 0 0 0 0 555
09:00 9 5 24 45 92 99 46 18 3 0 0 0 0 0 341
10:00 3 5 34 46 80 104 50 19 9 0 0 0 0 0 350
11:00 9 16 40 86 85 119 60 17 4 2 1 0 0 0 439

12 PM 15 22 57 97 115 112 44 14 2 1 0 0 0 0 479
13:00 5 10 47 82 116 127 70 23 1 2 0 0 0 0 483
14:00 19 18 59 93 113 167 72 18 2 2 0 0 0 1 564
15:00 64 76 131 160 175 97 35 13 1 0 0 0 0 0 752
16:00 87 69 138 186 180 81 30 2 5 0 1 0 0 0 779
17:00 64 63 138 156 198 114 32 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 769
18:00 46 51 106 186 173 81 18 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 671
19:00 79 60 108 94 75 52 21 1 2 1 1 0 0 0 494
20:00 30 37 67 94 78 51 15 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 375
21:00 4 23 70 80 73 26 17 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 296
22:00 4 6 29 62 38 24 9 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 174
23:00 1 6 16 26 28 16 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 101
Total 496 526 1227 1835 2008 1628 718 207 61 12 3 0 0 1 8722

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 21 MPH

50th Percentile : 30 MPH
85th Percentile : 39 MPH
95th Percentile : 43 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 31 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 26-35  MPH
Number in Pace : 3843
Percent in Pace : 44.1%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 16
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.2%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 302 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Glenoaks Boulevard
W/ Fermoore Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD011
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Eastbound, Westbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 1 14 41 49 29 9 2 0 1 0 1 0 0 147
01:00 1 2 4 11 24 18 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 65
02:00 1 0 3 20 16 14 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 58
03:00 0 4 1 17 27 11 9 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 72
04:00 0 1 10 59 60 35 18 11 4 0 0 0 0 0 198
05:00 5 7 33 79 158 87 32 14 7 0 0 0 0 0 422
06:00 7 2 25 121 251 161 126 58 20 3 1 0 0 0 775
07:00 43 9 47 176 546 331 192 48 17 0 0 0 0 0 1409
08:00 31 36 63 168 440 315 142 48 9 1 1 0 0 0 1254
09:00 18 8 33 106 246 225 125 41 8 3 0 0 0 0 813
10:00 12 5 48 129 224 230 100 35 15 1 0 0 0 0 799
11:00 16 17 46 140 238 246 134 38 7 5 1 0 0 0 888

12 PM 26 23 66 160 306 243 139 32 8 3 1 0 0 0 1007
13:00 14 11 65 133 304 257 142 40 10 2 0 0 0 0 978
14:00 33 19 67 169 316 322 167 45 10 2 0 0 0 1 1151
15:00 78 77 136 266 447 266 112 31 3 0 0 0 0 0 1416
16:00 103 71 156 266 439 269 101 16 7 1 1 0 0 0 1430
17:00 71 63 149 260 449 254 110 21 5 1 0 0 0 0 1383
18:00 53 52 123 334 372 191 76 29 3 0 1 0 0 0 1234
19:00 87 60 129 183 287 141 50 12 2 1 1 0 0 0 953
20:00 33 40 75 181 256 145 30 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 772
21:00 8 24 71 133 176 88 42 9 1 3 0 0 0 0 555
22:00 4 8 37 99 107 64 24 12 3 0 0 0 0 0 358
23:00 1 6 21 44 82 48 11 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 221
Total 645 546 1422 3295 5820 3990 1898 562 142 29 7 1 0 1 18358

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 25 MPH

50th Percentile : 32 MPH
85th Percentile : 39 MPH
95th Percentile : 44 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 33 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 9810
Percent in Pace : 53.4%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 38
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.2%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 303 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Glenoaks Boulevard
E/ Newton Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD012
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Eastbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 2 1 0 1 9 16 27 16 7 4 1 1 0 0 85
01:00 0 0 1 1 7 16 13 12 7 2 0 3 0 0 62
02:00 0 4 0 2 4 9 18 7 2 3 0 0 0 0 49
03:00 8 0 0 1 9 13 30 25 6 3 2 0 0 0 97
04:00 8 4 0 3 15 63 73 41 21 16 5 0 0 0 249
05:00 22 6 8 23 46 132 123 75 29 13 3 1 0 0 481
06:00 25 5 21 50 137 194 175 77 21 4 4 0 0 0 713
07:00 91 59 100 131 204 188 83 23 7 0 0 0 0 0 886
08:00 28 15 21 70 144 220 154 77 13 4 2 0 0 0 748
09:00 12 4 19 38 114 138 165 86 15 7 0 1 0 0 599
10:00 8 3 8 38 98 162 142 82 16 5 3 0 0 0 565
11:00 7 4 3 25 69 173 150 66 16 8 1 0 0 0 522

12 PM 11 2 4 39 120 181 136 53 13 5 3 1 0 0 568
13:00 13 8 15 35 75 204 148 68 14 6 0 0 0 0 586
14:00 15 9 13 41 89 216 167 61 20 6 1 1 0 0 639
15:00 31 15 40 96 186 184 95 24 10 0 0 0 0 0 681
16:00 14 5 16 71 156 211 124 38 16 0 0 0 0 0 651
17:00 25 26 44 71 143 185 106 35 9 6 2 0 0 0 652
18:00 24 22 30 68 151 177 79 36 4 0 0 0 0 0 591
19:00 6 6 19 56 130 153 70 35 11 4 0 0 0 0 490
20:00 4 0 17 30 112 121 96 40 11 3 3 0 0 0 437
21:00 2 2 1 13 41 105 74 41 15 2 0 0 0 0 296
22:00 1 0 4 10 36 51 58 23 22 6 4 0 0 1 216
23:00 2 1 3 3 21 35 43 30 17 6 3 2 0 0 166
Total 359 201 387 916 2116 3147 2349 1071 322 113 37 10 0 1 11029

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 28 MPH

50th Percentile : 37 MPH
85th Percentile : 44 MPH
95th Percentile : 49 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 37 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 36-45  MPH
Number in Pace : 5496
Percent in Pace : 49.8%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 161
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1.5%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 304 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Glenoaks Boulevard
E/ Newton Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD012
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Westbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 0 0 10 14 18 21 7 3 0 0 0 0 0 74
01:00 0 0 1 3 4 7 9 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 28
02:00 0 0 2 4 7 9 10 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 36
03:00 2 0 0 2 8 10 9 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 35
04:00 0 0 2 5 19 23 18 8 3 1 0 0 1 0 80
05:00 7 2 2 16 41 35 32 9 4 0 0 0 0 0 148
06:00 6 3 13 21 66 63 23 6 5 1 0 0 0 0 207
07:00 11 4 15 78 165 113 42 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 440
08:00 6 4 23 116 186 131 49 9 2 0 0 0 0 0 526
09:00 5 5 18 57 102 83 40 14 3 0 0 0 0 0 327
10:00 5 1 9 47 136 116 40 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 362
11:00 11 4 29 78 111 95 47 10 4 1 0 0 0 0 390

12 PM 10 3 14 81 139 117 49 7 2 3 0 0 0 0 425
13:00 9 4 25 71 133 109 51 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 414
14:00 12 13 26 79 165 141 52 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 495
15:00 23 11 55 182 240 109 33 2 3 1 0 0 0 0 659
16:00 48 32 52 193 250 161 50 7 3 1 0 0 0 0 797
17:00 44 51 88 189 187 97 32 8 2 0 0 0 0 0 698
18:00 29 31 72 161 185 90 26 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 600
19:00 23 9 32 113 148 99 32 4 4 1 1 0 0 0 466
20:00 8 5 19 59 99 95 29 12 2 3 0 1 0 0 332
21:00 4 1 12 41 82 72 36 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 254
22:00 2 0 4 17 39 47 39 20 5 2 0 0 0 0 175
23:00 1 1 2 8 27 38 22 14 2 2 0 0 0 0 117
Total 267 184 515 1631 2553 1878 791 189 56 18 1 1 1 0 8085

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 25 MPH

50th Percentile : 32 MPH
85th Percentile : 39 MPH
95th Percentile : 44 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 33 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 4431
Percent in Pace : 54.8%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 21
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.3%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 305 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Glenoaks Boulevard
E/ Newton Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD012
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Eastbound, Westbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 3 1 0 11 23 34 48 23 10 4 1 1 0 0 159
01:00 0 0 2 4 11 23 22 15 8 2 0 3 0 0 90
02:00 0 4 2 6 11 18 28 10 3 3 0 0 0 0 85
03:00 10 0 0 3 17 23 39 27 7 4 2 0 0 0 132
04:00 8 4 2 8 34 86 91 49 24 17 5 0 1 0 329
05:00 29 8 10 39 87 167 155 84 33 13 3 1 0 0 629
06:00 31 8 34 71 203 257 198 83 26 5 4 0 0 0 920
07:00 102 63 115 209 369 301 125 34 8 0 0 0 0 0 1326
08:00 34 19 44 186 330 351 203 86 15 4 2 0 0 0 1274
09:00 17 9 37 95 216 221 205 100 18 7 0 1 0 0 926
10:00 13 4 17 85 234 278 182 88 18 5 3 0 0 0 927
11:00 18 8 32 103 180 268 197 76 20 9 1 0 0 0 912

12 PM 21 5 18 120 259 298 185 60 15 8 3 1 0 0 993
13:00 22 12 40 106 208 313 199 79 15 6 0 0 0 0 1000
14:00 27 22 39 120 254 357 219 68 20 6 1 1 0 0 1134
15:00 54 26 95 278 426 293 128 26 13 1 0 0 0 0 1340
16:00 62 37 68 264 406 372 174 45 19 1 0 0 0 0 1448
17:00 69 77 132 260 330 282 138 43 11 6 2 0 0 0 1350
18:00 53 53 102 229 336 267 105 40 6 0 0 0 0 0 1191
19:00 29 15 51 169 278 252 102 39 15 5 1 0 0 0 956
20:00 12 5 36 89 211 216 125 52 13 6 3 1 0 0 769
21:00 6 3 13 54 123 177 110 46 15 3 0 0 0 0 550
22:00 3 0 8 27 75 98 97 43 27 8 4 0 0 1 391
23:00 3 2 5 11 48 73 65 44 19 8 3 2 0 0 283
Total 626 385 902 2547 4669 5025 3140 1260 378 131 38 11 1 1 19114

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 26 MPH

50th Percentile : 35 MPH
85th Percentile : 43 MPH
95th Percentile : 48 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 35 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 9694
Percent in Pace : 50.7%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 182
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 306 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
S/ Eighth Street / Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD003
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
01:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
02:00 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
03:00 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
04:00 0 3 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
05:00 2 1 5 3 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
06:00 3 2 6 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
07:00 3 14 19 12 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50
08:00 7 12 19 21 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 65
09:00 2 9 13 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32
10:00 4 11 15 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
11:00 3 7 13 13 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41

12 PM 6 10 11 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39
13:00 1 3 13 17 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40
14:00 6 9 15 24 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60
15:00 9 15 24 23 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 73
16:00 11 14 23 14 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70
17:00 7 25 33 30 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 99
18:00 26 29 20 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 87
19:00 7 14 26 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 57
20:00 2 10 12 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30
21:00 1 6 8 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
22:00 0 1 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9
23:00 1 3 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
Total 103 200 285 216 52 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 860

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 15 MPH

50th Percentile : 22 MPH
85th Percentile : 28 MPH
95th Percentile : 31 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 22 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 501
Percent in Pace : 58.3%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 307 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
S/ Eighth Street / Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD003
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 1 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
01:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
02:00 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:00 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
04:00 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
05:00 2 0 3 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
06:00 3 4 11 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30
07:00 5 8 28 34 14 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 90
08:00 8 12 23 19 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 65
09:00 8 5 8 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30
10:00 3 4 12 12 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
11:00 8 6 20 10 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48

12 PM 2 5 15 14 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40
13:00 3 9 10 13 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36
14:00 8 9 16 16 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 54
15:00 10 18 18 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55
16:00 12 13 28 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 66
17:00 4 12 29 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52
18:00 15 18 25 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 71
19:00 13 23 25 11 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 76
20:00 5 5 18 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36
21:00 2 2 13 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23
22:00 1 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
23:00 0 2 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Total 115 159 312 203 52 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 843

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 15 MPH

50th Percentile : 22 MPH
85th Percentile : 28 MPH
95th Percentile : 31 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 22 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 515
Percent in Pace : 61.1%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 308 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
S/ Eighth Street / Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD003
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 3 2 4 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10
01:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
02:00 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
03:00 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
04:00 1 4 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
05:00 4 1 8 7 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25
06:00 6 6 17 14 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45
07:00 8 22 47 46 16 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 140
08:00 15 24 42 40 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 130
09:00 10 14 21 14 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62
10:00 7 15 27 19 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 71
11:00 11 13 33 23 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89

12 PM 8 15 26 23 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 79
13:00 4 12 23 30 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 76
14:00 14 18 31 40 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 114
15:00 19 33 42 31 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 128
16:00 23 27 51 25 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 136
17:00 11 37 62 37 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 151
18:00 41 47 45 20 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 158
19:00 20 37 51 20 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 133
20:00 7 15 30 11 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 66
21:00 3 8 21 12 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 47
22:00 1 3 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17
23:00 1 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
Total 218 359 597 419 104 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1703

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 15 MPH

50th Percentile : 22 MPH
85th Percentile : 28 MPH
95th Percentile : 31 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 22 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 1016
Percent in Pace : 59.7%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 309 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD004RD
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 2 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
01:00 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
02:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
03:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
04:00 2 0 2 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10
05:00 1 1 1 6 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14
06:00 1 2 7 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22
07:00 3 4 11 33 7 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62
08:00 1 2 11 23 13 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 53
09:00 4 3 8 8 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27
10:00 5 2 7 8 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
11:00 0 5 8 10 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32

12 PM 5 2 9 6 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
13:00 2 4 8 10 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
14:00 3 2 7 24 10 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50
15:00 0 5 5 25 13 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51
16:00 1 2 19 30 11 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 67
17:00 6 5 16 22 18 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 71
18:00 11 5 11 22 5 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 56
19:00 1 3 13 15 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36
20:00 1 7 10 4 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 27
21:00 1 3 9 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18
22:00 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
23:00 0 0 1 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
Total 48 60 166 267 126 29 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 700

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 19 MPH

50th Percentile : 26 MPH
85th Percentile : 32 MPH
95th Percentile : 34 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 26 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 433
Percent in Pace : 61.9%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.1%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 310 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD004RD
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
01:00 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
02:00 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:00 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
04:00 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
05:00 1 0 2 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
06:00 3 1 3 9 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20
07:00 0 5 15 28 33 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 91
08:00 0 3 12 15 17 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48
09:00 3 4 10 10 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 33
10:00 0 2 4 8 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19
11:00 0 1 7 12 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29

12 PM 2 2 6 12 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28
13:00 5 2 5 14 11 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41
14:00 1 2 8 23 13 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 53
15:00 1 1 9 16 14 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 45
16:00 2 2 17 26 12 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 65
17:00 3 2 17 33 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 61
18:00 5 0 8 17 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41
19:00 0 3 12 11 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 33
20:00 1 3 12 14 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 33
21:00 0 0 4 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11
22:00 0 1 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
23:00 0 4 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Total 28 40 155 265 157 34 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 687

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 21 MPH

50th Percentile : 27 MPH
85th Percentile : 33 MPH
95th Percentile : 36 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 27 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 25-34  MPH
Number in Pace : 422
Percent in Pace : 61.4%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 311 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD004RD
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 3 1 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9
01:00 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
02:00 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:00 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
04:00 2 0 2 4 4 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14
05:00 2 1 3 8 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22
06:00 4 3 10 18 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 42
07:00 3 9 26 61 40 13 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 153
08:00 1 5 23 38 30 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 101
09:00 7 7 18 18 7 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60
10:00 5 4 11 16 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 43
11:00 0 6 15 22 17 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 61

12 PM 7 4 15 18 10 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 57
13:00 7 6 13 24 20 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75
14:00 4 4 15 47 23 8 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 103
15:00 1 6 14 41 27 6 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 96
16:00 3 4 36 56 23 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 132
17:00 9 7 33 55 23 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 132
18:00 16 5 19 39 16 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 97
19:00 1 6 25 26 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 69
20:00 2 10 22 18 5 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 60
21:00 1 3 13 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
22:00 0 1 5 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14
23:00 0 4 2 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11
Total 76 100 321 532 283 63 9 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 1387

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 20 MPH

50th Percentile : 26 MPH
85th Percentile : 32 MPH
95th Percentile : 35 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 27 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 853
Percent in Pace : 61.5%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.1%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 312 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - First Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD005
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
01:00 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
02:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
03:00 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
04:00 0 2 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
05:00 4 2 6 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14
06:00 2 4 6 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17
07:00 11 21 16 9 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62
08:00 2 5 10 12 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32
09:00 5 3 8 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22
10:00 0 4 5 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18
11:00 0 5 7 11 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27

12 PM 1 1 11 6 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
13:00 2 6 14 15 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40
14:00 7 3 15 12 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 42
15:00 3 12 16 13 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55
16:00 3 9 19 16 10 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 59
17:00 2 8 24 22 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64
18:00 4 11 12 15 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 44
19:00 13 8 11 10 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
20:00 3 14 12 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35
21:00 0 5 6 4 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17
22:00 1 3 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11
23:00 2 3 1 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10
Total 65 130 205 173 65 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 648

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 16 MPH

50th Percentile : 23 MPH
85th Percentile : 29 MPH
95th Percentile : 33 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 23 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 378
Percent in Pace : 58.3%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 313 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - First Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD005
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
01:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
02:00 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:00 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
04:00 0 1 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
05:00 3 1 6 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14
06:00 5 4 12 5 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 32
07:00 5 14 26 34 21 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 103
08:00 6 10 7 22 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51
09:00 0 1 8 9 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
10:00 4 4 11 6 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28
11:00 0 3 6 10 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24

12 PM 2 3 6 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
13:00 3 6 10 10 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
14:00 6 12 13 10 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 49
15:00 5 10 22 15 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 57
16:00 5 13 13 17 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 53
17:00 5 8 13 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
18:00 3 12 7 8 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
19:00 4 7 13 15 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 42
20:00 5 12 15 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40
21:00 2 2 9 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
22:00 1 7 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
23:00 0 1 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Total 64 131 202 199 84 11 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 692

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 16 MPH

50th Percentile : 23 MPH
85th Percentile : 29 MPH
95th Percentile : 33 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 24 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 401
Percent in Pace : 57.9%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 314 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Harding Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - First Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD005
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
01:00 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
02:00 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:00 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
04:00 0 3 2 2 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
05:00 7 3 12 2 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28
06:00 7 8 18 8 7 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 49
07:00 16 35 42 43 25 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 165
08:00 8 15 17 34 6 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 83
09:00 5 4 16 13 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
10:00 4 8 16 13 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
11:00 0 8 13 21 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51

12 PM 3 4 17 17 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48
13:00 5 12 24 25 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 74
14:00 13 15 28 22 12 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 91
15:00 8 22 38 28 15 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 112
16:00 8 22 32 33 15 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 112
17:00 7 16 37 32 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 101
18:00 7 23 19 23 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 78
19:00 17 15 24 25 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 88
20:00 8 26 27 11 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75
21:00 2 7 15 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 33
22:00 2 10 5 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23
23:00 2 4 3 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
Total 129 261 407 372 149 20 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1340

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 16 MPH

50th Percentile : 23 MPH
85th Percentile : 29 MPH
95th Percentile : 33 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 23 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 779
Percent in Pace : 58.1%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 315 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ S/Eighth Street - Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD006
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 3 7 11 14 4 4 1 1 0 0 0 0 45
01:00 0 0 1 3 4 6 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 17
02:00 0 0 1 3 4 4 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 18
03:00 1 0 0 2 7 4 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 22
04:00 0 2 1 3 14 15 7 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 44
05:00 1 1 3 14 32 45 16 9 5 1 0 0 0 0 127
06:00 0 2 7 29 72 52 29 9 1 1 0 0 0 0 202
07:00 4 8 27 71 137 103 39 11 3 0 0 0 0 0 403
08:00 5 1 19 69 145 109 42 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 400
09:00 8 6 11 59 94 61 26 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 269
10:00 7 7 24 57 84 61 36 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 279
11:00 10 9 30 68 129 85 26 8 1 1 0 0 0 0 367

12 PM 5 6 22 50 105 116 37 8 4 1 1 0 0 0 355
13:00 18 12 34 59 90 79 31 12 1 1 0 0 0 0 337
14:00 14 15 24 65 126 102 59 15 3 0 0 0 0 0 423
15:00 5 8 51 134 176 97 42 7 4 0 0 0 0 0 524
16:00 9 23 59 122 243 126 35 8 3 0 0 0 0 0 628
17:00 18 17 55 159 224 112 40 13 4 0 0 0 0 0 642
18:00 14 19 44 114 191 114 18 11 1 1 0 0 0 0 527
19:00 6 13 40 97 140 81 23 6 3 2 0 0 0 0 411
20:00 5 6 21 43 106 63 13 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 268
21:00 0 1 7 30 66 63 23 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 195
22:00 0 2 5 8 37 25 15 3 1 1 0 0 0 0 97
23:00 1 2 0 5 16 16 10 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 59
Total 131 160 489 1271 2253 1553 584 163 43 11 1 0 0 0 6659

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 25 MPH

50th Percentile : 32 MPH
85th Percentile : 39 MPH
95th Percentile : 44 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 33 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 3806
Percent in Pace : 57.2%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 12
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.2%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 316 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ S/Eighth Street - Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD006
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 0 5 14 24 10 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 59
01:00 1 0 1 4 3 12 7 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 35
02:00 0 1 0 2 6 6 6 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 27
03:00 0 0 1 2 5 15 8 5 1 1 0 0 0 0 38
04:00 1 3 2 6 13 25 21 7 5 1 0 0 0 0 84
05:00 2 4 4 9 44 60 37 11 7 0 1 0 0 0 179
06:00 4 9 20 42 111 112 65 14 4 2 1 0 0 0 384
07:00 37 52 89 139 159 155 60 10 3 0 0 0 0 0 704
08:00 21 33 83 102 160 127 29 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 561
09:00 9 8 38 66 113 116 45 21 0 1 0 0 1 0 418
10:00 10 14 36 83 110 131 41 12 2 0 0 0 0 0 439
11:00 2 11 45 86 123 96 45 12 5 0 0 0 0 0 425

12 PM 9 21 23 77 149 128 40 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 465
13:00 7 17 45 75 110 90 38 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 388
14:00 10 25 56 92 168 119 44 5 2 1 0 0 0 0 522
15:00 15 34 90 146 165 70 21 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 546
16:00 16 26 86 130 182 106 31 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 585
17:00 23 47 71 126 173 112 22 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 581
18:00 26 27 52 137 156 108 17 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 528
19:00 14 11 51 106 159 81 28 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 455
20:00 3 9 19 63 108 67 32 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 305
21:00 1 2 6 28 76 60 21 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 198
22:00 2 0 2 17 41 47 17 4 2 1 0 0 0 0 133
23:00 1 0 2 10 19 32 16 8 10 0 0 0 0 0 98
Total 214 354 822 1553 2367 1899 701 181 54 9 2 0 1 0 8157

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 23 MPH

50th Percentile : 32 MPH
85th Percentile : 39 MPH
95th Percentile : 43 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 32 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 4266
Percent in Pace : 52.3%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 12
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.1%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 317 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ S/Eighth Street - Glenoaks Boulevard
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD006
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 3 12 25 38 14 8 3 1 0 0 0 0 104
01:00 1 0 2 7 7 18 9 6 1 1 0 0 0 0 52
02:00 0 1 1 5 10 10 11 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 45
03:00 1 0 1 4 12 19 14 7 1 1 0 0 0 0 60
04:00 1 5 3 9 27 40 28 8 6 1 0 0 0 0 128
05:00 3 5 7 23 76 105 53 20 12 1 1 0 0 0 306
06:00 4 11 27 71 183 164 94 23 5 3 1 0 0 0 586
07:00 41 60 116 210 296 258 99 21 6 0 0 0 0 0 1107
08:00 26 34 102 171 305 236 71 14 2 0 0 0 0 0 961
09:00 17 14 49 125 207 177 71 25 0 1 0 0 1 0 687
10:00 17 21 60 140 194 192 77 13 4 0 0 0 0 0 718
11:00 12 20 75 154 252 181 71 20 6 1 0 0 0 0 792

12 PM 14 27 45 127 254 244 77 26 4 1 1 0 0 0 820
13:00 25 29 79 134 200 169 69 15 4 1 0 0 0 0 725
14:00 24 40 80 157 294 221 103 20 5 1 0 0 0 0 945
15:00 20 42 141 280 341 167 63 11 4 1 0 0 0 0 1070
16:00 25 49 145 252 425 232 66 15 4 0 0 0 0 0 1213
17:00 41 64 126 285 397 224 62 20 4 0 0 0 0 0 1223
18:00 40 46 96 251 347 222 35 15 2 1 0 0 0 0 1055
19:00 20 24 91 203 299 162 51 9 5 2 0 0 0 0 866
20:00 8 15 40 106 214 130 45 13 1 1 0 0 0 0 573
21:00 1 3 13 58 142 123 44 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 393
22:00 2 2 7 25 78 72 32 7 3 2 0 0 0 0 230
23:00 2 2 2 15 35 48 26 15 12 0 0 0 0 0 157
Total 345 514 1311 2824 4620 3452 1285 344 97 20 3 0 1 0 14816

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 25 MPH

50th Percentile : 32 MPH
85th Percentile : 39 MPH
95th Percentile : 43 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 33 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 31-40  MPH
Number in Pace : 8072
Percent in Pace : 54.5%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 24
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.2%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 318 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD007
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 1 7 11 6 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31
01:00 1 1 4 10 5 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
02:00 0 1 1 5 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
03:00 0 0 4 4 11 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21
04:00 0 0 7 13 11 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32
05:00 2 1 9 32 23 11 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 84
06:00 15 7 27 54 41 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 157
07:00 93 43 62 69 34 8 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 311
08:00 54 37 87 127 54 12 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 373
09:00 11 8 55 133 62 14 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 284
10:00 13 15 87 130 64 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 319
11:00 20 24 100 170 70 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 397

12 PM 16 11 66 168 123 11 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 398
13:00 18 18 91 152 77 15 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 372
14:00 77 55 111 109 62 14 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 430
15:00 18 35 145 215 98 14 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 529
16:00 52 69 193 215 81 17 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 630
17:00 26 53 175 232 91 21 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 601
18:00 7 25 163 195 85 21 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 499
19:00 9 13 90 158 67 18 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 359
20:00 3 4 70 129 60 15 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 285
21:00 4 1 35 74 47 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 170
22:00 0 1 14 42 25 17 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 101
23:00 1 1 10 28 19 5 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 68
Total 441 424 1613 2475 1220 263 42 7 3 0 0 0 0 0 6488

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 20 MPH

50th Percentile : 26 MPH
85th Percentile : 32 MPH
95th Percentile : 34 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 26 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 4088
Percent in Pace : 63.0%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 319 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD007
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 1 5 15 7 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
01:00 1 1 0 7 7 5 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 23
02:00 0 0 2 4 6 2 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 17
03:00 0 0 1 5 7 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19
04:00 2 0 2 14 19 9 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 49
05:00 1 1 5 20 42 18 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 95
06:00 3 4 10 68 87 58 17 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 253
07:00 18 20 72 205 185 64 12 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 577
08:00 10 10 54 144 177 69 14 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 482
09:00 16 7 27 107 133 54 26 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 371
10:00 16 11 25 105 130 72 15 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 378
11:00 15 15 36 134 162 65 12 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 441

12 PM 13 4 26 130 150 72 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 419
13:00 10 13 27 105 113 65 11 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 348
14:00 29 18 57 170 143 38 12 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 468
15:00 24 9 43 155 192 55 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 490
16:00 25 27 47 151 177 82 13 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 524
17:00 13 6 32 141 148 95 18 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 455
18:00 6 5 27 141 146 46 14 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 387
19:00 4 4 27 118 126 54 14 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 353
20:00 1 1 21 58 109 34 8 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 234
21:00 1 1 12 40 62 25 6 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 148
22:00 0 1 3 26 46 18 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 101
23:00 0 2 1 6 22 11 5 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 50
Total 208 160 558 2059 2404 1022 254 39 10 1 1 0 0 0 6716

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 25 MPH

50th Percentile : 30 MPH
85th Percentile : 36 MPH
95th Percentile : 39 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 31 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 26-35  MPH
Number in Pace : 4463
Percent in Pace : 66.5%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 2
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 320 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD007
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 1 8 16 21 12 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 65
01:00 2 2 4 17 12 8 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 47
02:00 0 1 3 9 10 4 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 30
03:00 0 0 5 9 18 5 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40
04:00 2 0 9 27 30 9 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 81
05:00 3 2 14 52 65 29 12 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 179
06:00 18 11 37 122 128 69 19 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 410
07:00 111 63 134 274 219 72 14 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 888
08:00 64 47 141 271 231 81 15 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 855
09:00 27 15 82 240 195 68 26 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 655
10:00 29 26 112 235 194 82 15 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 697
11:00 35 39 136 304 232 76 14 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 838

12 PM 29 15 92 298 273 83 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 817
13:00 28 31 118 257 190 80 11 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 720
14:00 106 73 168 279 205 52 13 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 898
15:00 42 44 188 370 290 69 14 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1019
16:00 77 96 240 366 258 99 16 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1154
17:00 39 59 207 373 239 116 20 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 1056
18:00 13 30 190 336 231 67 15 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 886
19:00 13 17 117 276 193 72 17 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 712
20:00 4 5 91 187 169 49 12 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 519
21:00 5 2 47 114 109 32 8 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 318
22:00 0 2 17 68 71 35 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 202
23:00 1 3 11 34 41 16 8 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 118
Total 649 584 2171 4534 3624 1285 296 46 13 1 1 0 0 0 13204

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 21 MPH

50th Percentile : 28 MPH
85th Percentile : 34 MPH
95th Percentile : 38 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 29 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 26-35  MPH
Number in Pace : 8158
Percent in Pace : 61.8%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 2
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 321 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - Truman Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD008
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 1 8 13 12 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
01:00 0 2 3 3 5 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17
02:00 1 0 1 4 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11
03:00 1 1 5 4 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21
04:00 0 5 4 21 6 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41
05:00 3 0 8 24 16 2 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 57
06:00 12 14 33 42 25 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 132
07:00 58 46 85 64 14 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 272
08:00 59 57 130 83 21 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 352
09:00 45 68 132 42 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 296
10:00 52 85 123 48 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 317
11:00 103 113 76 59 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 357

12 PM 84 83 114 69 12 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 363
13:00 72 85 139 49 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 349
14:00 60 98 155 88 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 414
15:00 88 127 178 52 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 456
16:00 99 117 158 68 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 447
17:00 86 155 181 58 4 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 487
18:00 98 159 157 37 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 457
19:00 57 119 133 35 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 349
20:00 30 70 127 45 9 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 283
21:00 19 25 75 37 12 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 171
22:00 6 8 35 39 11 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 105
23:00 2 2 19 32 15 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 77
Total 1036 1440 2079 1016 232 52 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 5868

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 12 MPH

50th Percentile : 21 MPH
85th Percentile : 27 MPH
95th Percentile : 30 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 21 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 16-25  MPH
Number in Pace : 3519
Percent in Pace : 60.0%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 322 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - Truman Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD008
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 4 9 10 12 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 42
01:00 1 2 1 4 11 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
02:00 1 0 3 7 5 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 19
03:00 0 0 3 4 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
04:00 2 3 13 22 14 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 61
05:00 4 4 25 44 38 14 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 132
06:00 13 25 71 105 44 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 268
07:00 297 73 64 68 21 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 524
08:00 198 48 119 67 12 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 445
09:00 68 71 114 85 22 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 364
10:00 111 98 123 66 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 411
11:00 163 105 118 41 8 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 436

12 PM 136 119 100 49 5 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 412
13:00 111 62 115 42 10 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 341
14:00 144 123 131 59 6 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 464
15:00 168 95 91 33 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 392
16:00 299 56 41 31 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 432
17:00 183 88 100 26 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 402
18:00 189 96 84 30 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400
19:00 128 82 109 45 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 368
20:00 28 61 103 60 8 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 264
21:00 18 29 81 65 21 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 218
22:00 5 11 26 42 26 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 112
23:00 1 2 4 18 18 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 49
Total 2268 1257 1648 1023 317 62 16 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 6596

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 6 MPH

50th Percentile : 19 MPH
85th Percentile : 27 MPH
95th Percentile : 31 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 18 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 16-25  MPH
Number in Pace : 2905
Percent in Pace : 44.0%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 323 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Maclay Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - Truman Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD008
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 1 5 17 23 24 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 79
01:00 1 4 4 7 16 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41
02:00 2 0 4 11 9 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 30
03:00 1 1 8 8 12 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
04:00 2 8 17 43 20 8 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 102
05:00 7 4 33 68 54 16 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 189
06:00 25 39 104 147 69 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400
07:00 355 119 149 132 35 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 796
08:00 257 105 249 150 33 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 797
09:00 113 139 246 127 30 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 660
10:00 163 183 246 114 19 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 728
11:00 266 218 194 100 13 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 793

12 PM 220 202 214 118 17 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 775
13:00 183 147 254 91 14 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 690
14:00 204 221 286 147 19 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 878
15:00 256 222 269 85 15 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 848
16:00 398 173 199 99 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 879
17:00 269 243 281 84 9 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 889
18:00 287 255 241 67 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 857
19:00 185 201 242 80 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 717
20:00 58 131 230 105 17 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 547
21:00 37 54 156 102 33 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 389
22:00 11 19 61 81 37 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 217
23:00 3 4 23 50 33 9 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 126
Total 3304 2697 3727 2039 549 114 27 4 2 0 0 0 0 1 12464

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 8 MPH

50th Percentile : 20 MPH
85th Percentile : 27 MPH
95th Percentile : 30 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 19 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 16-25  MPH
Number in Pace : 6424
Percent in Pace : 51.5%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 324 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Orange Grove Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD009
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
01:00 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
02:00 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
03:00 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
04:00 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
05:00 1 4 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
06:00 3 4 9 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21
07:00 7 8 22 9 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51
08:00 4 7 10 6 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32
09:00 6 6 11 4 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32
10:00 4 7 3 11 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27
11:00 6 6 15 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39

12 PM 1 2 13 9 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30
13:00 3 8 10 10 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
14:00 0 3 20 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35
15:00 3 10 32 18 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 68
16:00 3 10 25 19 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64
17:00 2 3 28 25 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 66
18:00 2 13 17 16 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52
19:00 2 8 14 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36
20:00 1 7 9 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23
21:00 0 2 4 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
22:00 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
23:00 0 0 3 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
Total 50 111 250 180 50 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 650

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 17 MPH

50th Percentile : 23 MPH
85th Percentile : 28 MPH
95th Percentile : 32 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 23 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 430
Percent in Pace : 66.2%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 325 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Orange Grove Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD009
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
01:00 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
02:00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
03:00 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
04:00 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
05:00 0 2 1 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
06:00 2 4 6 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
07:00 8 12 31 17 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70
08:00 1 7 18 17 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
09:00 5 3 7 8 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27
10:00 3 5 8 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
11:00 7 7 11 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36

12 PM 2 4 7 14 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
13:00 5 4 8 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
14:00 1 9 23 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 43
15:00 8 14 19 10 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 53
16:00 1 5 10 15 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32
17:00 4 6 22 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 43
18:00 7 8 14 5 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
19:00 6 9 13 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
20:00 1 7 8 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23
21:00 2 5 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14
22:00 0 0 5 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10
23:00 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Total 64 113 225 166 28 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 599

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 16 MPH

50th Percentile : 22 MPH
85th Percentile : 28 MPH
95th Percentile : 30 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 22 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 391
Percent in Pace : 65.3%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 326 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Orange Grove Avenue
B/ Glenoaks Boulevard - Fourth Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD009
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
01:00 3 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
02:00 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
03:00 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
04:00 0 1 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
05:00 1 6 1 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
06:00 5 8 15 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
07:00 15 20 53 26 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 121
08:00 5 14 28 23 4 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 78
09:00 11 9 18 12 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 59
10:00 7 12 11 24 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 56
11:00 13 13 26 20 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75

12 PM 3 6 20 23 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64
13:00 8 12 18 22 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 63
14:00 1 12 43 19 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 78
15:00 11 24 51 28 5 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 121
16:00 4 15 35 34 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 96
17:00 6 9 50 36 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 109
18:00 9 21 31 21 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89
19:00 8 17 27 15 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70
20:00 2 14 17 12 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46
21:00 2 7 9 8 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27
22:00 0 1 5 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
23:00 0 0 6 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
Total 114 224 475 346 78 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1249

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 16 MPH

50th Percentile : 23 MPH
85th Percentile : 28 MPH
95th Percentile : 31 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 23 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 821
Percent in Pace : 65.7%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 327 of 443



Page 1 
 
City of San Fernando
Park Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - First Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD010
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
01:00 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
02:00 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
03:00 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
04:00 0 1 0 1 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
05:00 2 1 1 5 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
06:00 5 5 14 9 6 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45
07:00 9 20 52 44 33 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 170
08:00 21 36 32 27 12 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 132
09:00 11 20 15 12 11 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72
10:00 7 12 18 15 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64
11:00 17 16 21 13 6 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 77

12 PM 15 13 29 25 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 94
13:00 10 17 27 22 12 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89
14:00 18 13 23 26 17 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 104
15:00 14 17 36 32 14 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 116
16:00 9 14 23 27 24 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 100
17:00 28 26 26 22 16 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 120
18:00 27 21 31 21 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 107
19:00 24 33 34 11 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 106
20:00 7 21 21 11 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 65
21:00 1 6 9 10 3 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 33
22:00 2 5 4 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
23:00 0 2 6 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
Total 228 301 424 337 203 45 11 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1552

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 15 MPH

50th Percentile : 22 MPH
85th Percentile : 30 MPH
95th Percentile : 34 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 23 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 21-30  MPH
Number in Pace : 761
Percent in Pace : 49.0%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.1%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 328 of 443



Page 2 
 
City of San Fernando
Park Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - First Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD010
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
01:00 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
02:00 0 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
03:00 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
04:00 0 2 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
05:00 3 1 6 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19
06:00 3 10 11 6 1 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 34
07:00 14 18 16 25 9 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89
08:00 21 21 40 11 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100
09:00 16 17 22 8 4 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 69
10:00 8 13 14 11 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 50
11:00 18 18 26 14 1 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 81

12 PM 13 30 20 16 7 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89
13:00 16 22 17 13 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72
14:00 14 18 14 11 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 69
15:00 16 17 26 18 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 84
16:00 10 14 26 24 8 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 85
17:00 21 23 17 18 8 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 90
18:00 30 30 27 10 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 101
19:00 21 23 31 14 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 95
20:00 12 11 6 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 38
21:00 1 8 4 6 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23
22:00 4 4 1 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
23:00 2 5 3 3 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
Total 245 307 334 228 85 31 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1236

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 11 MPH

50th Percentile : 20 MPH
85th Percentile : 28 MPH
95th Percentile : 33 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 21 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 16-25  MPH
Number in Pace : 641
Percent in Pace : 51.9%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 329 of 443



Page 3 
 
City of San Fernando
Park Avenue
B/ Fourth Street - First Street
24 Hour Directional Speed Survey

 
 

 
 

SFD010
Site Code: 999-21500

 
 

 
 
 

Counts Unlimited, Inc.
PO Box 1178

Corona, CA 92878
Phone: (951) 268-6268

email: counts@countsunlimited.com

 
Northbound, Southbound

Start 1 16 21 26 31 36 41 46 51 56 61 66 71 76  
Time 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 999 Total

09/22/21 0 1 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
01:00 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
02:00 1 1 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
03:00 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
04:00 0 3 2 3 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
05:00 5 2 7 12 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35
06:00 8 15 25 15 7 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 79
07:00 23 38 68 69 42 15 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 259
08:00 42 57 72 38 16 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 232
09:00 27 37 37 20 15 3 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 141
10:00 15 25 32 26 12 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 114
11:00 35 34 47 27 7 5 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 158

12 PM 28 43 49 41 19 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 183
13:00 26 39 44 35 15 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 161
14:00 32 31 37 37 28 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 173
15:00 30 34 62 50 21 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200
16:00 19 28 49 51 32 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 185
17:00 49 49 43 40 24 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 210
18:00 57 51 58 31 8 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 208
19:00 45 56 65 25 9 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 201
20:00 19 32 27 17 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 103
21:00 2 14 13 16 7 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 56
22:00 6 9 5 4 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
23:00 2 7 9 5 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29
Total 473 608 758 565 288 76 14 5 0 0 1 0 0 0 2788

 
Daily 15th Percentile : 13 MPH

50th Percentile : 22 MPH
85th Percentile : 29 MPH
95th Percentile : 34 MPH

  
Statistics Mean Speed(Average) : 22 MPH

10  MPH Pace Speed : 16-25  MPH
Number in Pace : 1366
Percent in Pace : 49.0%

Number of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 1
Percent of Vehicles > 55  MPH : 0.0%

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 330 of 443



California MUTCD 2014 Edition 
(FHWA's MUTCD 2009 Edition, including Revisions 1 & 2, as amended for use in California) 

Page 133 

04 If used, the Overhead Pedestrian Crossing sign shall be placed over the roadway at the crosswalk 
location. 

os An In-Street or Overhead Pedestrian Crossing sign shall not be placed in advance of the crosswalk to 
educate road users about the State law prior to reaching the crosswalk, nor shall it be installed as an 
educational display that is not near any crosswalk. 
Guidance: 

06 If an island (see Chapter JI) is available, the In-Street Pedestrian Crossing sign, if used, should be placed on 
the island. 
Option: 

01 If a Pedestrian Crossing (Wl 1-2) warning sign is used in combination with an In-Street or an Overhead 
Pedestrian Crossing sign, the Wll-2 sign with a diagonal downward pointing arrow (W16-7P) plaque may be 
post-mounted on the right-hand side of the roadway at the crosswalk location. 
Standard: 

I os The In-Street Pedestrian Crossing sign and the Overhead Pedestrian Crossing sign shall not be used at 
sigaalized laeatiaas controlled approaches. 

09 The STOP FOR legend shall only be used in States where the State law specifically requires that a 
driver must stop for a pedestrian in a crosswalk. 

10 The In-Street Pedestrian Crossing sign shall have a black legend (except for the red STOP a£ YIELD 
sign symbols) and border on a white background, surrounded by an outer yellow or fluorescent yellow
green background area (see Figure 2B-2). The Overhead Pedestrian Crossing sign shall have a black legend 
and border on a yellow or fluorescent yellow-green background at the top of the sign and a black legend and 
border on a white background at the bottom of the sign (see Figure 2B-2). 

11 Unless the In-Street Pedestrian Crossing sign is placed on a physical island, the sign support shall be 
designed to bend over and then bounce back to its normal vertical position when struck by a vehicle. 
Support: 

12 The Provisions of Section 2A.18 concerning mounting height are not applicable for the In-Street Pedestrian 
Crossing sign. 
Standard: 

13 The top of an In-Street Pedestrian Crossing sign shall be a maximum of 4 feet above the pavement 
surface. The top of an In-Street Pedestrian Crossing sign placed in an island shall be a maximum of 4 feet 
above the island surface. 
Option: 

14 The In-Street Pedestrian Crossing sign may be used seasonably seasonally to prevent damage in winter because 
of plowing operations, and may be removed at night if the pedestrian activity at night is minimal. 

1sln-Street Pedestrian Crossing signs, Overhead Pedestrian Crossing signs, and Yield Here To (Stop Here For) 
Pedestrians signs may be used together at the same crosswalk. 

Section 2B.13 Speed Limit Sign (R2-1) 
Support: 

oo The setting of speed limits can be controversial and requires a rational and defensible determination to maintain publ ic 
confidence. Speed limits are normally set near the 85th-percentile speed that statistically represents one standard deviation 
above the average speed and establishes the upper limit of what is considered reasonable and prudent. As with most laws, 
speed limits need to depend on the voluntary compliance of the greater majority of motorists. Speed limits cannot be set 
arbitrarily low, as this would create violators of the majority of drivers and would not command the respect of the public. 
Standard: 

01 Speed zones (other than statutory speed limits) shall only be established on the basis of an engineering I 
and traffic survey (E& TS) sffKly that has been performed in accordance with traffic engineering practices. The 
engineering study shall include an analysis of the current speed distribution of free-flowing vehicles. 

02 The Speed Limit (R2-1) sign (see Figure 2B-3) shall display the limit established by law, ordinance, 
regulation, or as adopted by the authorized agency based on the engineering study. The speed limits 
displayed shall be in multiples of 5 mph. 

Chapter 2B - Regulatory Signs, Barricades, and Gates 
Part 2 - Signs 

Revised April 7. 2017 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 331 of 443



California MUTCD 2014 Edition 
(FHWA · s MUTCD 2009 Edition, including Revisions 1 & 2, as amended for use in California) 

Page 134 

03 Speed Limit (R2-1) signs, indicating speed limits for which posting is required by law, shall be located at 
the points of change from one speed limit to another. 

04 At the downstream end of the section to which a speed limit applies, a Speed Limit sign showing the next 
speed limit shall be installed. Additional Speed Limit signs shall be installed beyond major intersections and 
at other locations where it is necessary to remind road users of the speed limit that is applicable. 

os Speed Limit signs indicating the statutory speed limits shall be installed at entrances to the State and, 
where appropriate, at jurisdictional boundaries in urban areas. 
Support: 

06 In general, the maximum speed limits applicable to rural and urban roads are established: 
A. Statutorily - a maximum speed limit applicable to a particular class of road, such as freeways or city streets, 

that is established by State law; or 
B. As altered speed zones - based on engineering studies. 
01 State statutory limits might restrict the maximum speed limit that can be established on a particular road, 

notwithstanding what an engineering study might indicate. 
Option: 

os If a jurisdiction has a policy of installing Speed Limit signs in accordance 1Nith statutory requirements only on 
the streets that enter a city, neighborhood, or residential area to indicate the speed limit that is applicable to the 
entire city, neighborhood, or residential area unless otherwise posted, a CITY\iVIDE (R2 SaP), NEIGHBORHOOD 
(R2 SbP) , or RESIDENTl1\L (R2 ScP) plaque may be mounted above the Speed Limit sign a-Rd a-H: UNLESS 
OTHERWISE POSTED (R2 SP) plaque may be mounted belo1N the Speed Limit sign (see Figure 2B 3). 
Guidance: 

og A Reduced Speed Limit Ahead (WJ-5 or W3-5a) sign (see Section 2C.38) should be used to inform road users 
of a reduced speed zone where the speed limit is being reduced by more than 10 mph, or where engineering 
judgment indicates the need for advance notice to comply with the posted speed limit ahead. 

10 States and local agencies should conduct engineering studies at least once every 5, 7 or 10 years, in compliance 
with eve Section 40802 to reevaluate non-statutory speed limits on segments of their roadways that have undergone 
significant changes since the last review, such as the addition or elimination of parking or driveways, changes in 
the number of travel Janes, changes in the config uration of bicycle Janes, changes in traffic control signal 
coordination, or significant changes in traffic volumes. 

11 No more than three speed limits should be displayed on any one Speed Limit sign or assembly. 
12 i4q,Cfl a speed limit within a speed rOfle is posted, it shoula be within 5 mph el#Je 85th pe-:=centil-e speed of free 

flowing traffic. 
Standard: 

12aWhen a speed limit is to be posted, it shall be established at the nearest 5 mph increment of the 85th-percentile 
speed of free-flowing traffic, except as shown in the two Options below. 
Option: 

1. The posted speed may be reduced by 5 mph from the nearest 5 mph increment of the 85th-percentile speed, in 
compliance with eve Sections 627 and 22358.5. See Standard below for documentation requirements. 

2. For cases in which the nearest 5 mph increment of the 85th-percentile speed would require a rounding up, then the 
speed limit may be rounded down to the nearest 5 mph increment below the 85th percentile speed, if no further 
reduction is used. Refer to eve Section 21400(b). 

Standard: 
12b If the speed limit to be posted has had the 5 mph reduction applied, then an E& TS shall document in writing the 

conditions and justification for the lower speed limit and be approved by a registered Civil or Traffic Engineer. The 
reasons for the lower speed limit shall be in compliance with eve Sections 627 and 22358.5. 
Support: 

12c The following examples are provided to explain the application of these speed limit criteria: 
Example 1. Using Option 1 above and first step is to round down: If the 85th percentile speed in a speed survey for a 

location was 37 mph, then the speed limit would be established at 35 mph since it is the closest 5 mph increment to the 
37 mph speed. As indic9ted by the option, this 35 mph established speed limit could be reduced by 5 mph to 30 mph if 

Chapter 2B - Regulatory Signs, Barricades, and Gates 
Part 2 - Signs 

November 7, 2014 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 332 of 443



California MUTCD 2014 Edition 
(FHWA's MUTCD 2009 Edition, including Revisions 1 & 2, as amended for use in California) 

the conditions and justification for using this lower speed limit are documented in the E& TS and approved by a 
registered Civil or Traffic Engineer. 

Page 135 

Example 2. Using Option 1 above and first step is to round up: If the 85th percentile speed in a speed survey for a location 
was 33 mph, then the speed limit would be established at 35 mph since it is the closest 5 mph increment to the 33 mph 
speed. As indicated by the option, this 35 mph speed limit could be reduced by 5 mph to 30 mph if the conditions and 
justification for using this lower speed limit are documented in the E&TS and approved by a registered Civil or Traffic 
Engineer. 

Example 3. Using Option 2 above and first step is to round up: If the 85th percentile speed in a speed survey for a location 
was 33 mph, instead of rounding up to 35mph, the speed limit can be established at 30mph, but no further reductions 
can be applied {which is allowed in the two examples above). 

Standard: 
12d Examples 1 and 2 for establishing posted speed limits shall apply to engineering and traffic surveys (E&TS) 

performed on or after July 1, 2009 in accordance with Caltrans' Traffic Operations Policy Directive Number 09-04 
dated June 29, 2009. 
Option: 

12e After January 1, 2012, Example 3 may be used to establish speed limits. Refer to CVC 21400(b). 
Support: 

,zr Any existing E& TS that was performed before July 1, 2009 in accordance with previous traffic control device standards is 
not required to comply with the new criteria until it is due for reevaluation per the 5, 7 or 10 year criteria. 

13 Speed studies for signalized intersection approaches should be taken outside the influence area of the traffic 
con trol signal, which is generally considered to be approximately 1/2 mile, to avoid obtaining skewed resul ts for 
the 85th-percentile speed. 
Support: 

t4Advance warning signs and other traffic control devices to attract the motorist's attention to a signalized 
intersection are usually more effective than a reduced speed limit zone. 
Guidance: 

15 An advisory speed plaque (see Section 2C. 08) mounted below a warning sign should be used to warn road 
users of an advisory speed for a roadway condition. A Speed Limit sign should not be used for this situation. 
Option: 

16 Other factors that may be considered when establishing or reevaluating speed limits are the following: 
A. Road characteristics, shoulder condition, grade, alignment, and sight distance; 
B. The pace; 
C. Roadside development and environment; 
D. Parking practices and pedestrian activity; and 
E. Reported crash experience for at least a 12-month period. 
17 Two types of Speed Limit signs may be used: one to designate passenger car speeds, including any nighttime 

information or minimum speed limit that might apply; and the other to show any special speed limits for trucks and 
other vehicles. 

1s A changeable message sign that changes the speed limit for traffic and ambient conditions may be installed 
provided that the appropriate speed limit is displayed at the proper times. 

19 A changeable message sign that displays to approaching drivers the speed at which they are traveling may be 
installed in conjunction with a Speed Limit sign. 
Guidance: 

20 If a changeable message sign displaying approach speeds is installed, the legend YOUR SPEED X¥ MPH or 
such similar legend should be displayed. The color of the changeable message legend should be a yellow legend 
on a black background or the reverse of these colors. 
Support: 

21 Advisory Speed signs and plaques are discussed in Sections 2C.08 and 2C.14. Temporary Traffic Control Zone 
Speed signs are discussed in Part 6. The WORK ZONE (G20-5aP) plaque intended for installation above a Speed 
Limit sign is discussed in Section 6F. 12. School Speed Limit signs are discussed in Section 7B.15. 

Chapter 2B - Regulatory Signs, Barricades, and Gates 
Part 2 - Signs 

November 7, 2014 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 333 of 443



California MUTCD 2014 Edition 
(FHWA's MUTCD 2009 Edition, including Revisions 1 & 2, as amended for use in California) 

Page 136 

22 Speed limits in California are governed by the California Vehicle Code (CVC), Sections 22348 through 22413; also, 
pertinent sections are found in Sections 627 and 40802 and others referenced in this section. See Section 1 A.11 for 
information regarding this publication. 

23 Refer to Part 6, Section 6C.01 for speed limit signs in temporary traffic control zones. Refer to Part 7 for speed limit signs 
in school areas. 

Engineering and Traffic Survey (E&TS) 
Support: 

24 CVC Section 627 defines the term "Engineering and traffic survey" and lists its requirements. 
Standard: 

2s An engineering and traffic survey (E& TS) shall include, among other requirements deemed necessary by Caltrans, 
consideration of all of the following: 

A. Prevailing speeds as determined by traffic engineering measurements. 
B. Collision records. 
C. Highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not readily apparent to the driver. 

Guidance: 
26 The E& TS should contain sufficient information to document that the required three items of eve Section 627 are provided 

and that other conditions not readily apparent to a driver are properly identified. 
27 Prevailing speeds are determined by a speed zone survey. A speed zone survey should include: 
A. The intent of the speed measurements is to determine the actual speed of unimpeded traffic. The speed of traffic should 

not be altered by concentrated law enforcement, or other means, just prior to, or while taking the speed measurements. 
B. Only one person is required for the field work. Speeds should be read directly from a radar or other electronic speed 

measuring devices; or, 
e. Devices, other than radar, capable of accurately distinguishing and measuring the unimpeded speed of free flowing 

vehicles may be used. 
D. A location should be selected where prevailing speeds are representative of the entire speed zone section. If speeds 

vary on a given route, more than one speed zone section may be requirecj, with separate measurements for each 
section. Locations for measurements should be chosen so as to minimize the effects of traffic signals or stop signs. 

E. Speed measurements should be taken during off-peak hours between peak traffic periods on weekdays. If there is 
difficulty in obtaining the desired quantity, speed measurements may be taken during any period with free flowing traffic. 

F. The weather should be fair {dry pavement) with no unusual conditions prevailing. 
G. The surveyor and equipment should not affect the traffic speeds. For this reason, an unmarked car is recommended, 

and the radar speed meter located as inconspicuously as possible. 
H. In order for the sample to be representative of the actual traffic flow, the minimum sample should be 100 vehicles in 

each survey. In no case should the sample contain less than 50 vehicles. 
I. Short speed zones of less than 0.5 miles should be avoided, except in transition areas. 
J. Speed zone changes should be coordinated with changes in roadway conditions or roadside development. 
K. Speed zoning should be in 1 O mph increments except in urban areas where 5 mph increments are preferable. 
L. Speed zoning should be coordinated with aqjacentjurisdictions. 

Support: 
2s Physical conditions such as width, curvature, grade and surface conditions, or any other condition readily apparent to the 

driver, in the absence of other factors, would not require special downward speed zoning. Refer to CVC 22358.5. 
Option: 

29 When qualifying an appropriate speed limit, local authorities may also consider all of the following findings: 
A. Residential density, if any of the following conditions exist on the particular portion of highway and the property 

contiguous thereto, other than a business district: 
1. Upon one side of the highway, within 0.25 miles, the contiguous property fronting thereon is occupied by 13 or more 

separate dwelling houses or business structures. 
2. Upon both sides of the highway, collectively, within a distance of 0.25 miles the contiguous property fronting thereon 

is occupied by 16 ormore separate dwelling houses or business structures. 

Chapter 2B - Regulatory Signs, Barricades, and Gates 
Part 2 - Signs 

November 7, 2014 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 334 of 443



California MUTCD 2014 Edition 
{FHW A's MUTCD 2009 Edition, including Revisions 1 & 2, as amended for use in California) 

Page 137 

3. The portion of highway is larger than 0.25 miles but has the ratio of separate dwelling houses or business structures 
to the length of the highway described in either subparagraph 1 or 2 above. 

8. Pedestrian and bicyclist safety. 
30 The following two methods of conducting E& TS may be used to establish speed limits: 
1. State Highways - The E& TS for State highways is made under the direction of the Caltrans District Traffic Engineer. The 

data includes: 
a. One copy of the Example of Speed Zone Survey Sheet (See Figure 28-101 (CA)) showing: 

• A north arrow 
• Engineer's station or post mileage 
• Limits of the proposed zones 
• Appropriate notations showing type of roadside development, such as "scattered business," "solid residential," 

etc. Schools adjacent to the highway are shown, but other buildings need not be plotted unless they are a 
factor in the speed recommendation or the point of termination of a speed zone. 

• Collision rates for the zones involved 
• Average daily traffic volume 
• Location of traffic signals, signs and markings 
• If the highway is divided, the limits of zones for each direction of travel 
• Plotted 85th percentile and pace speeds at location taken showing speed profile 

b. A report to the District Director that includes: 
• The reason for the initiation of speed zone survey. 
• Recommendations and supporting reasons. 
• The enforcement jurisdictions involved and the recommendations and opinions of those officials. 
• The stationing or reference post in mileage at the beginning and ending of each proposed zone and any 

intermediate equations. Location ties must be given to readily identifiable physical features. 
2. City and County Through Highways, Arterials, Collector Roads and Local Streets. 

a. The short method of speed zoning is based on the premise that a reasonable speed limit is one that conforms to the 
actual behavior of the majority of motorists, and that by measuring motorists' speeds, one will be able to select a 
speed limit that is both reasonable and effective. Other factors that need to be considered include but are not limited 
to: the most recent two-year collision record, roadway design speed, safe stopping sight distance, superelevation, 
shoulder conditions, profile conditions, intersection spacing and offsets, commercial driveway characteristics, and 
pedestrian traffic in the roadway without sidewalks. 

b. Determination of Existing Speed Limits - Figures 2B-103(CA) & 2B-104(CA) show examples of data sheets which 
may be used to record speed observations. Specific types of vehicles may be tallied by use of letter symbols in 
appropriate squares. 

31 In most situations, the short form for local streets and roads wi ll be adequate; however, the procedure used on State 
highways may be used at the option of the local agency. 
Guidance: 

32 The factors justifying a reduction below the 85th percentile speed for the posted speed limit are the same factors mentioned 
above. Whenever such factors are considered to establish the speed limit, they should be documented on the speed zone 
survey or the accompanying engineering report. 

33 The establishment of a speed limit of more than 5 mph below the 85th percentile speed should be done with great care as 
studies have shown that establishing a speed limit at less than the 85th percentile generally results in an increase in collision 
rates; in addition, this may make violators of a disproportionate number of the reasonable majority of drivers. 
Support: 

34 Generally, the most decisive evidence of conditions not readily apparent to the driver surfaces in collision histories. 
35 Speed limits are established at or near the 85th percentile speed, which is defined as that speed at or below which 85th 

percent of the traffic is moving. The 85th percentile speed is often referred to as the critical speed. Pace speed is defined as the 
10 mph increment of speed containing the largest number of vehicles (See Figure 28-102(CA)). The lower limit of the pace is 
plotted on the Speed Zone Survey Sheets as an aid in determining the proper zone limits. Speed limits higher than the 85th 

Chapter 2B - Regulatory Signs, Barricades, and Ga:tes 
Part 2 - Signs 

November 7, 2014 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 335 of 443



California MUTCD 2014 Edition Page 138 
(FHWA's MUTCD 2009 Edition, including Revisions 1 & 2, as amended for use in California) 

percentile are not generally considered reasonable and prudent. Speed limits below the 85th percentile do not ordinarily 
facilitate the orderly movement of traffic and require constant enforcement to maintain compliance. Speed limits established on 
the basis of the 85th percentile conform to the consensus of those who drive highways as to what speed is reasonable and 
prudent. and are not dependent on the judgment of one or a few individuals. 

36 The majority of drivers comply with the basic speed law. Speed limits set at or near the 85th percentile speed provide law 
enforcement officers with a limit to cite drivers who will not conform to what the majority considers reasonable and prudent. 
Further studies show that establishing a speed limit at less than the 85th percentile (Critical Speed) generally results in an 
increase in collision rates. 
Option: 

37 When roadside development results in traffic conflicts and unusual conditions which are not readily apparent to drivers. as 
indicated in collision records, speed limits somewhat below the 85th percentile may be justified. Concurrence and support of 
enforcement officials are necessary for the successful operation of a restricted speed zone. 
Guidance: 

3a Speed zones of less than 0.5 miles and short transition zones should be avoided. 
Signs 

Standard: 
39 The Speed Limit (R2-1) sign shall be used to give notice of a prima facie or maximum speed limit except as 

provided under Prima F acie Speed Limits in eve 22352. 
40 When used, the TRUCKS, 3 AXLES OR MORE 55 MAXIMUM (R6-3(eA)) sign shall be installed approximately 750 

feet following each R2-1 sign. 
41 The ALL VEHICLES WHEN TOWING 55 MAXIMUM (R6-4(CA)) sign shall be installed approximately 750 feet 

following the R6-3(CA) sign. 
Guidance: 

42 The R6-3(CA) and R6-4(CA) signs should be placed on highway segments where speeds in excess of 55 mph are 
permitted. 
Option: 

43 The existing AUTOS WITH TRAILERS, TRUCKS 55 MAXIMUM (R6-1 (CA)) sign may remain in place until it is knocked 
down, damaged, stolen. vandalized, or otherwise reaches the end of its useful life. 

44 The local California Highway Patrol office may be consulted to identify highway segments where enforcement is an issue. 
On these segments early replacement of existing R6-1 (CA) signs may be necessary. 
Support: 

45 Refer to CVC Section 22406 for types of vehicles subject to the 55 mph maximum speed limit. 
Option: 

46 The Speed Zone Ahead (R2-4(CA)) sign (see Figure 2B-3(CA)) may be used to inform the motorist of a reduced speed 
zone. 
Standard: 

47 The R2-4(CA) sign shall always be followed by a Speed Limit (R2-1) sign installed at the beginning of the zone 
where the reduced speed limit applies. 

48 The End Speed Limit (R3(eA)) sign shall only be used to mark the end of a speed zone. 
49 The R3(eA) sign shall not be used at a transition into a change in speed limits within a reduced zone. 

Option: 
50 The R3(CA) sign (see Figure 2B-3(CA)) may be used with the TRUCK (M4-4) plaque to mark the end of truck speed zones 

on descending grades. 
Standard: 

51 Speed limit signs shall be placed at the beginning of all restricted speed zones. 
Option: 

52 Where speed zones are longer than 1 mile, intermediate signs may be placed at approximate 1 mile intervals. For three or 
more lanes in each direction, dual installation may be used. 

Chapter 2B - Regulatory Signs. Barricades, and Gates 
Part 2 - Signs 

November 7, 2014 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 336 of 443



10/12/21, 9:06 AM Bill Text: CA AB43 | 2021-2022 | Regular Session | Chaptered | LegiScan

https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB43/2021 1/6

Bill Text: CA AB43 | 2021-2022 | Regular Session | Chaptered
California Assembly Bill 43 (In Recess)  

Bill Title: Traffic safety. 

Spectrum: Partisan Bill (Democrat 13-0) 

Status: (Passed) 2021-10-08 - Chaptered by Secretary of State - Chapter 690, Statutes of 2021. [AB43 Detail] 

Download: California-2021-AB43-Chaptered.html

Assembly Bill No. 43

CHAPTER 690

An act to amend Sections 627, 21400, 22352, 22354, 22358, and 40802 of, and to add Sections 22358.6, 22358.7, 22358.8, and 22358.9 to, the
Vehicle Code, relating to traffic safety.

[ Approved by Governor  October 08, 2021. Filed with Secretary of State  October 08, 2021. ]

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 43, Friedman. Traffic safety.

(1) Existing law establishes various default speed limits for vehicles upon highways, as specified. Existing law authorizes state and local
authorities to adjust these default speed limits, as specified, based upon certain findings determined by an engineering and traffic
survey. Existing law defines an engineering and traffic survey and prescribes specified factors that must be included in the survey,
including prevailing speeds and road conditions. Existing law authorizes local authorities to consider additional factors, including
pedestrian and bicyclist safety.

This bill would authorize local authorities to consider the safety of vulnerable pedestrian groups, as specified.

(2) Existing law establishes a prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour on any highway, other than a state highway, located in any
business or residence district, as defined. Existing law authorizes a local authority to change the speed limit on any such highway, as
prescribed, including erecting signs to give notice thereof.

This bill would establish a prima facie speed limit of 25 miles per hour on state highways located in any business or residence district
and would authorize the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to change the speed limit on any such highway, as prescribed,
including erecting signs to give notice thereof.

(3) Existing law establishes a speed limit of 65 miles per hour on state highways, as specified. Existing law authorizes Caltrans to
declare a speed limit on any such highway, as prescribed, of 60, 55, 50, 45, 40, 35, 30, or 25 miles per hour, including erecting signs
to give notice thereof. Existing law also authorizes a local authority, on a section of highway, other than a state highway, where the
speed limit is 65 miles per hour to declare a lower speed limit, as specified.

This bill would additionally authorize Caltrans and a local authority to declare a speed limit of 20 or 15 miles per hour, as specified, on
these highways.

(4) Existing law authorizes a local authority, without an engineering and traffic survey, to declare a lowered speed limit on portions of
highway, as specified, approaching a school building or school grounds. Existing law limits this authority to sections of highway meeting
specified requirements relating to the number of lanes and the speed limit of the highway before the school zone.

This bill would similarly authorize a lowered speed limit on a section of highway contiguous to a business activity district, as defined,
and would require that certain violations be subject to a warning citation, for the first 30 days of implementation.

(5) Existing law requires Caltrans, by regulation, to provide for the rounding up or down to the nearest 5 miles per hour increment of
the 85th percentile speed of free-flowing traffic on a portion of highway as determined by a traffic and engineering survey. Existing law
requires the Judicial Council to create and implement an online tool by June 30, 2024, for the adjudication of traffic infractions, among
other things.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 337 of 443

https://legiscan.com/
https://legiscan.com/CA
https://legiscan.com/CA/research/AB43
https://legiscan.com/CA/bill/AB43/2021
https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB43/id/2436617/California-2021-AB43-Chaptered.html


10/12/21, 9:06 AM Bill Text: CA AB43 | 2021-2022 | Regular Session | Chaptered | LegiScan

https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB43/2021 2/6

This bill would authorize a local authority to further reduce the speed limit, as specified, and require that certain violations be subject
to a warning citation, for the first 30 days of implementation. The bill would, in some circumstances, authorize the reduction of a speed
limit beginning June 30, 2024, or when the Judicial Council has developed an online tool for adjudicating traffic infraction violations,
whichever is sooner. The bill would require Caltrans to accordingly revise the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, as
specified.

(6) Existing law defines a speed trap and prohibits evidence of a driver’s speed obtained through a speed trap from being admissible in
court in any prosecution against a driver for a speed-related offense. Existing law deems a road where the speed limit is not justified
by a traffic and engineering survey conducted within the previous 7 years to be a speed trap, unless the roadway has been evaluated
by a registered engineer, as specified, in which case the speed limit remains enforceable for a period of 10 years. Existing law exempts
a school zone, as defined, from certain provisions relating to defining a speed trap.

This bill would extend the period that a speed limit justified by a traffic and engineering survey conducted more the 7 years ago
remains valid, for purposes of speed enforcement, if evaluated by a registered engineer, as specified, to 14 years.

This bill would also exempt a senior zone and business activity district, as defined, from those provisions.

Digest Key
Vote: majority   Appropriation: no   Fiscal Committee: yes   Local Program: no  

Bill Text

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 627 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

627. (a) “Engineering and traffic survey,” as used in this code, means a survey of highway and traffic conditions in accordance with
methods determined by the Department of Transportation for use by state and local authorities.

(b) An engineering and traffic survey shall include, among other requirements deemed necessary by the department, consideration of
all of the following:

(1) Prevailing speeds as determined by traffic engineering measurements.

(2) Accident records.

(3) Highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not readily apparent to the driver.

(c) When conducting an engineering and traffic survey, local authorities, in addition to the factors set forth in paragraphs (1) to (3),
inclusive, of subdivision (b) may consider all of the following:

(1) Residential density, if any of the following conditions exist on the particular portion of highway and the property contiguous thereto,
other than a business district:

(A) Upon one side of the highway, within a distance of a quarter of a mile, the contiguous property fronting thereon is occupied by 13
or more separate dwelling houses or business structures.

(B) Upon both sides of the highway, collectively, within a distance of a quarter of a mile, the contiguous property fronting thereon is
occupied by 16 or more separate dwelling houses or business structures.

(C) The portion of highway is longer than one-quarter of a mile but has the ratio of separate dwelling houses or business structures to
the length of the highway described in either subparagraph (A) or (B).

(2) Safety of bicyclists and pedestrians, with increased consideration for vulnerable pedestrian groups including children, seniors,
persons with disabilities, users of personal assistive mobility devices, and the unhoused.

SEC. 2. Section 21400 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

21400. (a) The Department of Transportation shall, after consultation with local agencies and public hearings, adopt rules and
regulations prescribing uniform standards and specifications for all official traffic control devices placed pursuant to this code, including,
but not limited to, stop signs, yield right-of-way signs, speed restriction signs, railroad warning approach signs, street name signs,
lines and markings on the roadway, and stock crossing signs placed pursuant to Section 21364.

(b) The Department of Transportation shall, after notice and public hearing, determine and publicize the specifications for uniform types
of warning signs, lights, and devices to be placed upon a highway by a person engaged in performing work that interferes with or
endangers the safe movement of traffic upon that highway.

(c) Only those signs, lights, and devices as are provided for in this section shall be placed upon a highway to warn traffic of work that is
being performed on the highway.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 338 of 443



10/12/21, 9:06 AM Bill Text: CA AB43 | 2021-2022 | Regular Session | Chaptered | LegiScan

https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB43/2021 3/6

(d)  Control devices or markings installed upon traffic barriers on or after January 1, 1984, shall conform to the uniform standards and
specifications required by this section.

SEC. 3. Section 22352 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

22352. The prima facie limits are as follows and shall be applicable unless changed as authorized in this code and, if so changed, only
when signs have been erected giving notice thereof:

(a) Fifteen miles per hour:

(1) When traversing a railway grade crossing, if during the last 100 feet of the approach to the crossing the driver does not have a
clear and unobstructed view of the crossing and of any traffic on the railway for a distance of 400 feet in both directions along the
railway. This subdivision does not apply in the case of any railway grade crossing where a human flagperson is on duty or a clearly
visible electrical or mechanical railway crossing signal device is installed but does not then indicate the immediate approach of a
railway train or car.

(2) When traversing any intersection of highways if during the last 100 feet of the driver’s approach to the intersection the driver does
not have a clear and unobstructed view of the intersection and of any traffic upon all of the highways entering the intersection for a
distance of 100 feet along all those highways, except at an intersection protected by stop signs or yield right-of-way signs or controlled
by official traffic control signals.

(3) On any alley.

(b) Twenty-five miles per hour:

(1) On any highway, in any business or residence district unless a different speed is determined by local authority or the Department of
Transportation under procedures set forth in this code.

(2) When approaching or passing a school building or the grounds thereof, contiguous to a highway and posted with a standard
“SCHOOL” warning sign, while children are going to or leaving the school either during school hours or during the noon recess period.
The prima facie limit shall also apply when approaching or passing any school grounds which are not separated from the highway by a
fence, gate, or other physical barrier while the grounds are in use by children and the highway is posted with a standard “SCHOOL”
warning sign. For purposes of this subparagraph, standard “SCHOOL” warning signs may be placed at any distance up to 500 feet away
from school grounds.

(3) When passing a senior center or other facility primarily used by senior citizens, contiguous to a street other than a state highway
and posted with a standard “SENIOR” warning sign. A local authority may erect a sign pursuant to this paragraph when the local
agency makes a determination that the proposed signing should be implemented. A local authority may request grant funding from the
Active Transportation Program pursuant to Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 2380) of Division 3 of the Streets and Highways Code,
or any other grant funding available to it, and use that grant funding to pay for the erection of those signs, or may utilize any other
funds available to it to pay for the erection of those signs, including, but not limited to, donations from private sources.

SEC. 4. Section 22354 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

22354. (a) Whenever the Department of Transportation determines upon the basis of an engineering and traffic survey that the limit
of 65 miles per hour is more than is reasonable or safe upon any portion of a state highway where the limit of 65 miles is applicable,
the department may determine and declare a prima facie speed limit of 60, 55, 50, 45, 40, 35, 30, 25, 20, or 15 miles per hour,
whichever is found most appropriate to facilitate the orderly movement of traffic and is reasonable and safe, which declared prima facie
speed limit shall be effective when appropriate signs giving notice thereof are erected upon the highway.

(b) This section shall become operative on the date specified in subdivision (c) of Section 22366.

SEC. 5. Section 22358 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

22358. (a) Whenever a local authority determines upon the basis of an engineering and traffic survey that the limit of 65 miles per
hour is more than is reasonable or safe upon any portion of any street other than a state highway where the limit of 65 miles per hour
is applicable, the local authority may by ordinance determine and declare a prima facie speed limit of 60, 55, 50, 45, 40, 35, 30, 25,
20, or 15 miles per hour, whichever is found most appropriate to facilitate the orderly movement of traffic and is reasonable and safe,
which declared prima facie limit shall be effective when appropriate signs giving notice thereof are erected upon the street.

(b) This section shall become operative on the date specified in subdivision (c) of Section 22366.

SEC. 6. Section 22358.6 is added to the Vehicle Code, to read:

22358.6. The Department of Transportation shall, in the next scheduled revision, revise and thereafter maintain the California Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices to require the Department of Transportation or a local authority to round speed limits to the nearest
five miles per hour of the 85th percentile of the free-flowing traffic. However, in cases in which the speed limit needs to be rounded up
to the nearest five miles per hour increment of the 85th-percentile speed, the Department of Transportation or a local authority may
decide to instead round down the speed limit to the lower five miles per hour increment. A local authority may additionally lower the
speed limit as provided in Sections 22358.7 and 22358.8.

SEC. 7. Section 22358.7 is added to the Vehicle Code, to read:

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 339 of 443



10/12/21, 9:06 AM Bill Text: CA AB43 | 2021-2022 | Regular Session | Chaptered | LegiScan

https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB43/2021 4/6

22358.7. (a) If a local authority, after completing an engineering and traffic survey, finds that the speed limit is still more than is
reasonable or safe, the local authority may, by ordinance, determine and declare a prima facie speed limit that has been reduced an
additional five miles per hour for either of the following reasons:

(1) The portion of highway has been designated as a safety corridor. A local authority shall not deem more than one-fifth of their
streets as safety corridors.

(2) The portion of highway is adjacent to any land or facility that generates high concentrations of bicyclists or pedestrians, especially
those from vulnerable groups such as children, seniors, persons with disabilities, and the unhoused.

(b) (1) As used in this section, “safety corridor” shall be defined by the Department of Transportation in the next revision of the
California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. In making this determination, the department shall consider highways that have
the highest number of serious injuries and fatalities based on collision data that may be derived from, but not limited to, the Statewide
Integrated Traffic Records System.

(2) The Department of Transportation shall, in the next revision of the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, determine
what constitutes land or facilities that generate high concentrations of bicyclists and pedestrians, as used in paragraph (2) of
subdivision (a). In making this determination, the department shall consider density, road use type, and bicycle and pedestrian
infrastructure present on a section of highway.

(c) A local authority may not lower a speed limit as authorized by this section until June 30, 2024, or until the Judicial Council has
developed an online tool for adjudicating infraction violations statewide as specified in Article 7 (commencing with Section 68645) of
Chapter 2 of Title 8 of the Government Code, whichever is sooner.

(d) A local authority shall issue only warning citations for violations of exceeding the speed limit by 10 miles per hour or less for the
first 30 days that a lower speed limit is in effect as authorized by this section.

SEC. 8. Section 22358.8 is added to the Vehicle Code, to read:

22358.8. (a) If a local authority, after completing an engineering and traffic survey, finds that the speed limit is still more than is
reasonable or safe, the local authority may, by ordinance, retain the current speed limit or restore the immediately prior speed limit if
that speed limit was established with an engineering and traffic survey and if a registered engineer has evaluated the section of
highway and determined that no additional general purpose lanes have been added to the roadway since completion of the traffic
survey that established the prior speed limit.

(b) This section does not authorize a speed limit to be reduced by any more than five miles per hour from the current speed limit nor
below the immediately prior speed limit.

(c) A local authority shall issue only warning citations for violations of exceeding the speed limit by 10 miles per hour or less for the
first 30 days that a lower speed limit is in effect as authorized by this section.

SEC. 9. Section 22358.9 is added to the Vehicle Code, to read:

22358.9. (a) (1) Notwithstanding any other law, a local authority may, by ordinance, determine and declare a 25 or 20 miles per
hour prima facie speed limit on a highway contiguous to a business activity district when posted with a sign that indicates a speed limit
of 25 or 20 miles per hour.

(2) The prima facie limits established under paragraph (1) apply only to highways that meet all of the following conditions:

(A) A maximum of four traffic lanes.

(B) A maximum posted 30 miles per hour prima facie speed limit immediately prior to and after the business activity district, if
establishing a 25 miles per hour speed limit.

(C) A maximum posted 25 miles per hour prima facie speed limit immediately prior to and after the business activity district, if
establishing a 20 miles per hour speed limit.

(b) As used in this section, a “business activity district” is that portion of a highway and the property contiguous thereto that includes
central or neighborhood downtowns, urban villages, or zoning designations that prioritize commercial land uses at the downtown or
neighborhood scale and meets at least three of the following requirements in paragraphs (1) to (4), inclusive:

(1) No less than 50 percent of the contiguous property fronting the highway consists of retail or dining commercial uses, including
outdoor dining, that open directly onto sidewalks adjacent to the highway.

(2) Parking, including parallel, diagonal, or perpendicular spaces located alongside the highway.

(3) Traffic control signals or stop signs regulating traffic flow on the highway, located at intervals of no more than 600 feet.

(4) Marked crosswalks not controlled by a traffic control device.

(c) A local authority shall not declare a prima facie speed limit under this section on a portion of a highway where the local authority
has already lowered the speed limit as permitted under Sections 22358.7 and 22358.8.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 340 of 443



10/12/21, 9:06 AM Bill Text: CA AB43 | 2021-2022 | Regular Session | Chaptered | LegiScan

https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB43/2021 5/6

(d) A local authority shall issue only warning citations for violations of exceeding the speed limit by 10 miles per hour or less for the
first 30 days that a lower speed limit is in effect as authorized by this section.

SEC. 10. Section 40802 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

40802. (a) A “speed trap” is either of the following:

(1) A particular section of a highway measured as to distance and with boundaries marked, designated, or otherwise determined in
order that the speed of a vehicle may be calculated by securing the time it takes the vehicle to travel the known distance.

(2) A particular section of a highway with a prima facie speed limit that is provided by this code or by local ordinance under paragraph
(1) of subdivision (b) of Section 22352, or established under Section 22354, 22357, 22358, or 22358.3, if that prima facie speed limit
is not justified by an engineering and traffic survey conducted within five years prior to the date of the alleged violation, and
enforcement of the speed limit involves the use of radar or any other electronic device that measures the speed of moving objects. This
paragraph does not apply to a local street, road, school zone, senior zone, or business activity district.

(b) (1) For purposes of this section, a local street or road is one that is functionally classified as “local” on the “California Road System
Maps,” that are approved by the Federal Highway Administration and maintained by the Department of Transportation. It may also be
defined as a “local street or road” if it primarily provides access to abutting residential property and meets the following three
conditions:

(A) Roadway width of not more than 40 feet.

(B) Not more than one-half of a mile of uninterrupted length. Interruptions shall include official traffic control signals as defined in
Section 445.

(C) Not more than one traffic lane in each direction.

(2) For purposes of this section, “school zone” means that area approaching or passing a school building or the grounds thereof that is
contiguous to a highway and on which is posted a standard “SCHOOL” warning sign, while children are going to or leaving the school
either during school hours or during the noon recess period. “School zone” also includes the area approaching or passing any school
grounds that are not separated from the highway by a fence, gate, or other physical barrier while the grounds are in use by children if
that highway is posted with a standard “SCHOOL” warning sign.

(3) For purposes of this section, “senior zone” means that area approaching or passing a senior center building or other facility
primarily used by senior citizens, or the grounds thereof that is contiguous to a highway and on which is posted a standard “SENIOR”
warning sign, pursuant to Section 22352.

(4) For purposes of this section, “business activity district” means a section of highway described in subdivision (b) of Section 22358.9
in which a standard 25 miles per hour or 20 miles per hour speed limit sign has been posted pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision
(a) of that section.

(c) (1) When all of the following criteria are met, paragraph (2) of this subdivision shall be applicable and subdivision (a) shall not be
applicable:

(A) When radar is used, the arresting officer has successfully completed a radar operator course of not less than 24 hours on the use of
police traffic radar, and the course was approved and certified by the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training.

(B) When laser or any other electronic device is used to measure the speed of moving objects, the arresting officer has successfully
completed the training required in subparagraph (A) and an additional training course of not less than two hours approved and certified
by the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training.

(C) (i) The prosecution proved that the arresting officer complied with subparagraphs (A) and (B) and that an engineering and traffic
survey has been conducted in accordance with subparagraph (B) of paragraph (2). The prosecution proved that, prior to the officer
issuing the notice to appear, the arresting officer established that the radar, laser, or other electronic device conformed to the
requirements of subparagraph (D).

(ii) The prosecution proved the speed of the accused was unsafe for the conditions present at the time of alleged violation unless the
citation was for a violation of Section 22349, 22356, or 22406.

(D) The radar, laser, or other electronic device used to measure the speed of the accused meets or exceeds the minimal operational
standards of the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, and has been calibrated within the three years prior to the date of the
alleged violation by an independent certified laser or radar repair and testing or calibration facility.

(2) A “speed trap” is either of the following:

(A) A particular section of a highway measured as to distance and with boundaries marked, designated, or otherwise determined in
order that the speed of a vehicle may be calculated by securing the time it takes the vehicle to travel the known distance.

(B) (i) A particular section of a highway or state highway with a prima facie speed limit that is provided by this code or by local
ordinance under paragraph (1) of subdivision (b) of Section 22352, or established under Section 22354, 22357, 22358, or 22358.3, if
that prima facie speed limit is not justified by an engineering and traffic survey conducted within one of the following time periods,
prior to the date of the alleged violation, and enforcement of the speed limit involves the use of radar or any other electronic device
that measures the speed of moving objects:

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 341 of 443



10/12/21, 9:06 AM Bill Text: CA AB43 | 2021-2022 | Regular Session | Chaptered | LegiScan

https://legiscan.com/CA/text/AB43/2021 6/6

(I) Except as specified in subclause (II), seven years.

(II) If an engineering and traffic survey was conducted more than seven years prior to the date of the alleged violation, and a
registered engineer evaluates the section of the highway and determines that no significant changes in roadway or traffic conditions
have occurred, including, but not limited to, changes in adjoining property or land use, roadway width, or traffic volume, 14 years.

(ii) This subparagraph does not apply to a local street, road, or school zone, senior zone, or business activity district.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 342 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 343 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 344 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1227                 
WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 

 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 By: Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development  
   
Date:  January 3, 2022 

 
Subject: Presentation and Study Session of the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element and 

Safety Element Update to the General Plan  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that City Council receive a presentation and provide feedback on the 
proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to the General Plan. 
  
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. Since 1969, the State has required all cities and counties in California to adopt a Housing 
Element that adequately plan to accommodate each jurisdiction’s fair share of housing needs 
in California. The Housing Element is a chapter of the General Plan that serves as each 
jurisdiction’s blueprint for how it plans to grow and develop.  
 

2. The City of San Fernando is one of 197 local jurisdictions within the Southern California 
Association of Governments (SCAG), who is responsible for assigning the Regional Housing 
Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation in Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, 
Imperial, and Ventura counties.  All jurisdictions in SCAG regions are currently working on 
updating their Housing Element to plan for the 6th Cycle RHNA allocation for the next 8-year 
period (October 2021 to October 2029) as required by the State.  
 

3. On September 4, 2020, SCAG issued a draft of the 6th Cycle RHNA allocation, which assigned 
1,791 housing units to the City of San Fernando.   

 
4. On October 26, 2020, the City filed an appeal of the RHNA allocation to SCAG arguing that the 

allocation does not reflect local planning factors such as jobs-housing balance, sewer and 
water infrastructure constraints, and availability of land in the City, among other flaws.  

 
5. On December 18, 2020, staff held a kick-off meeting with the City’s Housing Consultant, 

Houseal Lavigne, to commence work on the Housing Element Update. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 345 of 443



Presentation and Study Session of the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to 
the General Plan           Page 2 of 6 
 
 
 

 

6. On January 11, 2021, SCAG 6th Cycle RHNA Appeals Board considered and denied the appeal 
filed by the City, thus reaffirming the draft allocation of 1,791 housing units. Out of 52 
jurisdictions who filed the appeal, only one jurisdiction (Pico Rivera) received a re-allocation 
that was granted due to a mathematical miscalculation on SCAG’s behalf. 

 
7. On March 4, 2021, SCAG finalized their 6th Cycle RHNA Allocation plan that increased the total 

allocation to the City of San Fernando from 1,791 to 1,795 units. 
 

8. Virtual community meetings were held on March 25, 2021, May 12, 2021, and August 11, 
2021 to share the process and receive feedback from the community.  

 
9. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) meetings were held on April 13, 2021, May 18, 2021, 

and December 2, 2021 to review the proposed Housing Element Update and receive 
feedback.  

 
10. On October 29, 2021, a Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element Update was posted on the City’s 

Website (Click Here) for public review. Hard copies of the Draft Housing Element were made 
available at the San Fernando Library, Las Palmas Park, and Recreation Park.  

 
11. The Draft Housing Element Update was presented to the Planning and Preservation 

Commission on November 8, 2021.  Prior to presentation of the Draft Housing Element 
Update, discussions were held with the Commission regarding the RHNA allocation and 
Housing Element Update process on October 12, 2020 and May 10, 2021.  

 
12. On November 12, 2021, the Draft Housing Element Update was sent to the California 

Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for their initial 60-day review.  
 

13. On December 16, 2021, a Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) was released for a 30-
day public review period from December 16, 2021 to January 17, 2021.   A Notice of Intent to 
adopt the Draft MND was published in the San Fernando Sun and submitted to the State 
Clearinghouse. The notice was also sent to all interested residents, regional, state and federal 
agencies.  A copy of the draft MND is available at City Hall and online (Click Here).  

 
14. On December 22, 2021, a Draft Safety Element was posted on the city website (Click Here) 

for public review.   A copy the Draft Safety Element is available for public review at city hall 
and online.  The Safety Element was updated to satisfy Senate Bill (SB) 379 and SB 1035. 

 
ANALYSIS: 

Housing Element Updates and Regional Housing Needs Allocation. 
State law requires every city and county in California to adopt and implement a General Plan, 
which established overall goals and polices for future growth of the jurisdiction.  A city’s General 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 346 of 443

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/viewer.html?pdfurl=https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2021%2F10%2FDRAFT-San-Fernando-Housing-Element.pdf&chunk=true
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/viewer.html?pdfurl=https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2021%2F12%2FSan-Fernando-HEU-Draft-IS-MND.pdf&chunk=true
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/viewer.html?pdfurl=https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2021%2F12%2FSafety-ElementUpdate_December2021_DRAFTred.pdf&chunk=true


Presentation and Study Session of the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to 
the General Plan           Page 3 of 6 
 
 
 

 

Plan must include a Housing Element as one of seven mandatory elements (land use, 
transportation, conservation, noise, open space, safety and housing).  The Housing Element must 
include policies and programs to meet existing and future housing needs for the City, as 
established by HCD and SCAG.   
 
For jurisdictions in the SCAG region, which includes San Fernando, state law requires that the 
Housing Element be updated every eight years. The Housing Element update process serves as 
an opportunity to update housing and land-use strategies to reflect changing needs, resources, 
and conditions. For the upcoming 6th Cycle RHNA allocation, the due date for local jurisdictions 
to adopt an updated Housing Element is February 12, 2022.  
 
Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element  
To meet the City’s RHNA allocation of 1,795 units, the Draft Housing Element proposes a mixed-
use overlay in existing commercial corridors along South Brand Boulevard and San Fernando 
Mission Boulevard. The proposed mixed-use overlay helps protect existing residential 
neighborhoods by not increasing density to accommodate additional housing units in residential 
neighborhoods. The overlay approach helps preserve existing residential neighborhood 
characters while directing developments to commercial corridors that can accommodate the 
demand for additional density to meet the RHNA allocation.   
 
The proposed mixed-use overlay will not only help meet the RHNA allocation, but also bring 
several benefits to the City. The proposed mixed-use overlay will create flexibility for existing 
commercial properties to create a live-work environment that will:  

1. Help increase foot traffic to support local businesses. 

2. Reduce the need for vehicle travel by bringing residents and visitors to one location to 
live, work, eat, shop, and play.  

3. Bring shared community spaces to help foster interaction amount community members.   

Overall, the proposed mixed-use overlay will address the City’s housing needs, help promote 
sustainability, and encourage economic development.  
 
As required by HCD, 50 opportunity sites have been identified to accommodate the 1,795 RHNA 
allocation.  These sites are mostly in Specific Plan 5 (SP 5) area with a few sites outside the SP 5 
boundary.  A map of the potential sites is shown below. More details of these sites are provided 
as an appendix to the Draft Housing Element.   
 
  
 
 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 347 of 443



Presentation and Study Session of the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to 
the General Plan           Page 4 of 6 
 
 
 

 

Figure 1:  Opportunity Sites 

 
 
Safety Element Update 
As part of the Housing Element update, the Safety Element has been updated to address wildfire 
and climate adaptation as required by SB 379 and SB 1035.  The Draft Safety Element identifies 
existing hazard conditions such as geological, flood, fire, water demand, hazardous materials and 
climate change vulnerability. The Draft Safety Element update provides goals and policies that 
aim to address each hazard conditions.  
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 348 of 443



Presentation and Study Session of the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to 
the General Plan           Page 5 of 6 
 
 
 

 

 
Environmental Justice Policies 
Both the Draft Housing Element and Safety Element include policies addressing environmental 
justice as required by SB 1000.  SB 1000 requires all local jurisdictions to create an Environmental 
Justice Element or incorporate environmental justice policies when updating two or more 
elements of its general plan.  Environmental justice policies are included in the Draft Housing 
Element and Safety Element to address challenges in disadvantaged communities and to 
promote civic engagement.  These policies will serve as the basis for a separate Environment 
Justice Element, which staff will explore creating as part of a comprehensive General Plan update 
in the near future.   
 
Environmental Review 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), a Draft Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) has been prepared for the Housing Element and Safety Element update. The 
Draft MND analyzed potential environmental impacts and included mitigation measures to 
mitigate any potential impacts to less than a significant level.   The Draft MND was released for a 
30-day public review period starting on December 16, 2021 and ending on January 17, 2021. The 
Draft MND is available on the City of San Fernando website (Link to Mitigate Negative 
Declaration) and at the planning counter. 
 
Time Line 
A schedule has been created to meet the deadline for adoption of the Housing Element by 
February 12, 2022.   

 January 3, 2022: City Council Study Session of the Draft Housing Element Safety Element 
Study Session.  

 January 12, 2022: Comments due from HCD.  

 January 24, 2022:  Special meeting of the Planning and Preservation Commission review 
and recommendation of the Draft Housing Element and Safety Element. 

 February 7, 2022:  City Council consideration and adoption of the Draft Housing Element 
and Safety Element.  

 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The Housing Element Update is funded by a combination of state grant funds totaling $310,000 
from the Senate Bill 2 (SB 2) Planning Grant Program and the State’s Local Early Action Planning 
(LEAP) Grants Program.   
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 349 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/San-Fernando-HEU-Draft-IS-MND.pdf
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/San-Fernando-HEU-Draft-IS-MND.pdf


Presentation and Study Session of the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to 
the General Plan           Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 

 

 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive the presentation and provide feedback on the 
proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element Update to the General Plan. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element Update (Click link to view document)  
B. Draft Safety Element Update (Click link to view document) 
C. Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (Click link to view document) 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 350 of 443

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/DRAFT-San-Fernando-Housing-Element.pdf
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/Safety-ElementUpdate_December2021_DRAFTred.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/viewer.html?pdfurl=https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2021%2F12%2FSan-Fernando-HEU-Draft-IS-MND.pdf&chunk=true


January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 351 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 352 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1227                 
WWW SFCITY ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 By: Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 
   
Date:  January 3, 2022 

 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion to Adopt an Interim Urgency Ordinance Establishing 

Regulations for Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zone for Implementation of Senate Bill 9 (SB 9) and Authorize a 
Letter of Support for a Proposed Ballot Initiative to Overturn SB 9 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that City Council:  
 
a. Adopt Interim Urgency Ordinance No. U-1706 (Attachment “A”) establishing regulations for 

Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for 
implementation of Senate Bill 9; and 

 
b. Authorize the Mayor and City Manager to submit a letter of support to the Brand-Huang-

Mendoza Tripartisan Land Use Initiative committee and take other related actions supporting 
the ballot initiative titled, “Provides That Local Land-Use and Zoning Laws Override Conflicting 
State Laws. Initiative Constitutional Amendment.” (Attachment “B”) (hereafter referred to as 
the “Ballot Initiative”). 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. On July 19, 2021, the City Council discussed Senate Bill 9 (SB 9) and directed staff to submit a 
letter in opposition to SB 9.  
 

2. On July 30, 2021, the City submitted a letter of opposition of SB 9 to Senate President pro 
Tempore Atkins.  
 

3. On August 26, 2021, a Ballot Initiative seeking to supersede the requirements included in SB 
9 with a constitutional amendment that will return land use authority to local land use 
agencies was initiated and is currently being circulated for supporting signatures.  Should the 
ballot measure be certified by the State Registrar, it will be placed on November 8, 2022 
ballot.   

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 353 of 443



Consideration and Discussion to Adopt an Interim Urgency Ordinance Establishing Regulations for 
Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for Implementation 
of Senate Bill 9 (SB 9) and Authorize a Letter of Support for a Proposed Ballot Initiative to Overturn SB 
9 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
4. On August 30, 2021, the California Legislature approved SB 9 and sent it to the Governor’s 

Office for signature. 
 

5. On September 8, 2021 the City submitted a letter to Governor Newsom requesting a veto of 
SB 9. 
 

6. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Senate Bill 9 into law that requires all local 
land use agencies to ministerially approve urban lot splits and development of two residential 
units per single-family residential lot.   
 

7. SB 9 became effective on January 1, 2022. 
 

 
ANALYSIS: 

Senate Bill 9 
SB 9 is part of the Senate housing package “Building Opportunities for All” from California State 
Senators Atkins, Caballero, Skinner, and Wiener.  SB 9 created two Government Code sections:  

• Section 66441.7 establishes a new land subdivision method that allows a single-family 
residential zoned property be subdivided into two lots, known as “urban lot splits.”  

• Section 65851.21 allows each single-family residential zoned lot to be developed with two 
single-family homes. 

Under SB 9, the subdivision and development of two-residential units per lot must be approved 
ministerially (i.e. without discretionary review or hearing), if certain conditions are met.  SB 9 
effectively allows an existing single-family lot to be developed with four residential units with no 
public hearing or other review other than a staff review for compliance with state codes and 
objective City standards.  

Prior to SB 9, a single-family lot was allowed to contain a primary housing unit, a detached 
accessory dwelling unit (ADU), and a junior ADU under State ADU law.  SB 9 expands the potential 
density of existing single-family lot from three units to four units.  The significant changes under 
SB 9 is that State law now requires all cities and counties to ministerially approve a second 
primary residential unit outside of the State ADU law, and it also allows the creation of second 
lot within the original lot.  However, SB 9 does not require local agencies to permit an ADU or 
JADU in addition to the four units allowed under SB 9.   
 
Urban Lot Splits under SB 9 (Govt Code Section 66441.7) 
Land subdivision under SB 9 must be approved ministerially if the following conditions are met:  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 354 of 443



Consideration and Discussion to Adopt an Interim Urgency Ordinance Establishing Regulations for 
Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for Implementation 
of Senate Bill 9 (SB 9) and Authorize a Letter of Support for a Proposed Ballot Initiative to Overturn SB 
9 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

 
1. The lot is zoned single-family residential. 

2. The property is located in an urbanized area or urban cluster as designated by the United 
States Census Bureau. 

3. No more than two new lots of approximately equal size can be created, with one lot being 
no smaller than 40% of the original lot area. 

4. Neither lot is less than 1,200 square feet.  

5. The property is not within prime farmland, a wetland, a high or very high fire severity 
zone, a hazardous waste site, a special flood area or floodway, a delineated earthquake 
fault zone, a conservation easement, or other conditions listed in Gov’t Code Section 
65913.4.  

6. The subdivision does not require demolition or alteration of affordable housing, local 
rent-controlled housing, or housing occupied by a tenant in the last three years. 

7. The property is not located in “a historic district, or property included on the State Historic 
Resources Inventory, as defined in Section 5020.1 of the Public Resources Code, or within 
a site that is designated or listed as city or county landmark or historic property or district 
pursuant to a city or county ordinance.” 

If these conditions are met, the proposed subdivision must be approved and requirements for 
dedication for right-of-way or construction of off-site improvements are not permitted under SB 
9.  However, local agencies can impose objective standards that do not conflict with the SB 9.  
 
Local agencies cannot impose standards that would physically preclude the construction of two 
units on either of the resulting lots or would result in a unit size of less than 800 square feet.  The 
local agency can require a four-foot setback from the side and rear lot lines.  However, no 
setbacks can be required for existing structures or for a new structure built at the same location 
and same dimensions as an existing structure.  Local agencies also cannot require correction of 
non-conforming zoning conditions (e.g., setbacks, height, lot coverage, etc.).  
 
Applicants of urban lot splits must sign an affidavit stating that the applicant intends to occupy 
one of the housing units as a primary residence for a minimum of three years from the date of 
the approval of the urban lot splits.  No other owner-occupancy requirements may be imposed 
by local agencies.  An agency may limit the use of the lots to residential uses and rental terms 
may be restricted to a minimum of 30 days.  
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 355 of 443



Consideration and Discussion to Adopt an Interim Urgency Ordinance Establishing Regulations for 
Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for Implementation 
of Senate Bill 9 (SB 9) and Authorize a Letter of Support for a Proposed Ballot Initiative to Overturn SB 
9 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
Housing Development under SB 9 (Govt Code Section 65852.21)  
Additionally, SB 9 allows developing a second primary unit on the same lot on single-family 
residential properties.  The same conditions and restrictions that apply to urban lot splits under 
SB 9, described above, also apply to such housing development under SB 9.    
 
Cities may require one parking space per unit if the property is not located within one-half mile 
walking distance from a high-quality transit corridor or a major transit stop, or not located within 
one block of a car share vehicle facility.  Most residential properties in San Fernando are located 
within one-half mile from a high-quality transit corridor or major transit stop.  Therefore, the City 
is precluded from requiring an additional parking space in most cases. 
 
A local agency may deny a housing development if the building official makes a written finding 
based on the preponderance of the evidence that the proposed development would have a 
specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety, or physical environment for which 
there is no feasible method to mitigate or avoid such impact.  
 
Adopting an Urgency Ordinance to Implement SB 9 
The proposed Urgency Ordinance puts a number of regulations in place to minimize the initial 
impact of SB 9 while allowing the City to establish permanent regulations to comply with SB 9.  
The proposed Urgency Ordinance focuses on the urban lot splits and development of properties 
in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) zone.   The Urgency Ordinance includes standards in SB 9 
that are restated and clarified, and additional City regulations that establish objective standards 
for SB 9 subdivisions and housing units.  
 
Most importantly, the Urgency Ordinance allows the City to impose local regulations to the 
maximum extent allowed by SB 9, such as limiting the number of housing units to four units, 
requiring an affordability covenant for at least one unit, and establishing objective design 
standards.   Some of the key regulations in the proposed Urgency Ordinance are, as follows:  

1. Setting a maximum number of units to two units per lot for all lots created with the SB 9 
urban lot splits.  

2. Requiring a covenant to be recorded on the property limiting a parcel to be subdivided 
only once under SB 9, no housing units can be used for short-term rental, and if rented, 
one of the units must be for low-income households.     

3. Limiting unit size to be no more than 800 square feet and not higher than 14 feet or one 
story.  

4. Establishing a front yard setback of 10 feet for a new rear lot (new lot with no street 
frontage).  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 356 of 443



Consideration and Discussion to Adopt an Interim Urgency Ordinance Establishing Regulations for 
Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for Implementation 
of Senate Bill 9 (SB 9) and Authorize a Letter of Support for a Proposed Ballot Initiative to Overturn SB 
9 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

5. Requiring the unit facing the street to have a minimum width of 40 feet or 75% of the lot 
width and the remaining units to be screened by the front unit.   

6. Requiring new units or additions to existing structure to be designed to match the 
architectural style of the existing dwelling unit including architectural details (e.g. window 
treatment, building materials).   

The proposed regulations in the Urgency Ordinance have been established to minimize the 
impacts of new development on public infrastructure and public safety.  For example, the 
proposed Urgency Ordinance prohibits adding an ADU and a junior ADU to each split-lot created 
under SB 9.  This prohibition ensures the original single-family lot will only be allowed to have a 
maximum of four units, rather than a total of eight units.  
 
If adopted, the Urgency Ordinance is effective immediately.  After adoption, the Urgency 
Ordinance will be presented to the Planning and Preservation Commission for consideration of 
additional regulations that will ultimately be presented to the City Council for consideration as a 
non-urgency ordinance.  Staff anticipates that this matter will be placed on the first meeting of 
the Commission in February 2022 and on the City Council agenda in March or April 2022.  
 
Environmental Review for Urgency Ordinance 
The adoption of this Urgency Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) (the “common sense exemption”) and 
Section 15378 (“not a project”) since it can be seen with certainty that adopting an ordinance to 
comply with the state law provisions of SB 9 will not have a significant effect on the environment.  
Adopting the Urgency Ordinance is also exempt under Government Code Section 66411.7, subd. 
(n) which exempts cities’ adoption of ordinances implementing that section of SB 9 from CEQA.     
 
City Support for the Ballot Initiative to Supersede SB 9 (Initiative No. 21-0016A1) 
On August 26, 2021, the initial draft of the Ballot Initiative to supersede SB 9 was submitted by a 
group of citizens to the State Attorney General for official title and summary for circulating 
petitions.  On November 1, 2021, the Attorney General issued the Ballot Initiative’s title 
(“Provides That Local Land-Use and Zoning Laws Override Conflicting State Laws.  Initiative 
Constitutional Amendment.”) and summary.  The Ballot Initiative’s circulation and signature 
gathering is due by May 3, 2022.  If signature gathering is successful, the Ballot Initiative may 
appear on the ballot for the November 8, 2022 election. 
 
The Ballot Initiative aims to rebuke SB 9 by amending the California Constitution to allow local 
jurisdictions to override state housing laws, including SB 9.  The Ballot Initiative states that its 
purpose is to “ensure that all decision regarding local land use controls, including zoning law and 
regulations, are made by the affected communities….”   

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 357 of 443



Consideration and Discussion to Adopt an Interim Urgency Ordinance Establishing Regulations for 
Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone for Implementation 
of Senate Bill 9 (SB 9) and Authorize a Letter of Support for a Proposed Ballot Initiative to Overturn SB 
9 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 
If passed, the new law would allow local land use and zoning ordinances to override conflicting 
state laws, thus allowing cities and counties to adopt regulations to protect the character of their 
communities.  It would protect other voter-approved local land-use or zoning initiatives and 
prohibit the State from changing, granting, or denying funding to local governments based on 
implementing the Ballot Initiative.  However, the new law would not allow local control to 
supersede three areas of particular statewide concern, as follows: (1) the California Coastal Act 
of 1976; (2) siting of power plants; or (3) development of water, communication, or 
transportation infrastructure projects.  
 
Staff is requesting the Council to authorize the City, through the Mayor and City Manager, to 
submit to a letter of support to the organizations supporting the Ballot Initiative and related 
efforts to negate the impact of SB 9.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

Preparation of zoning related ordinances and legislative advocacy programs are included in the 
annual work program for the Community Development Department and City Manager’s Office, 
respectively.  Therefore, funding for both efforts is included in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Adopted 
Budget.   
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Urgency Ordinance No. U-1706 establishing 
regulations for Urban Lot Splits and Housing Development in Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zone 
for implementation of SB 9. 
 
Staff also recommends that the City Council authorize staff to support efforts to negate the 
impacts of SB 9, including, but not limited to, a letter of support for the current effort to place a 
ballot initiative superseding SB 9 on the November 2022 General Election. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Proposed Interim Urgency Ordinance No. U-1706 
B. Text of SB 9  
C. Initiative 21-0016A1 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 358 of 443



ATTACHMENT “A” 

URGENCY ORDINANCE NO. U-1706 

AN INTERIM URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA MAKING FINDINGS AND 
ESTABLISHING OBJECTIVE STANDARDS FOR URBAN LOT SPLITS AND 
TWO-UNIT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS IN SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL (R-1) ZONE PURSUANT TO SENATE BILL 9 

 
WHEREAS, California Constitution Article XI, Section 7, enables the City of San Fernando 

(the “City”) to enact local planning and land use regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the authority to adopt and enforce zoning regulations is an exercise of the 
City’s police power to protect the public health, safety, and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to ensure that residential development occurs in an orderly 
manner, in accordance with the goals and objectives of the General Plan and reasonable land use 
planning principles; and 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, California  Governor Gavin Newsom signed Senate Bill 
9 (SB 9) into law as part of an effort to address the State’s housing crisis by streamlining housing 
production; and 

WHEREAS, the new legislation is effective on January 1, 2022 and requires local agencies 
to ministerially approve urban lot splits and development of two residential units per single 
family residential lots provided the projects meet certain criteria; and  

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to balance compliance with State law with the rights still 
preserved under the new legislation authorizing the City to establish objective zoning, subdivision 
and design review standards consistent with SB 9 required to approve urban lot splits and  
two-unit residential development; and  

WHEREAS, Government Code section 65858 authorizes the City Council to adopt an 
urgency ordinance by a four-fifths vote for the immediate preservation of the public health, 
safety, or welfare, and to prohibit a land use that may be in conflict with a contemplated general 
plan, specific plan, or zoning proposal that the City Council, Planning and Preservation 
Commission, or the Community Development Department is considering or studying or intends 
to study within a reasonable time. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:   

SECTION 1. Recitals.   

The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference.  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 359 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

2 
 
 
 

SECTION 2. Purpose, Legislative Findings, and Intent.  

(1)   During the 2021 legislative session, the California Legislature passed, and the 
Governor signed Senate Bill 9 (SB 9), which requires local agencies to ministerially 
approve urban lot splits and development of two residential units per single 
family residential lot in single family residential zones provided the projects meet 
certain criteria.  SB 9 is effective on January 1, 2022. 
 

(2)   SB 9 projects have the potential to significantly impact the character of the City’s 
well established single family neighborhoods and well-thought out community 
planning and housing strategy and requires further study. 
 

(3)   The City intends to study and formulate permanent regulations for the 
implementation of SB 9 projects in the City, but will need adequate time to 
complete that process following SB 9’s effective date. Thus, the City Council 
wishes to adopt an interim ordinance that will take effect immediately and 
impose baseline standards for land subdivisions and units constructed under SB 9 
while permanent standards are studied and formulated. 
 

(4)   SB 9 projects have the potential to impact the health, safety, and welfare of 
residents in the City, and particularly on the character of single family residential 
neighborhoods, vehicular and pedestrian safety, on-street parking demand and 
impacts, and housing affordability. As such, the City of San Fernando City Council 
finds that there is an immediate need to establish objective zoning and 
subdivision standards for SB 9 projects in order to protect the public health, 
safety, and welfare while it studies permanent land use regulations for such 
projects and to ensure SB 9 does not have a detrimental impact on single family 
residential neighborhoods within the City. This process may be lengthy and 
therefore the City Council wishes to adopt an interim ordinance that will take 
effect immediately to mitigate the potential health, safety and welfare impacts of 
SB 9 projects. 
 

(5)   The California Legislature has declared a statewide housing emergency, to be in 
effect until January 1, 2025. 
 

(6)   California is experiencing a housing supply crisis, with housing demand far 
outstripping supply. In 2018, California ranked 49th out of the 50 states in 
housing units per capita. Seven of the 10 most expensive real estate markets in 
the United States are in California. 
 

(7)   The housing crisis has particularly exacerbated the need for affordable homes at 
prices below market rates, and for the current 2021-2029 planning period, the 
City must accommodate the development of 1,795 residential units of which 734 
units must be very-low to low income households. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 360 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

3 
 
 
 

(8)   To address these issues of affordability in San Fernando, it is necessary for the 
City to limit the size of units developed pursuant to SB 9 and to require that some 
units be affordable to low income families, as an interim measure to ensure that 
SB 9 developments do not conflict with forthcoming permanent regulations. 

 
SECTION 3. Urgency Findings.   
 

In accordance with Government Code Section 65858(a), and pursuant to the findings 
stated herein, the City Council hereby finds and declares: (1) that the findings and 
determinations in Section 2 are true and correct; (2) that there exists a current and 
immediate threat to the public health, safety, and welfare requiring this Ordinance; (3) 
that this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health, and safety as set forth herein. 
 
 
SECTION 4. Imposition of Interim Regulations 
 
A. Notwithstanding any other ordinance or provision of the San Fernando City Code, no 

application for a building permit or other land use entitlement shall be approved for 
a new “urban lot split” or “two-unit development” (whether the project is the 
construction of two new units or adding a second unit) unless it satisfies all the 
requirements in Section C of this Ordinance.  These interim regulations shall remain 
in effect for so long as this Ordinance remains in place or until such time as the same 
are amended by new permanent regulations that comply with new State regulations.  

 
B. The City shall not approve an application for a new urban lot split and/or two-unit 

development unless the proposed subdivision and/or housing project satisfies all of 
the standards below. An application for a new urban lot split and/or two-unit 
development that satisfies each of the below standards shall be approved by the 
Community Development Director following a ministerial review for compliance.  A 
proposal for development under this section shall be initiated by an application on a 
form prescribed by the City together with the required fee. 

 
C. Except as otherwise provided under this Ordinance or under Government Code 

Section 65852.21 and Section 66411.7 the following conditions and restrictions shall 
apply to any proposed urban lot split and two-unit development:  

1. Purpose. 
 
The provisions of this section establish interim standards and procedures for 
projects developed pursuant to the regulations included in state Senate Bill 9  
(SB 9). 

  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 361 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

4 
 
 
 

2. Definitions. 
 
For the purposes of this section, certain words and phrases used in this section are 
defined as follows: 
 
Front lot means when an urban lot split creates two lots where there was 
previously one lot, the lot with the most frontage on the primary street shall be 
considered the front lot. 
 
Rear lot means when an urban lot split creates two lots where there was 
previously one lot, the lot with the least frontage on the primary street shall be 
considered the rear lot. 
 
Rear lot front setback means the distance between the front lot line and closest 
element of a building or structure on the site area of a rear lot created by an 
urban lot split. The front lot line of such rear lot may also be the rear lot line of 
the front lot, and shall be the lot line closest to, and parallel to the primary street. 
 
Second primary dwelling unit means a dwelling unit constructed on a lot zoned 
single-family residential as permitted pursuant to the requirements of this 
Ordinance and SB 9. 
 
Senate Bill 9 or SB 9 means the state law passed by the California state senate and 
approved by the Governor on September 16, 2021. The bill amends Government 
Code section 66452.6 and adds to sections 65852.21 and 66411.7 of Chapter 162, 
and takes effect on January 1, 2022. 
 
Two-unit development means a housing development containing two dwelling 
units on a lot zoned single-family residential (R-1) pursuant to the requirements 
of this Ordinance and SB 9. 

 
Urban lot split means a parcel map subdivision of a single family residential 
parcel as permitted pursuant to SB 9 that creates no more than two parcels of 
approximately equal lot area. 

 
3. Applicability. 

 
The provisions of this section shall apply to residential projects and urban lot 
splits with Single-Family Residential (R-1) zone that are proposed pursuant 
to the regulations in SB 9.  Except as expressly provided in SB 9 or in this 
section, all other regulations of the underlying zone of a property developed 
pursuant to SB 9 shall apply, along with all other applicable regulations related 
to any urban lot split or two-unit development. 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 362 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

5 
 
 
 

4. General Requirements; Covenant Required. 
 
A property owner seeking to complete an urban lot split, or develop units on a 
single-family residential property pursuant to the regulations set forth in SB 9 
and the standards in this section, shall be subject to the following general 
requirements, which shall be accepted and acknowledged by the property 
owner by signing and recording a covenant against the property.  The covenant 
shall be supplied by the City and provide as follows: 
 
A. The short term rental defined as rentals of any duration less than 31 

consecutive calendar days of any units on the site shall be prohibited; 
 

B. Non-residential uses on the site shall be prohibited; 
 

C. Any subsequent urban lot split of land that was previously subdivided with 
an urban lot split shall be prohibited; 

 
D. The owner of the property for which an urban lot split is proposed shall sign 

an affidavit stating that the owner intends to occupy one of the housing units 
as their principal residence for at least three years from the date of the 
approval of the urban lot split; and 

 
E. If, pursuant to SB 9, more than one unit is developed on a lot, one of such 

units shall be rented or leased at a rate affordable to low income tenants, if 
it is rented. Upon request from the City, the property owner shall furnish a 
copy of the rental or lease agreement of any unit created by SB 9 that is 
rented or leased; and  

 
F. The owner of the property for which an urban lot split is proposed shall sign 

an affidavit stating that neither the owner nor any person acting in concert 
with the owner of the parcel being subdivided has previously subdivided an 
adjacent parcel using an urban lot split as provided for in this section. 

 
5. Urban Lot Split Regulations. 

 
Approval of a tentative parcel map or parcel map for urban lot split shall not result 
in a subdivision of more than two lots for a single-family residential lot, pursuant 
to the regulations contained in SB 9 as follows: 
 
A. No lot resulting from an urban lot split shall be smaller than 1,200 square 

feet. 
 

B. The two resulting lots shall be of  approximately equal lot area, and not 
smaller than 48% or larger than 52% of the lot area of the original parcel. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 363 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

6 
 
 
 

C. No flag lots shall be created as a result of an urban lot split. 
 

D. The width of any lot resulting from an urban lot split shall not be less than 
75% of the original lot width. 

 
E. No right-of-way dedications shall be imposed upon urban lot split projects. 

 
6. Maximum Number of Units. 

 
A. For projects that include an urban lot split, no more than two units may be 

located on a lot that results from an urban lot split.  The units must conform 
to the objective standards included in this section.  Existing and proposed 
ADUs and Junior ADUs shall be counted toward the maximum number of 
units permitted. 

 
B. For projects that do not include an urban lot split, no more than three units 

(including one ADU, and one Junior ADU) may be located on a site.  The units 
must conform to the objective standards included in this section and as 
otherwise regulated by ADU or Junior ADU regulations.  

 
C. No second primary dwelling units shall be permitted on a property already 

developed with an ADU and/or Junior ADU.  No ADU or Junior ADU shall be 
permitted on a property developed with a second primary dwelling unit. 

 
7. Maximum Unit Size. 

 
No unit constructed pursuant to SB 9 regulations shall be more than 800 square 
feet in size. For the purposes of this section, basements shall count as floor area.  
 

8. Maximum Unit Height. 
 
No unit constructed pursuant to SB 9 regulations shall exceed 14 feet and 
one story in height. 
 

9. Setbacks. 
 
A. Side and rear setbacks. Any units constructed pursuant to the provisions of 

SB 9 shall have a minimum four foot setback from all side and rear lot lines. 
 

B. Front setback for a front lot shall be the setback as established in the Zoning 
Code for R-1 Zone.  
 

C. Front setback for a rear lot created by the urban lot split shall be ten feet. The 
front lot line shall be the lot line closest to, and parallel to the primary street. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 364 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

7 
 
 
 

 
D. Setbacks for existing structures.  No setbacks shall be required if a unit is 

constructed within the footprint of an existing structure on a lot. 
 

10. Minimum Width of Building. 
 
The front most unit constructed on a site with street frontage shall have a 
minimum unit width of 40 feet or 75% of the lot width, whichever is less. 
 

11. Design of Unit. 
 
A. The front most unit constructed on a front lot shall have a front door facing 

the street. 

B. Each unit on each lot created by an urban lot split shall have a separate 
entrance. 

C. Any unit other than front most unit, or the front most unit on the front lot, 
shall be completely screened by either: 1) other unit(s) on the lot; or 2) 
landscaping. 

D. Additions or new second primary dwelling units added to sites where an 
existing structure will be retained must match the architectural style of the 
existing dwelling including but not limited to the roof pitch, window size, 
window type, exterior building materials, lighting fixtures, and paint colors.   

12. Parking. 
 
A. Parking required - One uncovered parking space is required for each unit 

created pursuant to SB 9, unless the parcel upon which the unit is created is 
within one-half mile of a high quality transit corridor or a major transit stop, or 
a car share vehicle facility located within one block of the project. 

B. Parking location restrictions  

1. Parking shall not be provided within a front setback. 

2. Rear lot parking shall be accessed via an alley, if there is an alley. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 365 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

8 
 
 
 

13. Affordable Rental Rate Required. 

If more than one unit is developed on a single lot using SB 9, one of such units 
shall be available at a rental rate affordable to low income tenants if it is rented.  
Upon request by the City, a property owner shall furnish the rental or lease 
agreements for any units rented or leased on a parcel that was developed 
pursuant to the regulations outlined in this section. 

14. Open Space.  
 
Urban dwelling units must provide a minimum of 400 square feet of private open 
space. The open space must be directly accessible to the unit it serves. 
 

15. Building Separation. 
 
No detached second primary dwelling unit shall be closer than six feet to any 
other accessory building or primary dwelling unit, on the same lot or parcel. The 
six-foot distance shall be measured from the closet points of the building walls or 
structure walls. A minimum of four feet shall be maintained between eave 
overhangs, chimneys, bay windows or any other architectural feature. 

 
16. Compliance with Standards Cannot Physically Preclude Minimum Unit Size 

Requirements. 
 

The standards set forth in this Chapter shall not physically preclude the 
construction of up to two dwelling units per parcel and shall not preclude each 
unit from being at least 800 square feet in floor area, unless otherwise permitted 
by law. In such event, the housing development shall comply with the objective 
standards to the maximum extent necessary as determined by the Community 
Development Director that will not preclude the construction of up to two units 
per parcel with at least 800 square feet in floor area.   
 

17. Adverse Impact Findings 
 
The Building Official, or his or her designee, may make a written finding to deny 
an urban lot split or the construction of units pursuant to the regulations of  
SB 9.  Such findings shall be based upon the preponderance of evidence that 
the proposed housing development project would have a specific, adverse 
impact (as defined in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code 
Section 65589.5) upon the public health and safety or the physical environment, 
and for which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the 
specific, adverse impact.” 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 366 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

9 
 
 
 

SECTION 5.   CEQA Finding.   

The City Council hereby finds that this Ordinance is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) (the 
“common sense exemption”) and Section 15378 (“not a project”) since it can be seen with 
certainty that adopting an ordinance to comply with the state law provisions of SB 9 will 
not have a significant effect on the environment.  Adopting the Urgency Ordinance is also 
exempt under Government Code Section 66411.7, subd. (n) which exempts cities’ 
adoption of ordinances implementing that section of SB 9 from CEQA.     

SECTION 6. Penalty.  
 

Violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall constitute a misdemeanor and a civil 
violation subject to the penalties provided for under Article II (General Penalties) and 
Article III (Administrative Penalties – Citations) of Chapter 1 (General Provisions and 
Penalties of the San Fernando City Code. Each and every day such a violation exists shall 
constitute a separate and distinct violation of this Ordinance. In addition to the foregoing, 
any violation of this Ordinance shall constitute a public nuisance and shall be subject to 
abatement as provided by all applicable provisions of law.  

 
SECTION 7. Severability.   

 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 

reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, 
and each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid 
or unconstitutional without regard to whether any portion of the Ordinance would be 
subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.  

 
SECTION 8. Savings Clause.  

 
Neither the adoption of this Ordinance nor the repeal or amendment by this 

Ordinance of any ordinance or part or portion of any ordinance previously in effect in the 
City, or within the territory comprising the City, shall in any manner affect the prosecution 
for the violation of any ordinance, which violation was committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, nor be construed as a waiver of any license, fee or penalty or the 
penal provisions applicable to any violation of such ordinances.  

  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 367 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

10 
 
 
 

SECTION 9. Effective Date and Extension of Ordinance.  
 

If adopted by at least four-fifths vote of the City Council, this Ordinance shall be 
effective commencing immediately.  This Ordinance shall expire, and its standards and 
requirements shall terminate, forty-five (45) days after the date of adoption of this 
Interim Urgency Ordinance, unless extended by the City Council at a regularly noticed 
public hearing, pursuant to Government Code Section 65858. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Fernando at a 
regular meeting on this 3rd day of January 2022.  
 
 
 

______________________________  
Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST:  
 
____________________________  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 368 of 443



  URGENCY ORD. NO. U-1706 

11 
 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )   SS. 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  ) 
 
I, Julia Fritz, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, do hereby certify that the foregoing Interim 
Urgency Ordinance was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 3rd day of 
January, 2022, and was carried by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
 
 
_________________________  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 369 of 443



SHARE THIS: Date Published: 09/17/2021 09:00 PM

SB-9 Housing development: approvals. (2021-2022)

Senate Bill No. 9

CHAPTER 162

An act to amend Section 66452.6 of, and to add Sections 65852.21 and 66411.7 to, the Government

Code, relating to land use.

[ Approved by Governor  September 16, 2021. Filed with Secretary of State
 September 16, 2021. ]

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

SB 9, Atkins. Housing development: approvals.

The Planning and Zoning Law provides for the creation of accessory dwelling units by local ordinance, or, if a
local agency has not adopted an ordinance, by ministerial approval, in accordance with specified standards and
conditions.

This bill, among other things, would require a proposed housing development containing no more than 2
residential units within a single-family residential zone to be considered ministerially, without discretionary
review or hearing, if the proposed housing development meets certain requirements, including, but not limited
to, that the proposed housing development would not require demolition or alteration of housing that is subject
to a recorded covenant, ordinance, or law that restricts rents to levels affordable to persons and families of
moderate, low, or very low income, that the proposed housing development does not allow for the demolition of
more than 25% of the existing exterior structural walls, except as provided, and that the development is not
located within a historic district, is not included on the State Historic Resources Inventory, or is not within a site
that is legally designated or listed as a city or county landmark or historic property or district.

The bill would set forth what a local agency can and cannot require in approving the construction of 2 residential
units, including, but not limited to, authorizing a local agency to impose objective zoning standards, objective
subdivision standards, and objective design standards, as defined, unless those standards would have the effect
of physically precluding the construction of up to 2 units or physically precluding either of the 2 units from being
at least 800 square feet in floor area, prohibiting the imposition of setback requirements under certain
circumstances, and setting maximum setback requirements under all other circumstances.

The Subdivision Map Act vests the authority to regulate and control the design and improvement of subdivisions
in the legislative body of a local agency and sets forth procedures governing the local agency’s processing,
approval, conditional approval or disapproval, and filing of tentative, final, and parcel maps, and the modification
of those maps. Under the Subdivision Map Act, an approved or conditionally approved tentative map expires 24
months after its approval or conditional approval or after any additional period of time as prescribed by local
ordinance, not to exceed an additional 12 months, except as provided.

Home Bill Information California Law Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites

~~-1 ~ IVE INFORMATION 

ATTACHMENT "B"January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 370 of 443

https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https%3A//leginfo.legislature.ca.gov%3A443/faces/billNavClient.xhtml%3Fbill_id=202120220SB9&t=20212022SB-9&
https://twitter.com/home?status=20212022SB-9%20https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov:443/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB9&


This bill, among other things, would require a local agency to ministerially approve a parcel map for an urban lot
split that meets certain requirements, including, but not limited to, that the urban lot split would not require the
demolition or alteration of housing that is subject to a recorded covenant, ordinance, or law that restricts rents
to levels affordable to persons and families of moderate, low, or very low income, that the parcel is located
within a single-family residential zone, and that the parcel is not located within a historic district, is not included
on the State Historic Resources Inventory, or is not within a site that is legally designated or listed as a city or
county landmark or historic property or district.

The bill would set forth what a local agency can and cannot require in approving an urban lot split, including, but
not limited to, authorizing a local agency to impose objective zoning standards, objective subdivision standards,
and objective design standards, as defined, unless those standards would have the effect of physically precluding
the construction of 2 units, as defined, on either of the resulting parcels or physically precluding either of the 2
units from being at least 800 square feet in floor area, prohibiting the imposition of setback requirements under
certain circumstances, and setting maximum setback requirements under all other circumstances. The bill would
require an applicant to sign an affidavit stating that they intend to occupy one of the housing units as their
principal residence for a minimum of 3 years from the date of the approval of the urban lot split, unless the
applicant is a community land trust or a qualified nonprofit corporation, as specified. The bill would prohibit a
local agency from imposing any additional owner occupancy standards on applicants. By requiring applicants to
sign affidavits, thereby expanding the crime of perjury, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

The bill would also extend the limit on the additional period that may be provided by ordinance, as described
above, from 12 months to 24 months and would make other conforming or nonsubstantive changes.

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires a lead agency, as defined, to prepare, or cause to be
prepared, and certify the completion of, an environmental impact report on a project that it proposes to carry out
or approve that may have a significant effect on the environment. CEQA does not apply to the approval of
ministerial projects.

This bill, by establishing the ministerial review processes described above, would thereby exempt the approval of
projects subject to those processes from CEQA.

The California Coastal Act of 1976 provides for the planning and regulation of development, under a coastal
development permit process, within the coastal zone, as defined, that shall be based on various coastal
resources planning and management policies set forth in the act.

This bill would exempt a local agency from being required to hold public hearings for coastal development permit
applications for housing developments and urban lot splits pursuant to the above provisions.

By increasing the duties of local agencies with respect to land use regulations, the bill would impose a state-
mandated local program.

The bill would include findings that changes proposed by this bill address a matter of statewide concern rather
than a municipal affair and, therefore, apply to all cities, including charter cities.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs
mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for specified reasons.

Vote: majority   Appropriation: no   Fiscal Committee: yes   Local Program: yes  

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 65852.21 is added to the Government Code, to read:

65852.21. (a) A proposed housing development containing no more than two residential units within a single-
family residential zone shall be considered ministerially, without discretionary review or a hearing, if the
proposed housing development meets all of the following requirements:

(1) The parcel subject to the proposed housing development is located within a city, the boundaries of which
include some portion of either an urbanized area or urban cluster, as designated by the United States Census
Bureau, or, for unincorporated areas, a legal parcel wholly within the boundaries of an urbanized area or urban
cluster, as designated by the United States Census Bureau.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 371 of 443



(2) The parcel satisfies the requirements specified in subparagraphs (B) to (K), inclusive, of paragraph (6) of
subdivision (a) of Section 65913.4.

(3) Notwithstanding any provision of this section or any local law, the proposed housing development would not
require demolition or alteration of any of the following types of housing:

(A) Housing that is subject to a recorded covenant, ordinance, or law that restricts rents to levels affordable to
persons and families of moderate, low, or very low income.

(B) Housing that is subject to any form of rent or price control through a public entity’s valid exercise of its police
power.

(C) Housing that has been occupied by a tenant in the last three years.

(4) The parcel subject to the proposed housing development is not a parcel on which an owner of residential real
property has exercised the owner’s rights under Chapter 12.75 (commencing with Section 7060) of Division 7 of
Title 1 to withdraw accommodations from rent or lease within 15 years before the date that the development
proponent submits an application.

(5) The proposed housing development does not allow the demolition of more than 25 percent of the existing
exterior structural walls, unless the housing development meets at least one of the following conditions:

(A) If a local ordinance so allows.

(B) The site has not been occupied by a tenant in the last three years.

(6) The development is not located within a historic district or property included on the State Historic Resources
Inventory, as defined in Section 5020.1 of the Public Resources Code, or within a site that is designated or listed
as a city or county landmark or historic property or district pursuant to a city or county ordinance.

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any local law and except as provided in paragraph (2), a local agency may impose
objective zoning standards, objective subdivision standards, and objective design review standards that do not
conflict with this section.

(2) (A) The local agency shall not impose objective zoning standards, objective subdivision standards, and
objective design standards that would have the effect of physically precluding the construction of up to two units
or that would physically preclude either of the two units from being at least 800 square feet in floor area.

(B) (i) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), no setback shall be required for an existing structure or a structure
constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure.

(ii) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), in all other circumstances not described in clause (i), a local agency may
require a setback of up to four feet from the side and rear lot lines.

(c) In addition to any conditions established in accordance with subdivision (b), a local agency may require any
of the following conditions when considering an application for two residential units as provided for in this
section:

(1) Off-street parking of up to one space per unit, except that a local agency shall not impose parking
requirements in either of the following instances:

(A) The parcel is located within one-half mile walking distance of either a high-quality transit corridor, as defined
in subdivision (b) of Section 21155 of the Public Resources Code, or a major transit stop, as defined in Section
21064.3 of the Public Resources Code.

(B) There is a car share vehicle located within one block of the parcel.

(2) For residential units connected to an onsite wastewater treatment system, a percolation test completed
within the last 5 years, or, if the percolation test has been recertified, within the last 10 years.

(d) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), a local agency may deny a proposed housing development project if the
building official makes a written finding, based upon a preponderance of the evidence, that the proposed housing
development project would have a specific, adverse impact, as defined and determined in paragraph (2) of
subdivision (d) of Section 65589.5, upon public health and safety or the physical environment and for which
there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 372 of 443



(e) A local agency shall require that a rental of any unit created pursuant to this section be for a term longer
than 30 days.

(f) Notwithstanding Section 65852.2 or 65852.22, a local agency shall not be required to permit an accessory
dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit on parcels that use both the authority contained within this
section and the authority contained in Section 66411.7.

(g) Notwithstanding subparagraph (B) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (b), an application shall not be rejected
solely because it proposes adjacent or connected structures provided that the structures meet building code
safety standards and are sufficient to allow separate conveyance.

(h) Local agencies shall include units constructed pursuant to this section in the annual housing element report
as required by subparagraph (I) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 65400.

(i) For purposes of this section, all of the following apply:

(1) A housing development contains two residential units if the development proposes no more than two new
units or if it proposes to add one new unit to one existing unit.

(2) The terms “objective zoning standards,” “objective subdivision standards,” and “objective design review
standards” mean standards that involve no personal or subjective judgment by a public official and are uniformly
verifiable by reference to an external and uniform benchmark or criterion available and knowable by both the
development applicant or proponent and the public official prior to submittal. These standards may be embodied
in alternative objective land use specifications adopted by a local agency, and may include, but are not limited
to, housing overlay zones, specific plans, inclusionary zoning ordinances, and density bonus ordinances.

(3) “Local agency” means a city, county, or city and county, whether general law or chartered.

(j) A local agency may adopt an ordinance to implement the provisions of this section. An ordinance adopted to
implement this section shall not be considered a project under Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) of
the Public Resources Code.

(k) Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede or in any way alter or lessen the effect or application
of the California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 (commencing with Section 30000) of the Public Resources
Code), except that the local agency shall not be required to hold public hearings for coastal development permit
applications for a housing development pursuant to this section.

SEC. 2. Section 66411.7 is added to the Government Code, to read:

66411.7. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this division and any local law, a local agency shall
ministerially approve, as set forth in this section, a parcel map for an urban lot split only if the local agency
determines that the parcel map for the urban lot split meets all the following requirements:

(1) The parcel map subdivides an existing parcel to create no more than two new parcels of approximately equal
lot area provided that one parcel shall not be smaller than 40 percent of the lot area of the original parcel
proposed for subdivision.

(2) (A) Except as provided in subparagraph (B), both newly created parcels are no smaller than 1,200 square
feet.

(B) A local agency may by ordinance adopt a smaller minimum lot size subject to ministerial approval under this
subdivision.

(3) The parcel being subdivided meets all the following requirements:

(A) The parcel is located within a single-family residential zone.

(B) The parcel subject to the proposed urban lot split is located within a city, the boundaries of which include
some portion of either an urbanized area or urban cluster, as designated by the United States Census Bureau, or,
for unincorporated areas, a legal parcel wholly within the boundaries of an urbanized area or urban cluster, as
designated by the United States Census Bureau.

(C) The parcel satisfies the requirements specified in subparagraphs (B) to (K), inclusive, of paragraph (6) of
subdivision (a) of Section 65913.4.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 373 of 443



(D) The proposed urban lot split would not require demolition or alteration of any of the following types of
housing:

(i) Housing that is subject to a recorded covenant, ordinance, or law that restricts rents to levels affordable to
persons and families of moderate, low, or very low income.

(ii) Housing that is subject to any form of rent or price control through a public entity’s valid exercise of its police
power.

(iii) A parcel or parcels on which an owner of residential real property has exercised the owner’s rights under
Chapter 12.75 (commencing with Section 7060) of Division 7 of Title 1 to withdraw accommodations from rent or
lease within 15 years before the date that the development proponent submits an application.

(iv) Housing that has been occupied by a tenant in the last three years.

(E) The parcel is not located within a historic district or property included on the State Historic Resources
Inventory, as defined in Section 5020.1 of the Public Resources Code, or within a site that is designated or listed
as a city or county landmark or historic property or district pursuant to a city or county ordinance.

(F) The parcel has not been established through prior exercise of an urban lot split as provided for in this section.

(G) Neither the owner of the parcel being subdivided nor any person acting in concert with the owner has
previously subdivided an adjacent parcel using an urban lot split as provided for in this section.

(b) An application for a parcel map for an urban lot split shall be approved in accordance with the following
requirements:

(1) A local agency shall approve or deny an application for a parcel map for an urban lot split ministerially
without discretionary review.

(2) A local agency shall approve an urban lot split only if it conforms to all applicable objective requirements of
the Subdivision Map Act (Division 2 (commencing with Section 66410)), except as otherwise expressly provided
in this section.

(3) Notwithstanding Section 66411.1, a local agency shall not impose regulations that require dedications of
rights-of-way or the construction of offsite improvements for the parcels being created as a condition of issuing a
parcel map for an urban lot split pursuant to this section.

(c) (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), notwithstanding any local law, a local agency may impose objective
zoning standards, objective subdivision standards, and objective design review standards applicable to a parcel
created by an urban lot split that do not conflict with this section.

(2) A local agency shall not impose objective zoning standards, objective subdivision standards, and objective
design review standards that would have the effect of physically precluding the construction of two units on
either of the resulting parcels or that would result in a unit size of less than 800 square feet.

(3) (A) Notwithstanding paragraph (2), no setback shall be required for an existing structure or a structure
constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure.

(B) Notwithstanding paragraph (2), in all other circumstances not described in subparagraph (A), a local agency
may require a setback of up to four feet from the side and rear lot lines.

(d) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), a local agency may deny an urban lot split if the building official makes a
written finding, based upon a preponderance of the evidence, that the proposed housing development project
would have a specific, adverse impact, as defined and determined in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section
65589.5, upon public health and safety or the physical environment and for which there is no feasible method to
satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact.

(e) In addition to any conditions established in accordance with this section, a local agency may require any of
the following conditions when considering an application for a parcel map for an urban lot split:

(1) Easements required for the provision of public services and facilities.

(2) A requirement that the parcels have access to, provide access to, or adjoin the public right-of-way.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 374 of 443



(3) Off-street parking of up to one space per unit, except that a local agency shall not impose parking
requirements in either of the following instances:

(A) The parcel is located within one-half mile walking distance of either a high-quality transit corridor as defined
in subdivision (b) of Section 21155 of the Public Resources Code, or a major transit stop as defined in Section
21064.3 of the Public Resources Code.

(B) There is a car share vehicle located within one block of the parcel.

(f) A local agency shall require that the uses allowed on a lot created by this section be limited to residential
uses.

(g) (1) A local agency shall require an applicant for an urban lot split to sign an affidavit stating that the
applicant intends to occupy one of the housing units as their principal residence for a minimum of three years
from the date of the approval of the urban lot split.

(2) This subdivision shall not apply to an applicant that is a “community land trust,” as defined in clause (ii) of
subparagraph (C) of paragraph (11) of subdivision (a) of Section 402.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or is
a “qualified nonprofit corporation” as described in Section 214.15 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.

(3) A local agency shall not impose additional owner occupancy standards, other than provided for in this
subdivision, on an urban lot split pursuant to this section.

(h) A local agency shall require that a rental of any unit created pursuant to this section be for a term longer
than 30 days.

(i) A local agency shall not require, as a condition for ministerial approval of a parcel map application for the
creation of an urban lot split, the correction of nonconforming zoning conditions.

(j) (1) Notwithstanding any provision of Section 65852.2, 65852.21, 65852.22, 65915, or this section, a local
agency shall not be required to permit more than two units on a parcel created through the exercise of the
authority contained within this section.

(2) For the purposes of this section, “unit” means any dwelling unit, including, but not limited to, a unit or units
created pursuant to Section 65852.21, a primary dwelling, an accessory dwelling unit as defined in Section
65852.2, or a junior accessory dwelling unit as defined in Section 65852.22.

(k) Notwithstanding paragraph (3) of subdivision (c), an application shall not be rejected solely because it
proposes adjacent or connected structures provided that the structures meet building code safety standards and
are sufficient to allow separate conveyance.

(l) Local agencies shall include the number of applications for parcel maps for urban lot splits pursuant to this
section in the annual housing element report as required by subparagraph (I) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (a)
of Section 65400.

(m) For purposes of this section, both of the following shall apply:

(1) “Objective zoning standards,” “objective subdivision standards,” and “objective design review standards”
mean standards that involve no personal or subjective judgment by a public official and are uniformly verifiable
by reference to an external and uniform benchmark or criterion available and knowable by both the development
applicant or proponent and the public official prior to submittal. These standards may be embodied in alternative
objective land use specifications adopted by a local agency, and may include, but are not limited to, housing
overlay zones, specific plans, inclusionary zoning ordinances, and density bonus ordinances.

(2) “Local agency” means a city, county, or city and county, whether general law or chartered.

(n) A local agency may adopt an ordinance to implement the provisions of this section. An ordinance adopted to
implement this section shall not be considered a project under Division 13 (commencing with Section 21000) of
the Public Resources Code.

(o) Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede or in any way alter or lessen the effect or application
of the California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 (commencing with Section 30000) of the Public Resources
Code), except that the local agency shall not be required to hold public hearings for coastal development permit
applications for urban lot splits pursuant to this section.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 375 of 443



SEC. 3. Section 66452.6 of the Government Code is amended to read:

66452.6. (a) (1) An approved or conditionally approved tentative map shall expire 24 months after its approval or
conditional approval, or after any additional period of time as may be prescribed by local ordinance, not to
exceed an additional 24 months. However, if the subdivider is required to expend two hundred thirty-six
thousand seven hundred ninety dollars ($236,790) or more to construct, improve, or finance the construction or
improvement of public improvements outside the property boundaries of the tentative map, excluding
improvements of public rights-of-way that abut the boundary of the property to be subdivided and that are
reasonably related to the development of that property, each filing of a final map authorized by Section 66456.1
shall extend the expiration of the approved or conditionally approved tentative map by 48 months from the date
of its expiration, as provided in this section, or the date of the previously filed final map, whichever is later. The
extensions shall not extend the tentative map more than 10 years from its approval or conditional approval.
However, a tentative map on property subject to a development agreement authorized by Article 2.5
(commencing with Section 65864) of Chapter 4 of Division 1 may be extended for the period of time provided for
in the agreement, but not beyond the duration of the agreement. The number of phased final maps that may be
filed shall be determined by the advisory agency at the time of the approval or conditional approval of the
tentative map.

(2) Commencing January 1, 2012, and each calendar year thereafter, the amount of two hundred thirty-six
thousand seven hundred ninety dollars ($236,790) shall be annually increased by operation of law according to
the adjustment for inflation set forth in the statewide cost index for class B construction, as determined by the
State Allocation Board at its January meeting. The effective date of each annual adjustment shall be March 1.
The adjusted amount shall apply to tentative and vesting tentative maps whose applications were received after
the effective date of the adjustment.

(3) “Public improvements,” as used in this subdivision, include traffic controls, streets, roads, highways,
freeways, bridges, overcrossings, street interchanges, flood control or storm drain facilities, sewer facilities,
water facilities, and lighting facilities.

(b) (1) The period of time specified in subdivision (a), including any extension thereof granted pursuant to
subdivision (e), shall not include any period of time during which a development moratorium, imposed after
approval of the tentative map, is in existence. However, the length of the moratorium shall not exceed five years.

(2) The length of time specified in paragraph (1) shall be extended for up to three years, but in no event beyond
January 1, 1992, during the pendency of any lawsuit in which the subdivider asserts, and the local agency that
approved or conditionally approved the tentative map denies, the existence or application of a development
moratorium to the tentative map.

(3) Once a development moratorium is terminated, the map shall be valid for the same period of time as was left
to run on the map at the time that the moratorium was imposed. However, if the remaining time is less than 120
days, the map shall be valid for 120 days following the termination of the moratorium.

(c) The period of time specified in subdivision (a), including any extension thereof granted pursuant to
subdivision (e), shall not include the period of time during which a lawsuit involving the approval or conditional
approval of the tentative map is or was pending in a court of competent jurisdiction, if the stay of the time period
is approved by the local agency pursuant to this section. After service of the initial petition or complaint in the
lawsuit upon the local agency, the subdivider may apply to the local agency for a stay pursuant to the local
agency’s adopted procedures. Within 40 days after receiving the application, the local agency shall either stay
the time period for up to five years or deny the requested stay. The local agency may, by ordinance, establish
procedures for reviewing the requests, including, but not limited to, notice and hearing requirements, appeal
procedures, and other administrative requirements.

(d) The expiration of the approved or conditionally approved tentative map shall terminate all proceedings and
no final map or parcel map of all or any portion of the real property included within the tentative map shall be
filed with the legislative body without first processing a new tentative map. Once a timely filing is made,
subsequent actions of the local agency, including, but not limited to, processing, approving, and recording, may
lawfully occur after the date of expiration of the tentative map. Delivery to the county surveyor or city engineer
shall be deemed a timely filing for purposes of this section.

(e) Upon application of the subdivider filed before the expiration of the approved or conditionally approved
tentative map, the time at which the map expires pursuant to subdivision (a) may be extended by the legislative
body or by an advisory agency authorized to approve or conditionally approve tentative maps for a period or

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 376 of 443



periods not exceeding a total of six years. The period of extension specified in this subdivision shall be in addition
to the period of time provided by subdivision (a). Before the expiration of an approved or conditionally approved
tentative map, upon an application by the subdivider to extend that map, the map shall automatically be
extended for 60 days or until the application for the extension is approved, conditionally approved, or denied,
whichever occurs first. If the advisory agency denies a subdivider’s application for an extension, the subdivider
may appeal to the legislative body within 15 days after the advisory agency has denied the extension.

(f) For purposes of this section, a development moratorium includes a water or sewer moratorium, or a water
and sewer moratorium, as well as other actions of public agencies that regulate land use, development, or the
provision of services to the land, including the public agency with the authority to approve or conditionally
approve the tentative map, which thereafter prevents, prohibits, or delays the approval of a final or parcel map.
A development moratorium shall also be deemed to exist for purposes of this section for any period of time
during which a condition imposed by the city or county could not be satisfied because of either of the following:

(1) The condition was one that, by its nature, necessitated action by the city or county, and the city or county
either did not take the necessary action or by its own action or inaction was prevented or delayed in taking the
necessary action before expiration of the tentative map.

(2) The condition necessitates acquisition of real property or any interest in real property from a public agency,
other than the city or county that approved or conditionally approved the tentative map, and that other public
agency fails or refuses to convey the property interest necessary to satisfy the condition. However, nothing in
this subdivision shall be construed to require any public agency to convey any interest in real property owned by
it. A development moratorium specified in this paragraph shall be deemed to have been imposed either on the
date of approval or conditional approval of the tentative map, if evidence was included in the public record that
the public agency that owns or controls the real property or any interest therein may refuse to convey that
property or interest, or on the date that the public agency that owns or controls the real property or any interest
therein receives an offer by the subdivider to purchase that property or interest for fair market value, whichever
is later. A development moratorium specified in this paragraph shall extend the tentative map up to the
maximum period as set forth in subdivision (b), but not later than January 1, 1992, so long as the public agency
that owns or controls the real property or any interest therein fails or refuses to convey the necessary property
interest, regardless of the reason for the failure or refusal, except that the development moratorium shall be
deemed to terminate 60 days after the public agency has officially made, and communicated to the subdivider, a
written offer or commitment binding on the agency to convey the necessary property interest for a fair market
value, paid in a reasonable time and manner.

SEC. 4. The Legislature finds and declares that ensuring access to affordable housing is a matter of statewide
concern and not a municipal affair as that term is used in Section 5 of Article XI of the California Constitution.
Therefore, Sections 1 and 2 of this act adding Sections 65852.21 and 66411.7 to the Government Code and
Section 3 of this act amending Section 66452.6 of the Government Code apply to all cities, including charter
cities.

SEC. 5. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California
Constitution because a local agency or school district has the authority to levy service charges, fees, or
assessments sufficient to pay for the program or level of service mandated by this act or because costs that may
be incurred by a local agency or school district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or infraction,
eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section
17556 of the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within the meaning of Section 6 of Article
XIII B of the California Constitution.

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 377 of 443



November 1, 2021 
Initiative 21-0016 (Amdt. 1) 

The Attorney General of California has prepared the following title and summary of the chief 
purpose and points of the proposed measure: 

PROVIDES THAT LOCAL LAND-USE AND ZONING LAWS OVERRIDE 

CONFLICTING STATE LAWS.  INITIATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT.  

Provides that city and county land-use and zoning laws (including local housing laws) override 

all conflicting state laws, except in certain circumstances related to three areas of statewide 

concern: (1) the California Coastal Act of 1976; (2) siting of power plants; or (3) development of 

water, communication, or transportation infrastructure projects.  Prevents state legislature and 

local legislative bodies from passing laws invalidating voter-approved local land-use or zoning 

initiatives.  Prohibits state from changing, granting, or denying funding to local governments 

based on their implementation of this measure.  Summary of estimate by Legislative Analyst and 

Director of Finance of fiscal impact on state and local governments:  Fiscal effects of the 

measure depend on future decisions by the cities and counties and therefore are unknown.  

(21-0016A1.) 

ATTACHMENT "C"January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 378 of 443



To: The Office of the Attorney General 
ATTN: Initiative Coordinator 
1300 I Street, 1 Jth Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 445•47521 www.oag.ca.gov 

Re: Initiative 21.0016 (Local Land Use) • Amendment 

Dear Initiative Coordinator: 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 2021 

INITIATIVE COORDINATOR 
AITORNBY OENERAL'S OFFICE 

Pursuant to subdivision (b} of Section 9002 of the Elections Code, enclosed please find amendments to 
Initiative No. 21-0016. The amendments are reasonably germane to the theme, purpose or subject of 
the initiative measure as originally proposed. I am a proponent of the measure and request that the 
Attorney General prepare a circulating title and summary of the measure as provided by law, using the 
amended language. Thank you for your time and attention processing my request. 

Please direct all inquiries and correspondence regarding this proposed initiative to: 

John Heath 
(323) 248·1699 a@uhaw:p~~ 

. C. ~ 
Bill Brand 

Date: f-. J_?f cJ / 

60031596.v1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 379 of 443



To: The Office of the Attorney General 
ATTN: Initiative Coordinator 
1300 I Street, 17th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
{916) 445-4752 I www.oag.ca.gov 

Re: Initiative 21-0016 (Local Land Use) -Amendment 

Dear Initiative Coordinator: 

Pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 9002 of the Elections Code, enclosed please find amendments to 
Initiative No. 21-0016. The amendments are reasonably germane to the theme, purpose or subject of 
the initiative measure as originally proposed. I am a proponent of the measure and request that the 
Attorney General prepare a circulating title and summary of the measure as provided by law, using the 
amended language. Thank you for your time and attention processing my request. 

Please direct all inquiries and correspondence regarding this proposed initiative to: 

John Heath 
(323) 248-1699 

hawhvp.org 

W. 

60031594.v1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 380 of 443



To: The Office of the Attorney General 
ATTN: Initiative Coordinator 
1300 I Street, 17th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 445-4752 1 www.oag.ca.gov 

Re: Initiative 21-0016 (Local Land Use) - Amendment 

Dear Initiative Coordinator: 

Pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 9002 of the Elections Code, enclosed please find amendments to 
Initiative No. 21-0016. The amendments are reasonably germane to the theme, purpose or subject of 
the initiative measure as originally proposed. l am a proponent of the measure and request that the 
Attorney General prepare a circulating title and summary of the measure as provided by law, using the 
amended language. Thank you for your time and attention processing my request. 

Please direct all inquiries and correspondence regarding this proposed initiative to: 

John Heath 
(323) 248-1699 
Jheat 

Date: ~ ~ 
1 
?-02 \ 

60031599.v1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 381 of 443



To: The Office of the Attorney General 
ATTN: Initiative Coordinator 
1300 I Street, 17th Ftoor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 445-47521 www.oag.ca.gov 

Re: Initiative 21-0016 (Local Land Use} - Amendment 

Dear Initiative Coordinator: 

Pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 9002 of the Elections Code, enclosed please find amendments to 
Initiative No. 21-0016. The amendments are reasonably germane to the theme, purpose or subject of 
the initiative measure as originally proposed. I am a proponent of the measure and request that the 
Attorney General prepare a circulating title and summary of the measure as provided by law, using the 
amended language. Thank you for your time and attention processing my request. 

Please direct all inquiries and correspondence regarding this proposed initiative to: 

Jo~N tfrq,h 
(31~:} ~~'3' .- )(, fJ 9 
Jll<~-rh t ·.u.~e1w hvP. b~, 

\. 

~M»:1cc:::::::.~ itaMendoza • 

60031607.v1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 382 of 443



To: The Office of the Attorney General 
ATTN: Initiative Coordinator 
1300 I Street, 17th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 445-4752 I www.oag.ca.gov 

Re: Initiative 21-0016 (Local land Use) - Amendment 

Dear Initiative Coordinator: 

Pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 9002 of the Elections Code, enclosed please find amendments to 
Initiative No. 21-0016. The amendments are reasonably germane to the theme, purpose or subject of 
the initiative measure as originally proposed. I am a proponent of the measure and request that the 
Attorney General prepare a circulating title and summary of the measure as provided by law, using the 
amended language. Thank you for your time and attention processing my request. 

Please direct all inquiries and correspondence regarding this proposed initiative to: 

John Heath 
(323) 248-1699 
Jheath@uhawhvp.org 

60031631 .v1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 383 of 443



Arndt.# 1, 
SECTION I. The people of the State of California find and declare all of the following: 

(a) The circumstances and environmental impacts of local land use decisions vary greatly 
across the state from locality to locality. 

(b) The infrastructure required to maintain appropriate levels of public services, including 
police and fire services. parklands and public open spaces, transpo11ation, water supply, 
schools. and sewers varies greatly across the state from locality to locality. 

(c) Land use decisions made by local officials must balance development with public 
facilities and services while addressing the economic. environmental, and social needs of the 
pm1icular communities served by those local officials. 

{ d) Thus, it is in the best interests of the state and local communities for these complex 
decisions to be made at the local level to ensure that the specific, unique characteristics, 
constraints, and needs of those communities are properly analyzed and addressed. 

( e) Gentrification of housing adjacent to public transportation will reduce or eliminate the 
availability of low or very low income housing near public transit. resulting in the loss of 
access by low or very low income persons to public transit. declines in public transit 
ridership, and increases in vehicle miles travelled. 

(f) The State Legislature cannot properly assess the impacts upon each community of sweeping 
centralized and rigid state land use rules and zoning regulations that apply across the state 
without regard to community impacts and, as a result statewide land use and zoning will do 
great hann to local communities with differing circumstances and concerns. 

(g) Community development should not be controlled by state planners, but by local 
governments that know and can address the needs of, and the impacts upon, local communities. 
Local initiatives approved by voters pertaining to land use and zoning restrictions should not be 
nullified or superseded by the actions of any local or state legislative body. 

(h) Numerous state laws that target communities for elimination of zoning standards have been 
enacted, and continue to be proposed, that eliminate or erode local control over local 
development and circumvent the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"'), creating the 
potential for hannful environmental impacts to occur. 

(i) The purpose of this measure is to ensure that all decisions regarding local land use controls. 
including zoning law and regulations. are made by the affected communities in accordance with 
applicable law, including but not limited to CEQA (Public Resources Code § 21 000 et seq.), the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code §§ 12900 - 12996), 
prohibitions against discrimination (Government Code* 65008). and affinnatively furthering 
fair housing (Government Code~ 8899.50). This constitutional amendment would continue to 
provide for state control in the coastal zone, the siting of a power plant that can generate more 
than 50 megawatts of electricity. or the development or construction of water. communication or 
transportation infrastructure projects which the Legis lature declares are matters of statewide 
concern and are in the best interests of the state. For purposes of this measure. it is the intent that 
a transportation infrastructure project shall not include a transit-oriented development project 
that is residential. commercial. or mixed-use. 

5 8277(>6(1. v2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 384 of 443



SECTION 2. Section 4.5 is added to Article XI of the California Constitution, to read: 

SEC. 4.5. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (b). in the event of a conflict with a state statute. 
a county cha11cr provision. general plan. specific plan, ordinance or a regulation adopted 
pursuant to a county chm1er. that regulates the zoning, development or use ofland within the 
boundaries of an unincorporated area of the county shall be deemed a county affair within the 
meaning of Section 4 and shall prevail over a conflicting state statute. No voter approved local 
initiative that regulates the zoning, development or use ofland within the boundaries o f any 
county shall be overturned or otherwise nullified by any legislative body. 

(b) A county chai1er provision, general plan, specific plan, ordinance or a regulation adopted 
and applicable to an unincorporated area within a county, may be detennined only by a cow1 of 
competent jwisdiction, in accordance with Section 4, to address either a matter of statewide 
concern or a county affair if that provision, ordinance, or regulation conflicts with a state 
statute with regard to only the following: 

( 1} The California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 (commencing with Section 
30000) of the Public Resources Code), or a successor statute. 
(2) The siting of a power generating facility capable of generating more than 50 
megawatts of electricity and the California Public Utilities Commission has detennined 
that a need exists at that location that is a matter of statewide concern. 

(3) The development or construction of a water, communication or transportation 
infrastructure project for which the Legislature has declared in statute the reasons why 
the project addresses a matter of statewide concern and is in the best interests of the 
state. For purposes of this paragraph, a transportation infrastructure project does not 
include a transit-oriented development project, whether residential, commercial, or 
mixed-use. 

( c) No modification to approp1iations for state funded programs shall occur, and no state 
grant applications or funding shall be denied as a result of the application of this section. No 
benefit or preference in state appropriations or grants shall be given to an entity that opts not 
to utilize the provisions of this section. 

(d) The provisions of this section are severable. If any provision of this section or its 
application is held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications that 
can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

SECTION 3. Section 5.5 is added to Article XI of the California Constitution, to read: 

SEC. 5.5. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (b), in the event of a conflict with a state 
statute. a city charter provision, general plan, specific plan, ordinance or a regulation adopted 
pursuant to a city charter, that establishes land use policies or regulates zoning or development 
standards within the boundaries of the city shall be deemed a municipal affair within the 
meaning of Section 5 and shall prevail over a conflicting state statute. No voter approved local 
initiative that regulates the zoning. development or use ofland within the boundaries of any 
city shall be ove1tumcd or otherwise nullified by any legislative body. 

(b) A city chm1er provision. general plan, specific plan, ordinance or a regulation adopted 
pursuant to a city charter. may be determined only by a court of competent jurisdiction. in 
accordance with Section 5. to address either a matter of statewide concern or a municipal affair 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 385 of 443



if that provision, ordinance. or regulation conflicts with a state statute with regard to only the 
following: 

( l) The California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 ( commencing with Section 
30000) of the Public Resources Code), or a successor statute. 

(2) The siting of a power generating facility capable of generating more than 50 
megawatts of electricity and the California Public Utilities Commission has dctennined 
that a need exists at that location that is a matter of statewide concern. 
(3) The development or construction of a water. communication or transportation 
infrastructure project for which the Legislature has declared in statute the reasons why 
the project addresses a matter of statewide concern and is in the best interests of the 
state. For purposes of this paragraph, a transportation infrastructure project does not 
include a transit-oriented development project, whether residcntiaL commerciuL or 
mixed-use. 

( c) No modification to appropriations for state funded programs shall occur. and no state 
grant applications or funding shall be denied as a result of the application of this section. No 
benefit or preference in state appropriations or grants shall be given to an entity that opts not 
to utilize the provisions of this section. 

(d) The provisions of this section are severable. If any provision of this section or its 
application is held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications that 
can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

SECTION 4. Section 7 of Article XI of the California Constitution is amended to read: 

SEC. 7. {ill A county or city may make and enforce within its limits all local. police, sanitary. 
and other ordinances and regulations Het that are not, except as provided in subdivision (b), in 
conflict with general laws. A county or city may not supersede or otherwise interfere with any 
voter approved local initiative pertaining to land use or zoning restrictions. 

(b) A county or city general plan, specific plan, ordinance or regulation that regulates the zoning, 
development or use of land within the boundaries of the county or city shall prevail over 
conflicting general laws, except for only the following: 

51(2 77666. \ 2 

(A) A coastal land use plan. ordinance or regulation that conflicts with the 
California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 (commcncin!.!. with Section 30000) of 
the Public Resources Code), or a successor statute. 

_(fil An ord inance or regulation that addresses the s iti ng or a power generating 
facility capable of generating more than 50 megawatts of clectricitv and the 
California Public Utilities Commission has detennined that a need exists at that 
location that is a matter of statewide concern. 

( C) An ordinance or regulation that addresses the development or construction 
of a water. communication or transportation infrastructure project for which the 
Legislature has declared in statute the reasons whv the project addresses a matter 
of statewide concern and is in the best interests of the state. For pul))oses of this 
subparagraph. a transportation infrastructure project does not include a transit
oriented development project, whether residential, commercial. or mixed-use. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 386 of 443



(c) No modification to appropriations for state funded programs shall occur. and no state grant 
appl ications or funding shall be denied as a result of the application of this section. No benefit or 
preference in state appropriations or grants shall he given to an entity that opts not to utilile the 
provisions of this section. 

(d) The provisions of this subdivision are severable. If any provision of this subdivision or its 
appli cation is held inva lid. that inva lidity shall not atkct other provisions or applications that can 
be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 

5~277666. v2 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 387 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 388 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 389 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 390 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and City Councilmembers 
 
From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By:   Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
Date: January 3, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion Regarding City Council Liaison Assignments, Ad Hoc 

Committees and Commissions and Adopt a Resolution Appointing a Primary 
Alternate Representative to the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority 
Governing Board  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Review and provide direction to staff regarding Councilmember Liaison Assignments 

(Attachment “A”), Ad Hoc Committees (Attachment “B”) and Commissions (Attachment “C”); 
and 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8110 (Attachment “D”) appointing Michael Okafor as the primary 
alternate representative to the Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (ICRMA) 
Governing Board. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
   
1. The San Fernando City Council selects a Mayor and Vice Mayor from among their members 

in December each year as part of the annual reorganization. The annual reorganization 
involves, in part, new (or re-appointed) liaison appointments and assignments to various 
committees and outside organizations such as the Independent Cities Management Authority 
(ICMRA).  Pursuant to Section 11.2 of the City Council Procedures Manual (Attachment “E”), 
the Mayor, with the consent of the majority of the City Council, may appoint Councilmembers 
to serve on liaison commissions, Ad Hoc committees, and standing committees. 
 

2. On December 6, 2021, the City Council proceeded with the annual reorganization and 
selected Mary Mendoza to serve as Mayor and Hector A. Pacheco to serve as Vice Mayor.  
 

  

ANill 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 391 of 443



Consideration and Discussion Regarding City Council Liaison Assignments, Ad Hoc Committees and 
Commissions and Adopt a Resolution Appointing an Alternate Representative to the Independent Cities 
Risk Management Authority Governing Board 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
3. Since July 1, 1986, the City of San Fernando has been a member of ICRMA, a joint powers 

authority that provides Risk Management Programs to reduce the amount and frequency of 
losses through a pooled or self-funded basis whereby the Members share some portion or 
all, of the costs of the program losses.  ICRMA requires that the City appoint by resolution a 
primary, and a primary alternate and a substitute alternate to be available to attend and vote 
during board meetings, if the primary cannot attend.  
 

4. On August 19, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 7945 appointing City Manager 
Nick Kimball to serve as the primary, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou as the primary alternate representative, and Personnel Manager 
Michael Okafor as the substitute alternate representative of the ICRMA.  
 

5. In March 2021, the primary alternate representative position became vacant, due to the 
departure of former Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Tim Hou.  
 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Liaison Assignments (Outside Organizations). 
 
Liaison Assignments consist of either one or two appointed Councilmembers that will allow the 
City of San Fernando to have consistent and appropriate representation in various governmental 
associations of which the City is a participating member.  The Mayor is not recommending any 
changes to the current Liaison assignments (Attachment “A”). 
 
Ad Hoc Committees. 
 

Ad Hoc committees consist of either one or two Councilmembers, have a clear and definite scope, 
and dissolve upon completion of the scope, unless otherwise extended by the City Council with 
a new scope. Ad Hoc committees are less formal than standing committees and are therefore 
not subject to the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act.  The Mayor is not recommending any 
changes to the current Ad Hoc Committee assignments (Attachment “B”). 

City Commissions. 
 

Per the City’s Code, each Councilmember may appoint one Commissioner to each Commission 
(i.e., Planning and Preservation Commission, Parks and Wellness Commission, Transportation 
and Safety Commission, and Education Commission), with such appointment to be ratified by the 
City Council.  Attachment “C” provides the current roster of City Commissioners and their 
respective appointing Councilmember.   

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 392 of 443



Consideration and Discussion Regarding City Council Liaison Assignments, Ad Hoc Committees and 
Commissions and Adopt a Resolution Appointing an Alternate Representative to the Independent Cities 
Risk Management Authority Governing Board 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
The Parks, Wellness, and Recreation Commission currently has two vacant Commissioner seats, 
due to resignations of former Commissioner Saydith Navarro and Commissioner Sandra Richards, 
respectively.  Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco is the appointing Councilmember to fill the vacancy 
left by Ms. Richards and Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez is the appointing Councilmember to 
fill the vacancy left by Ms. Navarro. The “Application to serve on a City Commission” is attached 
for reference (Attachment “F”).  

Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (ICRMA). 
 
Due to the departure of Mr. Hou in March 2021, it is necessary to adopt a resolution as required 
by ICRMA (Attachment “D”) to appoint Personnel Manager Michael Okafor as the City’s primary 
alternate representative and leaving the substitute primary alternate representative vacant.  City 
Manager Kimball currently serves as the President of ICRMA.  Insurance and risk management 
programs tend to be specialized, technical and have a potentially significant impact on the City’s 
finances. Therefore, it is in the City’s best interest to appoint Governing Board members that 
have risk management experience and are available to attend meetings regularly that will ensure 
consistent representation of the City’s interests on the Board. 
 

 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The City Council annual updates to the liaison assignments, Ad Hoc and committees lists are 
included in the City Clerk’s regular work plan and, therefore, included in the Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 Adopted Budget. 
 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council review and approve the City Council Liaison and Ad Hoc 
Committee Assignments (Attachment “A” and “B,” respectively) and adopt Resolution No. 8110 
(Attachment “D”) appointing Michael Okafor Personnel Manager as the primary alternate 
representative on the ICRMA Governing Board.  
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. City Council Liaison Assignments 
B. City Council Ad Hoc Committee Assignments 
C. Committees/Commissions List  
D. Resolution No. 8110 (Appoint New Alternate to ICMRA) 
E. City Council Procedure, Section 11.2 
F. Application to Serve on a City Commission  
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 393 of 443



Revised by City Council: March 1, 2021 

AGENCY/COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

DAY 
APPOINTEE(S) COMMENTS 

1 
San Fernando Downtown Mall Merchants 
Association 

Mornings 
(as needed) 

Vacant Pending Finalization of 
Memorandum of 
Understanding with SF Mall 
Merchants Association 

2 City Selection Committee (L.A. County) Night 

 Alt: 

Mary Mendoza 

 Sylvia Ballin 

3 Valley Economic Alliance Day   Cindy Montanez 

4 Independent Cities Association (ICA) Night  Alt: 

Celeste Rodriguez 

Hector A. Pacheco 

5 
Independent Cities Risk Management 
Authority (ICRMA) 

Day Alt: 

Sub Alt. 

Nick Kimball  

Tim Hou 

  Michael Okafor 

Adoption of a new 
Resolution is required when 
representatives are 
changed 

6 Independent Cities Finance Authority (ICFA) Day 
Sylvia Ballin 

Nick Kimball 

Adoption of a new 
Resolution is required when 
representatives are 
changed 

7 League of California Cities 
1st Thursday 

Evening  Alt: 

Mary Mendoza 

 Celeste Rodriguez 

8 
San Fernando Valley Council of Governments 
(SFVCOG) 

TBD 
Alt: 

Mary Mendoza 

Celeste Rodriguez 

9 
Southern California Association of 
Governments (SCAG) 

1st Thursday 
Morning 

Delegate: 

Hector A. Pacheco 

Celeste Rodriguez 

SCAG requests 
appointments: 
1) Regional Councilmember
Representative 
2) Delegate 

10 
Metropolitan Water District (MWD) of 
Southern California 

Day  Adan Ortega 

ATTACHMENT "A"

______Michael Okafor
___________

fERNANID 
CITY COUNCIL LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 394 of 443



 

 
Revised by City Council:  March 1,  2021 

Page 2 of 2  
 
 

 
 

12 
Los Angeles County 
Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority (MTA) 
San Fernando Valley Service Council 

1st Wednesday 
Evening 

 
Robert C. Gonzales 

Current term expires 2023, 
seat is shared among San 
Fernando, Burbank and 
Glendale. Elected Official is 
not a requirement to serve 

 
 

13 

 
Greater Los Angeles County Vector Control 
District 

 
2nd Thursday 

Evening 

 
 

Jesse H. Avila 

11-2-2020: Re-Appointed 
term 1-4-21 to 1-4-23 
Elected Official is not a 
requirement to serve 

 
 
 

14 

 

Upper Los Angeles River and Tributaries 
Working Group (Mountains Recreation and 
Conservation Authority) 

 
 

Day 
Monthly 

 
 
 

Alt: 

 
Cindy Montanez 

 
Matthew Baumgardner 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

fERNANID CITY COUNCIL LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 395 of 443



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 

As of City Council, 10/18/21  
Page 1 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE CREATED NAME 
CITY 

COUNCIL 
MEMBERS 

SCOPE 

1 4/2/13 

East San Fernando Valley Transit 
Corridor (Include Metrolink Dual 
Track) 

Responsible Staff: 
Administration 

Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until dissolved 

Pacheco 
Rodriguez 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the 
planned light rail project through San Fernando, 
including reviewing options related to the City’s local 
match, public outreach efforts with Metro, providing 
feedback regarding potential improvements along 
the rail ROW by Metro and/or the City, and other 
ESFVTC policy related items that require additional 
study. (Recommend dissolving upon completion of 
ESFVTC construction through San Fernando) 

2 1/7/19 

City General Plan Update 
(renamed 8/5/2019) 

Responsible Staff:  
Community Development 

Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until dissolved 

Mendoza 
Pacheco 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to updating 
the City’s General Plan, including evaluating 
potential funding sources, reviewing draft plan 
amendments with staff, provide feedback related to 
public outreach efforts, and other General Plan items 
that require additional study. (Recommend 
dissolving upon adoption of an updated General 
Plan) 

3 2/19/19 

Green City/Street and Parkway 
Tree 
(combined/renamed 9/8/20)  

Responsible Staff: 
Administration 

Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until disolved 

Pacheco 
Montañez 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the City’s 
environmental related programs, including 
environmental programs available to City residents, 
public outreach efforts, City Hall programs to 
decrease carbon footprint, and other Green City 
items that require additional study. (Recommend 
review during City Council re-org each year to 
determine necessity to extend) 

4 2/18/20 

100-Year Anniversary of
Women’s Right to Vote

Responsible Staff:  
Recreation & Community Services 

Meeting Frequency:  
As necessary until dissolved 

Ballin 
Mendoza 

Research and Develop a Request for Proposal “RFP” 
for the Woman’s Right to Vote Mural 
(Recommend dissolving upon completion of a proper 
recognition event) 

ATTACHMENT "B"

~ fERNANID 

' 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 396 of 443



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

As of City Council, 10/18/21   
Page 2 

 
 

 

 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE CREATED NAME 
CITY 

COUNCIL 
MEMBERS 

SCOPE 

5  2/18/20 

 
Mural Program 
 
Responsible Staff:  
Recreation & Community Services 

 
Meeting Frequency:  
As necessary until dissolved 
 

Ballin 
Rodriguez 
 

On 12/07/2020, Ordinance No. 1700 adopted 
regarding guidelines for Murals on private property. 
Review and develop policy recommendations for 
Mural guidelines on public property. (Recommend 
dissolving upon adoption of Mural Program Policy) 

6  6/15/20 

 
Public Safety  
 
Responsible Staff:  
Police Department 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
As necessary until dissolved 
 

Mendoza 
Pacheco 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to a Public Safety 
Commission/Comittee, including reviewing the 
Public Safety structures and other public safety 
commission/committee related items that require 
additional study. (Recommend review during City 
Council re-org each year to determine necessity to 
extend) 

7  1/4/21 

 
Safe and Active Streets  
 
Responsible Staff:  
Public Works 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
To be Determined 
 

Rodriguez 
Montañez 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations related to the safe and active 
streets plan, including serving on the technical 
advisory committee and other related items that 
require additional study. (Recommend dissolving 
upon adoption of a Safe and Active Streets 
Implementation Plan) 

8  1/4/21 

 
Strategic Goals 
(renamed on 7/27/21) 
 
Responsible Staff: 
Administration  
 
Meeting Frequency: 
To be Determined 
 
 
 

Rodriguez 
Montañez 
 

 
Review information and develop recommendations 
to City Council for an outreach process to develop a 
vision and economic resiliency plan for the San 
Fernando Downtown, including review of prior 
economic development studies, Specific Plans, and 
other planning/visioning documents and their 
related public outreach/engagement process. 
(Recommend review during City Council re-org each 
year to determine necessity to extend) 
 

~ fERNANID 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 397 of 443



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

As of City Council, 10/18/21   
Page 3 

 
 

 

 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE CREATED NAME 
CITY 

COUNCIL 
MEMBERS 

SCOPE 

9  02/16/21 

Homeless Committee 
 
Responsible Staff: 
Administration 
 
Meeting Frequency: 
To be Determined 

Montañez 
Rodriguez 

Review information and develop recommendations 
to City Council related to addressing homelessness in 
San Fernando, including, but not limited to: Review 
of consultants to prepare a Homeless Plan; Provide 
guidance regarding community outreach as part of a 
Homeless Plan; Review proposed ordinances, 
resolutions, and policies that impact the homeless 
population in San Fernando; Review the City’s annual 
Point in Time (PIT) homeless count, and other 
homeless policy related items that require additional 
study. (Recommend dissolving upon adoption of a 
Homeless Plan) 

10  03/01/21 

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 
Committee 
 
Responsible Staff: 
Community Development 
 
Meeting Frequency: 
To be Determined 

Mendoza 
Montañez 

Review information and develop recommendations 
to City Council related to addressing updates to the 
Municipal Code to address ADU’s; review proposed 
ordinances, resolutions and planning and 
development impacts in San Fernando. (Recommend 
dissolving upon adoption of a ADU ordinance or 
policy) 

11  4/19/21 

COVID-19 Relief Program 
Effective 4/19/21 renamed from 
former “CDBG” 
 
Responsible Staff: 
Administration 
 
Meeting Frequency: 
To be Determined 

Pacheco 
Rodriguez 

Review information and develop recommendations 
to City Council for local COVID-19 economic relief 
programs and related funding, including, but not 
limited to, funding made available through the 
American Rescue Plan Act, additional CDBG-CV 
allocations, and any other funding sources available 
to provide local economic relief to businesses, 
residents, and the City. (Recommend dissolving once 
City Council has established local COVID-19 Relief 
Programs funded through available funding source)  

12  6/21/21 

San Fernando Beautification 
Program 
 
Responsible Staff: 
Public Works 
 
Meeting Frequency: 
To Be Determined 

Montañez 
Rodriguez 

PROPOSED/PENDING APPROVAL: 
Review information and develop recommendations 
to City Council related to the beautification program 
concepts, including, but not limited to, efforts 
towards community engagement, identify 
community clean-up project events and available city 
resources to provide the community with clean 
streets, parks, trails, public parking facilities, etc. 
within the City, under the direction of the City 
Manager. (Recommend review during City Council re-
org each year to determine necessity to extend) 

~ fERNANID 

' 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 398 of 443



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 

As of City Council, 10/18/21  
Page 4 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE CREATED NAME 
CITY 

COUNCIL 
MEMBERS 

SCOPE 

13 10/18/21 

Compana De Libertad (Liberty 
Bell) Committee 

Responsible Staff: 
Public Works 

Meeting Frequency: 
To Be Determined 

Montañez 
Rodriguez 

Review information and develop recommendations 
to City Council related to identifing a 
permanent location to display the Liberty Bell. 
(Recommend dissolving upon installation of the 
Liberty Bell) 

STANDING COMMITTEES:  None, as of this update. 

~ fERNANID 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 399 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  October 2021 

1 

DISASTER COUNCIL 

Municipal Code: §26-91

Composition: Nine Members - Specific Titles Italicized

Term of Office: Two years (for Members Nos. 5-9)

Meetings: 
Meets Quarterly (February, May, August, November)
City Hall – Community Room

Staff Contact: Nick Kimball, City Manager

Address & Phone: 
San Fernando City Hall
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340
(818) 898-1222

Chair: Sylvia Ballin

Vice-Chair: Mary Mendoza 

MEMBERS 
DATE OF 

APPOINTMENT 
TERM 

EXPIRES 

1 Mayor Sylvia Ballin 12/7/20 12/7/22 

2 Councilperson Appointed by Mayor Mary Mendoza 01/04/21 1/04/22 

3 Asst. Dir. Of Emergency Services Matthew Baumgardner 7/16/20 7/16/22 

4 Coordinator of Emergency Services Lt. Irwin Rosenberg 7/16/20 7/16/22 

5 Disaster Communications Rep. Gene Roske 7/16/20 7/16/22 

6 Rep. of the Fire Dept. Chief John Drake 7/16/20 7/16/22 

7 Rep. of the American Red Cross Christina Rodriguez 7/16/20 7/16/22 

8 Representative of the L.A.U.S.D. Jose Razo 7/16/20 7/16/22 

9 

Rep. of the California Emergency 
Mobile Patrol or other Similar 
Trained Volunteer Organization   

Janet Gibson 7/16/20 7/16/22 

ATTACHMENT "C"January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 400 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  October 2021 
 

2 

 

EDUCATION COMMISSION 

Municipal Code: §2-614  

Composition: Five Members  (must be a registered voter and City resident) 

Term of Office: §2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from 

Meetings: 
Meets Last Tuesday at 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers 

Staff Contact: 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk; transition effective 10/26/2021  to: 
Julian Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

Address & Phone: 
San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA  91340 
(818) 898-1204 

Chair: Angel Zobel-Rodriguez 

Vice-Chair: David Govea 

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
1 David Govea 11/18/19 Sylvia Ballin 

2 Nicole Mohr 10/21/19 Joel Fajardo 

3 Olivia Robledo  9/16/13 Robert C. Gonzales 

4 Suzanne Llamas 11/18/19 Mary Mendoza 

5 Angel Zobel-Rodriguez 1/7/19 Hector A. Pacheco 

 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 401 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  October 2021 
 

3 

PARKS, WELLNESS, AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

Municipal Code: §54-56 
 PWR Commission may appoint two cultural arts liaison members: 

- Liaison members do not have voting rights and City residency is not required 
- No stipend 

Composition: 
Five Members (must be a registered voter and City resident) and two liaison 
members (refer to above) 

Term of Office: §2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from  

Meetings: 
Meets 2nd Tuesday at 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

Staff Contact: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation & Community Services 

Address & Phone: 
Recreation Park 
208 Park Avenue, San Fernando, CA  91340 
(818) 898-7381 

Chair: Vacant 
Vice-Chair: Joe Ponce 

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
1 NinaMarie Julia Herrera Ballin 3/28/11 Sylvia Ballin 
2 Joe Ponce 10/19/15 Joel Fajardo 
3 Vacant  Robert C. Gonzales 
4 Jason B. Hayes 10/21/19 Mary Mendoza  
5 Vacant  Hector A. Pacheco 

PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Municipal Code:   §62-26 

Council Action - 
June 6, 2016: 

- Tree Commission Combined (Ordinance No. 1702) 
- Elements from the Tree Commission (i.e., street tree master planning and 
oak tree preservation) to be consolidated. 

Composition:               Five Members (must be a registered voter and City resident) 
Term of Office:             §2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from 

Meetings: 
Meets 2nd Monday at 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall - Council Chambers 

Staff Contact:  Director of Community Development (Vacant) 

Address & Phone: 
San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 
(818) 898-1227 

Chair: Joel Fajardo 
Vice-Chair: Marvin Perez  

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
1 Joel Fajardo 04/12/21 Sylvia Ballin 
2 Marvin R. Perez 10/21/19 Mary Mendoza 
3 Hector Pacheco Sr. 3/4/19 Hector A. Pacheco 
4 David Bernal 3/15/21 Cindy Montañez 
5 Yvonne Mejia 3/15/21 Celeste T. Rodriguez 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 402 of 443



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  October 2021 
 

4 

TRANSPORTATION AND SAFETY COMMISSION 

Municipal Code:          §90-71 

Composition:                Five Members (must be a City resident) 

Term of Office:            §2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from 

Meetings: 
Meets 1st Wednesday at 6 p.m. 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

Staff Contact:               Matthew Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 

Address & Phone: 
San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 
(818) 898-1222 

Chair:   Clarisa Tolentio 
Vice-Chair:   Francisco Arrizon 

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY COUNCILMEMBER 
1 Dee Akemon  9/21/15 Sylvia Ballin 
2 Carlos Hernandez 9/4/21 Cindy Montañez 
3 Rudy Trujillo 12/17/12 Robert Gonzales 
4 Francisco Arrizon 10/21/19 Mary Mendoza  
5 Nicole Mohr 9/3/19 Hector A. Pacheco 

 

SENIOR CITIZENS ADVISORY BOARD 

Established:      Minutes Order - October 1, 2001 City Council Meeting 

Composition:    
Five Members appointed by PWR Commission 
(Two representatives from Las Palmas Club, two Members from Park Avenue 
Club and one at-large Member) 

Term of Office: Two years 

Meetings:           
Meets 4th Thursday at 1:00 p.m. 
Las Palmas Park 

Staff Contact: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation & Community Services 

Address & Phone: 
Las Palmas Park 
505 S. Huntington Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 
(818) 898-7340 

Chair:  (Vacant) 

MEMBERS NOMINATE SECTOR 
DATE OF 

APPOINTMENT 
TERM 

EXPIRES 

1 (Vacant) Park Avenue Club - - 

2 (Vacant) Park Avenue Club - - 

3 Marco Tulio Escobar At-Large 9/9/14 9/9/16 

4 Benita Rivera Las Palmas Park Senior Club 11/10/15 11/10/17 

5 (Vacant) Las Palmas Park Senior Club - - 

 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 403 of 443



RESOLUTION NO. 8110 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA APPOINTING A DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE 
REPRESENTATIVE TO THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE INDEPENDENT 
CITIES RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (ICRMA) 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando ("City") is a member of the Independent Cities Risk 
Management Authority ("ICRMA"), a joint powers authority created pursuant to the provisions 
of the California Government Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, ICRMA provides a Liability Program, Workers' Compensation Program, 
Property Program, and other coverage programs for its members;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Joint Powers Agreement provides that the Governing Board of the 
Authority shall be comprised of one representative from each member;  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of each member may select and change any of its 
representatives by filing a resolution with ICRMA;   

 
WHEREAS, the City council may appoint legislative member(s) or staff member(s) to serve 

on the Governing Board;  
 
WHEREAS staff members shall have one of the following positions, or equivalent: City 

Attorney, Assistant City Attorney, Financial Officer, City Administrator/Manager, 
Assistant/Deputy City Administrator/Manager, Assistant to City Manager, Risk Manager, Human 
Resources Director/Manager, or Administrative Services Director; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City desires to designate its representative(s) to the ICRMA Governing Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Nick Kimball (a staff person) is hereby appointed to serve as a delegate 
on the ICRMA Governing Board. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That Michael Okafor (a staff person) is hereby appointed as the alternate, to 
serve on the ICRMA Governing Board in the absence of the primary member noted in Section 1 
above. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That the substitute alternate, to serve on the ICRMA Governing Board in the 
absence of the primary and alternate members noted in Sections 1 and 2 above, is currently 
vacant. 

ATTACHMENT “D” 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 404 of 443



  RES. NO. 8110 

2 

 SECTION 4. That the individuals designated by this City Council as the City's delegate, 
alternate and substitute alternate to the ICRMA Governing Board are hereby confirmed and 
designated as the City's delegates for all purposes of representing the City's interests and 
exercising the authority of the City with respect to all matters delegated to the Governing Board 
and signing all amendments as are contemplated to be approved by the Governing Board. 
 
 RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this Resolution shall be provided to the Executive 
Director of ICRMA. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of January 2022. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San  
      Fernando, California 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk  
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 405 of 443



  RES. NO. 8110 

3 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8110, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
3rd day of January, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of January 2022.  

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 406 of 443



Procedural Manual – City Council of the City of San Fernando 21

a. City Clerk opens the nominations for the position of Mayor
b. Nomination(s) is/are made for Mayor, and seconded
c. Hearing no objections, motion to close nominations
d. City Clerk conducts a roll call vote and each Councilmember announces their

vote for Mayor until a Mayor is elected by majority vote
e. City Clerk announces the results

Election of Vice Mayor:  (City Clerk to follow steps a-e above) 

11.2 SELECTION OF CITY COUNCIL LIAISONS AND DELEGATES 

After the procedure prescribed in Section 11.1 has been completed, the Mayor, 
with the consent of a majority of the City Council, may appoint new City Council 
liaisons/delegates to the various City Committees and Commissions, or as 
liaison/delegate to any other organization as may be appropriate. Nothing in this 
Section would prohibit the Mayor, with approval of a majority of the City Council 
from making changes or other appointments during any other time. 

12. COMMITTEES

12.1 GENERAL 

The Mayor may, subject to concurrence of a majority of the City Council: (a) 
designate standing and ad hoc committees (collectively “Committee”); and (b) 
make appointments to all committees.   

Each standing committee shall consist of two (2) Councilmembers.  An ad hoc 
committee may consist of either one or two Councilmembers. 

12.2 PURPOSE 

The primary purpose of each Committee is to provide a forum for the thorough 
vetting of matters within the committee’s subject matter jurisdiction, before 
they are presented to the City Council.  A secondary purpose is to provide 
guidance to City staff on matters within the committee’s subject matter 
jurisdiction, enabling staff to obtain interim guidance as they develop and refine 
matters for presentation to the City Council.  The objective is to eliminate, to the 
extent possible, those situations where the City Council is forced to deal with 
large and difficult issues at their meetings without any prior formal discussion or 
analytical input to guide staff’s work product. 

Ad hoc committees shall have a clear and definite scope and will be dissolved 
upon completion of the scope, unless otherwise extended by the City Council 
with a new scope. Ad hoc committees are less formal than standing committees 
and are therefore not subject to the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

ATTACHMENT "E"January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 407 of 443



City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-004.1 (11/2018) |  Page 1 of 2 

APPLICATION TO SERVE ON A CITY COMMISSION 
This is a public document. To assist the City Council in evaluating each applicant in the selection 

of Commission Members, please provide as complete of a response as possible to all questions. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
NAME PHONE NO. 

RESIDENCE ADDRESS CITY & STATE ZIP CODE 

MAILING ADDRESS If different than above CITY & STATE ZIP CODE 

EMAIL ADDRESS Business or personal to be used for Commission activity 

EMPLOYER POSITION 

BUSINESS ADDRESS CITY & STATE ZIP CODE 

BUSINESS PHONE 

ARE YOU A REGISTERED VOTER OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO? 

  YES           NO       

DO YOU OWN PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO? If yes, please list the address(es) 

  YES           NO       

DO YOU OWN OR OPERATE A BUSINESS IN SAN FERNANDO? If yes, please state the name and nature of the business 

  YES           NO       

MEMBER COMMITMENT 

I am willing to fulfill all requirements of a City Commissioner, including but not limited to: 

 As Planning and Preservation Commissioner, I am willing to file financial disclosure statements (Form 700), a
public record, as required by the State and the City’s Conflict of Interest Code.

 I understand that absence from three consecutive regular meetings shall be deemed to constitute my
retirement.

 I am willing to attend/complete the required two hours of State mandated AB1234 Ethics Training every two
years.

Please also attach and submit a brief bio statement to this application. 

I agree to all requirements mentioned above and have provided all correct and truthful information in this 
application. 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE DATE 

RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCILMEMBER: 
____________________________________ 

ATTACHMENT  "F"
THE CITY OF ~ 

SAN _,ERNANID 
-

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 408 of 443



APPLICATION TO SERVE ON A CITY COMMISSION 

City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-004.1 (11/2018) |  Page 2 of 2 

COMMISSION APPLICATION CHOICE(S) Please indicate which Commission you are interested in 

  EDUCATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando 

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Education Commission? 

  PARKS, WELLNESS, AND RECREATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando          

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Parks, Wellness, and Recreation Commission? 

  PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando          

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Planning and Preservation Commission? 

  TRANSPORTATION AND SAFETY COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando          

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Transportation and Safety Commission? 

PLEASE ATTACH AND SUBMIT A BRIEF BIO STATEMENT TO THIS APPLICATION 
  

sAN f ERNANID 
January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 409 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 410 of 443



January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 411 of 443



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 412 of 443



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1201                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

       

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco 
 
Date:  January 3, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Remote 

Teleconference Meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in 
Compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable 
Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
I have placed this on the agenda for City Council discussion (Attachment “A”) to reconsider 
authorizing remote teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in 
compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of 
Assembly Bill 361. 

BACKGROUND:  
 
On October 4, 2021, the City Council was presented with a staff report (Attachment “B”) 
regarding adopting a resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings of the City of San 
Fernando’s Legislative Bodies under the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361), which was 
signed into law on September 17, 2021.  The City Council did not adopt the resolution, thereby 
reverting all legislative body meetings to comply with all Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) 
requirements for public meetings.  
 
  
ANALYSIS: 
 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom issued EO N-29-20, which waived 
certain teleconferencing requirements under the Brown Act, allowing public agencies to conduct 
public meetings via teleconference, while still complying with open meeting requirements and 
abiding by public health orders.  EO N-29-20 expired on September 30, 2021.  

AB 361 amends the Brown Act’s Government Code Section 54953 to allow a local agency the 
option to hold teleconference meetings without complying with the teleconferencing 
requirements of the Brown Act if certain circumstances and findings are met.  The following 

ANill 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 413 of 443



Consideration and Discussion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of 
the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) 
and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
options were presented to the City Council at the October 4, 2021 regular meeting and City 
Council opted for Option 2:  
 
Option 1:  Adopt Resolution No. 8098 re-authorizing to continue remote teleconference 

meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies for a period of 30 days from 
October 4, 2021 to November 2, 2021 in compliance with Government Code Section 
54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill 361.  

 

OR 
 

Option 2: Take no action and the legislative body meetings will be required to comply with the 
requirements for public meetings (Pre-COVID-19 Pandemic). 

 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with consideration of the proposed resolution.   The cost of 
the Zoom virtual meeting platform is included in the FY 2021-2022 Adopted Budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council discuss the agenda item and provide staff with direction, 
as applicable.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A.   Councilmember Request to Agendize Item for Discussion 
B. Staff Report dated October 4, 2021  
  
 
 
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 414 of 443



City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-003.1 (07/2017) |  Page 1 of 1 

REQUEST TO AGENDIZE AN ITEM FOR CITY COUNCIL 
DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION

CITY COUNCILMEMBER INFORMATION 
NAME TITLE 

ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT Title of the item you are requesting to be agendized. 

PRIORITIES  
Is this included in the current FY priorities? 

  Yes    No 

BUDGET  
Is this a budgeted item? 

  Yes    No 

FISCAL IMPACT  
Is there a fiscal impact? If yes, indicate amount. 

  Yes    No     $
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS Provide the reason you are requesting this item be agendized. 

ATTACHMENTS Do you have any attachments to include? 

  Yes    No 
RECOMMENDATION Indicate the direction you are recommending. 

ATTACHMENT "A"THE CITY OF ~ 

SAN _,ERNANID 
-

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 415 of 443

Re-authorization to continue remote teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies for a period of sixty (60) days in compliance with pertinent Government Code and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bills. 

Covid-19 pandemic and the dangers it presents to gatherings of people compels our City Council to revisit previous decisions regarding Governor’s Emergency Proclamations. 



 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 (818) 898-1202 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Department      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By:  Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney 

  Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

Date: October 4, 2021 

Subject: Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution to Continue Remote Teleconference 
Meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies for a Period of 30 days from 
October 4, 2021 to November 2, 2021 In Compliance with Government Code 
Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

Option 1:  Adopt Resolution No. 8098 (Attachment “A”) re-authorizing to continue remote 
teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies for a period 
of 30 days from October 4, 2021 to November 2, 2021 in compliance 
with Government Code Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly 
Bill 361 (Attachment “B”). 

OR 

Option 2: Take no action and the legislative body meetings will be required to comply with the 
requirements for public meetings (Pre-COVID-19 Pandemic). 

BACKGROUND: 

1. On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency in California in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

2. On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 to, among other
things, suspend certain provisions of The Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”), the California
open meetings law, to authorize a local legislative body to hold public meetings via
teleconferencing and waiving the requirements of having the physical presence of the
legislative body members or the public as a condition of participation in, or quorum, for a
public meeting.

ATTACHMENT "B"

ANill 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 416 of 443



Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution to Continue Remote Teleconference Meetings of the City 
of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies for a Period of 30 days from October 4, 2021 to November 2, 2021 
In Compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly 
Bill 361 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
3. On June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order (EO) N-08-21 to begin winding 

down some of the prior measures adopted to respond to COVID-19.  Notably, EO N-08-21 
rescinds the Brown Act Orders, effective September 30, 2021. 
 

4. On September 17, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law, Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361) 
amending the Brown Act’s Government Code Section 54953 that would allow a local agency 
the option to hold teleconference meetings without complying with the teleconferencing 
requirements of the Brown Act if the legislative body adopts specific findings to support 
continued remote meetings.  
 
 

ANALYSIS: 

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom issued EO N-29-20, which waived 
certain teleconferencing requirements under the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act), allowing 
public agencies to conduct public meetings via teleconference, while still complying with open 
meeting requirements and abiding by public health orders.  EO N-29-20 expired on September 
30, 2021.  

AB 361 amends the Brown Act’s Government Code Section 54953 to allow a local agency the 
option to hold teleconference meetings without complying with the teleconferencing 
requirements of the Brown Act if certain circumstances are met.   The special circumstances are 
found particularly in subsection (e) of Section 54953, and require that the legislative body holds 
a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and: 

1. that state and local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing; or 

2. the legislative body holds a meeting for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, 
whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks 
to the health or safety of attendees; or 

3. the legislative body holds a meeting and determines by majority vote, that as a result of 
the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 
of the attendees. 

If the state of emergency remains active or state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, the legislative body must renew the resolution every 30 
days, by majority vote, to continue to meet under the special teleconferencing provisions.  

  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 417 of 443



Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution to Continue Remote Teleconference Meetings of the City 
of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies for a Period of 30 days from October 4, 2021 to November 2, 2021 
In Compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly 
Bill 361 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
In addition, a meeting under these special circumstances requires compliance with additional 
safeguards to ensure public access, which are:  

1. All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory 
and constitutional rights of those appearing before the legislative body. 

2. In addition to providing notice and posting the time of the teleconferenced meeting, 
the agency shall also give notice of the manner by which members of the public may 
access the meeting and offer public comment. 

3. The agenda shall identify and include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-
in option or an internet-based service option but does not require the agency to provide 
a physical location for which the public may attend or comment. 

4. The agency shall allow members of the public to access the meeting, and the agenda 
shall include an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative body 
directly and to offer comments in real time. 

5. In the event of a disruption, which prevents the agency from broadcasting the meeting 
to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, or in 
the event of a disruption within the agency’s control, which prevents the public from 
offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based service option, the 
legislative body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting agenda 
until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service option 
is restored. 

6. Written or remote public comments must be accepted until the public comment period 
is formally closed; registration or sign-up to provide or to be recognized to provide 
public comment can only be closed when the public comment period is formally closed.  

Since the initial emergency declaration, the City swiftly responded to the health crises and public 
agency protocols regarding all publicly noticed meetings of the legislative body and implemented 
options for members of the public the opportunity to submit public comments by email, live call-
in (real-time), and through an internet based platform (Zoom).  The Zoom platform offers live 
video and audio conferencing as well as the ability to stream meetings live to YouTube.  
 
The proposed resolution (Attachment “A”) making a determination approving findings in 
accordance with AB 361, would allow the City to continue the option to hold teleconference 
meetings without complying with certain teleconferencing requirements of the Brown Act.  The 
resolution would only be effective for 30 days (October 4, 2021 through November 2, 2021).  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 418 of 443



Consideration and Adoption of a Resolution to Continue Remote Teleconference Meetings of the City 
of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies for a Period of 30 days from October 4, 2021 to November 2, 2021 
In Compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly 
Bill 361 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 If necessary, the City Council can renew the resolution, every 30 days, at which time a 
subsequent resolution will need to be adopted.   If the resolution lapses, the Board can adopt a 
new resolution to make the initial determinations again. 

 
BUDGET IMPACT:  

There is no fiscal impact associated with consideration of the proposed resolution.   The cost of 
the Zoom virtual meeting platform is  included in the FY 2021-2022 Adopted Budget.  

 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council discuss and consider the following options: 
 
Option 1:  Adopt Resolution No. 8098 (Attachment “A”) re-authorizing to continue remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies for a period 
of 30 days from October 4, 2021 to November 2, 2021 in compliance  
with Government Code Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly 
Bill 361.  

 
OR 

 
Option 2: Take no action and the legislative body meetings will be required to comply with the 

requirements for public meetings (Pre-COVID-19 Pandemic). 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8098 
B. Assembly Bill 361 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 419 of 443



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8098 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A 
STATE OF EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON MARCH 4, 2020, 
AND AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS FOR ALL 
LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, FROM 
OCTOBER 4, 2021 THROUGH NOVEMBER 2, 2021, PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTON 54953(E) IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
 

 
WHEREAS, COVID-19 (also known as the “Coronavirus Disease”) is a respiratory disease 

that was first reported in China in December 2019, it has now spread throughout the world, 
including the State of California and the City of San Fernando (“City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a State of Emergency in 
response to the rising cases of COVID-19 throughout the state of California; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors and Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Health (“LACDPH”) declared a local emergency and local 
public health emergency in response to the spread of COVID-19 throughout the County; and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 10, 2020, in response to the conditions of extreme peril to the safety 
of persons within the City, the San Fernando City Council (“City Council”) declared a local 
emergency consistent with the declaration of local emergency by the LACPH; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill No. 
361 (“AB 361”), which, until January 1, 2024, authorizes a local agency to use teleconferencing 
without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown Act 
(“Brown Act”) when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a declared state 
of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing or when the legislative body has 
determined that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees; and  

 
WHEREAS, since the declaration of emergency by LACDPH, LACDPH have issued a series 

of Health Officer Orders containing mandates and recommendations for keeping individuals safe 
and preventing the spread of COVID-19; and  

 
WHEREAS, the most recent Health Officer Order, issued by LACDPH on  

September 17, 2021, states that all individuals and businesses are strongly urged to follow the 
LACDPH Best Practice Guidance, containing health and safety recommendations for COVID-19; 
the LACDPH Best Practice Guidance for individuals titled “COVID-19: Reducing Risk, Keeping Safe 
& Preventing Spread,” in a section titled: 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 420 of 443



  RES. NO. 8098 

2 

“How to Reduce the Risk of COVID-19,” states “Keep your distance. Use two arms lengths as your 
guide (about 6 feet) for social distancing with people outside your household when you are not 
sure they are fully vaccinated”; and the LACDPH Best Practices to Prevent COVID-19, Guidance 
for Businesses and Employers, in a section titled “Maintain healthy business operations,” 
recommends implementation of policies and practices that support physical distancing, stating, 
“Whenever possible, take steps to reduce crowding indoors and enable employees and 
customers to physically distance from each other. Generally, at least 6 feet of distance is 
recommended, although not a guarantee of safety, especially in enclosed or poorly ventilated 
spaces.”; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 requires legislative bodies that conduct teleconferenced meetings 

under its the relaxed and abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting 
and post agendas, as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and 
address the legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may 
access the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing 
before the legislative body; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 requires the legislative body take no further action on agenda items 

when there is a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the meeting, or 
in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members of the 
public from offering public comments, until public access is restored; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 

submitted in advance of the meeting and specifies that the legislative body must provide an 
opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in real time; and 
 

WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from closing the public comment period 
and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment period has 
elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council meetings and meetings of certain other subordinate bodies 
of the City (e.g, the Planning and Preservation Commission)  are open and public, as required by 
the Brown Act, so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the City 
Council or City Commission conduct their business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City finds that the continuous spread of COVID-19 throughout the 
community has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons 
within the City that are likely to be beyond the control of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City continues to recommend measures to promote social distancing 

which include but are not limited to: 1) requiring that staff and civilians wear masks in City 
buildings, and 2) posting COVID-19 safety measures throughout City buildings and on City’s social 
media accounts.  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 421 of 443



  RES. NO. 8098 

3 

WHEREAS, in light of the continuing State declaration of emergency resulting from the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the continuing recommendation by Los Angeles County Public Health 
officials of measures to promote social distancing, and the imminent risks to the health of safety 
of attendees at meetings conducted in person due to the spread of COVID-19, the City Council 
desires to make the findings required by AB 361 to allow the City Council and all City Boards and 
Commissions to continue to meet under AB 361’s abbreviated teleconferencing procedures. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS:  

 
SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 

this Resolution by reference; and 
 
SECTION 2. The City Council finds that the State and County declarations of emergency 

in response to the COVID-19 pandemic remain in place; and 
 
SECTION 3. The City Council finds that local officials, specifically, the Los Angeles 

County Department of Public Health, has continued to recommend social distancing measures.  
 

SECTION 4. The City of San Fernando staff along with the City Council are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this 
Resolution including, taking measures to ensure that meetings of the City Council, the Planning 
and Preservation Commission and all meetings of other commissions subject to the Brown Act 
are conducted in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54953(e) to the 
extent such bodies continue to avail themselves of the relaxed and teleconferencing procedures 
permitted under AB 361.  

 
SECTION 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Resolution and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without 
regard to whether any portion of this Resolution would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption and shall be 
effective until the earlier of (i) November 4, 2021 or such time the City Council adopts a 
subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the 
time during which the legislative bodies of the City of SAN FERNANDO may continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

 
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 422 of 443



  RES. NO. 8098 

4 

SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 4th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Sylvia Ballin, Mayor of the City of San 
Fernando, California  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk  
  

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 423 of 443



  RES. NO. 8098 

5 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  SS: 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO ) 
 
 
 
I, Julia Fritz, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution 
No. 8098 was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, signed by the 
Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 4th day of 
October, 2021 and that said Resolution was adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
   
ABSTAIN:  

 
 
         
   Julia Fritz, CMC 
   City Clerk  
 
 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 424 of 443



Assembly Bill No. 361 

CHAPTER 165 

An act to add and repeal Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, and to amend, repeal, 
and add Section 54953 of, and to add and repeal Section 11133 of, the Government 
Code, relating to open meetings, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect 
immediately. 

[ Approved by Governor  September 16, 2021. 

 Filed with Secretary of State  September 16, 2021. ] 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

AB 361, Robert Rivas. Open meetings: state and local agencies: teleconferences. 

(1) Existing law, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires, with specified exceptions, that all
meetings of a legislative body of a local agency, as those terms are defined, be open and
public and that all persons be permitted to attend and participate. The act contains
specified provisions regarding the timelines for posting an agenda and providing for the
ability of the public to directly address the legislative body on any item of interest to the
public. The act generally requires all regular and special meetings of the legislative body
be held within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises
jurisdiction, subject to certain exceptions. The act allows for meetings to occur via
teleconferencing subject to certain requirements, particularly that the legislative body
notice each teleconference location of each member that will be participating in the public
meeting, that each teleconference location be accessible to the public, that members of
the public be allowed to address the legislative body at each teleconference location, that
the legislative body post an agenda at each teleconference location, and that at least a
quorum of the legislative body participate from locations within the boundaries of the local
agency’s jurisdiction. The act provides an exemption to the jurisdictional requirement for
health authorities, as defined. The act authorizes the district attorney or any interested
person, subject to certain provisions, to commence an action by mandamus or injunction
for the purpose of obtaining a judicial determination that specified actions taken by a
legislative body are null and void.

Existing law, the California Emergency Services Act, authorizes the Governor, or the 
Director of Emergency Services when the governor is inaccessible, to proclaim a state of 
emergency under specified circumstances. 

Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for 
teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic provided that notice and accessibility 
requirements are met, the public members are allowed to observe and address the 
legislative body at the meeting, and that a legislative body of a local agency has a 
procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for 
individuals with disabilities, as specified. 

ATTACHMENT "B"January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 425 of 443



This bill, until January 1, 2024, would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 
without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. 
Brown Act when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a declared 
state of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials have 
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, during a proclaimed 
state of emergency held for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and during a 
proclaimed state of emergency when the legislative body has determined that meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, as provided. 

This bill would require legislative bodies that hold teleconferenced meetings under these 
abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting and post agendas, 
as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and address the 
legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may access 
the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a 
manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public 
appearing before the legislative body. The bill would require the legislative body to take 
no further action on agenda items when there is a disruption which prevents the public 
agency from broadcasting the meeting, or in the event of a disruption within the local 
agency’s control which prevents members of the public from offering public comments, 
until public access is restored. The bill would specify that actions taken during the 
disruption are subject to challenge proceedings, as specified. 

This bill would prohibit the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 
submitted in advance of the meeting and would specify that the legislative body must 
provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in 
real time. The bill would prohibit the legislative body from closing the public comment 
period and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment 
period has elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified. When 
there is a continuing state of emergency, or when state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, the bill would require a legislative 
body to make specified findings not later than 30 days after the first teleconferenced 
meeting pursuant to these provisions, and to make those findings every 30 days 
thereafter, in order to continue to meet under these abbreviated teleconferencing 
procedures. 

Existing law prohibits a legislative body from requiring, as a condition to attend a meeting, 
a person to register the person’s name, or to provide other information, or to fulfill any 
condition precedent to the person’s attendance. 

This bill would exclude from that prohibition, a registration requirement imposed by a third-
party internet website or other online platform not under the control of the legislative body. 

(2) Existing law, the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, requires, with specified exceptions, 
that all meetings of a state body be open and public and all persons be permitted to attend 
any meeting of a state body. The act requires at least one member of the state body to 
be physically present at the location specified in the notice of the meeting. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 426 of 443



The Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the requirements of the Bagley-
Keene Open Meeting Act for teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic, provided 
that notice and accessibility requirements are met, the public members are allowed to 
observe and address the state body at the meeting, and that a state body has a procedure 
for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals 
with disabilities, as specified. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 
accessibility requirements, a state body to hold public meetings through teleconferencing 
and to make public meetings accessible telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all 
members of the public seeking to observe and to address the state body. With respect to 
a state body holding a public meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend 
certain requirements of existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference 
location be accessible to the public and that members of the public be able to address 
the state body at each teleconference location. Under the bill, a state body that holds a 
meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and 
address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any 
requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and 
offer public comment. The bill would require that each state body that holds a meeting 
through teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. 
The bill would urge state bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to existing law, as provided. 

(3) Existing law establishes the various campuses of the California State University under 
the administration of the Trustees of the California State University, and authorizes the 
establishment of student body organizations in connection with the operations of 
California State University campuses. 

The Gloria Romero Open Meetings Act of 2000 generally requires a legislative body, as 
defined, of a student body organization to conduct its business in a meeting that is open 
and public. The act authorizes the legislative body to use teleconferencing, as defined, 
for the benefit of the public and the legislative body in connection with any meeting or 
proceeding authorized by law. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 
accessibility requirements, a legislative body, as defined for purposes of the act, to hold 
public meetings through teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 
telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe 
and to address the legislative body. With respect to a legislative body holding a public 
meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend certain requirements of 
existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference location be accessible 
to the public and that members of the public be able to address the legislative body at 
each teleconference location. Under the bill, a legislative body that holds a meeting 
through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and address the 
meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any requirement that the 
legislative body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and offer public 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 427 of 443



comment. The bill would require that each legislative body that holds a meeting through 
teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. The 
bill would urge legislative bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to existing law, as provided. 

(4) This bill would declare the Legislature’s intent, consistent with the Governor’s 
Executive Order No. N-29-20, to improve and enhance public access to state and local 
agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future emergencies by allowing 
broader access through teleconferencing options. 

(5) This bill would incorporate additional changes to Section 54953 of the Government 
Code proposed by AB 339 to be operative only if this bill and AB 339 are enacted and 
this bill is enacted last. 

(6) The California Constitution requires local agencies, for the purpose of ensuring public 
access to the meetings of public bodies and the writings of public officials and agencies, 
to comply with a statutory enactment that amends or enacts laws relating to public records 
or open meetings and contains findings demonstrating that the enactment furthers the 
constitutional requirements relating to this purpose. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(7) Existing constitutional provisions require that a statute that limits the right of access to 
the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public officials and agencies be adopted 
with findings demonstrating the interest protected by the limitation and the need for 
protecting that interest. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(8) This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute. 

DIGEST KEY 

Vote: 2/3   Appropriation: no   Fiscal Committee: yes   Local Program: no   

 
BILL TEXT 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. 

 Section 89305.6 is added to the Education Code, to read: 

89305.6. 

 (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 
accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a legislative body may hold public 
meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 428 of 443



or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 
the legislative body. 

(b) (1) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant 
to this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 
the clerk or other personnel of the legislative body, or the public, as a condition of 
participation in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 
this section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 
meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 
proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the legislative body at each teleconference 
conference location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

(E) At least one member of the legislative body be physically present at the location 
specified in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A legislative body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members 
of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise 
electronically, consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) 
and (e), shall have satisfied any requirement that the legislative body allow members of 
the public to attend the meeting and offer public comment. A legislative body need not 
make available any physical location from which members of the public may observe the 
meeting and offer public comment. 

(d) If a legislative body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section 
and allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically, the legislative body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 
modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 
of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each legislative body that holds 
a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 
according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 
otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 429 of 443



(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 
members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 
instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 
any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 
been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 
of the means of public observation and comment, a legislative body may satisfy this 
requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 
rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 
observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 
time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the legislative body’s 
internet website. 

(f) All legislative bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged 
to use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as 
reasonably possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to 
maximize transparency and provide the public access to legislative body meetings. 

(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 2. 

 Section 11133 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

11133. 

 (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 
accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a state body may hold public 
meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 
or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 
the state body. 

(b) (1) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 
this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 
the clerk or other personnel of the state body, or the public, as a condition of participation 
in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this 
section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 
meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 
proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the state body at each teleconference conference 
location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 430 of 443



(E) At least one member of the state body be physically present at the location specified 
in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A state body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically, 
consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), shall 
have satisfied any requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend 
the meeting and offer public comment. A state body need not make available any physical 
location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public 
comment. 

(d) If a state body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section and 
allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically, the state body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 
modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 
of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each state body that holds a 
meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 
according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 
otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 
members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 
instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 
any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 
been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 
of the means of public observation and comment, a state body may satisfy this 
requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 
rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 
observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 
time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the state body’s 
internet website. 

(f) All state bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to maximize 
transparency and provide the public access to state body meetings. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 431 of 443



(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 3. 

 Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

 (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 
specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 
teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 432 of 443



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 
of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 
of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 
following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 
required by this chapter. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 433 of 443



(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 
agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 
the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 
include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 
service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 
the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 
legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 
meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 
or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 
service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 
agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 
option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 
public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 
54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 
the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 
and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 
legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 
comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 
through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 
the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 
required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 
participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 
item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 
public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 
per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 
including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 
otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 
correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 434 of 443



opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 
subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 
following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 
proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 
(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 3.1. 

 Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

 (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency in person, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall 
conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil 
rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other 
nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 
specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 435 of 443



(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 
teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 436 of 443



(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 
of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 
of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 
following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 
required by this chapter. 

(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 
agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 
the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 
include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 
service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 
the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 
legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 
meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 
or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 
service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 
agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 
option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 437 of 443



public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 
54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 
the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 
and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 
legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 
comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 
through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 
the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 
required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 
participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 
item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 
public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 
per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 
including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 
otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 
correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 
opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 
subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 
following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 
proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 
(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 438 of 443



(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 4. 

 Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

 (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter 
and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 
proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 439 of 443



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 

SEC. 4.1. 

 Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

 (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, in person except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall 
conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil 
rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other 
nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter 
and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 
proceeding. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 440 of 443



(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 441 of 443



(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 

SEC. 5. 

 Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill incorporate amendments to Section 54953 of the 
Government Code proposed by both this bill and Assembly Bill 339. Those sections of 
this bill shall only become operative if (1) both bills are enacted and become effective on 
or before January 1, 2022, but this bill becomes operative first, (2) each bill amends 
Section 54953 of the Government Code, and (3) this bill is enacted after Assembly Bill 
339, in which case Section 54953 of the Government Code, as amended by Sections 3 
and 4 of this bill, shall remain operative only until the operative date of Assembly Bill 339, 
at which time Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill shall become operative. 

SEC. 6. 

 It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this act to improve and enhance public access 
to state and local agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future applicable 
emergencies, by allowing broader access through teleconferencing options consistent 
with the Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, permitting 
expanded use of teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SEC. 7. 

 The Legislature finds and declares that Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, repeal, 
and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, further, within the meaning of paragraph 
(7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the purposes 
of that constitutional section as it relates to the right of public access to the meetings of 
local public bodies or the writings of local public officials and local agencies. Pursuant to 
paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the 
Legislature makes the following findings: 

This act is necessary to ensure minimum standards for public participation and notice 
requirements allowing for greater public participation in teleconference meetings during 
applicable emergencies. 

SEC. 8. 

 (a) The Legislature finds and declares that during the COVID-19 public health 
emergency, certain requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9 
(commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the 
Government Code) were suspended by Executive Order N-29-20. Audio and video 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 442 of 443



teleconference were widely used to conduct public meetings in lieu of physical location 
meetings, and public meetings conducted by teleconference during the COVID-19 public 
health emergency have been productive, have increased public participation by all 
members of the public regardless of their location in the state and ability to travel to 
physical meeting locations, have protected the health and safety of civil servants and the 
public, and have reduced travel costs incurred by members of state bodies and reduced 
work hours spent traveling to and from meetings. 

(b) The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, which adds and repeals 
Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, Section 2 of this act, which adds and repeals 
Section 11133 of the Government Code, and Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, 
repeal, and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, all increase and potentially limit 
the public’s right of access to the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public 
officials and agencies within the meaning of Section 3 of Article I of the California 
Constitution. Pursuant to that constitutional provision, the Legislature makes the following 
findings to demonstrate the interest protected by this limitation and the need for protecting 
that interest: 

(1) By removing the requirement that public meetings be conducted at a primary physical 
location with a quorum of members present, this act protects the health and safety of civil 
servants and the public and does not preference the experience of members of the public 
who might be able to attend a meeting in a physical location over members of the public 
who cannot travel or attend that meeting in a physical location. 

(2) By removing the requirement for agendas to be placed at the location of each public 
official participating in a public meeting remotely, including from the member’s private 
home or hotel room, this act protects the personal, private information of public officials 
and their families while preserving the public’s right to access information concerning the 
conduct of the people’s business. 

SEC. 9. 

 This act is an urgency statute necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, health, or safety within the meaning of Article IV of the California Constitution and 
shall go into immediate effect. The facts constituting the necessity are: 

In order to ensure that state and local agencies can continue holding public meetings 
while providing essential services like water, power, and fire protection to their 
constituents during public health, wildfire, or other states of emergencies, it is necessary 
that this act take effect immediately. 

 

January 3, 2022 CC/SA Regular Meeting

Page 443 of 443


	A-01-03-22 CC-S Agenda
	B-01-03-22 CC&SA Agenda
	C-5-18-20 CC Min
	D-8-17-20 CC Min
	E-9-8-20 CC Min
	F-9-21-20 CC Min
	G-3-01-21 CC&SA Minutes
	H-10-04-21 CC&SA Minutes
	I-10-18-21 CC&SA Minutes
	J-12-06-21 CC-S Minutes
	K-FIN_City Warrant (01-03-22) AR (COMBINED)
	L-FIN_SA Last and Final ROPS 22-23 (1-3-2022) AR (COMBINED)
	ADPD94.tmp
	Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part of this Resolution.
	Section 2. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Dissolution Act.
	Section 3. The Successor Agency Board hereby approves and adopts the Last and Final ROPS, substantially in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “1” as will be submitted for approval to the Oversight Board no later than February 1, 2022.  Th...
	Section 4. The officers and staff of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to submit a copy of the Last and Final ROPS to the Department of Finance, the County Auditor-Controller and the County administrative ...
	Section 5. Staff is hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to submit a copy of the Oversight Board-approved Last and Final ROPS to the Department of Finance, the Office of the State Controller, and the County Auditor-Controller.
	Section 6. Staff is hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to post a copy of the Oversight Board-Approved Last and Final ROPS on the Successor Agency’s Internet website (being a page on the Internet website of the City of San Fernando).
	Section 7. The officers and staff of the Successor Agency are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or advisable to effectuate this Resolution, including requesting additional rev...
	Section 8. The Successor Agency Board determines that the activity approved by this Resolution is not a “project” for purposes of CEQA, as that term is defined by Guidelines Section 15378, because the activity approved by this Resolution is an organiz...
	PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3RD day of January, 2022.

	FIN_SA Last and Final ROPS 22-23 (1-3-2022) ATT B.pdf
	FIN_SA ROPS 20-21 A_B and Last and Final ROPS (1-6-20) ATT B EXH 1.pdf
	Summary by ROPS Period
	ROPS Detail



	M-PW_Third Amendment -  John Robinson Consulting   No. 1912 (1-3-22) AR (COMBINED)
	PW_Third Amendment -  John Robinson Consulting   No. 1912 (1-3-22) ATT A.pdf
	PW_Third Amendment -  John Robinson Consulting   No. 1912 (1-3-22) ATT A
	20211202 Amendment No 3 Upper Reservoir Replacement Project
	Additional Scope of Services:
	 KJ will provide project management support for an additional 3 months in order to complete the bidding support to assist the City to award the project to a successful Contractor.
	Project Schedule - The additional scope of services has extended the project an additional 3 months.
	Project Schedule - The additional scope of services has extended the project an additional 3 months.
	Additional Compensation - Attached is a Table 1 fee breakdown of our fee for each discipline. The fee will be on a time and materials basis, not to exceed $67,785.51.
	Additional Compensation - Attached is a Table 1 fee breakdown of our fee for each discipline. The fee will be on a time and materials basis, not to exceed $67,785.51.




	N-ADM_Coronavirus Update (1-3-21) AR (COMBINED)
	O-PW_Engineering and Traffic Survey 2021 (1-3-22) AR (COMBINED)
	PW_Engineering and Traffic Survey 2021 (1-3-22) AR
	PW_Engineering and Traffic Survey 2021 (1-3-22) ATT A
	SECTION 3. Severability.  If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase in this ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdicti...
	SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this Ordinance and shall cause this Ordinance to be published or posted as required by law.

	PW_Engineering and Traffic Survey 2021 (1-3-22) ATT B
	PW_Engineering and Traffic Survey 2021 (1-3-22) ATT C
	E+T Survey Report for Speed Limits, 2021
	1 - 2018 - 2020 Collision Rates
	Collision Rates

	2 - 2021 Traffic Volume and Vehicle Speeds
	1 - SFD_Arroyo_B_Bordon_Glenoaks
	13 - SFD_Glenoaks_W_Fermoore
	14 - SFD_Glenoaks_E_Newton
	15 - SFD_Harding_S_Glenoaks
	16 - SFD_Harding_B_Glenoaks_Fourth
	17 - SFD_Harding_B_Fourth_First
	19 - SFD_Maclay_S Eighth
	20 - SFD_Maclay_B_Glenoaks_Fourth
	21 - SFD_Maclay_B_Fourth_Truman
	24 - SFD_Orange Grove_B_Glenoaks_Fourth
	25 - SFD_Park_S_Fourth

	3 - 2014 California MUTCD Provisions
	Scan
	Scan_0001

	5 - CA AB43 _ 2021-2022 _ Regular Session _ Chaptered _ LegiScan


	P-CDD_Study Session Housing Element Saferty Element Update (1-3-22) AR (COMBINED)
	Q-CDD_SB 9 Urgency Ord (1-3-22) AR (COMBINED)
	CDD_SB 9 Urgency Ord (1-3-22) AR
	CDD_SB 9 Urgency Ord (1-3-22) ATT A
	CDD_SB 9 Urgency Ord (1-3-22) ATT B
	CDD_SB 9 Urgency Ord (1-3-22) ATT C
	Ballot Initiative Title and Summary (21-0016A1)
	21-0016A1 (Local Land Use)


	R-CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) AR (COMBINED)
	CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) AR
	CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) ATT A
	CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) ATT B
	CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) ATT C
	CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) ATT D
	CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) ATT E
	CLK_Ad Hoc Committees & Liaison Assignments & ICRMA Alternative Delegate  (1-3-22) ATT F

	S-PACHECO_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (1-3-22) AR (COMBINED)
	PACHECO_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (1-3-22) AR
	PACHECO_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (1-3-22) ATT A
	PACHECO_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (1-3-22) ATT B
	CLK_AB 361 Brown Act Reso Virtual options (10-4-21) AR
	CLK_AB 361 Brown Act Reso Virtual options (10-4-21) ATT A
	RESOLUTION NO. 8098

	CLK_AB 361 Brown Act Reso Virtual options (10-4-21) ATT B



	RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCILMEMBER: 
	NAME: 
	PHONE NO: 
	RESIDENCE ADDRESS: 
	CITY  STATE: 
	ZIP CODE: 
	MAILING ADDRESS If different than above: 
	CITY  STATE_2: 
	ZIP CODE_2: 
	EMAIL ADDRESS Business or personal to be used for Commission activity: 
	EMPLOYER: 
	POSITION: 
	BUSINESS ADDRESS: 
	CITY  STATE_3: 
	ZIP CODE_3: 
	BUSINESS PHONE: 
	ARE YOU A REGISTERED VOTER OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO?: Off
	DO YOU OWN PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO? IF YES, PLEASE LIST THE ADDRESS(ES): Off
	DO YOU OWN PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO If yes please list the addresses YES NO: 
	DO YOU OWN OR OPERATE A BUSINESS IN SAN FERNANDO? IF YES, PLEASE STATE THE NAME AND NATURE OF THE BUSINESS: Off
	DO YOU OWN OR OPERATE A BUSINESS IN SAN FERNANDO If yes please state the name and nature of the business YES NO: 
	EDUCATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando: Off
	EDUCATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Education Commission: 
	PARKS WELLNESS AND RECREATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando: Off
	PARKS WELLNESS AND RECREATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Parks Wellness and Recreation Commission: 
	PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando: Off
	PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Planning and Preservation Commission: 
	TRANSPORTATION AND SAFETY COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando: Off
	TRANSPORTATION AND SAFETY COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Transportation and Safety Commission: 
	COUNCILMEMBER_NAME: 
	TITLE: 
	SUBJECT Title of the item you are requesting to be agendized: 
	PRIORITIES Is this included in the current FY priorities: Off
	BUDGET Is this a budgeted item: Off
	FISCAL IMPACT_Is_there_a_fiscal_impact?_If_yes,_indicate_amount: Off
	Fiscal Impact Amount: 
	BACKGROUNDANALYSIS Provide the reason you are requesting this item be agendized: 
	RECOMMENDATION Indicate the direction you are recommending: Reverse October 2021 order and allow remote teleconferencing for City Council and Commission meetings. 
	CLEAR FORM: 
	ATTACHMENTS_Do_you_have_any_attachments_to_include?: Off


